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Every driver of a GM car, crossover

or truck is a driver of our growth. We're
putting our vision in motion by putting our
customers first—executing our strategy
to attract and delight more of them

every day, all over the world.

Please go to www.gmannualreport.com to view our new online
annual report—a view of our year, our strategy, our vehicles and more.
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Dear Stockholder:

On behalf of all of us at today’s General Motors, thank you for investing
in GM. The team here has been working very hard to earn the business of
customers around the world and to win the confidence of investors like you.
Your company is on the move once again. While there were highs and
lows in 2011, our overall report card shows very solid marks, including
record net income attributable to common stockholders of $7.6 billion
and EBIT-adjusted income of $8.3 billion.
What'’s just as compelling to me is the story behind the numbers.
It shows how we are addressing our challenges and positioning this
company for sustained profitable growth around the world.

Here are just some of the highlights from 2011:

e GM increased its global market share by 0.4 percentage points
from 2010 to 11.9 percent in 2011.

GM'’s overall momentum, including a 13 percent sales increase in

the United States, created new jobs and drove investments. We have
announced investments in 29 U.S. facilities totaling more than $7.1
billion since July 2009, with more than 17,500 jobs created or retained.

¢ Our suppliers and dealers are investing for the future right alongside
us. In fact, more than 3,400 dealerships in the United States are
undergoing upgrades and renovations to improve the customer sales
and service experience.

In China, GM is the clear market leader and we continued to outpace
the competition in 2011. Sales by GM and our joint venture partners

increased more than 8 percent compared with 2010, and our market
share was up 0.7 percentage points to 13.6 percent.

¢ We managed our way through the aftermath of the Japanese
earthquake and tsunami without any material impact on our operations
thanks to great teamwork between GM and our supplier partners.

e We sold our equity interest in Delphi Automotive and our
preferred stock holdings in Ally Financial for a combined $4.8 billion
to simplify and further strengthen our “fortress” balance sheet.

¢ GM and the UAW negotiated a new four-year labor agreement that
protects our low break-even level in the United States, preserves our
fortress balance sheet and creates a more transparent and aligned profit
sharing plan. We are also giving employees the opportunity to benefit
financially when they improve the initial quality of GM vehicles.

We strengthened our global leadership team, with new leaders in finance,
product development, human resources and other critical areas.

Both Moody’s Investors Service and Standard & Poor’s recognize
just how far we’ve come, and have upgraded our corporate credit ratings
to one notch below investment grade. Achieving investment grade status
is something we will earn by remaining focused on our four guiding
principles, and executing them with passion, relentless attention to
detail and true accountability.

DANIEL F. AKERSON
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

The four principles I’m talking about have not changed
since GM’s initial public offering:

Design, Build and Sell the World’s Best Vehicles
This pillar is intended to keep the customer at the center of everything
we do, and success is pretty easy to define. It means creating vehicles
that people desire, value and are proud to own. When we get this right,
it transforms our reputation and the company’s bottom line.

Just look at the performance
of the 2012 Chevrolet [
in the United States a
compare it to the 201
Chevrolet Cobalt. Th
average transaction
price for a Cruze is ab)
28 percent higher, its
resale value after three years is about 32 percent higher and it gets up to
14 percent better highway fuel economy, according to EPA estimates. This
is the kind of success we plan to replicate every opportunity we get.

The Chevrolet Volt and Opel Ampera extended-range electric vehicles
are two other great examples. Between them, they have won nearly every
major product award, including both the North American and European Car
of the Year. More meaningfully, a respected third-party survey found that
nearly every Volt customer would buy the same car again. When the final
word on these products is written, they are going to be viewed as mile-
stones for the industry — not just for GM.

In 2012, we’re moving even faster and more aggressively on the product
front. In the United States, we will have all-new or redesigned cars and
crossovers in segments that represent 60 percent of the retail light vehicle
industry. This includes the new Cadillac XTS and ATS luxury sedans and
the Chevrolet Spark minicar - all of which enter segments where we
don’t compete today.

Each of these new products is part of an aggressive cadence of more
than 20 major vehicle launches around the world, including the Opel
Mokka in Europe, the Chevrolet Sail in Asia and the Chevrolet Colorado
in South America.

In some markets, these vehicles will help expand our leadership.

In other regions, they will give us new momentum. In every market,
they will be noticed.



Strengthen Brand Value

Clarity of purpose and consistency of execution are the cornerstones of

our product strategy, and two brands will drive our global growth. They are
Chevrolet, which embodies the qualities of value, reliability, performance and
expressive design; and Cadillac, which creates luxury vehicles that are pro-
vocative and powerful. At the same time, the Holden, Buick, GMC, Baojun,
Opel and Vauxhall brands are being carefully cultivated to satisfy as many
customers as possible in select regions.

Grow Profitably Around the World

Between 2012 and 2016, industry analysts forecast growth of approxi-
mately 12.8 million units in just four large developing markets — Brazil,
Russia, India and China. | believe that GM is clearly the best-positioned
automaker to take advantage of the trend. We are the market leader in
the United States and China; we are increasingly well-positioned in Russia,
Brazil and India; and we have sizable operations throughout Europe,

the rest of South America and Asia.

We are not yet reaping the full financial benefits of this scale. But we
expect to — by taking decisive action to eliminate complexity and reduce
cost. Delivering permanent solutions to these challenges is a priority for the
leadership team, and I'll outline our plans to address them later in this letter.

Becoming far more efficient in our operations is a priority in order to
fund our global growth. Today, roughly 70 percent of our sales are outside
the United States and that percentage is expected to grow over time.
Already, three of GM’s five best-selling vehicles in 2011 — the Chevrolet
Cruze, the Wuling Sunshine and the Wuling Rongguang — derived all or a
significant share of their volume from China.

Maintain a Fortress Balance Sheet

We call our balance sheet a fortress because we want it to be impregnable
so we can meet all of our obligations and create value even in the
toughest economy.

We're already there in terms of reduced automotive debt, which was
$5.3 billion at the end of 2011, and we have built total liquidity of
$37.5 billion, including $31.6 billion in cash and marketable securities.
To keep the fortress balance sheet secure we are committed to maintain-
ing minimal automotive debt and a low break-even level.

We continuously reinforce this strategy at all levels of the organization
to make sure everyone understands the direct linkage between a strong
balance sheet and a stable, robust product plan. A strong balance sheet
enables us to invest in product development even during a down economic
cycle. This allows us to take advantage of future growth opportunities
when the economic cycle recovers. Over time, the incremental revenue
generated by an optimized product plan is going to help us achieve another
important objective, which is to return excess cash to stockholders.

As confident as we are in our plan, and with all that’s going right, we still
have a lot of work to do in 2012 and beyond. At the top of the list is fixing
our businesses in Europe and South America.

We accomplished a lot in Europe in 2010 and 2011 with new products
and concrete actions that reduced our break-even level. However,

issues like industry-wide overcapacity and high fixed costs remain,
and that left the business vulnerable as key economies got weaker.

While our issues in Europe have been intractable, they are not
insurmountable. Our new leadership team in Europe is already finding
creative opportunities to reduce costs and complexity, which is the aim
of our alliance with PSA Peugeot Citroén. We'll continue to work on
both revenue and cost opportunities until we have restored the
region to consistent profitability.

We are also in the process of launching seven new vehicles in Brazil
as part of a comprehensive strategy to return our South America
region to profitability after a disappointing loss in 2011.

Another issue that we are aggressively managing is our U.S. pension
liability. Our pension derisking is well underway. We ended the year with
our qualified U.S. plans 88 percent funded; we have capped the number
of hourly and salaried participants; our UAW contract contains no pension
increase, and in September accrued benefits for the salaried employees
who remain in the plan will be frozen.

All of these initiatives will help improve GM’s EBIT-adjusted margins
over time and will better leverage our global scale, which is one of our
fundamental challenges.

Quite simply, we have too many vehicle and powertrain architectures
relative to our global volume and customer needs. We have had too many
ad agencies and media buyers for our tightly focused collection of brands,
and | can cite many more examples of complexity and waste up and down
and throughout the organization. Rest assured we are systematically
rooting them out.

For example, we are implementing plans to reduce the number of
vehicle and powertrain architectures by half in less than a decade, we have
consolidated our global Chevrolet advertising account and GM'’s global
media planning and buying services, and there’s more to come as we
change the culture of the organization to instill an unwavering commitment
to peak performance.

This commitment to peak performance is part of a broader culture
change underway at GM - change that goes a long way toward explaining
why we accomplished so much in our first full year as a public company.

Each day the cultural change underway at GM becomes more striking.
The old internally focused, consensus-driven and overly complicated GM
is being reinvented brick by brick, by truly accountable executives who
know how to take calculated risks and lead global teams that are commit-
ted to building the best vehicles in the world as efficiently as we can.

That's the crux of our plan. The plan is something we can control. We
like the results we’re starting to see and we’re going to stick to it — always.

That’s my commitment to you.
Sincerely,

b'w’?:ﬁm

Daniel F. Akerson
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
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Highlights
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2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 11/18/10 12/31/10  3/31/11 _ 6/30/11 9/30/11 _ 12/31/11
@ General Motors Company $100 $108 $ 91 $ 89 $59 $ 59
® S&P 500 Index $100 $105 $112 $112 $96 $108
® Ford $100 $104 $ 92 $ 86 $60 $ 67
Source: Standard & Poor’s Capital IQ
Notes: Assumes $100 invested on 11/18/10 in GM Common stock, in the S&P 500,
VEHICLE SALES & NET REVENUE and in Ford, with reinvestment of dividends.
(in millions, except per share & units) 2011 2010
VEHICLE SALES, INCLUDING JOINT VENTURES — (000’S UNITS)
GMNA 2,924 2,625
GME 1,735 1,663
GMIO 3,302 3,072
GMSA 1,065 1,025
Worldwide Vehicle Sales 9,026 8,385
Worldwide Net Sales & Revenue $150,276 $135,592
FINANCIAL RESULTS
Earnings Before Interest and Income Taxes - Adjusted*™ $ 8,304 $ 7,030
Net Income Attributable to Common Stockholders $ 7,685 $ 4,668
Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 458 $ 289
AUTOMOTIVE LIQUIDITY & KEY OBLIGATIONS
Total Automotive Liquidity
Cash and Marketable Securities** $ 31,647 $ 27,624
Credit Facilities 5,867 5919
Total Automotive Liquidity $ 37,514 $ 33,543
Key Automotive Obligations
Debt $ 5295 $ 4,630
Underfunded U.S. Pension 14,213 12,388
Total Key Automotive Obligations $ 19,508 $ 17,018
AUTOMOTIVE FREE CASH FLOW
Operating Cash Flow $ 7,429 $ 6,589
Capital Expenditures (6,241) (4,200)
Automotive Free Cash Flow $ 1,188 $ 2,389
EMPLOYMENT — YEAR END (000’S)
GMNA 98 96
GME 39 40
GMIO 34 32
GMSA 88 31
GM Financial 8 3
207 202

Worldwide Employment

*Includes GM Financial on an Earnings Before Tax basis

** Cash includes Canadian Health Care Trust restricted cash
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General Motors Company and Subsidiaries
Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Measures

The accompanying Letter to Stockholders includes earnings before interest and taxes adjusted for special items (EBIT-adjusted) and Automotive free cash
flow, which are not prepared in accordance with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) and have not been
audited or reviewed by GM'’s independent auditors. EBIT-adjusted and Automotive free cash flow are considered non-GAAP financial measures.

Management believes these non-GAAP financial measures provide meaningful supplemental information regarding GM’s operating results because they
exclude amounts that management does not consider part of operating results when assessing and measuring the operational and financial performance of
the organization. Management believes these measures allow it to readily view operating trends, perform analytical comparisons and benchmark performance
between periods and among geographic regions. Accordingly, GM believes these non-GAAP financial measures are useful in allowing for greater transparency
of GM’s core operations and they are therefore used by management in its financial and operational decision-making.

While management believes that these non-GAAP financial measures provide useful information, they are not operating measures under U.S. GAAP, and there
are limitations associated with their use. GM’s calculation of these non-GAAP financial measures may not be completely comparable to similarly titled measures
of other companies due to potential differences between companies in their method of calculation. As a result, the use of these non-GAAP financial measures
has limitations and should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for, other measures such as Net income or Net income attributable to common
stockholders. Due to these limitations, these non-GAAP financial measures are used as a supplement to U.S. GAAP measures.

The following table summarizes the reconciliation of EBIT-adjusted to its most comparable U.S. GAAP measure (in millions):

2011 2010

Operating segments
GMNA (a) $7,194 $5,688
GME (a) (747) (1,953)
GMIO (a) 1,897 2,262
GMSA (a) (122) 818
GM Financial (b) 622 129
Total operating segments (b) 8,844 6,944
Corporate and eliminations (540) 86
EBIT-adjusted (b) $8,304 $7,030
Special items (c) 861 447
Corporate interest income 455 465
Automotive interest expense 540 1,098
Income tax expense (benefit) (110) 672
Net income attributable to stockholders $9,190 $6,172

(a) Interest and income taxes are recorded centrally in Corporate and therefore are not reconciling items for GM’s
automotive operating segments between EBIT-adjusted and Net income attributable to stockholders.

(b) GM Financial amounts represent income before income taxes.

(c) The following summarizes the special items:

In the year ended December 31, 2011, special items included the following:

e Gain of $1.6 billion in GMNA related to the sale of GM’s Class A Membership Interests in Delphi Automotive LLP;
e Goodwill impairment charges of $1.0 billion in GME and $258 million in GMIO;

e Gain of $749 million in GMNA related to Canadian Health Care Trust settlement;

¢ Impairment charges of $555 million in Corporate related to GM’s investments in Ally Financial common stock;

e Gain of $339 million in Corporate related to the sale of 100% of the Ally Financial preferred stock;

e Charge of $106 million in GMIO related to GM’s India joint venture; and

* Gain of $63 million in GMSA related to extinguishment of debt.

In the year ended December 31, 2010, special items included the following:

e Gain of $198 million in Corporate related to extinguishment of the VEBA Notes;

e Gain of $123 million in GME related to the sale of Saab Automobile AB to Spyker Cars NV;

e Gain of $66 million in GME related to the acquisition of General Motors Strasbourg S.A.S.; and

e Gain of $60 million in GMNA related to the sale of Nexteer Automotive Corporation, a manufacturer of steering components and half-shafts.
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GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Market Information

Shares of our common stock have been publicly traded since November 18, 2010 when our common stock was listed and began
trading on the New York Stock Exchange and the Toronto Stock Exchange. As a result the table below for the year ended
December 31, 2010 only provides data with respect to the fourth quarter of 2010.

Quarterly price ranges based on high and low prices from intraday trades of our common stock on the New York Stock Exchange,
the principal market in which the stock is traded, are as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010

High Low High Low

Quarter
£ A $39.48 $30.20 N/A N/A
SBCONA . . ot $33.47 $28.17 N/A N/A
TN $32.08 $19.77 N/A N/A
FOUM N o $26.55 $19.00 $36.98 $33.07
Holders

At February 15, 2012 we had a total of 1.6 billion issued and outstanding shares of common stock held by 276 holders of record.
Dividends

Since our formation, we have not paid any dividends on our common stock. We have no current plans to pay any dividends on our
common stock. So long as any share of our Series A or Series B Preferred Stock remains outstanding, no dividend or distribution may
be declared or paid on our common stock unless all accrued and unpaid dividends have been paid on our Series A and Series B
Preferred Stock, subject to exceptions, such as dividends on our common stock payable solely in shares of our common stock. Our
secured revolving credit facility contains certain restrictions on our ability to pay dividends on our common stock, subject to
exceptions, such as dividends payable solely in shares of our common stock. So long as any share of our Series A Preferred Stock
remains outstanding, no dividend or distribution may be declared or paid on our Series B Preferred Stock unless all accrued and
unpaid dividends have been paid on our Series A Preferred Stock, subject to exceptions, such as dividends on our Series B Preferred
Stock payable solely in shares of our common stock.

Our payment of dividends in the future, if any, will be determined by our Board of Directors and will be paid out of funds legally

available for that purpose. Our payment of dividends in the future will depend on business conditions, our financial condition,
earnings, liquidity and capital requirements, the covenants in our secured revolving credit facility and other factors.

General Motors Company 2011 Annual Report 7



GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Dollars in millions except per share amounts)

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 | January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended
Through Through
December 31, December 31, July 9, December 31,
2011 2010 2009 (a) 2009 2008 2007
Income Statement Data:
Total net salesand revenue (b) . ... $150,276 $135592 $ 57,474 $ 47,115 $148,979 $179,984
Reorganization gains, Net (C) ..........ooviiiiiiieiiii.. $ — $ — 3 — $128,155 $ — $ —
Income (loss) from continuing operations ...................... $ 9,287 $ 6503 $ (3,786) $109,003 $(31,051) $(42,685)
Income from discontinued operations, netoftax ................. — — — — — 256
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, netoftax ............... — — — — — 4,293
Netincome (l0SS) . ...t 9,287 6,503 (3,786) 109,003 (31,051) (38,136)
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests .......... 97) (331) (511) 115 108 (406)
Net income (loss) attributable to stockholders ................... $ 9190 $ 6172 $ (4,297) $109,118 $(30,943) $(38,542)
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders ........... $ 7585 $ 4668 $ (4,428) $109,118 $(30,943) $(38,542)
GM $0.01 par value common stock and Old GM $1-2/3 par value
common stock
Basic earnings (loss) per share: (d)
Income (loss) from continuing operations attributable to common
Stockholders . ... ........ $ 494 $ 311 $ (358 $ 178.63 $ (53.47) $ (76.16)
Income from discontinued operations attributable to common
stockholders . ... ... ... . — — — — — 8.04
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders ......... $ 494 $ 311 $ (358 $ 178.63 $ (53.47) $ (68.12)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share: (d)
Income (loss) from continuing operations attributable to common
StOCKNOIdErS ...\ $ 458 $ 289 $ (358 $ 178.55 $ (53.47) $ (76.16)
Income from discontinued operations attributable to common
Stockholders ... ... — — — — — 8.04
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders ......... $ 458 $ 289 $ (358 $ 178.55 $ (53.47) $ (68.12)
Cash dividends per commonshare ........................v... $ — $ — 3 — $ — $ 050 $ 1.00
Balance Sheet Data (as of period end):
Total @assets () ... vvvv $144,603 $138,898  $136,295 $ 91,039 $148,846
Automotive notes and loans payable (e)(f) ...................... $ 5295 $ 4630 $ 15,783 $ 45938 $ 43,578
GM Financial notes and loans payable (b) ...................... $ 8538 $ 7,032
Series A Preferred Stock (h) ... $ 5536 $ 5536 $ 6,998 $ — 3 —
Series B Preferred Stock (i) ... $ 4855 $ 4855 3 — $ — $ —
Equity (deficit) (@) .. .ovoeeee $ 38991 $ 37,159 $ 21,957 $(85,076) $(35,152)

(a) At July 10, 2009 we applied fresh-start reporting following the guidance in Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 852, “Reorganizations”
(ASC 852). The consolidated financial statements for the periods ended on or before July 9, 2009 do not include the effect of any changes in the
fair value of assets or liabilities as a result of the application of fresh-start reporting. Our financial information at and for any period after
July 10, 2009 is not comparable to Old GM’s financial information.

(b) General Motors Financial Company, Inc. (GM Financial) was consolidated effective October 1, 2010.

(c) In the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 Old GM recorded Reorganization gains, net of $128.2 billion directly associated with filing
of certain of its direct and indirect subsidiaries voluntary petitions for relief under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code (Bankruptcy Code)
in the Bankruptcy Court, the 363 Sale of Old GM and certain of its direct and indirect subsidiaries (collectively the Sellers) and the application
of fresh-start reporting. Refer to Note 32 to our consolidated financial statements for additional detail.

(d) In the year ended December 31, 2011 we used the two-class method for calculating earnings per share as the Series B Preferred Stock is a
participating security due to the applicable market value of our common stock being below $33.00 per common share. Refer to Note 26 to our
consolidated financial statements for additional detail.
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GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

(e) In December 2008 Old GM entered into a loan agreement, as amended, with the United States Treasury (UST) in December 2008 (UST Loan
Agreement), pursuant to which the UST agreed to provide a $13.4 billion borrowing facility.

(f) In December 2010 GM Korea Company (GM Korea) terminated $1.2 billion credit facility following the repayment of the remaining $1.0
billion under the facility.

(g) Series A preferred stock was reclassified from temporary equity to permanent equity in the year ended December 31, 2010.
(h) In December 2010 we purchased 84 million shares of our Series A Preferred Stock from the UST for $2.1 billion.

(i) Series B Preferred Stock was issued in a public offering in November and December 2010.

* k% X% X% * *x %
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GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

General Motors Company was formed in 2009 originally as a Delaware limited liability company, Vehicle Acquisition Holdings
LLC, and subsequently converted to a Delaware corporation, NGMCO, Inc. This company, which on July 10, 2009 acquired
substantially all of the assets and assumed certain liabilities of General Motors Corporation (363 Sale) and changed its name to
General Motors Company, is sometimes referred to in this management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of
operations (MD&A\) for the periods on or subsequent to July 10, 2009 as “we,” “our,” “us,” “ourselves,” the “Company,” “General
Motors,” or “GM,” and is the successor entity solely for accounting and financial reporting purposes (Successor). General Motors
Corporation is sometimes referred to in this MD&A, for the periods on or before July 9, 2009, as “Old GM” and is the predecessor
entity solely for accounting and financial reporting purposes (Predecessor). On July 10, 2009 in connection with the 363 Sale, General
Motors Corporation changed its name to Motors Liquidation Company, which is sometimes referred to in this MD&A for the periods
after July 10, 2009 as “MLC.” On December 15, 2011 MLC was dissolved and the Motors Liquidation Company GUC Trust (GUC
Trust) assumed responsibility for the affairs of and certain claims against MLC and its debtor subsidiaries that were not concluded
prior to MLC’s dissolution. MLC transferred to the GUC Trust all of MLC’s remaining undistributed shares of our common stock and
warrants to acquire our common stock.

Presentation and Estimates
Basis of Presentation
This MD&A should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

We analyze the results of our business through our five segments, namely GM North America (GMNA), GM Europe (GME), GM
International Operations (GMIO), GM South America (GMSA) and GM Financial.

Consistent with industry practice, market share information includes estimates of industry sales in certain countries where public
reporting is not legally required or otherwise available on a consistent basis.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of the Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with U.S. GAAP, which requires the use of estimates, judgments
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses in the periods presented. We believe that the accounting estimates employed are
appropriate and the resulting balances are reasonable; however, due to the inherent uncertainties in making estimates, actual results
could differ from the original estimates, requiring adjustments to these balances in future periods.

Prior Period Financial Statements Conformed to Current Period Presentation

We changed the presentation of our consolidated balance sheet, consolidated statement of cash flows and certain footnotes to
combine line items which were either of a related nature or not individually material. We have made corresponding reclassifications to
the comparable information for all periods presented.

In the year ended December 31, 2011 we have recorded foreign currency exchange gains and losses on debt as non-operating items.
This is a change from prior period presentations in which foreign currency exchange gains and losses on debt were recorded in
Automotive cost of sales. We have reclassified all the successor prior periods to conform to our current presentation. The effects of
this reclassification decreased Automotive cost of sales and Interest income and other non-operating income, net by $24 million for
the year ended December 31, 2010 and $65 million for the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 20009.

Overview

Our Company commenced operations on July 10, 2009 when we completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets and
assumption of certain liabilities of Old GM through a 363 Sale under the Bankruptcy Code. By commencing operations following the
363 Sale, we were able to take advantage of a competitive labor agreement with our unions, a restructured dealer network and a
reduced and refocused brand strategy in the U.S. focused on four brands.
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GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

In November and December of 2010 we consummated a public offering of 550 million shares of our common stock and 100 million
shares of Series B Preferred Stock and listed both of these securities on the New York Stock Exchange and the common stock on the
Toronto Stock Exchange. In April 2011 in connection with MLC’s distribution of warrants for our common stock to its unsecured
creditors, we listed the warrants expiring July 10, 2016 and the warrants expiring July 10, 2019 on the New York Stock Exchange.

Automotive

We offer a global vehicle portfolio of cars, crossovers and trucks. We are committed to leadership in vehicle design, quality,
reliability, telematics and infotainment and safety, as well as to developing key energy efficiency, energy diversity and advanced
propulsion technologies, including electric vehicles with range extending capabilities such as the Chevrolet Volt. Our business is
diversified across products and geographic markets. We meet the local sales and service needs of our retail and fleet customers with a
global network of independent dealers. Of our total 2011 vehicle sales volume, 72.3% was generated outside the U.S., including
43.4% from emerging markets, such as Brazil, Russia, India and China (collectively BRIC), which have recently experienced the
industry’s highest volume growth.

Our automotive business is organized into four geographically-based segments:

*  GMNA, with sales, manufacturing and distribution operations in the U.S., Canada and Mexico and sales and distribution
operations in Central America and the Caribbean, represented 32.4% of our vehicle sales volume in 2011 and we had the
largest market share in this market at 18.4%.

*  GME has sales, manufacturing and distribution operations across Western and Central Europe. GME’s vehicle sales volume,
which in addition to Western and Central Europe, includes Eastern Europe (including Russia and the other members of the
Commonwealth of Independent States among others) represented 19.2% of our vehicle sales volume in 2011. In 2011 we had
the number four market share in this market at 8.8%. GMIO distributes Chevrolet brand vehicles which, when sold in Europe,
are included in GME vehicle sales volume and market share data.

*  GMIO has sales, manufacturing and distribution operations in Asia-Pacific, Eastern Europe (including Russia and the other
members of the Commonwealth of Independent States among others), Africa and the Middle East. GMIO’s vehicle sales volume,
which includes Asia-Pacific, Africa and the Middle East is our largest segment by vehicle sales volume. GMIO represented
36.6% of our global vehicle sales volume including sales through our joint ventures in 2011. In 2011 we had the number two
market share for this market at 9.5% and the number one market share in China. In 2011 GMIO derived 77.1% of its vehicle sales
volume from China. GMIO records the financial results of Chevrolet brand vehicles that it distributes and sells in Europe.

*  GMSA, with sales, manufacturing and distribution operations in Brazil, Argentina, Colombia, Ecuador and Venezuela as well
as sales and distribution operations in Bolivia, Chile, Paraguay, Peru and Uruguay represented 11.8% of our vehicle sales
volume in 2011. In 2011 we had the largest market share for this market at 18.8% and the number three market share in Brazil.
In 2011 GMSA derived 59.4% of its vehicle sales volume from Brazil.

Automotive Financing — GM Financial

GM Financial specializes in purchasing retail automobile installment sales contracts originated by GM and non-GM franchised and
select independent dealers in connection with the sale of used and new automobiles. GM Financial also offers lease products through
GM dealerships in connection with the sale of used and new automobiles that target customers with sub-prime and prime credit
bureau scores. GM Financial primarily generates revenue and cash flows through the purchase, retention, subsequent securitization
and servicing of finance receivables. To fund the acquisition of receivables prior to securitization, GM Financial uses available cash
and borrowings under its credit facilities. GM Financial earns finance charge income on finance receivables and pays interest expense
on borrowings under its credit facilities. GM Financial periodically transfers receivables to securitization trusts that issue asset-backed
securities to investors. The securitization trusts are special purpose entities (SPEs) that are also variable interest entities that meet the
requirements to be consolidated in the financial statements.
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Our Strategy
Our vision is to design, build and sell the world’s best vehicles. The primary elements of our strategy to achieve this vision are to:
o Deliver a product portfolio of the world’s best vehicles, allowing us to maximize sales under any market conditions;

»  Sell our vehicles globally by targeting developed markets, which are projected to have increases in vehicle demand as the
global economy recovers, and further strengthening our position in high growth emerging markets;

e Improve revenue realization and maintain a competitive cost structure to allow us to remain profitable at lower industry
volumes and across the lifecycle of our product portfolio; and

»  Maintain a strong balance sheet by reducing financial leverage given the high operating leverage of our business model.
Chapter 11 Proceedings and the 363 Sale
Background

Over time as Old GM’s market share declined in North America, Old GM needed to continually restructure its business operations
to reduce cost and excess capacity. Legacy labor costs and obligations and capacity in its dealer network made Old GM less
competitive than new entrants into the U.S. market. These factors continued to strain Old GM’s liquidity. In 2005 Old GM incurred
significant losses from operations and from restructuring activities such as providing support to Delphi Corporation (Delphi) and other
efforts intended to reduce operating costs. Old GM managed its liquidity during this time through a series of cost reduction initiatives,
capital markets transactions and sales of assets. However, the global credit market crisis had a dramatic effect on Old GM and the
automotive industry. In the second half of 2008, the increased turmoil in the mortgage and overall credit markets (particularly the lack
of financing for buyers or lessees of vehicles), the continued reductions in U.S. housing values, the volatility in the price of oil,
recessions in the U.S. and Western Europe and the slowdown of economic growth in the rest of the world created a substantially more
difficult business environment. The ability to execute capital markets transactions or sales of assets was extremely limited, vehicle
sales in North America and Western Europe contracted severely, and the pace of vehicle sales in the rest of the world slowed. Old
GM’s liquidity position, as well as its operating performance, were negatively affected by these economic and industry conditions and
by other financial and business factors, many of which were beyond its control.

As a result of these economic conditions and the rapid decline in sales in the three months ended December 31, 2008 Old GM
determined that, despite the actions it had then taken to restructure its U.S. business, it would be unable to pay its obligations in the
normal course of business in 2009 or service its debt in a timely fashion, which required the development of a new plan that depended
on financial assistance from the U.S. government.

In December 2008 Old GM requested and received financial assistance from the U.S. government and entered into the UST Loan
Agreement. In early 2009 Old GM’s business results and liquidity continued to deteriorate, and, as a result, Old GM obtained
additional funding from the UST under the UST Loan Agreement. Old GM also received funding from Export Development Canada
(EDC), a corporation wholly-owned by the government of Canada, under a loan and security agreement entered into in April 2009
(EDC Loan Facility).

As a condition to obtaining continued 2009 funding under the UST Loan Agreement, Old GM was required to submit a plan in
February 2009 that included specific actions (Viability Plan) intended to result in the following:

» Repayment of all loans, interest and expenses under the UST Loan Agreement, and all other funding provided by the U.S.
government;

e Compliance with federal fuel efficiency and emissions requirements and commencement of domestic manufacturing of
advanced technology vehicles;

e Achievement of a positive net present value, using reasonable assumptions and taking into account all existing and projected
future costs;
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»  Rationalization of costs, capitalization and capacity with respect to its manufacturing workforce, suppliers and dealerships; and
* A product mix and cost structure that is competitive in the U.S. marketplace.

The UST Loan Agreement also required Old GM to, among other things, use its best efforts to achieve the following restructuring
targets: (1) debt reduction of at least two-thirds; (2) labor modifications to achieve an average compensation competitive with that of
foreign-owned U.S. domiciled automakers, and; (3) modification of certain retiree healthcare obligations.

The UST Loan Agreement provided that if, by March 31, 2009 or a later date (not to exceed 30 days after March 31, 2009) as
determined by the Presidential Task Force on the Auto Industry (Auto Task Force) (Certification Deadline), the Auto Task Force had
not certified that Old GM had taken all steps necessary to achieve and sustain its long-term viability, international competitiveness
and energy efficiency in accordance with the Viability Plan, then the loans and other obligations under the UST Loan Agreement were
to become due and payable on the thirtieth day after the Certification Deadline.

On March 30, 2009 the Auto Task Force determined that the plan was not viable and required substantial revisions. On March 31,
2009 Old GM and the UST agreed to postpone the Certification Deadline to June 1, 2009. Old GM made further modifications to its
Viability Plan in an attempt to satisfy the Auto Task Force requirement that it undertake a substantially more accelerated and
aggressive restructuring plan (Revised Viability Plan), the most significant of which included reducing Old GM’s indebtedness and
certain retiree healthcare (VEBA) obligations.

Chapter 11 Proceedings

Old GM was not able to complete the cost reduction and restructuring actions in its Revised Viability Plan, including the debt
reductions and VEBA modifications, which resulted in extreme liquidity constraints. As a result, on June 1, 2009 Old GM and certain
of its direct and indirect subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions for relief under Chapter 11 (Chapter 11 Proceedings) of the Bankruptcy
Code in the Bankruptcy Court.

In connection with the Chapter 11 Proceedings, Old GM entered into a secured superpriority debtor-in-possession credit agreement with
the UST and EDC (DIP Facility) and received additional funding commitments from EDC to support Old GM’s Canadian operations.

The following table summarizes the total funding and funding commitments Old GM received from the U.S. and Canadian governments
and the additional notes Old GM issued related thereto in the period December 31, 2008 through July 9, 2009 (dollars in millions):

Predecessor
Funding and Funding Additional
Commitments Notes Issued (a) Total Obligation

Description of Funding Commitment

UST Loan Agreement (D) .. ...ttt e e $19,761 $1,172 $20,933
EDCfunding (C) . ..ot 6,294 161 6,455
DIP FaCility . ..o 33,300 2,221 35,521
Total .. $59,355 $3,5654 $62,909

(a) Old GM did not receive any proceeds from the issuance of these promissory notes, which were issued as additional compensation
to the UST and EDC.

(b) Includes debt of $361 million, which UST loaned to Old GM under the warranty program.

(¢) Includes approximately $2.4 billion from the EDC Loan Facility received in the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 and
funding commitments of $3.9 billion that were immediately converted into our equity. This funding was received on July 15, 2009.

363 Sale

On July 10, 2009, we completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets and assumed certain liabilities of Old GM from the
Sellers. The 363 Sale was consummated in accordance with a purchase agreement, dated June 26, 2009, as amended, between us and
the Sellers, and pursuant to the Bankruptcy Court’s sale order dated July 5, 2009.
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In connection with the 363 Sale, the purchase price we paid to Old GM equaled the sum of:

» A credit bid in an amount equal to the total of: (1) debt of $19.8 billion under Old GM’s UST Loan Agreement, plus notes of
$1.2 billion issued as additional compensation for the UST Loan Agreement, plus interest on such debt Old GM owed as of the
closing date of the 363 Sale; and (2) debt of $33.3 billion under Old GM’s DIP Facility, plus notes of $2.2 billion issued as
additional compensation for the DIP Facility, plus interest Old GM owed as of the closing date, less debt of $8.2 billion owed
under the DIP Facility;

e UST’s return of the warrants Old GM previously issued to it;

e The issuance to MLC of shares of our common stock and warrants to acquire newly issued shares of our common stock as
presented in the following section entitled “Issuance of Common Stock, Preferred Stock and Warrants;” and

e Our assumption of certain specified liabilities of Old GM (including debt of $7.1 billion owed under the DIP Facility).

Under the purchase agreement, we are obligated to issue additional shares of our common stock (Adjustment Shares) to the GUC
Trust following the dissolution of MLC in the event that allowed general unsecured claims against MLC, as approved by the
Bankruptcy Court, exceed $35.0 billion. Refer to Note 20 to our consolidated financial statements for a description of the contingently
issuable Adjustment Shares.

Agreements with the UST, EDC and New VEBA

On July 10, 2009 we entered into the UST Credit Agreement and assumed debt of $7.1 billion that Old GM incurred under its DIP
Facility. Immediately after entering into the UST Credit Agreement, we made a partial prepayment, reducing the loan principal
balance to $6.7 billion. We issued notes in the principal amount of $2.5 billion (VEBA Notes) to the UAW Retiree Medical Benefits
Trust (New VEBA). Through our wholly-owned subsidiary General Motors of Canada Limited (GMCL), we also entered into the
amended and restated loan agreement with EDC (Canadian Loan Agreement), as a result of which GMCL had a $1.3 billion term loan
(Canadian Loan).

In December 2009 and March 2010 we made quarterly payments of $1.0 billion and $1.0 billion on the UST Credit Agreement and
GMCL made quarterly payments of $192 million and $194 million on the Canadian Loan. In April 2010 we used funds from our
escrow account to repay in full the outstanding amount of the UST Credit Agreement of $4.7 billion, and GMCL repaid in full the
outstanding amount of the Canadian Loan of $1.1 billion. Both loans were repaid prior to maturity. On October 26, 2010 we repaid in
full the outstanding amount (together with accreted interest thereon) of the VEBA Notes of $2.8 billion.

Refer to Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements for additional information on the UST Credit Agreement, VEBA Notes
and the Canadian Loan.

Issuance of Common Stock, Preferred Stock and Warrants

On July 10, 2009 we issued the following securities to the UST, Canada GEN Investment Corporation, a corporation organized
under the laws of Canada (Canada Holdings), the New VEBA and MLC (shares in millions):

Series A
Common Stock  Preferred Stock (b)
US T o e e 912 84
Canada Holdings . . ..ot 175 16
NEW VEBA (8) . ..ottt e e e e 263 260
MLC (8) - - et et 150 —
1,500 360

() New VEBA also received a tranche of warrants to acquire 46 million shares of our common stock and MLC received two
tranches of warrants, each to acquire 136 million shares of our common stock. Refer to Note 25 to our consolidated financial
statements for additional description of warrants.
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(b) Refer to Note 25 to our consolidated financial statements for a description of the Series A Preferred Stock.
Additional Modifications to Pension and Other Postretirement Plans Contingent upon Completion of the 363 Sale

We modified the U.S. hourly pension plan, the U.S. executive retirement plan, the U.S. salaried life plan, the non-UAW hourly
retiree medical plan and the U.S. hourly life plan. These modifications became effective upon the completion of the 363 Sale. Refer to
Note 18 to our consolidated financial statements for a description of the changes to these plans.

Accounting for the Effects of the Chapter 11 Proceedings and the 363 Sale

ASC 852 is applicable to entities operating under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. ASC 852 generally does not affect the
application of U.S. GAAP that Old GM followed to prepare the consolidated financial statements, but it does require specific
disclosures for transactions and events that were directly related to the Chapter 11 Proceedings and transactions and events that
resulted from ongoing operations.

Old GM prepared its consolidated financial statements in accordance with the guidance in ASC 852 in the period June 1, 2009
through July 9, 2009. Revenues, expenses, realized gains and losses, and provisions for losses directly related to the Chapter 11
Proceedings were recorded in Reorganization gains, net. Reorganization gains, net do not constitute an element of operating loss due
to their nature and due to the requirement that they be reported separately. Cash amounts provided by or used in the Chapter 11
Proceedings are separately disclosed in the statement of cash flows.

Effect of Fresh-Start Reporting

The application of fresh-start reporting significantly affected certain assets, liabilities and expenses. As a result, certain financial
information at and for any period after July 10, 2009 is not comparable to Old GM’s financial information. Therefore, we did not
combine certain financial information in the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009 with Old GM’s financial information in
the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 for comparison to other periods. For the purpose of the following discussion, we have
combined our Total net sales and revenue in the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009 with Old GM’s Total net sales and
revenue in the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009. Total net sales and revenue was not significantly affected by fresh-start
reporting and therefore we combined Automotive Total net sales and revenue data comparing the Total net sales and revenue between
years presented.

Total net sales and revenue is primarily comprised of revenue generated from the sales of vehicles, in addition to revenue from
OnStar, our customer subscription service, vehicle sales accounted for as operating leases, sales of parts and accessories and GM
Financial’s loan purchasing and servicing activities.

Automotive cost of sales is primarily comprised of material, labor, manufacturing overhead, freight, foreign currency transaction
and translation gains and losses, product engineering, design and development expenses, depreciation and amortization, policy and
warranty costs, postemployment benefit costs, and separation and impairment charges. Prior to our application of fresh-start reporting
on July 10, 2009, Automotive cost of sales also included gains and losses on derivative instruments. Effective July 10, 2009 gains and
losses related to all nondesignated derivatives are recorded in Interest income and other non-operating income, net.

Automotive selling, general and administrative expense is primarily comprised of costs related to the advertising, selling and
promotion of products, support services, including central office expenses, labor and benefit expenses for employees not considered
part of the manufacturing process, consulting costs, rental expense for offices, bad debt expense and non-income based state and local
taxes.

Focus on Chinese Market

We view the Chinese market, the fastest growing global market by volume of vehicles sold, as important to our global growth
strategy and are employing a multi-brand strategy, led by our Buick and Chevrolet brands. In the coming years, we plan to
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increasingly leverage our global architectures to increase the number of nameplates under the Buick, Chevrolet and Cadillac brands in
China and continue to grow our business under the Baojun, Jiefang and Wuling brands. We operate in Chinese markets through a
number of joint ventures and maintaining good relations with our joint ventures partners, which are affiliated with the Chinese
government, is an important part of our China growth strategy.

The following table summarizes our direct ownership interests in our Chinese joint ventures, collectively referred to as China JVs:

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
Shanghai General Motors Co., Ltd. (SGM) (8) . . .. .« o oot 49% 49%
Shanghai GM Norsom Motor Co., Ltd. .......... .. e 25% 25%
Shanghai GM Dong Yue Motors Co., Ltd. ........ . 25% 25%
Shanghai GM Dong Yue POWEIIain ... ... e 25% 25%
SAIC-GM-Wuling Automobile Co., Ltd. (SGMW) (b) .. ... 44% 44%
FAW-GM Light Duty Commercial Vehicle Co., Ltd. (FAW-GM) ........... ... .. ... ...... 50% 50%
Pan Asia Technical Automotive Center Co., Ltd. . ......... .. i 50% 50%
Shanghai OnStar Telematics Co., Ltd. ... i e 40% 40%
Shanghai Chengxin Used Car Operation and Management Co., Ltd. ....................... 33% 33%

SAIC General Motors Sales Co., Ltd. . ...t 49%

(@) Ownership interest in SGM was 49% in the period February 1, 2010 through December 31, 2011 and 50% in the month of
January 2010.

(b) Ownership interest in SGMW was 44% in the period November 16, 2010 through December 31, 2010 and 34% in the period
January 1, 2010 through November 15, 2010.

The following tables summarize certain key operational and financial data for the China JVs (dollars in millions, vehicles in
thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009
Total wholesale vehicles (@) ............cc i i 2,573 2,348 1,824
Market share (D) . ... 13.6% 12.8% 13.3%
Total netsales and revVeNUE .. ...ttt e $30,511 $25,395 $18,098
NEtiNCOME .o $ 3,203 $ 2,808 $ 1,636
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
Cashand cashequivalents . .............oo i, $ 4,679 $ 5,247
DEt L . $ 106 $ 61

(@) Including vehicles exported to markets outside of China.
(b) Market share for China market.

Automotive Financing Strategy

Our automotive financing strategy centers around ensuring that our dealers and customers have consistently available, transparent
and competitive financing options throughout the business and credit cycles.

Historically Ally Financial, Inc. (Ally Financial) has provided a majority of the financing for our dealers and a significant portion of
the financing for our customers in the U.S., Canada and other major international markets where we operate. Ally Financial
historically has been our exclusive financing partner for incentivized retail financing programs in our major markets. Ally Financial
continues to provide the majority of the financing needs of our dealers and customers.
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The market disruption of 2008 and 2009 highlighted the need to ensure certainty of availability of credit throughout economic
cycles in specific segments of the automotive financing market. In the U.S. and Canada we identified leasing and sub-prime lending
as underserved areas that could benefit from increased financing sources and competition. In 2009 we partnered with a bank to offer
incentivized leasing programs and with GM Financial to offer incentivized sub-prime retail financing in the U.S. We also partnered
with a bank to offer incentivized retail financing programs in Canada.

In October 2010 we acquired GM Financial to further bolster our offerings in the leasing and sub-prime financing segments in the
U.S. and Canada. We believe that by having our own capabilities in key segments of the market we will be able to achieve more
competition and better service from the market, while ensuring certainty of availability through the business cycles.

In April 2011 GM Financial began originating leases for our customers in Canada. Given the importance of leasing and the current
lack of availability of leasing offerings to our customers in the Canadian market (due to regulatory restrictions preventing banks and
bank holding companies from offering leasing in Canada), we believe having a captive financing offering in Canada is strategically
important to our business. GM Financial began originating leases for GM customers in Canada via FinanciaLinx Corporation in April
2011.

We will continue to expand the business of GM Financial in targeted areas, including wholesale lending, that we view as strategic
and to otherwise evaluate opportunities in specific segments of the automotive financing market, both in the U.S. and internationally.
We expect any expansion of GM Financial or any arrangements with other financing providers will complement our important
relationship with Ally Financial.

Restructuring Activities

Restructuring and early retirement programs in Spain, the U.K. and Belgium were essentially completed in 2010 and we also
initiated a program in Germany in 2010. Through December 31, 2011 these programs had a total cost of $1.1 billion and affected a
total of 6,700 employees and included the closure of the Antwerp, Belgium facility. We expect to incur an additional $0.1 billion,
primarily in 2012, to complete these programs, which will affect an additional 500 employees.

We implemented a voluntary separation program in Brazil in the three months ended December 31, 2011. A total of 900 employees
participated in the program at a total cost of $0.1 billion. At December 31, 2011 a majority of the 900 employees have left the
Company with the remainder expected to leave by March 31, 2012. All charges and liabilities related to this program were recorded in
the three months ended December 31, 2011 as employees accepted offers.

Special Attrition Programs, Labor Agreements and Benefit Plan Changes
2011 GM-UAW Labor Agreement
In September 2011 we entered into a collectively bargained labor agreement with the International Union, United Automobile,

Aerospace and Agriculture Implement Workers of America (UAW). The agreement covers the wages, hours, benefits and other terms
and conditions of employment for our UAW represented employees. The key terms and provisions of the agreement are:

e Lump sum payments to eligible U.S. hourly employees of $5,000 were paid in October 2011 totaling $0.2 billion. Additional
lump sum payments of $1,000 will be paid annually in June of 2012, 2013 and 2014 totaling $0.1 billion. These lump sum
payments are being amortized over the four year agreement period.

e Anannual payment of $250 per U.S. hourly employee upon attainment of specific U.S. vehicle quality targets.

e Anincrease in wages for certain entry level employees hired on or after October 1, 2007.
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Benefit Guarantee Corporation (PBGC) claims from the termination of the Delphi pension plan. We maintained the obligation to
provide the difference between the pension benefits paid by the PBGC and those originally guaranteed by Old GM under the DBGA.

U.S. Salaried Benefit Changes

In January 2012 we amended the U.S. salaried pension plan to cease the accrual of additional benefits effective September 30,
2012. Active plan participants will receive additional contributions in the defined contribution plan starting in October 2012.

In 2009 U.S. salaried benefit changes reduced the salaried life benefits and a negative amendment to the U.S. salaried retiree
healthcare program reduced coverage and increased cost sharing.

2009 UAW Retiree Settlement Agreement

In 2009 Old GM and the UAW entered into an agreement which permanently shifted responsibility for providing retiree healthcare
to the new plan funded by the New VEBA. Under the terms of the agreement, we are released from UAW retiree healthcare claims
incurred after December 31, 2009.

At December 31, 2009 we accounted for the termination of our UAW hourly retiree medical plan as a settlement, and recorded a
settlement loss of $2.6 billion.

IUE-CWA and USW Settlement Agreement

In September 2009 we entered into a settlement agreement with MLC, The International Union of Electronic, Electrical, Salaried,
Machine and Furniture Workers — Communication Workers of America (IUE-CWA) and United Steel, Paper and Forestry, Rubber,
Manufacturing, Energy, Allied Industrial and Service Workers International Union (USW). The approved settlement agreement
resulted in remeasurements of the U.S. hourly defined benefit pension plan, the non-UAW hourly retiree healthcare plan and the U.S.
hourly life plan to reflect the terms of the agreement. The settlement agreement was expressly conditioned upon and did not become
effective until approved by the Bankruptcy Court in MLC’s Chapter 11 proceedings, which occurred in November 2009. Several
additional unions representing MLC hourly retirees joined the IUE-CWA and USW settlement agreement with respect to healthcare
and life insurance. The remeasurement of these plans resulted in a decrease in a contingent liability accrual and an offsetting increase
in the projected benefit obligation (PBO) or accumulated postretirement benefit obligation (APBO) of the benefit plan.

2009 CAW Agreement

In March 2009 members of the CAW ratified an agreement intended to reduce costs in Canada through introducing co-payments for
healthcare benefits, increasing employee healthcare cost sharing, freezing pension benefits and eliminating cost of living adjustments
to pensions for retired hourly workers. The 2009 CAW Agreement was conditioned on Old GM receiving longer term financial
support from the Canadian and Ontario governments and those governments agreed to the terms of a loan agreement, approved the
GMCL viability plan and provided funding to GMCL. The Canadian hourly defined benefit pension plan was remeasured in June
20009.

The CAW hourly retiree healthcare plan and the CAW retiree life plan were also remeasured in June 2009. Additionally, as a result
of the termination of employees from the former Oshawa, Ontario truck facility, GMCL recorded a curtailment gain associated with
the CAW hourly retiree healthcare plan.

Venezuelan Exchange Regulations
Our Venezuelan subsidiaries changed their functional currency from Bolivar Fuerte (BsF), the local currency, to the U.S. Dollar,

our reporting currency, on January 1, 2010 because of the hyperinflationary status of the Venezuelan economy. In January 2010 there
was a devaluation of the Venezuelan currency and establishment of dual fixed exchange rates, an essential rate and a nonessential rate.
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In June 2010 the Venezuelan government introduced additional foreign currency exchange control regulations, which imposed
restrictions on the use of the parallel foreign currency exchange market, thereby making it more difficult to convert BsF to U.S.
Dollars. The restrictions on the foreign currency exchange market affect our Venezuelan subsidiaries’ ability to pay non-BsF
denominated obligations that do not qualify to be processed by the Venezuela currency exchange agency at the official exchange
rates.

Effective January 1, 2011 the BsF was further devalued and the essential rate was eliminated. The devaluation has affected results
of operations in 2011 because our Venezuelan subsidiaries no longer realize gains that result from favorable foreign currency
exchanges processed by the Venezuela currency exchange agency at the essential rate.

Refer to Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements for additional details regarding amounts pending government approval for
settlement and the net assets of our VVenezuelan subsidiaries. Refer to “Management’s Discussion and Analysis — GM South America
— GMSA EBIT (Loss)-Adjusted” for impact of Venezuela exchange restrictions on our operations.

Resolution of Delphi Matters

In October 2009 we consummated the transaction contemplated in the Delphi Master Disposition Agreement (DMDA) with Delphi
and other parties. Under the DMDA, we agreed to acquire Nexteer Automotive Corporation (Nexteer) and four domestic facilities that
manufacture steering systems and a variety of automotive components, primarily sold to us. We, along with several third party
investors (collectively, the Investors), agreed to acquire substantially all of Delphi’s remaining assets through Delphi Automotive LLP
(New Delphi).

We agreed to acquire, prior to the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the DMDA, all Class A Membership Interests
in New Delphi for a cash contribution of $1.7 billion with the Investors acquiring Class B Membership Interests. We and the Investors
also agreed to establish: (1) a secured delayed draw term loan facility for New Delphi, with us and the Investors each committing to
provide loans of up to $500 million; and (2) a note of $41 million to be funded at closing by the Investors. The DMDA settled
outstanding claims and assessments against and from MLC, us and Delphi, including the termination of the master restructuring
agreement with limited exceptions, and established an ongoing commercial relationship with New Delphi. We agreed to continue all
existing Delphi supply agreements and purchase orders for GMNA to the end of the related product program, and New Delphi agreed
to provide us with access rights designed to allow us to operate specific sites on defined triggering events to provide us with
protection of supply. Refer to Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements for further details on the acquisition of New Delphi
Class A membership interests.

In separate agreements, we, Delphi and the PBGC negotiated the settlement of the PBGC’s claims from the termination of the
Delphi pension plans and the release of certain liens with the PBGC against Delphi’s foreign assets. In return, the PBGC was granted
a 100% interest in Class C Membership Interests in New Delphi which provides for the PBGC to participate in predefined equity
distributions and received a payment of $70 million from us. We maintain certain obligations relating to Delphi hourly employees to
provide the difference between pension benefits paid by the PBGC according to regulation and those originally guaranteed by Old
GM under the DBGA.

In March 2011 we sold 100% of our Class A Membership Interests in New Delphi. Refer to Note 10 to our consolidated financial
statements for details regarding the sale of our equity interests in New Delphi.
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Consolidated Results of Operations
(Dollars in Millions)

Net sales and revenue
Automotive salesand revenue . ..................
GM Financial revenue ..............c.covinnn..

Total netsalesand revenue .....................

Costs and expenses

Automotive costofsales .........................
GM Financial operating and other expenses ..........
Automotive selling, general and administrative expense
Other automotive expenses, net .. ..................
Goodwill impairment charges .....................

Total costs and expenses ...,

Operating income (10SS) .. ...,
Equity in income of and disposition of interest in Ally
Financial .......... .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ...
Automotive interest eXpense .. ...
Interest income and other non-operating income, net . . .
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt ..............
Reorganization gains, net ........................

Income (loss) before income taxes and equity income . .

Income tax expense (benefit) ............... ... ...

Equity income, net of tax and gain on disposal of
investments . .............. i

Netincome (Joss) ............. .. ...

Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests . ...

Net income (loss) attributable to stockholders . . .. ..

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders . . ..

Production and Vehicle Sales Volume

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
$148,866 $135,311 $57,474 $ 47,115
1,410 281 — —
150,276 135,592 57,474 47,115
130,386 118,768 56,316 55,814
785 152 — —
12,105 11,446 6,006 6,161
58 118 15 1,235
1,286 — — =
144,620 130,484 62,337 63,210
5,656 5,108 (4,863) (16,095)
— — — 1,380
540 1,098 694 5,428
851 1,531 375 852
18 196 (101) (1,088)
— — — 128,155
5,985 5,737 (5,283) 107,776
(110) 672 (1,000) (1,166)
3,192 1,438 497 61
9,287 6,503 (3,786) 109,003
97) (331) ~ (511) 118
9,190 $ 6,172 $(4,297) $109,118
7,585 $ 4,668 $(4,428) $109,118

Management believes that production volume and vehicle sales data provide meaningful information regarding our automotive
operating results. Production volumes manufactured by our assembly facilities are generally aligned with current period net sales and
revenue, as we generally recognize revenue upon the release of the vehicle to the carrier responsible for transporting it to a dealer,
which is shortly after the completion of production. Vehicle sales data, which includes retail and fleet sales, does not correlate directly
to the revenue we recognize during the period. However, vehicle sales data is indicative of the underlying demand for our vehicles,

and is the basis for our market share.
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Reconciliation of Consolidated, Automotive and GM Financial Segment Results

Management believes EBIT-adjusted provides meaningful supplemental information regarding our automotive segments’ operating
results because it excludes interest income, expense and income taxes as well as certain additional amounts. Management does not
consider these excluded items when assessing and measuring the operational and financial performance of the organization, its
management teams and when making decisions to allocate resources, such as capital investment, among business units and for internal
reporting and as part of its forecasting and budgeting processes. Such adjustments include impairment charges related to goodwill and
certain investments, gains or losses on the settlement/extinguishment of obligations and gains or losses on the sale of non-core
investments. Management believes this measure allows it to readily view operating trends, perform analytical comparisons and
benchmark performance between periods and among geographic regions. We believe EBIT-adjusted is useful in allowing for greater
transparency of our core operations and are therefore used by management in its financial and operational decision-making.

While management believes that EBIT-adjusted provides useful information, it is not an operating measure under U.S. GAAP, and
there are limitations associated with its use. Our calculation of EBIT-adjusted may not be completely comparable to similarly titled
measures of other companies due to potential differences between companies in the method of calculation. As a result, the use of
EBIT-adjusted has limitations and should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for, other measures such as Net
income (loss) or Net income (loss) attributable to stockholders. Due to these limitations, EBIT-adjusted is used as a supplement to
U.S. GAAP measures.

Management believes income before income taxes provides meaningful supplemental information regarding GM Financial’s
operating results. GM Financial uses a separate measure from our automotive operations because management believes interest
income and interest expense are part of operating results when assessing and measuring the operational and financial performance of
the segment. EBIT-adjusted is not presented for the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 as Old GM did not identify
adjustments to EBIT during this period.

The following tables summarize the reconciliation of our automotive segments EBIT-adjusted and GM Financial’s income before
income taxes to Net income (loss) attributable to stockholders and provides supplemental detail of the adjustments (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009

Automotive

EBIT-adjusted
GMNA @) ..o $7,194 93.6% $5688 82.4% $(2,065) 130.3% $(11,092) (9.8)%
GME (@) ..o (747) (9.)%  (1,953) (28.3)% (814) 51.4% (2,815) (2.5)%
GMIO (@) ..o 1897 24.7% 2,262  32.8% 789 (49.8)% (486) (0.4)%
GMSA (@) ..o (122) (1.6)% 818 11.9% 417  (26.3)% (454) (0.4)%
Corporate and eliminations (b) ............ (540) (7.0)0% 86 1.2% 88 (5.6)% 128,044 113.1%
Total automotive EBIT-adjusted ........... 7,682 100.0% 6,901 100.0%  (1,585) 100.0% 113,197 100.0%
Adjustments . . ... 861 447 (3,202) —
Corporate interestincome ................ 455 465 184 183
Automotive interest expense . ............. 540 1,098 694 5,428

Automotive Financing

GM Financial income before income taxes . .. .. 622 129

Consolidated Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) ............... (110) 672 (1,000) (1,166)

Net income (loss) attributable to
stockholders .......................... $9,190 $6,172 $(4,297) $109,118

(a) Our automotive operations interest and income taxes are recorded centrally in Corporate; therefore, there are no reconciling items
for our automotive operating segments between EBIT-adjusted and Net income (loss) attributable to stockholders.
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(b) Includes Reorganization gains, net of $128.2 billion in the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009.

Successor

Year Ended December 31, 2011

GMNA GME GMIO GMSA Corporate Total
Gain on sale of our New Delphi Class A Membership Interests .......... $1645 $ — $ — $— $ — $1645
Goodwill impairment charges ............. . i — (1,016) (258) — — (1,274)
Gain related to HCT settlement .. ........ ... ... .. .. .. 749 — — — — 749
Impairment related to Ally Financial commonstock ................... — — — — (555) (555)
Gain on sale of Ally Financial preferred stock ... ..................... — — — — 339 339
Chargesrelated to HKIV ... ... — — (106) — — (106)
Gain on extinguishmentofdebt ......... ... ... .. ... . .. — — — 63 — 63
Total adjustments . ... o i $2394 $(1,016) $(364) $63 $(216) $ 861

Successor
Year Ended December 31, 2010

GMNA GME GMIO GMSA Corporate Total
Gain on extinguishment of the VEBANotes ......................... $ — % — & — $— $198 $ 198
GainonsaleofSaab ......... . — 123 — — — 123
Gainonacquisitionof GMS . ... ... ... ... . — 66 — — — 66
Gainonsale of Nexteer . ........ .o 60 — - — — 60
Total adjuStMENtS ... ...t $ 60 $ 189 $ — $— $198 § 447

Successor
July 10, 2009 Through December 31, 2009

GMNA GME GMIO GMSA Corporate Total
UAW OPEB health care settlement loss . ........................... $(2571) $ — $ — $— $ —  $(2,571)
Impairment related to Ally Financial commonstock ................... — — — — (270) (270)
Chargesrelatedto Delphi ....... ... (83) — — — a77) (260)
Loss on extinguishmentofdebt ....... ... ... ... . il (101) — - — — (101)
Total adjuStMeNnts . ... ...ttt $(2,755) $ — $ — $— $(447)  $(3,202)
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Total Net Sales and Revenue
(Dollars in Millions)

Combined GM
Successor and Old GM Successor Predecessor
Year Ended Year Ended
July 10, 2009 2011 vs. 2010 2010 vs. 2009
Year Ended Year Ended  Year Ended Through |J 1,2009 . .
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, | Through Change Change
2011 2010 2009 2009 July9,2009  Amount % Amount %
GMNA ................. $ 90,233 $ 83,035 $ 56,617 $32,426 $24,191 $ 7,198 8.7% $26,418 46.7%
GME................... 26,757 24,076 24,031 11,479 12,552 2,681 11.1% 45 0.2%
GMIO .................. 24,761 20,561 14,345 8,127 6,218 4200 204% 6,216 43.3%
GMSA ... ............... 16,877 15,379 13,135 7,399 5,736 1498 9.7% 2,244 17.1%
GM Financial ............ 1,410 281 1,129 n.m. 281 n.m.
Total operating segments ... 160,038 143,332 108,128 59,431 48,697 16,706 11.7% 35,204 32.6%
Corporate and
eliminations ........... (9,762) (7,740) (3,539) (1,957) (1,582) (2,022) (26.1)% (4,201) (118.7)%
Total net sales and
revenue ............... $150,276  $135,592  $104,589 $57,474 $47,115 $14,684 10.8% $31,003 29.6%

n.m. = not meaningful

In the year ended December 31, 2011 Total net sales and revenue increased by $14.7 billion (or 10.8%) due primarily to:
(1) increased wholesale volumes of $8.6 billion representing 403,000 vehicles; (2) net foreign currency translation and remeasurement
gains of $2.6 billion due to the strengthening of major currencies against the U.S. Dollar; (3) favorable vehicle pricing effect of $1.6
billion due to model year price increases and reduced sales allowances; (4) increased finance income of $1.1 billion due to the
acquisition of GM Financial; (5) increased revenues from powertrain and parts sales of $1.1 billion due to increased volumes;
(6) favorable vehicle mix of $0.6 billion; and (7) increased revenue of $0.4 billion due to the acquisition of General Motors
Strasbourg S.A.S. (GMS); partially offset by (8) decreased revenue of $1.0 billion due to the sale of Nexteer in November 2010.

In the year ended December 31, 2010 Total net sales and revenue increased by $31.0 bhillion (or 29.6%) due primarily to:
(1) increased wholesale sales volume of $21.8 billion representing 1.1 million vehicles; (2) favorable vehicle pricing effect of $3.7
billion; (3) favorable vehicle mix of $2.6 billion; (4) net foreign currency translation and remeasurement gains of $1.8 billion;
(5) increased sales of $1.0 billion due to the acquisition of Nexteer and four domestic component manufacturing facilities;
(6) derivative losses of $0.8 billion in 2009 that did not recur in 2010; (7) increased revenues from OnStar of $0.3 billion; and
(8) finance charge income of $0.3 billion due to the acquisition of AmeriCredit Corp. (AmeriCredit); partially offset by
(9) devaluation of the BsF of $0.9 billion; and (10) decreased lease financing revenues of $0.3 billion related to the liquidation of the
portfolio of automotive leases.

Automotive Cost of Sales

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended
July 10, 2009

Year Ended Year Ended Through January 1, 2009 ZOIéhvs. 2010

December 31, December 31, December 31, Through _thanmge @
2011 2010 2009 July 9, 2009 Amount %

Automotive costofsales ..................... $130,386 $118,768 $56,316 $55,814 $11,618 9.8%
Automotive gross margin .. ..., $ 18,480 $ 16,543 $ 1,158 $(8,699) $ 1937 11.7%
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GM

The most significant element of our Automotive cost of sales is material cost which makes up approximately two-thirds of the total
amount. The remaining portion includes labor costs, depreciation and amortization, engineering, and policy, warranty and recall campaigns.

In the year ended December 31, 2011 Automotive cost of sales increased by $11.6 billion (or 9.8%), in line with Total net sales and
revenue, due primarily to: (1) increased costs related to wholesale volume increases of $6.3 billion; (2) net foreign currency
translation, remeasurement and transaction losses of $2.4 billion due to the strengthening of major currencies against the U.S. Dollar;
(3) unfavorable vehicle mix of $2.3 billion; (4) increased material, freight and manufacturing costs of $1.7 billion due to higher
commodity prices and to support new vehicle launches; (5) increased costs of $0.8 billion related to powertrain and parts sales;
(6) increased engineering costs of $0.7 billion to support new product development; (7) revisions to restructuring reserves of $0.4
billion related to higher than planned employee utilization in 2010 which did not recur in 2011; and (8) increased costs of $0.3 billion
due to the acquisition of GMS; partially offset by (9) decreased costs of $0.9 billion due to the sale of Nexteer in November 2010;
(10) decreased depreciation and amortization expense of $0.8 billion related to the amortization of technology intangibles and
impairment charges for long-lived assets; (11) a gain of $0.7 billion related to the settlement of the HCT in 2011; (12) decreased
restructuring charges of $0.5 billion related to our European operations; and (13) increased net pension and OPEB income of
$0.3 billion due to plan remeasurements.

In the year ended December 31, 2010 Automotive cost of sales included: (1) net restructuring charges of $0.6 billion; (2) net
foreign currency translation and remeasurement losses of $0.4 billion; (3) charges of $0.2 billion for a recall campaign on windshield
fluid heaters; and (4) impairment charges related to long-lived assets of $0.2 billion; partially offset by (5) net foreign currency
transaction gains of $0.2 billion.

In the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009 Automotive cost of sales included: (1) a settlement loss of $2.6 billion
related to the termination of our UAW hourly retiree medical plan; (2) net foreign currency translation and remeasurement losses of
$0.8 hillion; partially offset by (3) favorable adjustments of $1.3 billion due to the sell through of inventory acquired from Old GM at
July 10, 2009; and (4) net foreign currency transaction gains of $0.1 billion.

As required under U.S. GAAP, the acquired inventory from Old GM on July 10, 2009 was recorded at fair value as of the
acquisition date using a market participant approach, which for work in process and finished goods inventory considered the estimated
selling price of the inventory less the costs a market participant would incur to complete, sell and dispose of the inventory, which may
be different than our costs, and the profit margin required for its completion and disposal effort.

Old GM

In the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 Automotive cost of sales included: (1) incremental depreciation charges of $2.8
billion; (2) net restructuring charges of $1.6 billion; (3) a curtailment loss of $1.4 billion upon the interim remeasurement of the U.S.
hourly defined benefit pension plans; (4) charges of $0.8 billion related to the deconsolidation of Saab Automobile AB (Saab); (5) net
foreign currency remeasurement losses of $0.7 billion; (6) impairment charges related to long-lived assets of $0.6 billion;
(7) derivative losses of $0.5 billion related to commodity and foreign currency exchange derivatives; (8) net foreign currency
transaction losses of $0.3 billion; and (9) charges of $0.3 billion related to obligations associated with various Delphi agreements.

In the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 negative gross margin reflected sales volumes at historically low levels and
Automotive cost of sales, including costs that are fixed in nature, exceeding Total net sales and revenue.

Automotive Selling, General and Administrative Expense

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended
July 10, 2011 vs. 2010
Year Ended Year Ended 2009 January 1, 2009 Change
December 31, December 31, Through Through __“hamge
2011 2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009 Amount %
Automotive selling, general and administrative

EXPENSE it $12,105 $11,446 $6,006 $6,161 $659 5.8%
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GM

In the year ended December 31, 2011 Automotive selling, general and administrative expense increased by $0.7 billion (or 5.8%)
due primarily to: (1) increased advertising and sales promotion expenses of $0.5 billion to support media campaigns and new product
launches; (2) net foreign exchange translation and remeasurement losses of $0.2 billion due to the strengthening of major currencies
against the U.S. Dollar; and (3) charges of $0.1 billion related to a single customer’s default under various commercial supply
agreements; partially offset by (4) legal and other expenses of $0.1 billion primarily related to dealer litigation in 2010 which did not
recur in 2011.

In the year ended December 31, 2010 Automotive selling, general and administrative expense included: (1) advertising and sales
promotion expenses of $5.1 billion to support media campaigns for our products; (2) administrative expenses of $4.4 billion; and
(3) selling and marketing expenses primarily related to dealerships of $1.4 billion.

In the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009 Automotive selling, general and administrative expense included:
(1) administrative expenses of $2.6 billion; (2) advertising and sales promotion expenses of $2.5 billion to support media campaigns
for our products; and (3) selling and marketing expenses primarily related to dealerships of $1.0 billion.

Old GM

In the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 Automotive selling, general and administrative expense included: (1) charges of
$0.5 billion recorded for dealer wind-down costs; and (2) a curtailment loss of $0.3 billion related to the interim remeasurement of the
U.S. salary defined benefit pension plan; partially offset by (3) positive effects of various cost savings initiatives, the cancellation of
certain sales and promotion contracts as a result of the Chapter 11 Proceedings in the U.S. and overall reductions in advertising and
marketing expenditures.

Other Automotive Expenses, net

Successor Predecessor
July 10, January 1, Z%i&;rvlsnz(i()el(i(]
Year Ended Year Ended 2009 2009 Chafl e
December 31, December 31, Through Through _“hange
2011 2010 December 31, 2009 July 9,2009 Amount %
Other automotive expenses, net .................. $58 $118 $15 $1,235 $(60) (50.8)%

GM
In the year ended December 31, 2011 Other automotive expenses, net was insignificant.

In the year ended December 31, 2010 Other automotive expenses, net included depreciation expense of $0.1 billion related to our
portfolio of automotive retail leases.

In the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009 Other automotive expenses, net included: (1) depreciation expense and
realized losses of $89 million related to the portfolio of automotive retail leases; (2) pension management expenses of $38 million;
partially offset by (3) gains for changes in liabilities related to Saab of $60 million; and (4) recovery of amounts written off of $51
million related to the portfolio of automotive retail leases.

Old GM
In the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 Other automotive expenses, net included: (1) charges of $0.8 billion primarily

related to the deconsolidation of Saab; (2) charges of $0.2 billion related to Delphi; and (3) depreciation expense of $0.1 billion
related to the portfolio of automotive retail leases.
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Equity in Income of and Disposition of Interest in Ally Financial
Old GM

In the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 Equity in income of and disposition of interest in Ally Financial of $1.4 billion
included: (1) gain of $2.5 billion recorded on the UST’s conversion of the loan from the UST to purchase membership interests in
Ally Financial (UST Ally Financial Loan) for Class B Membership Interests in Ally Financial; partially offset by (2) Old GM’s
proportionate share of Ally Financial’s loss from operations on $1.1 billion.

Goodwill Impairment Charges

Goodwill impairment charges increased by $1.3 billion as we recorded charges of $1.0 billion and $0.3 billion in GME and GMIO.
Refer to Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements for additional information related to our Goodwill impairment charges.

Automotive Interest Expense

Successor Predecessor
July 10, January 1, %{)ﬁl‘v}sj“nﬂfﬁ)
Year Ended Year Ended 2009 2009 Ch ar.l e
December 31, December 31, Through Through __hange
2011 2010 December 31, 2009 July 9,2009 Amount %
Automotive interest expense .................... $540 $1,098 $694 $5,428  $(558) (50.8)%

GM

In the year ended December 31, 2011 Automotive interest expense decreased by $0.6 billion (or 50.8%) due primarily to:
(1) decreased interest expense related to the UST Credit Agreement, Canadian Loan and VEBA Notes of $0.3 billion in 2010 which
did not recur in 2011; and (2) decreased interest expense related to obligations with Ally Financial of $0.2 billion in 2010.

In the year ended December 31, 2010 Automotive interest expense included: (1) interest expense related to the UST Credit
Agreement, Canadian Loan and VEBA Notes of $0.3 billion; (2) interest expense on obligations due to Ally Financial of $0.2 billion;
and (3) interest expense on other debt obligations of $0.6 billion, which included amortization of debt discounts of $0.2 billion.

In the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009 Automotive interest expense included: (1) interest expense related to the
UST Credit Agreement and Canadian Loan of $0.3 billion; (2) interest expense on obligations due to Ally Financial of $0.1 billion;
and (3) interest expense on other debt obligations of $0.3 billion, which included amortization of debt discounts of $0.1 billion.

Oold GM

In the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, Automotive interest expense included: (1) discount amortization related to the UST
Loan Agreement and DIP Facility of $3.6 billion; (2) interest expense related to the UST Loan Agreement and DIP Facility of $0.4
billion; (3) interest expense related to the EDC Loan Facility of $0.2 billion; and (4) interest expense on other obligations of $1.2
billion related to Old GM’s debt obligations including unsecured and contingent convertible debt obligations. Old GM ceased
accruing and paying interest on most of its unsecured U.S. and foreign denominated debt on June 1, 2009 as a result of its Chapter 11
Proceedings.

Interest Income and Other Non-Operating Income, net

Successor Predecessor
July 10, January 1, ;{)ieirvlsnzdoeﬂ)
Year Ended Year Ended 2009 2009 Chafl e
December 31, December 31, Through Through _“hange
2011 2010 December 31, 2009 July 9,2009 Amount %
Interest income and other non-operating income,
NEE . e e $851 $1,531 $375 $852  $(680) (44.4)%
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GM

In the year ended December 31, 2011 Interest income and other non-operating income, net decreased by $0.7 billion (or 44.4%)
primarily to: (1) an impairment charge of $0.6 billion related to our investment in Ally Financial common stock; (2) reversal of the
liability related to Adjustment Shares of $0.2 billion in 2010 which did not recur in 2011; (3) gains on the sale of Saab and Nexteer ¢
$0.2 billion in 2010 which did not recur in 2011; and (4) a gain on the acquisition of GMS of $0.1 in 2010 which did not recur in
2011; partially offset by (5) a gain of $0.3 billion related to the sale of our Ally Financial preferred stock.






GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
In the year ended December 31, 2010 Equity income, net of tax and gain on disposal of investments included equity income of $1.3
billion related to our China JVs and equity income of $0.1 billion related to New Delphi.

In the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009 Equity income, net of tax and gain on disposal of investments included
equity income of $0.5 billion related to our China JVs.

Old GM
In the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 Equity income, net of tax and gain on disposal of investments included equity

income of $0.3 billion related to our China JVs, partially offset by equity losses of $0.2 billion primarily related to impairment
charges and our proportionate share of losses at other joint ventures.
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Changes in Consolidated Financial Condition
(Dollars in Millions, Except Share Amounts)

Successor
December 31, December 31,
2011 2010
ASSETS
Automotive Current Assets
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENTS . ... ..ottt et e e e e e $ 15,499 $ 21,061
MarKetahle SECUITIES . . .o\ttt et e e e e e e e e 16,148 5,555
Restricted cash and marketable SECUNTIES . . ... ... o 206 1,240
Accounts and notes receivable (net of allowance of $331 and $252) ... ... ... 9,949 8,699
Y=Y 31 (o] T PP 14,324 12,125
Equipment on operating [8aSeS, NBL . . . . .. oo 2,464 2,568
Other current assets and deferred INCOME tAXES . . . . ..ttt it e e e e e e e 1,657 1,805
TOtAl CUITENE ASSEES . . . . vttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 60,247 53,053
Automotive Non-current Assets
Restricted cash and marketable SECUINTIES . . ... ..o e 912 1,160
Equity in net assets of nonconsolidated affiliates . . . ... ... .o 6,790 8,529
PrO B Y, Nt . o e 22,957 19,235
GOOWIL . oo e 27,741 30,513
INtANgIDIE @SSEES, NMEt . . . o o 10,013 11,882
Other assets and deferred INCOME TAXES . . . ..o v vttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 2,900 3,594
TOtal NON-CUITENT ASSELS . . . o o oottt ettt ettt 71,313 74,913
Total AULOMOLIVE ASSELS . . . ..ottt ettt e e e 131,560 127,966
GM Financial Assets
Finance reCeivables, Net . . . ... 9,162 8,197
RESIIICIEA CASN . . . oot 1,115 1,090
GO0l . oo 1,278 1,265
(@] 13 ToT . T £ 1,488 380
Total GM Financial ASSets . ... ... ... ... e e 13,043 10,932
TOtAl ASSOLS . . . o ottt et e e e $144,603 $138,898
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Automotive Current Liabilities
Accounts payable (principally trade) . ... ... $ 24,494 $ 21,497
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt . ... ... 1,682 1,616
ACCIUE DIl . . o o 22,756 24,044
Total current labilities . . . ..o 48,932 47,157
Automotive Non-current Liabilities
LONg-term et . . . . oo 3,613 3,014
Postretirement benefits other than PENSIONS . . . . . ... 6,836 9,294
PN OIS & . ottt e e e e e e 25,075 21,894
Other liabilities and deferred INCOME tAXES . . . ..ttt ettt e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 12,336 13,021
Total non-current Habilities . . ... . 47,860 47,223
Total Automotive Liabilities . .. ... ... ... . 96,792 94,380
GM Financial Liabilities
Securitization NOtes PaYAbIe . . . . ... o 6,938 6,128
Credit faCTltIES . . ..o 1,099 832
Other bl . . ..o 783 399
Total GM Financial Liabilities . ... ... ... ... . 8,820 7,359
Total Liabilities . . . . ... ..o e e 105,612 101,739
Commitments and CONLINGENCIES . . . . ..o ottt ettt ettt et e et e e e e e e e e e e e
Equity
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 2,000,000,000 shares authorized:
Series A (276,101,695 shares issued and outstanding (each with a $25.00 liquidation preference) at December 31, 2011 and 2010) .... 5,536 5,536
Series B (100,000,000 shares issued and outstanding (each with a $50.00 liquidation preference) at December 31, 2011 and 2010) .. .. . 4,855 4,855
Common stock, $0.01 par value (5,000,000,000 shares authorized and 1,564,727,289 shares and 1,500,136,998 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010) . . .. ...ttt e 16 15
Capital surplus (principally additional paid-in capital) ... .... ... o 26,391 24,257
RetaINEd BaIMINGS . . . oo e 7,183 266
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME (I0SS) . . . . ..\ vttt (5,861) 1,251
Total StOCKNOIAEIS™ BQUITY . . .\ttt e e e e e e e e 38,120 36,180
NONCONEIOIIING INTEIESES . . . . . 871 979
Total Equity ... ... 38,991 37,159
Total Liabilities and EQUILY . . . . ... ..o $144,603 $138,898
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Automotive
Current Assets

Marketable securities increased by $10.6 billion (or 190.7%) due to our improved liquidity primarily related to positive operating
cash flows and proceeds received from the sale of our investments in New Delphi and Ally Financial.

Restricted cash and marketable securities decreased by $1.0 billion (or 83.4%) due primarily to the release of restricted cash escrow
funds of $1.0 billion, of which $0.8 billion was used to fund a payment to the HCT and the $0.2 billion remaining funds held in
escrow were no longer subject to restrictions and released to us.

Accounts and notes receivable increased by $1.3 billion (or 14.4%) due primarily to: (1) the termination and modification of
wholesale advance agreements with Ally Financial in GMNA, which provided for accelerated receipt of payment on dealer sales
financed through Ally Financial of $1.1 billion; and (2) increase of $0.2 billion due to increased sales volume.

Inventories increased by $2.2 billion (or 18.1%) due primarily to: (1) increased raw materials and finished products of $2.4 billion
in anticipation of forecasted demand, new product launches and vehicles returned from lease and not yet sold at auction; partially
offset by (2) net foreign currency translation of $0.4 billion due to the weakening of major currencies against the U.S. Dollar.

Non-Current Assets

Equity in net assets of nonconsolidated affiliates decreased by $1.7 billion (or 20.4%) due primarily to: (1) a decrease of $2.0
billion resulting from the sale of our interest in New Delphi; and (2) dividends declared in 2011 of $1.4 billion primarily by the China
JVs; partially offset by (3) equity income of $1.5 billion related to our China JVs.

Property, net increased by $3.7 billion (or 19.4%) due primarily to: (1) capital expenditures of $7.8 billion; and (2) new capital
leases of $0.4 billion; partially offset by (3) depreciation of $3.7 billion; (4) net foreign currency translation of $0.5 billion due to the
weakening of major currencies against the U.S. Dollar; (5) decreases of $0.2 billion associated with disposals; and (6) decreases of
$0.1 billion associated with the deconsolidation of VM Motori (VMM).

Goodwill decreased by $2.8 billion (or 9.1%) due primarily to: (1) impairment charges of $1.5 billion in GME recorded in retained
earnings; and (2) impairment charges of $1.3 billion in GME and GMIO.

Intangible assets, net decreased by $1.9 billion (or 15.7%) due primarily to: (1) amortization of $1.8 billion; and (2) net foreign
currency translation of $0.1 billion due to the weakening of major currencies against the U.S. Dollar.

Other assets and deferred income taxes decreased by $0.7 billion (or 19.3%) due primarily to: (1) the sale of our investment in Ally
Financial preferred stock of $0.7 billion; and (2) the impairment of our investment in Ally Financial common stock of $0.6 billion;
partially offset by (3) an increase in net deferred tax assets of $0.2 billion; and (4) an increase in derivative assets of $0.1 billion.

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable increased by $3.0 billion (or 13.9%) due primarily to: (1) higher payables of $1.9 billion for materials due to
increased production volumes and higher production costs; (2) an increase in accounts payable for capital projects of $1.4 billion as
we prepare for new vehicle launches; and (3) an increase in engineering and product development payables of $0.1 billion; partially
offset by (4) net foreign currency translation of $0.8 billion due to the weakening of major currencies against the U.S. Dollar.

Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt increased by $0.1 billion (or 4.1%) due primarily to: (1) reclassifications

from long-term debt to short-term debt for payments to be made in the next 12 months of $1.0 billion; and (2) net increases to short-
term facilities with original maturities less than 90 days of $0.1 billion; partially offset by (3) payments on debt of $1.1 billion.
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Non-Current Liabilities

Long-term debt increased by $0.6 billion (or 19.9%) due primarily to: (1) issuance of notes to the HCT of $1.1 billion; (2) net
increases to capital leases of $0.3 billion; and (3) amortization of debt discounts of $0.2 billion; partially offset by (4) reclassifications
of long-term debt to short-term debt for payments to be made in the next 12 months of $1.0 billion.

Postretirement benefits other than pensions liability decreased by $2.5 billion (or 26.4%) primarily in GMNA due to: (1) settlement
of the CAW retiree healthcare liability of $2.9 billion; (2) benefit payments of $0.6 billion; and (3) remeasurement of a U.S. hourly
legal service plan of $0.3 billion; partially offset by (4) actuarial losses primarily from discount rate decreases of $0.9 billion; and
(5) service and interest costs of $0.5 billion.

Pension liabilities increased by $3.2 billion (or 14.5%) due primarily to: (1) net actuarial losses of $10.0 billion; partially offset by
(2) gains from asset returns greater than expected of $3.3 billion related to U.S. plans; (3) contributions and benefits payments of $2.8
billion, including contributions of common stock to our U.S. hourly and salaried pension plans of $1.9 billion; (4) expected return on
assets in excess of service and interest costs of $0.5 billion; and (5) net foreign currency translation of $0.2 billion due to the
weakening of major currencies against the U.S. Dollar.

Automotive Financing

Total GM Financial Assets

Finance receivables, net increased by $1.0 billion (or 11.8%) due primarily to new loan originations of $5.1 billion partially offset
by principal collections, gross charge offs and the change in the carrying amount adjustment on pre-acquisition receivables of $4.0

billion.

Other assets increased by $1.1 billion (or 291.6%) due primarily to an increase in new leased vehicles of $0.7 billion and an
increase in cash and cash equivalents of $0.4 billion.

Total GM Financial Liabilities

Securitization notes payable increased by $0.8 billion (or 13.2%) due primarily to the issuance of new securitization notes payable
of $4.6 billion partially offset by a normal principal amortization of $3.7 billion.

Credit facilities increased by $0.3 billion (or 32.1%) due primarily to higher utilization of the credit facilities as a result of an
increase in loan and lease originations.

Other liabilities increased by $0.4 billion (or 96.2%) due primarily to the issuance of 6.75% senior notes of $0.5 billion in June
2011.

GM North America
(Dollars in Millions)
Combined GM
Successor and Old GM Successor Predecessor
Year Ended Year Ended
July 10,2009 | January 1, 2011 vs. 2010 2010 vs. 2009
Y Ended Y Ended Y Ended Th h 2009 . .
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, | Through Change Change
2011 2010 2009 2009 July 9,2009  Amount % Amount %
Total net sales and
revenue ............. $90,233 $83,035 $56,617 $32,426 $ 24,191 $7,198 8.7% $26,418 46.7%
EBIT (loss)-adjusted . . . .. $ 7,194 $ 5,688 $(2,065) $(11,092) $1,506 26.5%
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GMNA Total Net Sales and Revenue

In the year ended December 31, 2011 Total net sales and revenue increased by $7.2 billion (or 8.7%) due primarily to: (1) increased
wholesale volumes of $7.3 billion representing 299,000 vehicles (or 10.3%) due to increased industry demand and successful recent
vehicle launches such as the Chevrolet Cruze, Chevrolet Equinox and GMC Terrain; (2) favorable vehicle pricing of $1.1 billion;
(3) increased revenues from Customer Care and Aftersales of $0.4 billion due to increased volumes; and (4) favorable net foreign
currency remeasurement of $0.3 billion due to the strengthening of the Canadian Dollar against the U.S. Dollar; partially offset by
(5) unfavorable vehicle mix of $1.1 billion; and (6) decreased revenue of $1.0 billion due to the sale of Nexteer in November 2010.

In the year ended December 31, 2010 Total net sales and revenue increased by $26.4 billion (or 46.7%) due primarily to:
(1) increased wholesale volumes of $19.8 billion representing 873,000 vehicles (or 42.7%) due to an improving economy and
successful recent vehicle launches of the Chevrolet Equinox, Chevrolet Cruze, GMC Terrain, Buick LaCrosse and Cadillac SRX;
(2) favorable pricing of $2.9 billion due to decreased sales allowances partially offset by less favorable adjustments in the U.S. to the
accrual for U.S. residual support programs for leased vehicles of $0.4 billion (favorable of $0.7 billion in the year ended
December 31, 2010 compared to favorable of $1.1 billion in 2009); (3) favorable vehicle mix of $1.6 billion due to increased
crossover and truck sales; (4) increased sales of $1.0 billion due to the acquisition of Nexteer and four domestic component
manufacturing facilities; (5) favorable net foreign currency remeasurement of $0.8 billion due to the strengthening of the Canadian
Dollar against the U.S. Dollar; and (6) increased revenues from OnStar of $0.3 billion due to increased volumes.

GMNA EBIT (Loss)-Adjusted

In the year ended December 31, 2011 EBIT-adjusted increased by $1.5 billion (or 26.5%) due primarily to: (1) increased net
wholesale volumes of $1.9 billion due to increased industry demand and successful recent vehicle launches; (2) favorable vehicle
pricing effect of $1.1 billion; (3) decreased amortization expense of $0.7 billion due to the effect of double-declining amortization of
technology intangibles which were recorded on July 10, 2009 and impairment charges for long-lived assets in 2010; (4) favorable
foreign currency remeasurement of $0.5 billion due to the weakening of the Canadian Dollar against the U.S. Dollar; and (5) increase
in net pension and OPEB income of $0.3 billion due to December 31, 2010 plan remeasurements; partially offset by (6) unfavorable
net vehicle mix of $1.8 billion; (7) increased engineering expense and other technology fees of $0.5 billion to support new product
development; (8) increased material prices and freight of $0.4 billion; and (9) reduction in favorable adjustments of $0.4 billion to
restructuring reserves due to increased production capacity utilization and revisions to productivity initiatives in 2010.

In the year ended December 31, 2010 EBIT-adjusted was $5.7 billion and included: (1) favorable adjustments of $0.4 billion to
restructuring reserves due primarily to increased production capacity utilization, which resulted in the recall of idled employees to fill
added shifts at multiple U.S. production sites and revisions to productivity initiatives; offset by (2) advertising and sales promotion
expenses of $3.4 billion to support media campaigns for our products; (3) administrative expenses of $2.0 billion; (4) selling and
marketing expenses of $0.6 billion related to our dealerships; (5) foreign currency remeasurement losses of $0.5 billion due to the
strengthening of the Canadian Dollar against the U.S. Dollar; (6) charges of $0.2 billion for a recall campaign on windshield fluid
heaters; and (7) impairment charges related to long-lived assets of $0.2 billion.

In the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009 EBIT-adjusted was a loss of $2.1 billion and included: (1) foreign currency
remeasurement losses of $1.3 billion due to the strengthening of the Canadian Dollar against the U.S. Dollar; (2) charges of $0.3
billion related to dealer wind-down costs for our Saturn dealers after plans to sell the Saturn brand and dealerships network were
terminated; partially offset by (3) favorable adjustments in Automotive cost of sales of $0.7 billion due to the sell through of inventory
acquired from Old GM at July 10, 2009.

old GM
In the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 EBIT-adjusted was a loss of $11.1 billion and included: (1) incremental

depreciation charges of $2.1 billion for facilities included in GMNA’s restructuring activities and for certain facilities that MLC
retained; (2) curtailment loss of $1.7 billion upon the interim remeasurement of the U.S. hourly and U.S. salaried defined benefit
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pension plans as a result of the 2009 Special Attrition Programs and salaried workforce reductions; (3) U.S. hourly and salary
separation program charges and Canadian restructuring activities of $1.1 billion; (4) foreign currency remeasurement losses of $0.7
billion due to the strengthening of the Canadian Dollar against the U.S. Dollar; (5) charges of $0.5 billion incurred for dealer wind-
down costs; (6) derivative losses of $0.5 billion related to commodity and foreign currency exchange derivatives; (7) a net charge of
$0.4 billion related to the modification of UAW job security programs; (8) charges of $0.4 billion primarily for impairments of long-
lived assets; (9) charges of $0.3 billion related to obligations associated with various Delphi agreements; and (10) equity losses of
$0.3 billion related to impairment charges and our proportionate share of losses at joint ventures.

GM Europe
(Dollars in Millions)
Combined GM
Successor and Old GM Successor Predecessor
Year Ended Year Ended
July 10,2009 | January 1,
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended IlT)in'ough Zl(l)0r9y 201C1hvs. 2010 201((:)hvs. 2009
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, Through ange ange
2011 2010 2009 2009 July 9,2009 Amount % Amount %
Total net sales and revenue .. $26,757 $24,076 $24,031 $11,479 $12,552 $2,681 11.1% $45 0.2%
EBIT (loss)-adjusted . ... ... $ (747)  $(1,953) $ (814) | $(2,815) $1,206 61.8%

GME Total Net Sales and Revenue

In the year ended December 31, 2011 Total net sales and revenue increased by $2.7 billion (or 11.1%) due primarily to:
(1) favorable foreign currency translation effect of $1.1 billion, due to the strengthening of the Euro, British Pound and Swiss Franc
against the U.S. Dollar; (2) favorable vehicle mix of $1.1 billion due to the new generation Opel Meriva and Opel Astra and increased
sales of other higher priced vehicles; (3) revenue from GMS of $0.4 billion, which we acquired in 2010; (4) increased powertrain
engine and transmission sales of $0.3 billion, in support of the Chevrolet Cruze and Chevrolet Volt; (5) increased components sales of
$0.2 billion; and (6) increased volumes of $0.1 billion due primarily to a 16,000 vehicles (or 1.3%) increase in wholesales; partially
offset by (7) a reduction in Saab brand sales of $0.2 billion related to the sale of Saab in 2010; and (8) a decrease of $0.1 billion due to
the deconsolidation of VMM in June 2011.

In the year ended December 31, 2010 Total net sales and revenue increased by $45 million (or 0.2%) due primarily to: (1) increased
volumes of $0.3 billion due primarily to a 38,000 vehicles (or 3.1%) increase in wholesales, which included a decrease of $0.5 billion
representing 17,000 vehicles due to the sale of Saab in February 2010; (2) favorable vehicle mix of $0.5 billion due to the Opel
Insignia and increased sales of other higher priced vehicles; (3) favorable vehicle pricing effect of $0.5 billion due to launches of the
Opel Astra and Opel Meriva; partially offset by (4) unfavorable net foreign currency translation effect of $0.7 billion, due to the
weakening of the Euro and British Pound against the U.S. Dollar.

GME EBIT (Loss)-Adjusted
GM

In the year ended December 31, 2011 EBIT (loss)-adjusted decreased by $1.2 billion (or 61.8%) due primarily to: (1) higher
restructuring charges of $0.5 billion recorded in 2010 for separation programs in Belgium, Spain, Germany and the United Kingdom;
(2) decreased manufacturing costs of $0.3 billion related to the closing of the Antwerp, Belgium facility and European wide labor
savings; (3) favorable net vehicle mix of $0.2 billion; (4) an increase of $0.2 billion in an embedded foreign currency exchange
derivative asset associated with a long-term supply agreement entered into in 2010; (5) EBIT-adjusted from GMS of $0.1 billion;
offset by (6) unfavorable net foreign currency effects of $0.1 billion; and (7) charges of $0.1 billion related to a single customer’s
default under various commercial supply agreements.
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In the year ended December 31, 2010 EBIT-adjusted was a loss of $2.0 billion and included: (1) restructuring charges of $0.8
billion related to separation programs in Belgium, Spain, Germany and the United Kingdom; (2) advertising and sales promotion
expenses of $0.8 billion related to support media campaigns for our products; (3) administrative expense of $0.6 billion; and
(4) selling and marketing expenses of $0.5 billion related to our dealerships.

In the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009 EBIT-adjusted was a loss of $0.8 billion and included: (1) advertising and
sales promotion expenses of $0.4 billion related to support media campaigns for our products; (2) administrative expense of $0.3
billion; (3) selling and marketing expenses of $0.3 billion related to our dealerships; partially offset by (4) favorable adjustments in
Automotive cost of sales of $0.5 billion due to the sell through of inventory acquired from Old GM at July 10, 2009.

Old GM

In the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 EBIT-adjusted was a loss of $2.8 hillion and included: (1) charges of $0.8
billion related to the deconsolidation of Saab, which filed for reorganization protection under the laws of Sweden in February 2009;
(2) incremental depreciation charges of $0.7 billion related to restructuring activities; and (3) operating losses of $0.2 billion related to
Saab.

GM International Operations
(Dollars in Millions)

Combined GM
Successor and Old GM Successor Predecessor
Year Ended Year Ended
July 10,2009 | January 1, 2011 vs, 2010 2010 vs. 2009
Year Ended Year Ended  Year Ended Through 2009 . .
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, Through Change Change
2011 2010 2009 2009 July 9,2009  Amount % Amount %
Total net sales and
revenue ............ $24,761 $20,561 $14,345 $8,127 $6,218 $4,200 20.4% $6,216 43.3%
EBIT (loss)-adjusted . ... $ 1,897  $ 2,262 $ 789 $(486) $ (365) (16.1)%

GMIO Total Net Sales and Revenue

In the year ended December 31, 2011 Total net sales and revenue increased by $4.2 billion (or 20.4%) due primarily to:
(1) increased wholesale volume of $2.7 billion representing 113,000 vehicles due to strong industry growth across the region;
(2) favorable net foreign currency translation of $0.8 billion due to the strengthening of major currencies such as the Australian
Dollar, the Korean Won and the Euro against the U.S. Dollar; (3) favorable vehicle mix of $0.5 billion due to launches of the Alpheon
and Chevrolet Orlando; and (4) favorable vehicle pricing effect of $0.2 billion due to higher pricing on new models launched and
lower sales incentives.

In the year ended December 31, 2010 Total net sales and revenue increased by $6.2 billion (or 43.3%) due primarily to:
(1) increased wholesale volumes of $3.9 billion representing 118,000 vehicles (or 11.8%) due to the global economic recovery;
(2) favorable net foreign currency translation effect of $0.9 billion, due to the strengthening of the Korean Won, Australian Dollar and
South African Rand against the U.S. Dollar; (3) favorable vehicle mix of $0.8 billion due to the launch of the Chevrolet Cruze and
increased sales of sports utility vehicles; (4) derivative losses of $0.8 billion in the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009, that
did not recur in 2010, due to the weakening of the Korean Won against the U.S. Dollar; and (5) favorable vehicle pricing effect of
$0.1 billion, due to higher pricing on new model launches at GM Korea. Subsequent to July 10, 2009, all gains and losses on
non-designated derivatives were recorded in Interest income and other non-operating income, net.

The vehicle sales related to our China and India (Our operations in India were deconsolidated effective February 2010) joint

ventures is not reflected in Total net sales and revenue. The results of our joint ventures are recorded in Equity income, net of tax and
gain on disposal of investments.
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GMIO EBIT (Loss)-Adjusted
GM

In the year ended December 31, 2011 EBIT-adjusted decreased by $0.4 billion (or 16.1%) due primarily to: (1) increased
engineering expenses and other technology fees of $0.5 billion to support new product development; (2) increased material,
depreciation and amortization and other manufacturing costs of $0.3 billion; (3) unfavorable net vehicle mix of $0.2 billion;
(4) increased advertising and sales promotion expenses of $0.2 billion to support media campaigns for launches of new products and
the launch of the Chevrolet brand in Korea; (5) unfavorable net foreign currency translation of $0.1 billion; partially offset by
(6) favorable net wholesale volumes of $0.5 billion; (7) favorable pricing effect of $0.2 billion due to higher pricing on new models
launched and lower sales incentives; (8) increased equity income, net of tax, $0.2 billion from the operating results of our China JVs;
and (9) decreased non-controlling interest attributable to minority shareholders of $0.2 billion.

In the year ended December 31, 2010 EBIT-adjusted was $2.3 billion and included: (1) Equity income, net of tax and gain on
disposal of investments of $1.3 billion; (2) favorable change in fair value of $0.1 billion from derivatives due to the strengthening
Korean Won versus the U.S. Dollar; partially offset by (3) administrative expenses of $0.8 billion; (4) advertising and sales promotion
expenses of $0.6 billion to support media campaigns for our products; (5) unfavorable non-controlling interest attributable to minority
shareholders of $0.3 billion; and (6) selling and marketing expenses of $0.2 billion.

In the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009 EBIT-adjusted was $0.8 billion and included: (1) favorable effect of fresh-
start reporting of $0.4 billion due to decreased depreciation of fixed assets of $0.3 billion and reduced Automotive cost of sales due to
the sell through of inventory acquired from Old GM at July 10, 2009 of $ 0.1 billion; partially offset by (2) administrative expenses of
$0.5 hillion; (3) advertising and sales promotion expenses of $0.3 billion; (4) selling and marketing expenses of $0.1 billion; and
(5) unfavorable amortization of $0.1 billion related to intangible assets.

Old GM

In the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 EBIT-adjusted was a loss of $0.5 billion and included: (1) derivative losses of
$0.8 billion at GM Kaorea; (2) administrative expenses of $0.4 billion; (3) advertising and sales promotion expenses of $0.2 billion;
partially offset by (4) Equity income, net of tax and gain on disposal of investments of $0.3 billion; and (5) favorable effect of $0.1
billion related to the net loss attributable to minority shareholders.

GM South America
(Dollars in Millions)
Combined GM
Successor and Old GM Successor Predecessor
Year Ended Year Ended
July 10, 2009 January 1,
Year Ended Year Ended  Year Ended  Through 2009 200, 2010 2008 vs. 2009
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, Through 2 2
2011 2010 2009 2009 July 9, 2009 Amount % Amount %
Total net sales and
revenue ............. $16,877 $15,379 $13,135 $7,399 $5,736 $1,498 9.7% $2,244 17.1%
EBIT (loss)-adjusted . . . .. $ (122) ¢ 818 $ 417 $ (454)  $ (940) n.m.

n.m. = not meaningful
GMSA Total Net Sales and Revenue

In the year ended December 31, 2011 Total net sales and revenue increased by $1.5 billion (or 9.7%) due primarily to: (1) increased
wholesale volumes of $0.6 billion representing 59,000 vehicles (or 5.7%) due to improved macroeconomic conditions and industry
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growth throughout the region (2) favorable net foreign currency translation effect of $0.5 billion, due to the strengthening of major
currencies such as the Brazilian Real and Colombian Peso against the U.S. Dollar; (3) favorable vehicle pricing effect of $0.3 billion,
due to the hyperinflationary economy in Venezuela; and (4) favorable vehicle mix of $0.1 billion due mainly to increased sales of the
Chevrolet Cruze.

In the year ended December 31, 2010 Total net sales and revenue increased by $2.2 billion (or 17.1%) due primarily to:
(1) increased wholesale volumes of $2.2 billion representing 170,000 vehicles (or 19.1%) due to launches of the Chevrolet Cruze and
Chevrolet Spark throughout the region; (2) favorable net foreign currency translation effect of $1.0 billion, due to the strengthening of
major currencies such as the Brazilian Real and Colombian Peso against the U.S. Dollar; (3) favorable vehicle pricing effect of $0.3
billion, due to the hyperinflationary economy in Venezuela; partially offset by (4) devaluation of the BsF of $0.9 billion; and
(5) unfavorable vehicle mix of $0.4 billion due to increased sales of the Chevrolet Spark and Chevrolet Aveo and decreased sales of
the Chevrolet Meriva, Vectra and S-10.

GMSA EBIT (Loss)-Adjusted
GM

In the year ended December 31, 2011 EBIT-adjusted was a loss of $0.1 billion as compared to EBIT-adjusted of $0.8 billion in the
year ended December 31, 2010 due primarily to: (1) increased material and freight of $0.7 billion; (2) increased manufacturing costs
of $0.3 billion; and (3) foreign currency transaction gains of $0.3 billion recorded in 2010 due to preferential foreign currency
exchange rates in Venezuela, which were discontinued in 2011; and (4) unfavorable $0.1 billion related to separation costs; partially
offset by (5) favorable vehicle pricing effect of $0.3 billion due to the hyperinflationary economy in Venezuela.

In the year ended December 31, 2010 EBIT-adjusted was $0.8 billion and included: (1) foreign currency transaction gains of
$0.3 billion due to foreign currency exchanges processed at the preferential rate in Venezuela; offset by (2) administrative expenses of
$0.5 billion; (3) advertising and sales promotion expenses of $0.3 billion to support media campaigns for our products; and (4) selling
and marketing expenses of $0.1 billion.

In January 2010 the Venezuelan government announced that the official fixed exchange rate of 2.15 BsF to $1.00 would be changed
to a dual rate system that includes a 2.60 BsF to $1.00 essentials rate for food, technology and heavy machine importers and a 4.30
BsF to $1.00 non-essentials rate for all others. This devaluation required remeasurement of our Venezuelan subsidiaries’
non-U.S. Dollar denominated monetary assets and liabilities. We used a rate of 4.30 BsF to $1.00 to determine the remeasurement,
which resulted in a charge of $25 million recorded in Automotive cost of sales in the year ended December 31, 2010.

In the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009 EBIT-adjusted was $0.4 billion and included: (1) administrative expenses
of $0.2 billion; (2) advertising and sales promotion expenses of $0.1 billion; and (3) selling and marketing expenses of $0.1 billion.

Old GM

In the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 EBIT-adjusted was a loss of $0.5 billion and included: (1) foreign currency
transaction losses of $0.5 billion due to foreign currency exchanges processed outside the Venezuela currency exchange agency;
(2) administrative expenses of $0.2 billion; (3) advertising and sales promotion expenses of $0.1 billion; and (4) selling and marketing
expenses of $0.1 billion.

GM Financial
(Dollars in Millions)
Successor
Three Months
Year Ended Ended
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
TOtAl TBVENUE . . . ot e e $1,410 $281
INCOME DEfOre INCOME tAXES . .\ o\ttt e e e e e $ 622 $129
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GM Financial Revenue

In the year ended December 31, 2011 Total revenue included finance charge income of $1.2 billion and other income of $C
billion. The effective yield on GM FinancialOs finance receivables was 13.7% for the year ended December 31, 2011. The effect
yield represents finance charges and fees recorded in earnings and the accretion of the accretable yield as a percentage of av
finance receivable.

In the three months ended December 31, 2010 Total revenue included finance charge income of $0.3 billion. The effective yield
GM FinancialOs finance receivables was 12.1% for the three months ended December 31, 2010.

Net margin is the difference between finance charge income and other income earned on GM FinancialOs finance receivables
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Old GM

In the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 results included: (1) centrally recorded Reorganization gains, net of $128.2
billion which is more fully discussed in Note 32 to our consolidated financial statements; (2) amortization of discounts related to the
UST Loan Agreement, EDC Loan Facility and DIP Facility of $3.7 billion; (3) a gain of $2.5 billion recorded on the UST’s
conversion of the UST Ally Financial Loan for Class B Common Membership Interests which was partially offset by Old GM’s
proportionate share of Ally Financial’s loss from operations of $1.1 billion; and (4) a gain on extinguishment of debt of $0.9 billion
related to an amendment to Old GM’s U.S. term loan; partially offset by (5) a loss related to the extinguishment of the UST Ally
Financial Loan of $2.0 billion when the UST exercised its option to convert outstanding amounts into shares of Ally Financial’s Class
B Common Membership Interests; (6) interest expense of $0.8 billion on unsecured debt balances; (7) interest expense of $0.4 billion
on the UST Loan Agreement; and (8) interest expense of $0.2 billion on GMIO and GMSA debt.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity Overview

We believe that our current level of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities and availability under our secured revolving
credit facility will be sufficient to meet our liquidity needs. However, we expect to have substantial cash requirements going forward
which we plan to fund through available liquidity and cash flow from operations. Our known material future uses of cash include,
among other possible demands: (1) reinvestment in our business through capital expenditures, engineering and product development
activities; (2) pension contributions and OPEB payments; (3) payments to reduce debt and other long-term obligations; (4) dividend
payments on our Series A and Series B Preferred Shares; and (5) certain South American income and indirect tax-related
administrative proceedings may require that we deposit funds in escrow or make payments which may range up to $0.8 billion.

Our liquidity plans are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, including those described in the section of this report entitled
“Risk Factors,” some of which are outside our control. Macroeconomic conditions could limit our ability to successfully execute our
business plans and therefore adversely affect our liquidity plans.

Recent Management Initiatives

We continue to monitor and evaluate opportunities to optimize our liquidity position and capital structure in order to strengthen our
balance sheet.

Reduction of Financial Leverage

Reducing our financial leverage remains a key strategic initiative. We continue to evaluate potential repayments of long-term
obligations prior to maturity. Any such repayments may negatively affect our liquidity in the short-term.

In the year ended December 31, 2011 we made prepayments on debt facilities of $1.0 billion held by certain of our foreign
subsidiaries, primarily in GMNA and GMSA. However, our overall debt balances increased to $5.3 billion at December 31, 2011 as
these prepayments were more than offset primarily by the issuance of the HCT notes that were incurred as part of an agreement to
settle certain retiree healthcare obligations and increases to other debt facilities.

We made a voluntary contribution in January 2011 to our U.S. hourly and salaried defined benefit pension plans of 61 million
shares of our common stock valued at $2.2 billion for funding purposes at the time of contribution. The contributed shares qualified as
a plan asset for funding purposes at the time of contribution and as a plan asset valued at $1.9 billion for accounting purposes in July
2011. This contribution was made as part of our continuing efforts to mitigate risk in our balance sheet.

Under wholesale financing arrangements, our U.S. dealers typically borrow money from financial institutions to fund their vehicle
purchases from us. Effective January 2011 we terminated a wholesale advance agreement which provided for accelerated receipt of
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payments made by Ally Financial on behalf of our U.S. dealers pursuant to Ally Financial’s wholesale financing arrangements with
dealers. Similar modifications were made in Canada and Mexico in the year ended December 31, 2011. The wholesale advance
agreements covered the period for which vehicles are in transit between assembly plants and dealerships. We no longer receive
payments in advance of the date vehicles purchased by dealers are scheduled to be delivered in GMNA resulting in an increase to our
accounts receivable balance of $1.1 billion at December 31, 2011. The amount of the increase to our accounts receivable balance
depends on sales volumes, seasonal fluctuations and certain other factors.

In January 2011 we withdrew our application for loans available under Section 136 of the EISA. This decision is consistent with
our stated goal to reduce our financial leverage.

Investment Actions

We accumulated Canadian Dollar denominated deposits and investments of $6.4 billion in the year ended December 31, 2011.
These deposits and investments will incur foreign exchange gains or losses based on the movement of the Canadian Dollar in relation
to the U.S. Dollar and will therefore reduce our net Canadian Dollar foreign exchange exposure, which primarily relates to pension
and OPEB liabilities. We expect to maintain a sufficient amount of Canadian Dollar deposits and investments to offset the liabilities
denominated in Canadian Dollars. These funds continue to be available to fund our normal ongoing operations and are included in our
available liquidity.

We continue to monitor and explore the sale of other non-core assets. In March 2011 we sold our Class A Membership Interests in
New Delphi to New Delphi for $3.8 billion. Also in March 2011 we sold our Ally Financial preferred stock for $1.0 billion. Proceeds
from these asset sales were used to strengthen liquidity and are to be used for general corporate purposes.

From time to time we consider the possibility of acquisitions, dispositions and strategic alliances that we believe would generate
significant advantages and substantially strengthen our business. This may include additional loans or investments with our joint
venture partners and may negatively impact our liquidity in the short-term.

Automotive

Available Liquidity

Available liquidity includes cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities balances. At December 31, 2011 our available
liquidity was $31.6 billion, excluding funds available under credit facilities of $5.9 billion. The amount of available liquidity is

subject to intra-month and seasonal fluctuations and includes balances held by various business units and subsidiaries worldwide that
are needed to fund their operations.
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We manage our liquidity primarily at our treasury centers as well as at certain of our significant consolidated overseas subsidiaries.
Our cash equivalents and marketable securities balances include investments in U.S. government and agency obligations, foreign
government securities, time deposits and certificates of deposits and corporate debt securities, and are primarily denominated in U.S.
Dollars. Our investment guidelines, which we may change from time to time, prescribe certain minimum credit rating thresholds and
limit our exposures to any particular sector, asset class, issuance or security type. Substantially all of our current investments in debt
securities are with A/A2 or better rated issuers. We maintain cash balances and investments in certain foreign currencies, such as the
Canadian Dollar, to fund future payments on foreign currency denominated obligations thereby reducing a portion of the related
foreign currency exposure. We actively monitor and manage our liquidity exposure to Europe which is related primarily to short-term
bank deposits and short-term debt securities of high-quality European issuers. A portion of our total liquidity includes amounts
deemed indefinitely reinvested in our foreign subsidiaries. We have used and will continue to use other methods including inter-
company loans to utilize these funds across our global operations as needed. The following table summarizes our liquidity (dollars in
millions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
Cashand cash equIValents . .. ... .. $15,499 $21,061
Marketable SECUNTIES .. ...t 16,148 5,555
Available liquidity . ... ..o 31,647 26,616
Available under credit facilities . .......... 5,867 5,919
Total available liquidity ... ....... .. 37,514 32,535
HCT €SCrOW aCCOUNT (B) .+« « v o oot ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e e et e — 1,008
Total liquidity including HCT €SCrow acCouNt . . ... ..o v ettt e e $37,514 $33,543

(a) Classified as Restricted cash and marketable securities.

Upon implementation of the HCT, we used funds in an escrow account to fund a payment to the HCT of $0.8 billion. Following
implementation the remaining funds held in escrow of $0.2 billion were no longer subject to restrictions and were released to us.
Refer to Note 18 to our consolidated financial statements for additional information on the HCT settlement.

GM

Total available liquidity increased by $5.0 billion in the year ended December 31, 2011 due primarily to: (1) positive operating cash
flows of $7.4 billion; (2) proceeds received from the sale of investments in New Delphi and Ally Financial of $4.8 billion; and
(3) decreases to restricted cash balances of $1.4 billion, partially offset by (4) capital expenditures of $6.2 hillion; and (5) negative
cash from financing activities of $1.9 billion related primarily to debt prepayments and dividend payments.

Total available liquidity increased by $9.1 billion in the year ended December 31, 2010 due to: (1) positive operating and investing
cash flows of $7.3 billion; (2) increased marketable securities balances of $5.4 billion; and (3) additional amounts available under
credit facilities of $5.3 billion due to a $5.0 billion secured credit facility; partially offset by (4) negative cash flows from financing
activities of $9.3 billion related to prepayments on debt obligations.

UST Credit Agreement and Canadian Loan

UST Credit Agreement

Old GM received total proceeds of $19.8 billion from the UST under the UST Loan Agreement and additional funding of $33.3
billion from the UST and EDC under its DIP Facility. On July 10, 2009 we entered into the UST Credit Agreement and assumed debt

of $7.1 billion which Old GM incurred under its DIP Facility. We repaid the final remaining amounts outstanding on the UST Credit
Agreement in April 2010. Amounts repaid under the agreement may not be reborrowed.

General Motors Company 2011 Annual Report 43



GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

While we have repaid in full our indebtedness under the UST Credit Agreement, the executive compensation and corporate
governance provisions of Section 111 of the EESA, including the Interim Final Rule, will continue to apply to us for the period
specified in the EESA and the Interim Final Rule. Certain of the covenants in the UST Credit Agreement will continue to apply to us
until the earlier to occur of (1) our ceasing to be a recipient of Exceptional Financial Assistance, or (2) UST ceasing to own any direct
or indirect equity interests in us, and impose obligations on us with respect to, among other things, certain expense policies, executive
privileges and compensation requirements.

The UST Credit Agreement includes a vitality commitment which requires us to use our commercially reasonable best efforts to
ensure that our manufacturing volume conducted in the U.S. is consistent with at least 90% of the projected manufacturing level
(projected manufacturing level for this purpose being 1,934,000 units in 2011, 1,998,000 units in 2012, 2,156,000 units in 2013 and
2,260,000 units in 2014), absent a material adverse change in our business or operating environment which would make the
commitment non-economic. In the event that such a material adverse change occurs, the UST Credit Agreement provides that we will
use our commercially reasonable best efforts to ensure that the volume of U.S. manufacturing is the minimum variance from the
projected manufacturing level that is consistent with good business judgment and the intent of the commitment. This covenant
survived our repayment of the UST Credit Agreement and remains in effect through December 31, 2014 unless the UST receives total
proceeds from debt repayments, dividends, interest, preferred stock redemptions and common stock sales equal to the total dollar
amount of all UST invested capital.

UST invested capital totaled $49.5 billion, representing the cumulative amount of cash received by Old GM from the UST under
the UST Loan Agreement and the DIP Facility, excluding $0.4 billion which the UST loaned to Old GM under the warranty program
and which was repaid on July 10, 2009. This balance also did not include amounts advanced under the UST Ally Financial Loan as
the UST exercised its option to convert this loan into Ally Financial preferred membership interests previously held by Old GM in
May 2009. At December 31, 2011 the UST had received cumulative proceeds of $23.1 billion from debt repayments, interest
payments, Series A Preferred Stock dividends, sales of our common stock and Series A Preferred Stock redemption. The UST’s
invested capital less proceeds received totals $26.4 billion.

To the extent we fail to comply with any of the covenants in the UST Credit Agreement that continue to apply to us, the UST is
entitled to seek specific performance and the appointment of a court-ordered monitor acceptable to the UST (at our sole expense) to
ensure compliance with those covenants.

Canadian Loan

On July 10, 2009 through our wholly-owned subsidiary GMCL, we entered into the Canadian Loan Agreement and assumed a $1.3
billion term loan. GMCL repaid the final remaining amounts outstanding on the Canadian Loan in April 2010. Amounts repaid under
the agreement may not be reborrowed.

The Canadian Loan Agreement and related agreements include certain covenants requiring GMCL to meet certain annual Canadian
production volumes expressed as ratios to total overall production volumes in the U.S. and Canada and to overall production volumes
in the North American Free Trade Agreement region. The targets cover vehicles and specified engine and transmission production in
Canada. These agreements also include covenants on annual GMCL capital expenditures and research and development expenses. In
the event a material adverse change occurs that makes the fulfillment of these covenants non-economic (other than a material adverse
change caused by the actions or inactions of GMCL), the lender will consider adjustments to mitigate the business effect of the
material adverse change. These covenants survive GMCL’s repayment of the loans and certain of the covenants have effect through
December 31, 2016.

Refer to Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements for additional details on the Canadian Loan.
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Credit Facilities

We use credit facilities as a mechanism to provide additional flexibility in managing our global liquidity. Our primary borrowing
capacity under these credit facilities comes from our $5.0 billion secured revolving credit facility. The balance of our credit facilities
are geographically dispersed across all regions. The following tables summarize our committed and uncommitted credit facilities
(dollars in millions):

Amounts Available

Total Credit Facilities Under Credit Facilities
Successor Successor
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Committed ... o $5,338 $6,142 $5,308 $5,475
Uncommitted . ... o 629 490 559 444
Total .o $5,967 $6,632 $5,867 $5,919
Amounts Available
Total Credit Facilities Under Credit Facilities
Successor Successor
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Secured revolving credit facility .............. ... .. ... . $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
Brazil . ... . e — 466 — 2
GM HONG KONG (8) -+« e et et e e e 200 400 200 370
Other (B) ..o 767 766 667 547
Total .. $5,967 $6,632 $5,867 $5,919

(@) Includes credit facilities of $200 million at December 31, 2010 which we terminated in July 2011 following the repayment of $30
million which was outstanding under the facility.

(b) Consists of credit facilities available at our foreign subsidiaries that are not individually significant.

Our largest credit facility is our five year, $5.0 billion secured revolving credit facility which includes a letter of credit sub-facility
of up to $500 million. Additionally, we can use collateral under the revolving credit facility to support up to $2.0 billion of other
obligations. We continue to evaluate potential uses for this collateral which may strengthen our overall liquidity position without
impacting our financial leverage. We entered into the secured revolving credit facility agreement in October 2010. While we do not
believe that we will draw on the secured revolving credit facility to fund operating activities, the facility provides additional liquidity
and financing flexibility. Availability under the secured revolving credit facility is subject to borrowing base restrictions. Our
obligations under the secured revolving credit facility are guaranteed by certain of our domestic subsidiaries and secured by a
substantial portion of our domestic assets excluding cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities and GM Financial. If we receive an
investment grade corporate rating from two or more of the credit rating agencies: Fitch Ratings (Fitch), Moody’s Investor Service
(Moody’s) and Standard & Poor’s (S&P), we may no longer have to post collateral under the terms of the facility.

Uncommitted credit facilities include lines of credit which are available to us but under which the lenders have no legal obligation

to provide funding upon our request. We and our subsidiaries use credit facilities to fund working capital needs, product programs,
facilities development and other general corporate purposes.
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Cash Flow
Operating Activities
GM

In the year ended December 31, 2011 cash flows from operating activities increased by $0.8 billion due primarily to: (1) increased
net income excluding depreciation, impairment charges and amortization of $2.9 billion; (2) decreased pension cash contributions and
OPEB payments in excess of expense of $2.3 billion; partially offset by (3) unfavorable changes in working capital of $1.6 billion due
to the termination of the advance wholesale agreements and increased production; and (4) other activities of $2.7 billion which
include non-cash gains relating to the sale of our investments in New Delphi and Ally Financial preferred stock of $1.9 billion.
Significant pension and OPEB related activity included a cash contribution as part of the HCT settlement of $0.8 billion in 2011 and a
voluntary contribution made to our U.S. pension plans of $4.0 billion in 2010. Refer to Note 18 to our consolidated financial
statements for additional information on the HCT settlement.

In the year ended December 31, 2010 we had positive cash flows from operating activities of $6.6 billion due primarily to: (1) Net
income of $6.4 billion, which included non-cash charges of $7.1 billion resulting from depreciation, impairment and amortization of
long-lived assets and finite-lived intangible assets (including amortization of debt issuance costs and discounts); (2) dividends
received of $0.7 billion related to our China JVs; partially offset by (3) pension contributions and OPEB payments of $5.7 billion
related to voluntary contributions to U.S. hourly and salary pension plans of $4.0 billion; (4) payments on our previously announced
restructuring programs of $1.3 billion partially offset by net charges of $0.6 billion; (5) dealer wind-down payments of $0.4 billion;
and (6) unfavorable changes in working capital of $0.6 billion. The unfavorable changes in working capital were related to increases
in accounts receivables, inventories and the completion of a change to weekly payment terms to our suppliers, partially offset by an
increase in accounts payable related to increased production volumes.

In the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009 we had positive cash flows from operating activities of $1.1 billion due
primarily to: (1) favorable managed working capital of $5.7 billion due to the effect of increased sales and production on accounts
payable and the timing of certain supplier payments; (2) OPEB expense in excess of cash payments of $1.7 billion; (3) net income of
$0.6 billion excluding depreciation, impairment and amortization of long-lived assets and finite-lived intangible assets (including
amortization of debt issuance costs and discounts); partially offset by (4) pension contributions of $4.3 billion to our Canadian hourly
and salaried defined benefit pension plans; (5) restructuring payments of $1.2 billion; (6) interest payments of $0.6 billion; and
(7) sales allowance payments in excess of current period accruals for sales incentives of $0.5 billion due to a reduction in dealer stock.

Old GM

In the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 Old GM had negative cash flows from operating activities of $18.3 billion due
primarily to: (1) net loss of $8.4 billion excluding Reorganization gains, net, and depreciation, impairment and amortization of long-
lived assets and finite-lived intangible assets (including amortization of debt issuance costs and discounts); (2) change in accrued
liabilities of $6.8 billion; (3) unfavorable managed working capital of $5.6 billion; and (4) payments of $0.4 billion for reorganization
costs associated with the Chapter 11 Proceedings.

Investing Activities
GM

In the year ended December 31, 2011 cash flows from investing activities decreased by $11.3 billion due primarily to: (1) a
reduction in restricted cash returned from escrow accounts of $11.6 billion; (2) an increase in net acquisitions of marketable securities
with maturities exceeding 90 days of $5.2 billion; and (3) increased capital expenditures of $2.0 billion as we continue to reinvest in
our business; partially offset by (4) proceeds from the sale of our investments in New Delphi and preferred stock in Ally Financial of
$4.8 billion in 2011; and (5) the acquisition of AmeriCredit for $3.5 billion in 2010. The decrease in restricted cash was due to the
release of $1.0 billion following the implementation of the HCT in 2011 and the release of funds held in an escrow account relating to
the UST Credit Agreement of $12.5 billion in 2010.
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In the year ended December 31, 2010 we had positive cash flows from investing activities of $0.7 billion due primarily to: (1) a net
decrease in Restricted cash and marketable securities of $13.0 billion related to withdrawals from an escrow account relating to the
UST Credit Agreement; (2) proceeds from the liquidation of operating leases of $0.3 billion; (3) net proceeds received from the sale
of Nexteer of $0.3 billion; (4) proceeds from the sale of property, plants and equipment of $0.2 billion; partially offset by (5) net
investments in marketable securities with maturities greater than 90 days of $5.4 billion; (6) capital expenditures of $4.2 billion; and
(7) the acquisition of AmeriCredit for $3.5 billion.

In the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009 we had positive cash flows from investing activities of $2.2 billion due
primarily to: (1) a reduction in Restricted cash and marketable securities of $5.2 billion related to withdrawals from an escrow account
relating to the UST Credit Agreement; (2) $0.6 billion related to the liquidation of automotive retail leases; (3) an increase as a result
of the consolidation of Saab of $0.2 billion; (4) tax distributions of $0.1 billion on Ally Financial common stock; partially offset by
(5) net cash payments of $2.0 billion related to the acquisition of Nexteer, four domestic facilities and Class A Membership Interests
in New Delphi; and (6) capital expenditures of $1.9 billion.

Old GM

In the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 Old GM had negative cash flows from investing activities of $21.1 billion due
primarily to: (1) increase in Restricted cash and marketable securities of $18.0 billion due to the establishment of the UST and
Canadian escrow accounts; (2) capital expenditures of $3.5 billion; and (3) investment in Ally Financial of $0.9 billion; partially
offset by (4) liquidation of operating leases of $1.3 billion.

Financing Activities
GM

In the year ended December 31, 2011 cash flows from financing activities increased by $7.4 billion due primarily to: (1) a reduction
in payments made in excess of proceeds received from debt obligations of $10.0 billion related to the repayment of our indebtedness
under the UST Credit Agreement of $5.7 billion, Canadian Loan of $1.3 billion, principal payments of the VEBA Notes of $2.5
billion and repayment of GM Korea’s credit facility of $1.2 billion in 2010; and (2) purchase of the Series A Preferred Stock shares
held by the UST of $2.1 billion in 2010; partially offset by (3) proceeds received from the issuance of our Series B Preferred Stock of
$4.9 billion in 2010.

In the year ended December 31, 2010 we had negative cash flows from financing activities of $9.3 billion due primarily to:
(1) repayments on the UST Credit Agreement and Canadian Loan of $5.7 billion and $1.3 billion; (2) principal payments on the
VEBA Notes of $2.5 billion; (3) purchase of the Series A Preferred Stock shares from the UST of $2.1 billion; (4) repayment of GM
Korea’s revolving credit facility of $1.2 billion; (5) dividend payments on our Series A Preferred Stock of $0.8 billion; (6) payments
on the program announced in March 2009 by the UST to provide financial assistance to automotive suppliers (Receivables Program)
of $0.2 billion; (7) debt issuance fees of $0.2 billion related to establishing our secured revolving credit facility; (8) net payments on
other debt of $0.2 billion; partially offset by (9) proceeds from the issuance of Series B Preferred Stock of $4.9 billion.

In the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009 we had positive cash flows from financing activities of $0.3 billion due
primarily to: (1) funding of $4.0 billion from the EDC which was converted to our equity; partially offset by (2) payments on the UST
Credit Agreement of $1.4 billion (including payments of $0.4 billion related to the warranty program); (3) net payments on the revolving
bridge facility with the German federal government and certain German states (German Facility) of $1.1 billion; (4) net payments on
other debt of $0.4 billion; (5) a net decrease in short-term debt of $0.4 billion; (6) payment on the Canadian Loan of $0.2 billion; (7) net
payments on Receivables Program of $0.1 billion; and (8) dividend payments on our Series A Preferred Stock of $0.1 billion.

Old GM

In the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 Old GM had positive cash flows from financing activities of $44.2 billion due
primarily to: (1) proceeds from the DIP Facility of $33.3 billion; (2) proceeds from the UST Loan Agreement of $16.6 billion;
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(3) proceeds from the EDC Loan Facility of $2.4 billion; (4) proceeds from the German Facility of $1.0 billion; (5) proceeds from the
issuance of long-term debt of $0.3 billion; (6) proceeds from the Receivables Program of $0.3 billion; partially offset by (7) payments
on other debt of $6.1 billion; (8) a net decrease in short-term debt of $2.4 billion; and (9) cash of $1.2 billion MLC retained as part of
the 363 Sale.

Free Cash Flow

Management believes free cash flow provides meaningful supplemental information regarding the liquidity of our automotive
operations and its ability to generate sufficient cash flow above those required in our business to sustain our operations. We measure
free cash flow as cash flow from operations adjusted for capital expenditures. While management believes that free cash flow
provides useful information, it is not an operating measure under U.S. GAAP, and there are limitations associated with its use. Our
calculation of free cash flow may not be completely comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies due to potential
differences between companies in the method of calculation. As a result the use of free cash flow has limitations and should not be
considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for, other measures such as cash flows from operating activities. Due to these
limitations, free cash flow is used as a supplement to U.S. GAAP measures. The following table summarizes free cash flow (dollars in
millions):

Successor
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
Operating cash floW . .. ... . . $ 7,429 $ 6,589
Less: capital eXpenditures . .. ... ..o (6,241) (4,200)
Free cash flow ... .. o $1,188 $ 2,389

Other Liquidity Issues
Status of Credit Ratings

We have been assigned initial ratings by four independent credit rating agencies: Dominion Bond Rating Services (DBRS), Fitch,
Moody’s and S&P.

DBRS, Moody’s, Fitch and S&P currently rate our corporate credit at non-investment grade. The following table summarizes our
credit ratings at February 15, 2012:

Secured Revolving Senior
Rating Agency Corporate Credit Facility Unsecured Outlook
DBRS ...ooeien, BB (high) BBB (low) N/A Stable
Fitch ................. BB BBB- N/A Positive
Moody’s . ............. Bal Baa2 N/A Positive
S&P ... BB+ BBB N/A Stable

Rating actions taken by each of the credit rating agencies from January 1, 2011 through February 15, 2012 were as follows:
DBRS: November 2011 — Upgraded corporate rating to BB (high) from BB.

Fitch: October 2011 — Upgraded corporate rating to BB from BB- and upgraded secured revolving credit facility rating to BBB-
from BB+. Outlook revised to positive from stable.

Moody’s: October 2011 — Upgraded corporate rating to Bal from Ba2 and upgraded secured revolving credit facility rating to
Baa2 from Baa3. Outlook revised to positive from stable.
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Credit Facilities

In the normal course of business, in addition to using available cash, GM Financial pledges receivables to and borrows under credit
facilities to fund operations and repays these borrowings as appropriate under GM Financial’s cash management strategy.

The following table summarizes those credit facilities (dollars in millions):

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Facility Amount
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The following table summarizes contributions made to the defined benefit pension plans or direct payments (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through January 1, 2009
December 31, December 31, December 31, Through

2011 2010 2009 July 9, 2009
US. hourly and salaried ............. ... ... i, $1,962 $4,095 $ 31 $ 57
NON-U. S, o 836 777 4,287 529
Total contributions . ....... ..ot $2,798 $4,872 $4,318 $586

We made a voluntary contribution in January 2011 to our U.S. hourly and salaried defined benefit pension plans of 61 million
shares of our common stock, valued at $2.2 billion for funding purposes at the time of contribution. The contributed shares qualified
as a plan asset for funding purposes at the time of contribution and as a plan asset valued at $1.9 billion for accounting purposes in
July 2011. This was a voluntary contribution above our funding requirements for the pension plans.

The following table summarizes the underfunded status of pension plans on a U.S. GAAP basis (dollars in billions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31,2010
U.S. hourly and salaried . ..........o o $13.3 $11.5
U.S.nonqualified ... o 0.9 0.9
Total U.S. Pension Plans . ... ... 14.2 124
NON-U. S, 11.2 9.8
Total underfunded . ... ... $25.4 $22.2

The U.S. pension plans were underfunded by $14.2 billion and $12.4 billion at December 31, 2011 and 2010. The change in funded
status was due primarily to: (1) actuarial losses due primarily to discount rate decreases of $8.5 billion; and (2) service and interest
costs of $5.4 billion; partially offset by (3) actual return on plan assets of $10.1 billion; and (4) contributions of $2.0 billion.

The non-U.S. pension plans were underfunded by $11.2 billion and $9.8 billion at December 31, 2011 and 2010. The change in
funded status was due primarily to: (1) actuarial losses of $1.5 billion; and (2) service and interest costs of $1.6 billion; partially offset
by (3) actual return on plan assets of $0.7 billion; (4) contributions and benefit payments of $0.8 billion; and (5) net favorable foreign
currency translation effect of $0.2 billion.

Hourly and salaried OPEB plans provide postretirement life insurance to most U.S. retirees and eligible dependents and
postretirement health coverage to some U.S. retirees and eligible dependents. Certain of the non-U.S. subsidiaries have postretirement
benefit plans, although most participants are covered by government sponsored or administered programs.

The following table summarizes the unfunded status of OPEB plans (dollars in billions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
U.S. OPEB PIaNS . ..ot $5.8 $5.7
NON-U.S. OPEB Plans . . . ..ottt e e e 15 4.2
Total unfunded .. ... $7.3 $9.9

The change in unfunded status for the non-U.S. plans was due primarily to the implementation of the independent HCT, which was
accounted for as a plan settlement reducing the OPEB obligation by $3.1 billion.
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Refer to Note 18 to our consolidated financial statements for the change in benefit obligations and related plan assets.

The following table summarizes net benefit payments expected to be paid in the future, which include assumptions related to
estimated future employee service (dollars in millions):

Successor
Years Ended December 31,
Pension Benefits (a) Other Benefits
U.S.Plans Non-U.S.Plans U.S.Plans Non-U.S. Plans (b)
2002 $ 8,514 $1,437 $ 419 $ 55
2008 $ 8,262 $1,441 $ 403 $ 58
2004 $ 8,065 $1,475 $ 367 $ 61
200D $ 7,918 $1,505 $ 357 $ 65
2000 L $ 7,645 $1,528 $ 350 $ 68
2007-202L .o $35,435 $7,725 $1,678 $381

(@) Benefits for most U.S. pension plans and certain non-U.S. pension plans are paid out of plan assets rather than our Cash and cash
equivalents.

(b) Benefit payments presented in this table reflect the effect of the implementation of the HCT which releases us from certain CAW
retiree healthcare claims incurred after October 31, 2011.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not currently utilize off-balance sheet securitization arrangements. All trade or financing receivables and related obligations
subject to securitization programs are recorded on our consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Guarantees Provided to Third Parties

We have provided guarantees related to the residual value of operating leases, certain suppliers’ commitments, certain product-
related claims and commercial loans made by Ally Financial and outstanding with certain third parties excluding vehicle repurchase
obligations, residual support and risk sharing related to Ally Financial. The maximum potential obligation under these commitments
was $1.1 billion and $1.0 billion at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Our current agreement with Ally Financial requires the repurchase of Ally Financial financed inventory invoiced to dealers with
limited exclusions, in the event of a qualifying voluntary or involuntary termination of the dealer’s sales and service agreement. The
repurchase obligation ended in August 2010 for vehicles invoiced through August 2009, ended in August 2011 for vehicles invoiced
through August 2010, ends in August 2012 for vehicles invoiced through August 2011 and ends in August 2013 for vehicles invoiced
through August 2012.

The maximum potential amount of future payments required to be made to Ally Financial under this guarantee would be based on
the repurchase value of total eligible vehicles financed by Ally Financial in dealer stock and is estimated to be $19.8 billion and $18.8
billion at December 31, 2011 and 2010. If vehicles are required to be repurchased under this arrangement, the total exposure would be
reduced to the extent vehicles are able to be resold to another dealer or at auction. The fair value of the guarantee was $17 million and
$21 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010 which considers the likelihood of dealers terminating and estimating the loss exposure for
the ultimate disposition of vehicles.

Refer to Notes 20 and 28 to our consolidated financial statements for additional information on guarantees we have provided.
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Contractual Obligations and Other Long-Term Liabilities

We have the following minimum commitments under contractual obligations, including purchase obligations. A purchase
obligation is defined as an agreement to purchase goods or services that is enforceable and legally binding on us and that specifies all
significant terms, including: fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum, or variable price provisions; and the
approximate timing of the transaction. Other long-term liabilities are defined as long-term liabilities that are recorded on our
consolidated balance sheet. Based on this definition, the following table includes only those contracts which include fixed or
minimum obligations. The majority of our purchases are not included in the table as they are made under purchase orders which are
requirements based and accordingly do not specify minimum quantities.

The following table summarizes aggregated information about our outstanding contractual obligations and other long-term
liabilities at December 31, 2011 (dollars in millions):

Payments Due by Period
2017
2012 2013-2014 20152016 and after  Total

Automotive debt () . ... ... $1530 $ 245 $ 605 ¢ 3,478 $ 5,858
Automotive Financingdebt (b) .......... ... . . 4,263 2,504 1,142 586 8,495
Capital lease obligations ........... ... 134 188 94 560 976
Automotive interest payments (C) . ...t 122 588 451 512 1,673
Automotive Financing interest payments (d) . ........ ... ... i 193 236 117 49 595
Postretirement benefits (8) . ... ... 267 450 214 — 931
Contractual commitments for capital expenditures . ....................... 1,233 91 — — 1,324
Operating lease obligations (f) . ...... ... o 363 466 284 368 1,481
Other contractual commitments:

Material . ... 1,038 749 347 175 2,309

Marketing . .. oot 933 508 220 54 1,715

Rental car repurchases . ... e 4,265 — — — 4,265

Policy, product warranty and recall campaigns liability .................. 3,159 2,767 679 207 6,812

OtNer o 1,185 310 86 68 1,649
Total contractual commitments (@) (h) (i) ...............c i, $18,685 $9,102  $4,239 $ 6,057 $38,083
Non-contractual postretirement benefits () .. ..., $ 215 $ 437 $ 626 $14,154 $15,432

(@) Projected future payments on lines of credit were based on amounts drawn at December 31, 2011.

(b) GM Financial credit facilities and securitization notes payable have been classified based on expected payoff date. Senior notes
and convertible senior notes principal amounts have been classified based on maturity date.

(c) Amounts include Automotive interest payments based on contractual terms and current interest rates on our debt and capital lease
obligations. Automotive interest payments based on variable interest rates were determined using the interest rate in effect at
December 31, 2011.

(d) GM Financial interest payments are calculated based on LIBOR plus the respective credit spreads and specified fees associated
with the medium-term note facility and the syndicated warehouse facility, the coupon rate for the senior notes and convertible
senior notes and a fixed rate of interest for securitization notes payable. GM Financial interest payments on the floating rate
tranches of the securitization notes payable were converted to a fixed rate based on the floating rate plus any expected hedge
payments.

(e) Amounts include other postretirement benefit payments under the current U.S. contractual labor agreements through 2015 and
Canada labor agreements through 2012 and 2013. Amounts do not include pension funding obligations, which are discussed
below under the caption “Pension Funding Requirements.”

(f) Amounts include operating lease obligations for both Automotive and Automotive Financing. Automotive is included net of
sublease income.
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(9) Future payments in local currency amounts were translated into U.S. Dollars using the balance sheet spot rate at December 31, 2011.

(h) Amounts do not include future cash payments for long-term purchase obligations and other accrued expenditures (unless
specifically listed in the table above) which were recorded in Accounts payable or Accrued liabilities at December 31, 2011.

(i) Amounts exclude the future annual contingent obligations of Euro 265 million in the years 2012 to 2014 related to our Opel/
Vauxhall restructuring plan.

(1) Amount includes all expected future payments for both current and expected future service at December 31, 2011 for other
postretirement benefit obligations for salaried employees and hourly other postretirement benefit obligations extending beyond
the current North American union contract agreements. Amounts do not include pension funding obligations, which are
discussed below under the caption “Pension Funding Requirements.”

The table above does not reflect unrecognized tax benefits of $2.4 billion due to the high degree of uncertainty regarding the future
cash outflows associated with these amounts.

Pension Funding Requirements

The next pension funding valuation to be prepared based on the requirements of the Pension Protection Act of 2006 (PPA) will be
as of October 1, 2011. Based on the PPA, we have the option to select a funding interest rate for the valuation based on either the Full
Yield Curve method or the 3-Segment method, both of which are considered to be acceptable methods. A hypothetical valuation at
December 31, 2011 using the 3-Segment rate at May 31, 2011 for the plan year beginning October 1, 2011 and assuming either the
Full Yield Curve rate or the 3-Segment rate at December 31, 2011 for all future valuations, projects no funding requirements through
2017. We have assumed that the pension plans in the future earn the expected return on assets of 5.7% for the salaried plan and 6.5%
for the hourly plan. The valuation projections also assume that additional benefit accruals in the salaried plan will cease effective
September 30, 2012. Refer to Note 18 of our consolidated financial statements for additional information.

The funding interest rate and return on assets rate sensitivities for projected pension funding requirements are shown below (in
billions):

Estimated

. e Return on

Funding Interest Rate Sensitivity Table Assets - 100

50 basis 25 basis 25 basis 50 basis basis point

point increase point increase Base Line point decrease point decrease decrease

2012-2015 ... $— $— $— $— $— $—
2016 .. $— $— $— $— $1.5 $—
2017 $— $— $— $1.5 $3.3 $0.9

The funding interest rate and return on assets rate sensitivities in the hypothetical valuation consider our 2010 plan year election of
relief for certain of our U.S. pension plans but do not consider the potential election of relief provisions that are available to us for the
2011 plan year under the Pension Relief Act of 2010 for our U.S. qualified pension plans. Refer to Note 18 to our consolidated
financial statements for additional information regarding our pension funding requirements.

We do not have any required contributions payable to our U.S. qualified plans in 2012. We expect to contribute $100 million to our
U.S. non-qualified plans and $740 million to our non-U.S. pension plans in 2012.

Fair Value Measurements
Automotive

At December 31, 2011 and 2010 assets and liabilities classified in Level 3 were not significant. Prior to the three months ended
December 31, 2010 significant assets and liabilities classified in Level 3, with the related Level 3 inputs, were as follows:

»  Foreign currency derivatives — Level 3 inputs used to determine the fair value of foreign currency derivative liabilities
include the appropriate credit spread to measure our nonperformance risk. Given our nonperformance risk was not observable
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through a liquid credit default swap market we based this measurement on an analysis of comparable industrial companies to
determine the appropriate credit spread which would be applied to us and Old GM by market participants. In the three months
ended December 31, 2010 we incorporated our published credit agency ratings into our credit rating conclusions. In the three
months ended December 31, 2010 we determined that our nonperformance risk no longer represents a significant input in the
determination of the fair value of our foreign currency derivative liabilities. The effect of our nonperformance risk in the
valuation has been reduced due to the reduction in the remaining duration and magnitude of these net derivative liability
positions. We transferred these liabilities to Level 2. At December 31, 2011 our nonperformance risk remains unobservable
through a liquid credit default swap market.

Refer to Note 19 to our consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding Level 3 measurements.
Level 3 Assets and Liabilities

At December 31, 2011 assets and liabilities measured using Level 3 inputs increased $64 million from a net liability of $14 million
to a net asset of $50 million. This increase was due to unrealized and realized gains on embedded derivatives, partially offset by
unrealized losses on options.

At December 31, 2010 assets and liabilities measured using Level 3 inputs decreased $658 million from a net liability of $672
million to a net liability of $14 million. This reduction was due to unrealized and realized gains on derivatives, the settlement of
derivative positions according to their terms and maturities and the reclassification of outstanding derivative contracts from Level 3 to
Level 2 during the three months ended December 31, 2010. In October 2010 we transferred foreign currency derivatives with a fair
market value of $183 million from Level 3 to Level 2.

Realized gains and losses related to assets and liabilities measured using Level 3 inputs did not have a material effect on operations,
liquidity or capital resources in the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 and the periods July 10, 2009 through December 31,
2009 and January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009.

Automotive Financing — GM Financial
At December 31, 2011 and 2010 assets and liabilities classified in Level 3, with the related Level 3 inputs, are as follows:

* Interest rate swaps — Level 3 inputs are used to determine the fair value of GM Financial’s interest rate swaps because they
are traded in over-the-counter markets where quoted market prices are not readily available. The fair value of derivatives is
derived using models that primarily use market observable inputs, such as interest rate yield curves and credit curves. The
effects of GM Financial’s and the counterparties’ non-performance risk to the derivative trades is considered when measuring
the fair value of derivative assets and liabilities.

Refer to Note 19 to our consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding fair value measurements.
Dividends

The declaration of any dividend on our common stock is a matter to be acted upon by our Board of Directors in its sole discretion.
Since our formation we have not paid any dividends on our common stock and have no current plans to pay any dividends on our
common stock. Our payment of dividends on our common stock in the future, if any, will be determined by our Board of Directors in
its sole discretion out of funds legally available for that purpose and will depend on business conditions, our financial condition,
earnings, liquidity and capital requirements, the covenants in our debt instruments and other factors.

So long as any share of our Series A or B Preferred Stock remains outstanding, no dividend or distribution may be declared or paid
on our common stock unless all accrued and unpaid dividends have been paid on our Series A and B Preferred Stock, subject to
exceptions, such as dividends on our common stock payable solely in shares of our common stock. Our secured revolving credit
facility contains certain restrictions on our ability to pay dividends, subject to exceptions, such as dividends payable solely in shares of
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our common stock. So long as any share of our Series A Preferred Stock remains outstanding, no dividend or distribution may be
declared or paid on our Series B Preferred Stock unless all accrued and unpaid dividends have been paid on our Series A Preferred
Stock, subject to exceptions, such as dividends on our Series B Preferred Stock solely in shares of our common stock.

The following tables summarize dividends paid on our Series A and B Preferred Stock (dollars in millions):

Successor
July 10, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009
Series A Preferred Stock (8) .. ..o $621 $810 $349
Series B Preferred Stock (D) ... i 243
Total Preferred Stock dividends paid ................coiiiiiiiiiiii.. $864 $810 $349

(@) Does not include the $677 million charge related to the purchase of 84 million shares of Series A Preferred Stock from the UST
in the year ended December 31, 2010. Prior to December 31, 2009 the 260 million shares of Series A Preferred Stock issued to
the New VEBA were not considered outstanding for accounting purposes due to the terms of the 2009 UAW Retiree Settlement
Agreement. As a result $105 million of the $146 million of dividends paid in the period July 10, 2009 through September 30,
2009 and $147 million of the $203 million dividends paid in the three months ended December 31, 2009 were recorded as a
reduction of Postretirement benefits other than pensions.

(b) Cumulative unpaid dividends on our Series B Preferred Stock was $20 million and $25 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010.
Critical Accounting Estimates

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with U.S. GAAP, which require the use of estimates, judgments
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses in the periods presented. We believe that the
accounting estimates employed are appropriate and resulting balances are reasonable; however, due to inherent uncertainties in
making estimates actual results could differ from the original estimates, requiring adjustments to these balances in future periods. We
have discussed the development, selection and disclosures of our critical accounting estimates with the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors, and the Audit Committee has reviewed the disclosures relating to these estimates.

The critical accounting estimates that affect the consolidated financial statements and that use judgments and assumptions are listed
below. In addition, the likelihood that materially different amounts could be reported under varied conditions and assumptions is
discussed.

Pensions

The defined benefit pension plans are accounted for on an actuarial basis, which requires the selection of various assumptions,
including an expected rate of return on plan assets and a discount rate. The expected return on U.S. plan assets that is utilized in
determining pension expense is derived from periodic studies, which include a review of asset allocation strategies, anticipated future
long-term performance of individual asset classes, risks using standard deviations and correlations of returns among the asset classes
that comprise the plans’ asset mix. While the studies give appropriate consideration to recent plan performance and historical returns,
the assumptions are primarily long-term, prospective rates of return.

In December 2011 an analysis of the investment policy was completed for the U.S. pension plans considering: (1) our overall
balance sheet derisking strategy; (2) the plans are closed to new participants; and (3) the 2011 UAW negotiations did not increase
pension benefits. Separate long-term strategies were developed for the salaried and hourly U.S. pension plans which represent 35%
and 65% of total U.S. pension plans’ assets. Using an approach which matches plan assets and liability cash flows to minimize risk of
funded status volatility, the expected weighted-average return on assets was reduced from 8.0% at December 31, 2010 to 5.7% for the
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salaried pension plan and to 6.5% for the hourly pension plan. The resulting weighted-average return is 6.2%. The overall decrease is
primarily due to a different asset mix consisting of a higher proportion of fixed income investments compared to last year. The
salaried pension plan has a higher target proportion of fixed income investments than the hourly pension plan and therefore, a lower
expected return on assets than the hourly pension plan.

Another key assumption in determining net pension expense is the assumed discount rate to be used to discount plan obligations.
We estimate this rate for U.S. plans using a cash flow matching approach, which uses projected cash flows matched to spot rates along
a high quality corporate yield curve to determine the present value of cash flows to calculate a single equivalent discount rate.

Significant differences in actual experience or significant changes in assumptions may materially affect the pension obligations.
The effect of actual results differing from assumptions and the changing of assumptions are included in unamortized net actuarial
gains and losses that are subject to amortization to expense over future periods.

The following table summarizes the unamortized actuarial gain (loss) (before tax) on pension plans (dollars in billions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010

Unamortized actuarial gain (10SS) . . ... ..ottt $(3.8) $2.9

The following table illustrates the sensitivity to a change in certain assumptions for the pension plans, holding all other assumptions
constant (dollars in millions):

Successor
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Effect on Effect on
Effect on 2012 December 31, Effect on 2012 December 31,

Pension 2011 Pension 2011

Expense PBO Expense PBO
25 basis point decrease in discountrate . ............ . i —$130 +$2,730 +$45 +$ 774
25 basis point increase indiscountrate . ........... .. i +$110 —$2,660 -$6 —-$735
25 basis point decrease in expected returnonassets .................... +$210 N/A +$34 N/A
25 basis point increase in expected returnonassets .................... —$210 N/A —$34 N/A

The following data illustrates the sensitivity of changes in pension expense and pension obligation based on the last remeasurement
of the U.S hourly pension plan at December 31, 2011 (dollars in millions):

Successor
Effect on Effect on
A i A 2012 December 31, 2011
Change in future benefit units Pension Expense PBO
One percentage point increase inbenefitunits .......... ... ... ... . i +$101 +$308
One percentage point decrease inbenefitunits ......... ... .. ... ... . i —-$ 98 —$299

Refer to Note 18 to our consolidated financial statements for the weighted-average expected long-term rate of return on plan assets,
weighted-average discount rate on plan obligations, actual and expected return on plan assets, and for a discussion of the inputs used
to determine fair value for each significant asset class or category.

Other Postretirement Benefits

OPEB plans are accounted for on an actuarial basis, which requires the selection of various assumptions, including a discount rate
and healthcare cost trend rates. In the U.S. Old GM established a discount rate assumption to reflect the yield of a hypothetical
portfolio of high quality, fixed-income debt instruments that would produce cash flows sufficient in timing and amount to satisfy
projected future benefits.
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Refer to Note 18 to our consolidated financial statements for the weighted-average discount rate used to determine net OPEB
expense.

Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets

We establish and Old GM established valuation allowances for deferred tax assets based on a more likely than not standard. The
ability to realize deferred tax assets depends on the ability to generate sufficient taxable income within the carryback or carryforward
periods provided for in the tax law for each applicable tax jurisdiction. We consider and Old GM considered the following possible
sources of taxable income when assessing the realization of deferred tax assets:

»  Future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences;

»  Future taxable income exclusive of reversing temporary differences and carryforwards;
e Taxable income in prior carryback years; and

»  Tax-planning strategies.

The assessment regarding whether a valuation allowance is required or should be adjusted also considers all available positive and
negative evidence factors, including but not limited to:

»  Nature, frequency, and severity of recent losses;

e Duration of statutory carryforward periods;

» Historical experience with tax attributes expiring unused; and
»  Near- and medium-term financial outlook.

It is difficult to conclude a valuation allowance is not required when there is significant objective and verifiable negative evidence,
such as cumulative losses in recent years. We utilize a rolling three years of actual and current year anticipated results as the primary
measure of cumulative losses in recent years.

The evaluation of deferred tax assets requires judgment in assessing the likely future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in our financial statements or tax returns and future profitability. Our accounting for deferred tax consequences represents
our best estimate of those future events. Changes in our current estimates, due to unanticipated events or otherwise, could have a
material effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Though objective and verifiable negative evidence continues to outweigh positive evidence in jurisdictions with significant
valuation allowances, we are experiencing positive evidence trends in certain of these jurisdictions. South Korea operations have
overcome adjusted three-year cumulative losses due to recent profitability. However, a number of negative evidence factors continue
to affect the need for a valuation allowance such as economic and industry uncertainty and limited carryforward lives of key tax
attributes. After reviewing all factors, if additional positive evidence becomes available, we may reverse some or all of our South
Korean valuation allowance in the future. At December 31, 2011 the deferred tax valuation allowance for South Korea was $0.8
billion.

U.S. and Canadian operations are also experiencing current profitability, but these operations remain in cumulative three-year loss
position at December 31, 2011. To the extent this profitability trend continues, it is reasonably possible our conclusion regarding the
need for full valuation allowances could change, resulting in the reversal of some or all of the valuation allowances. At December 31,
2011 deferred tax asset valuation allowances for the U.S. and Canada were $36.4 billion and $3.2 billion.

In a valuation allowance environment, utilization of tax attributes to offset taxable income reduces the overall level of deferred tax
assets subject to valuation allowance. Additionally, our recorded effective tax rate is lower than the applicable statutory tax rate, due
primarily to income earned in jurisdictions for which a full valuation allowance is recorded. Our effective tax rate will approach the
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statutory tax rate in periods after valuation allowances are reversed. In the quarter in which valuation allowances are released, we will
record a material tax benefit reflecting the release, which could result in a negative effective tax rate. Valuation allowance releases
could result in goodwill impairment. Refer to Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements for additional information related to
goodwill impairment charges.

Valuation of Vehicle Operating Leases and Valuation of Residual Support and Risk Sharing Reserve
Valuation of Vehicle Operating Leases

In accounting for vehicle operating leases, a determination is made at the inception of a lease of the estimated realizable value (i.e.,
residual value) of the vehicle at the end of the lease. Residual value represents an estimate of the market value of the vehicle at the end
of the lease term, which typically ranges from six months to five years. A retail lease customer is obligated to make payments during
the term of a lease to the contract residual. A retail lease customer is not obligated to purchase a vehicle at the end of a lease. Sales to
daily rental car companies with guaranteed repurchase obligations are accounted for as operating leases. Generally, the terms under
these arrangements are up to 24 months, however, the daily rental car companies can and do return the vehicles earlier, averaging nine
months. We are and Old GM was exposed to a risk of loss to the extent the value of a vehicle is below the residual value estimated at
contract inception.

Realization of residual values is dependent on the future ability to market vehicles under prevailing market conditions. Over the life
of a lease, the adequacy of the estimated residual value is evaluated and adjustments are made to the extent the expected value of a
vehicle at lease termination declines. Adjustments may be in the form of revisions to depreciation rates or recognition of impairment
charges. Impairment is determined to exist if the undiscounted expected future cash flows are lower than the carrying amount of the
leased vehicle.

The critical assumptions underlying the estimated carrying amount of leased vehicles included within Equipment on operating
leases, net include: (1) estimated market value information obtained and used in estimating residual values; (2) proper identification
and estimation of business conditions; (3) remarketing abilities; and (4) vehicle and marketing programs. Changes in these
assumptions could have a significant effect on the estimate of residual values.

We continue to use forecasted auction proceeds to estimate residual values for impairment purposes. Significant differences
between the estimate of residual values and actual experience may materially affect impairment charges recorded, if any, and the rate
at which vehicles in Equipment on operating leases, net are depreciated.

The following table summarizes recorded impairment charges related to leases to daily rental car companies and automotive retail
leases (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Automotive retail leases to daily rental car companies ...... $151 $49 $18 $47
Automotive retail leases ............... ... $ — $— $— $16

Valuation of Residual Support and Risk Sharing Reserve

Significant differences between estimated and actual residual values will also affect the residual support and risk sharing reserves
established as a result of certain agreements with Ally Financial, whereby Ally Financial is reimbursed up to an agreed-upon
percentage of certain residual value losses they experience on their operating lease portfolio.

During the year ended December 31, 2011 we recorded favorable adjustments to our residual support and risk sharing liabilities of
$0.5 billion in the U.S. due to increases in estimated and actual residual values at contract termination.
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Due to the contractual terms of our residual support and risk sharing agreements with Ally Financial, which currently limit our
maximum obligation to Ally Financial should vehicle residual values decrease, an increase in sales proceeds does not have the
equivalent offsetting effect on our residual support and risk sharing reserves as a decrease in sales proceeds.

The following table summarizes the maximum obligation and recorded receivables and liabilities associated with the contractual
terms of our residual support and risk sharing agreements with Ally Financial (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010

Maximum obligation

ReSIAUAL SUPPOIt .« . e $ 40 $ 523

Risk Sharing agreBmeNtS . . . .. ... $ 88 $ 692
Outstanding receivables (liabilities)

ReSIAUAL SUPPOIt .« . e $ 6 $ 24

Risk Sharing agreBmeNtS . . . .. ... $(66) $(269)

The decrease in risk sharing and residual amounts is due to liquidation of the lease portfolio for which we have obligations.
Impairment of Goodwill

At December 31, 2011 we had goodwill of $29.0 billion, which predominately arose upon the application of fresh-start reporting
and the acquisition of AmeriCredit. When applying fresh-start reporting, certain accounts, primarily employee benefit and income tax
related, were recorded at amounts determined under specific U.S. GAAP rather than fair value, and the difference between the U.S.
GAAP and fair value amounts gives rise to goodwill, which is a residual. Our employee benefit related accounts were recorded in
accordance with ASC 712, “Compensation — Nonretirement Postemployment Benefits” and ASC 715, “Compensation — Retirement
Benefits” and deferred income taxes were recorded in accordance with ASC 740, “Income Taxes”. Further, we recorded valuation
allowances against certain of our deferred tax assets, which under ASC 852 also resulted in goodwill. If all identifiable assets and
liabilities had been recorded at fair value upon application of fresh-start reporting, no goodwill would have resulted.

In the three months ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 we performed our annual goodwill impairment testing as of
October 1 for all reporting units, which are GMNA, GME, GM Financial and various reporting units within the GMIO and GMSA
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e Our estimated long-term growth rates; and
e Our estimate of industry sales and our market share.

The valuation methodologies utilized to perform our goodwill impairment testing were consistent with those used in our application
of fresh-start reporting on July 10, 2009 and in any subsequent annual or event-driven impairment tests and utilized Level 3 measures.

The following table summarizes the goodwill balances and key assumptions for each of our more significant reporting units
(excluding GM Financial) utilized in our 2011 and 2010 annual goodwill impairment tests (dollars and volumes in millions):

Long-Term Industry Sales (a) Market Share (a)
Goodwill ¢) WACC Growth Rates 2011/2012 2014/2015 2011/2012 2014/2015

GMNA

AtOctober 1,2010 . ..., $26,410 16.5% 1.5% 15.9 20.2 18.5% 18.2%

AtOctober 1,2011 . ............ ..., $26,395 18.0% 1.5% 16.7 20.1 19.2% 19.2%
GME

AtOctober1,2010 ... $ 3,096 17.0% 0.5% 18.4 21.3 6.8% 7.6%

AtOctober 1,2011 . ... $ 1,246 17.5% 0.5% 194 21.7 6.7% 7.0%
GM Korea (b)

AtOctober 1,2010 . ..., $ 632 16.0% 3.0% 77.9 91.8 1.2% 1.4%

AtOctober 1,2011 .............. ...t $ 615 155% 3.0% 81.0 97.1 1.4% 1.1%
Holden

AtOctober 1,2010 . ..., $ 186 14.5% 3.0% 1.0 1.1 12.4% 13.5%

AtOctober 1,2011 ............. ..., $ 188 14.0% 2.0% 12 13 12.5% 12.6%
GM Mercosur

AtOctober 1,2010 . ... $ 120 15.3% 4.7% 4.6 5.4 18.6% 17.0%

AtOctober 1,2011 . ...t $ 110 14.8% 4.0% 51 6.0 18.1% 18.2%

(@ Amounts at October 1, 2010 are for 2011 through 2014 and amounts at October 1, 2011 are for 2012 through 2015.
(b) Industry sales and market share are based on global industry volumes because GM Korea exports vehicles globally.

(c) Goodwill balance is before any adjustments, if any, for goodwill impairments.

The WACCs considered various factors including bond yields, risk premiums and tax rates; the terminal values were determined
using a growth model that applied a reporting unit’s long-term growth rate to its projected cash flows beyond the forecast period; and
industry sales and a market share for each reporting unit included annual estimates through the forecast period. In addition, minimum
operating cash needs that incorporate specific business, economic and regulatory factors giving rise to varying cash needs were
estimated.

With regard to GM Financial with goodwill of $1.3 billion at October 1, 2011, key assumptions impacting our 2011 annual
impairment testing procedures include forecasted asset composition and growth and equity to managed asset retention ratios.
Forecasted equity to managed asset retention ratio by 2014 was 12.5% and held constant thereafter.

Our fair value estimates assume the achievement of the future financial results contemplated in our forecasted cash flows and there
can be no assurance that we will realize that value. The estimates and assumptions used are subject to significant uncertainties, many
of which are beyond our control, and there is no assurance that anticipated financial results will be achieved.

For purposes of our 2011 annual impairment testing procedures, the estimated fair values of our more significant reporting units
exceeded their carrying values by 12.3% for GMNA, 24.7% for Holden, 56.8% for GM Mercosur and 10.3% for GM Financial. In
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calculating the fair values of our more significant reporting units during our 2011 annual goodwill impairment testing, keeping all
other assumptions constant, the estimated fair values of our more significant reporting units would still exceed their carrying amounts
had our WACC increased by 150 basis points for GMNA, 410 basis points for Holden and 430 basis points for GM Mercosur. For
GM Financial, fair value would still exceed its carrying amount had equity to managed assets retention ratio increased 230 basis
points by 2014.

Based on the fair value measures determined during our 2011 annual and event-driven impairment tests we determined the fair
values of those reporting units requiring a Step 2 analysis (GME, GM Korea and Holden) had not increased sufficiently to give rise to
an implied goodwill amount other than the goodwill arising from the fair value-to-U.S. GAAP differences attributable to those assets
and liabilities that gave rise to goodwill upon application of fresh-start reporting.

The key assumptions utilized in determining the fair value-to-U.S. GAAP differences giving rise to the implied goodwill for the
reporting units requiring a Step 2 analysis are the determination of our nonperformance risk, interest rates, estimates of our employee
benefit related obligations and/or the estimated timing of the utilization of our deferred tax assets, including our determination
whether it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be utilized. Of these factors, the amount of implied goodwill within
GME is most sensitive to changes in our nonperformance risk, interest rates and estimates of our employee benefit related obligations.
GM Kaorea and Holden are most sensitive to our determination of whether it is more likely than not that their deferred tax assets will
or will not be utilized.

In the future, we have an increased likelihood of measuring goodwill for possible impairment during our annual or event-driven
goodwill impairment testing and in evaluating whether it is more likely than not that a goodwill impairment exists for reporting units
with zero or negative carrying amounts. An event-driven impairment test is required if it is more likely than not that the fair value of a
reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. Because our reporting units were recorded at their fair values upon application of fresh-
start reporting, it is more likely a decrease in the fair value of our reporting units from their fresh-start reporting values could occur,
and such a decrease would trigger the need to measure for possible goodwill impairments. GME has a negative carrying amount and
GM Kaorea’s fair value is less than its carrying amount, which increases the likelihood of measuring goodwill for further impairment
in the near-term.

Upon the application of fresh-start reporting goodwill predominately resulted from our recorded liabilities for certain employee
benefit obligations being higher than the fair value of these obligations because lower discount rates were utilized in determining the
U.S. GAAP values compared to those utilized to determine fair values. The discount rates utilized to determine the fair value of these
obligations were based on our incremental borrowing rates, which included our nonperformance risk. Our incremental borrowing rates
are also affected by changes in market interest rates. Further, upon the application of fresh-start reporting, the recorded amounts of our
assets were lower than their fair values because of the recording of valuation allowances on certain of our deferred tax assets. The
difference between these fair value-to-U.S. GAAP amounts (1) would decrease upon a decrease in credit spreads between high quality
corporate bond rates and market interest rates for companies with similar nonperformance risk; (2) could decrease upon an
improvement in our credit rating, thus resulting in a decrease in the spread between our employee benefit related obligations under
U.S. GAAP and their fair values; and/or (3) could decrease upon a change in the fair values of our estimated employee benefit
obligations. A decrease will also occur upon reversal of our deferred tax asset valuation allowances. Should the fair value-to-U.S.
GAARP differences decrease for these reasons, the implied goodwill balance will decline. Accordingly, at the next annual or event-
driven goodwill impairment test, to the extent the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value or the reporting unit has a
negative carrying amount, a goodwill impairment could occur. Future goodwill impairments could also occur should we reorganize
our internal reporting structure in a manner that changes the composition of one or more of our reporting units. Upon such an event,
goodwill would be reassigned to the affected reporting units using a relative-fair-value allocation approach, unless the entity was
never integrated, and not based on the amount of goodwill that was originally attributable to fair value to-U.S. GAAP differences that
gave rise to goodwill upon application of fresh-start reporting.

Refer to Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements for additional information on goodwill impairments, including risks of
future goodwill impairment charges.
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The carrying amount of long-lived assets and finite-lived intangible assets to be held and used in the business are evaluated when
events and circumstances warrant. If the carrying amount of a long-lived asset group is considered impaired, a loss is recorded based
on the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value for the asset group to be held and used. Product-specific long-
lived assets are tested for impairment at the platform or vehicle line level. Non-product line specific long-lived assets are tested for
impairment on a reporting unit basis in GMNA, GME, and GM Financial and tested at or within our various reporting units within
GMIO and GMSA segments. Assets classified as held for sale are recorded at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to
sell. Fair value is determined primarily using the anticipated cash flows discounted at a rate commensurate with the risk involved. We
develop anticipated cash flows from historical experience and internal business plans. A considerable amount of management
judgment and assumptions are required in performing the long-lived asset impairment tests, principally in determining the fair value
of the asset groups and the assets’ average estimated useful life. While we believe our judgments and assumptions are reasonable, a
change in assumptions underlying these estimates could result in a material effect to the consolidated financial statements. Long-lived
assets could become impaired in the future as a result of declines in profitability due to significant changes in volume, pricing or costs.

Sales Incentives

The estimated effect of sales incentives to dealers and customers is recorded as a reduction of Automotive sales and revenue, and in
certain instances, as an increase to Automotive cost of sales, at the later of the time of sale or announcement of an incentive program
to dealers. There may be numerous types of incentives available at any particular time, including a choice of incentives for a specific
model. Incentive programs are generally brand specific, model specific or region specific, and are for specified time periods, which
may be extended. Significant factors used in estimating the cost of incentives include the volume of vehicles that will be affected by
the incentive programs offered by product, product mix and the rate of customer acceptance of any incentive program, and the
likelihood that an incentive program will be extended, all of which are estimated based on historical experience and assumptions
concerning customer behavior and future market conditions. When an incentive program is announced, the number of vehicles in
dealer inventory eligible for the incentive program is determined, and a reduction of Automotive sales and revenue or increase to
Automotive cost of sales is recorded in the period in which the program is announced. If the actual number of affected vehicles differs
from this estimate, or if a different mix of incentives is actually paid, the reduction in Automotive sales and revenue or increase to
Automotive cost of sales for sales incentives could be affected. There are a multitude of inputs affecting the calculation of the estimate
for sales incentives, and an increase or decrease of any of these variables could have a significant effect on recorded sales incentives.

Policy, Warranty and Recalls

The estimated costs related to policy and product warranties are accrued at the time products are sold, and the estimated costs
related to product recalls based on a formal campaign soliciting return of that product are accrued when they are deemed to be
probable and can be reasonably estimated. These estimates are established using historical information on the nature, frequency, and
average cost of claims of each vehicle line or each model year of the vehicle line and assumptions about future activity and events.
However, where little or no claims experience exists for a model year or a vehicle line, the estimate is based on long-term historical
averages. Revisions are made when necessary, based on changes in these factors. These estimates are re-evaluated on an ongoing
basis. We actively study trends of claims and take action to improve vehicle quality and minimize claims. Actual experience could
differ from the amounts estimated requiring adjustments to these liabilities in future periods. Due to the uncertainty and potential
volatility of the factors contributing to developing estimates, changes in our assumptions could materially affect our results of
operations.

Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

Accounting standards not yet adopted are discussed in Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements.
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Forward-Looking Statements

In this report and in reports we subsequently file and have previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on
Forms 10-K and 10-Q and file or furnish on Form 8-K, and in related comments by our management, we use words like “anticipate,”
“believe,” “continue,” “could,” “designed,” “effect,” “estimate,” “evaluate,” “expect,” “forecast,” “goal,” “initiative,” “intend,”
“may,” “objective,” “outlook,” “plan,” “potential,” “priorities,” “project,” “pursue,” “seek,” “should,” “target,

” “when,” “would,” or
the negative of any of those words or similar expressions to identify forward-looking statements that represent our current judgment
about possible future events. In making these statements we rely on assumptions and analyses based on our experience and perception
of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments as well as other factors we consider appropriate under the
circumstances. We believe these judgments are reasonable, but these statements are not guarantees of any events or financial results,
and our actual results may differ materially due to a variety of important factors, both positive and negative. These factors, which may
be revised or supplemented in subsequent reports on SEC Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K, include among others the following:

*  Our ability to realize production efficiencies and to achieve reductions in costs as a result of our restructuring initiatives and
labor modifications;

e Our ability to maintain quality control over our vehicles and avoid material vehicle recalls;
»  Our ability to maintain adequate liquidity and financing sources and an appropriate level of debt, including as required to fund
our planned significant investment in new technology, and, even if funded, our ability to realize successful vehicle applications

of new technology;

e The effect of business or liquidity difficulties for us or one or more subsidiaries on other entities in our corporate group as a
result of our highly integrated and complex corporate structure and operation;

e Our ability to continue to attract customers, particularly for our new products, including cars and crossover vehicles;

» Availability of adequate financing on acceptable terms to our customers, dealers, distributors and suppliers to enable them to
continue their business relationships with us;

e The ability of our suppliers to deliver parts, systems and components without disruption and at such times to allow us to meet
production schedules;

*  Our ability to take actions we believe are important to our long-term strategy;

e Our ability to manage the distribution channels for our products;

*  Our ability to successfully restructure our European operations;

e The continued availability of both wholesale and retail financing from Ally Financial and its affiliates and other finance
companies in markets in which we operate to support our ability to sell vehicles, which is dependent on those entities’ ability
to obtain funding and their continued willingness to provide financing, which may be reduced or suspended;

*  Our ability to develop captive financing capability, including through GM Financial;

e Overall strength and stability of general economic conditions and of the automotive industry, both in the U.S. and in global
markets;

»  Continued economic instability or poor economic conditions in the U.S., Europe and other global markets, including the credit

markets, or changes in economic conditions, commodity prices, housing prices, foreign currency exchange rates or political
stability in the markets in which we operate;
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» Shortages of and increases or volatility in the price of oil, including as a result of political instability in the Middle East and
African nations;

»  Significant changes in the competitive environment, including the effect of competition and excess manufacturing capacity in
our markets, on our pricing policies or use of incentives and the introduction of new and improved vehicle models by our
competitors;

» Significant changes in economic and market conditions in China, including the effect of competition from new market
entrants, on our vehicle sales and market position in China;

» Changes in the existing, or the adoption of new, laws, regulations, policies or other activities of governments, agencies and
similar organizations, including where such actions may affect the production, licensing, distribution or sale of our products,
the cost thereof or applicable tax rates;

»  Costs and risks associated with litigation;

» Significant increases in our pension expense or projected pension contributions resulting from changes in the value of plan
assets, the discount rate applied to value the pension liabilities or other assumption changes; and

»  Changes in accounting principles, or their application or interpretation, and our ability to make estimates and the assumptions
underlying the estimates, which could have an effect on earnings.

We caution readers not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update publicly or

otherwise revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or other factors that affect the
subject of these statements, except where we are expressly required to do so by law.

* % * * * * %
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Automotive

We enter into a variety of foreign currency exchange and commodity forward contracts and options to manage exposures arising
from market risks resulting from changes in certain foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices. We do not enter into
derivative transactions for speculative purposes.

The overall financial risk management program is under the responsibility of the Risk Management Committee, which reviews and,
where appropriate, approves strategies to be pursued to mitigate these risks. The Risk Management Committee is composed of
members of our Management and functions under the oversight of the Finance and Risk Committee, a committee of the Board of
Directors. The Finance and Risk Committee assists and guides the Board in its oversight of our financial and risk management
strategies. A risk management control framework is utilized to monitor the strategies, risks and related hedge positions, in accordance
with the policies and procedures approved by the Risk Management Committee. Our risk management policy intends to protect
against risk arising from extreme adverse market movements on our key exposures.

Further information on our exposure to market risk is included in Note 19 to our consolidated financial statements.

The following analyses provide quantitative information regarding exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk, interest rate
risk, commodity price risk and equity price risk. Sensitivity analysis is used to measure the potential loss in the fair value of financial
instruments with exposure to market risk. The models used assume instantaneous, parallel shifts in exchange rates, interest rate yield
curves and commodity prices. For options and other instruments with nonlinear returns, models appropriate to these types of
instruments are utilized to determine the effect of market shifts. There are certain shortcomings inherent in the sensitivity analyses
presented, due primarily to the assumption that interest rates and commodity prices change in a parallel fashion and that spot
exchange rates change instantaneously. In addition, the analyses are unable to reflect the complex market reactions that normally
would arise from the market shifts modeled and do not contemplate the effects of correlations between foreign currency pairs, or
offsetting long-short positions in currency pairs which may significantly reduce the potential loss in value.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We have foreign currency exposures related to buying, selling, and financing in currencies other than the functional currencies of
the operations. Derivative instruments, such as foreign currency forwards, swaps and options are used primarily to hedge exposures
with respect to forecasted revenues, costs and commitments denominated in foreign currencies. At December 31, 2011 such contracts
have remaining maturities of up to 12 months. At December 31, 2011 our three most significant foreign currency exposures are the
Euro/British Pound, U.S. Dollar/Korean Won and Euro/Korean Won.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010 the net fair value liability of financial instruments with exposure to foreign currency risk was
$4.2 billion and $3.3 billion. This presentation utilizes a population of foreign currency exchange derivatives, embedded derivatives
and foreign currency denominated debt and excludes the offsetting effect of foreign currency cash, cash equivalents and other assets.
The potential loss in fair value for such financial instruments from a 10% adverse change in all quoted foreign currency exchange
rates would be $637 million and $513 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

We are exposed to foreign currency risk due to the translation and remeasurement of the results of certain international operations
into U.S. Dollars as part of the consolidation process. Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates can therefore create volatility in
the results of operations and may adversely affect our financial position.
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The following table summarizes the amounts of automotive foreign currency translation and transaction and remeasurement gains
(losses) (dollars in millions):

Successor

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010

Foreign currency translation gain (loss) recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive income

(10SS) v oot $(167) $ 235
Gain (loss) resulting from foreign currency transactions and remeasurements recorded in

BN oottt e $ (56) $(209)

Interest Rate Risk

We are subject to market risk from exposure to changes in interest rates related to certain financial instruments, primarily debt,
capital lease obligations and certain marketable securities.

At December 31, 2011 we did not have any interest rate swap positions to manage interest rate exposures in our automotive
operations.

The following table summarizes our automotive debt by fixed rate and variable rate (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
Short-term debt — fixed rate . ........ ... o it $ 573 $ 305
Short-term debt — variable rate . ........ ... . . . e 1,109 1,311
Total short-term debt . . . ... ..o $1,682 $1,616
Short-term debt — fixed rate denominated in U.S. dollars ............ ... ... .. ... .. ..... $ 135 $ 96
Short-term debt — fixed rate denominated in foreigncurrency .. .............. ... ... . ... .. 438 209
Total short-term debt — fixed rate .. ......... ... $ 573 $ 305
Short-term debt — variable rate denominated in U.S.dollars ............................. $ 192 $ 347
Short-term debt — variable rate denominated in foreign currency . .......... ... .. .. .. . ... 917 964
Total short-term debt — variable rate . .. ... ... . . $1,109 $1,311
Long-term debt — fiXed rate .. ... ... .....' $3,536 $2,519
Long-term debt — variable rate .. ... ... .. 77 495
Total long-term debt ... ... . $3,613 $3,014
Long-term debt — fixed rate denominated inU.S.dollars . .............. ... ... ... ... ... $ 525 $ 601
Long-term debt — fixed rate denominated in foreigncurrency ............ ... ... ... ... ..., 3,011 1,918
Total long-term debt — fixed rate ........ ... . i $3,536 $2,519
Long-term debt — variable rate denominated in U.S.dollars ............................. $ 32 $ 287
Long-term debt — variable rate denominated in foreign currency ............ ... .. 45 208
Total long-term debt — variablerate . ........ .. . $ 77 $ 495

At December 31, 2011 and 2010 the fair value liability of debt and capital leases was $5.5 billion and $4.8 billion. The potential
increase in fair value resulting from a 10% decrease in quoted interest rates would be $152 million and $166 million at December 31,
2011 and 2010.
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We invest in marketable securities of various types and maturities, the value of which are subject to fluctuations in interest rates.
Our marketable securities portfolio includes marketable securities classified as Available-for-sale and Trading.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010 we had marketable securities of $10.1 billion and $5.4 billion classified as Available-for sale with
exposure to interest rate risk. The potential decrease in fair value from a 50 basis point increase in interest rates would be $28 million
and $9 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010 we had marketable securities of $6.0 billion and $107 million classified as Trading with exposure
to interest rate risk. The potential decrease in fair value from a 50 basis point increase in interest rates would be $20 million and $6
million at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Commodity Price Risk

We are exposed to changes in prices of commodities primarily associated with various non-ferrous and precious metals for
automotive components and energy used in the overall manufacturing process. Certain commodity purchase contracts meet the
definition of a derivative. We use commodity options to offset our commodity price exposures.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010 the net fair value (liability) asset of commodity derivatives and commodity related embedded
derivatives was $(11) million and $84 million. The potential loss in fair value resulting from a 10% adverse change in the underlying
commodity prices would be $24 million and $47 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010. This amount excludes the offsetting effect
of the commaodity price risk inherent in the physical purchase of the underlying commaodities.

Equity Price Risk

At December 31, 2011 the carrying amount of cost method investments was $439 million, of which the carrying amount of our
investment in Ally Financial common stock was $403 million. In March 2011 we sold our investment in Ally Financial preferred
stock for net proceeds of $1.0 billion. At December 31, 2010, the carrying amount of cost method investments was $1.7 billion, of
which the carrying amounts of our investments in Ally Financial common stock and Ally Financial preferred stock were $964 million
and $665 million. These amounts represent the maximum exposure to loss from these investments. Refer to Note 10 to our
consolidated financial statements for further details on the sale of the Ally Financial preferred stock.

Automotive Financing — GM Financial

Fluctuations in market interest rates affect GM Financial’s credit facilities and securitization transactions. GM Financial’s gross
interest rate spread, which is the difference between interest earned on finance receivables and interest paid, is affected by changes in
interest rates as a result of GM Financial’s dependence upon the issuance of variable rate securities and the incurrence of variable rate
debt to fund purchases of finance receivables.

Credit Facilities

Fixed interest rate receivables purchased by GM Financial are pledged to secure borrowings under its credit facilities. Amounts
borrowed under these credit facilities bear interest at variable rates that are subject to frequent adjustments to reflect prevailing market
interest rates. To protect the interest rate spread within each credit facility, GM Financial is contractually required to enter into interest
rate cap agreements in connection with borrowings under its credit facilities. The purchaser of the interest rate cap pays a premium in
return for the right to receive the difference in the interest cost at any time a specified index of market interest rates rises above the
stipulated cap or “strike” rate. The purchaser of the interest rate cap bears no obligation or liability if interest rates fall below the cap
or “strike” rate. As part of GM Financial’s interest rate risk management strategy and when economically feasible, it may
simultaneously enter into a corresponding interest rate cap agreement in order to offset the premium paid by the trust to purchase the
interest rate cap and thus retain the interest rate risk. The fair value of the interest rate cap agreement purchased is included in GM
Financial Other assets and the fair value of the interest rate cap agreement sold is included in GM Financial Other liabilities.
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Securitizations

In GM Financial’s securitization transactions, it transfers fixed rate finance receivables to securitization trusts that, in turn, sell
either fixed rate or floating rate securities to investors. Derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate swaps and caps, are used
to manage the gross interest rate spread on the floating rate transactions. GM Financial uses interest rate swaps to convert the variable
rate exposures on securities issued by its securitization trusts to a fixed rate (“pay rate”) and receive a floating or variable rate
(“receive rate”), thereby locking in the gross interest rate spread to be earned by it over the life of a securitization. Interest rate swaps
purchased by GM Financial do not affect the amount of cash flows received by holders of the asset-backed securities issued by the
trusts. The interest rate swaps serve to offset the effect of increased or decreased interest paid by the trusts on floating rate asset-
backed securities on the cash flows received from the trusts. GM Financial utilizes such arrangements to modify its net interest
sensitivity to levels deemed appropriate based on risk tolerances. Its SPEs are contractually required to purchase a derivative financial
instrument to protect the net spread in connection with the issuance of floating rate securities. The fair value of the interest rate caps
purchased in connection with securitization transactions are included in GM Financial Other assets and the fair value of the interest
rate caps sold are included in GM Financial Other liabilities. Changes in the fair value of the interest rate cap derivatives are a
component of interest expense recorded in GM Financial operating and other expenses.

GM Financial has entered into interest rate swaps to hedge the variability in interest payments on seven of its active securitization
transactions. Portions of these interest rate swaps are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges. The fair value of interest rate swaps
designated as hedges is included in GM Financial Other liabilities. Interest rate swaps that are not designated as hedges are included in
GM Financial Other assets.
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The following table summarizes GM Financial’s interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities by year of expected maturity and the
fair value of those assets and liabilities at December 31, 2011 (dollars in millions):

December 31,
Years Ending December 31, 2011
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Thereafter VFz{allure
Assets
Finance receivables
Principal amounts . ....................... $3,889 $2,571 $1532 $ 946 $ 548 $ 265 $9,386
Weighted-average annual percentage rate .. ... 15.19% 15.04% 14.87% 14.71% 14.52%  14.60%
Interest rate swap agreements
Notional amounts ........................ $ 48 $ 24 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 2
Averagepayrate .......... i 144%  1.17% — — — —
Average receiverate ............. ... 0.43%  0.84% — — — —
Interest rate cap agreements
Notional amounts ........................ $ 252 $ 259 $ 382 $ 319 $ 135 $ 166 $ 5
Average strikerate ........... ... ... ... 4.00% 3.94% 3.71% 3.71%  3.50% 3.11%
Liabilities
Credit facilities
Principal amounts ........................ $109 ¢ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $1,099
Weighted-average interestrate .............. 1.88% — — — — —
Securitization notes
Principal amounts . ....................... $3,164 $1,481 $1,022 $ 720 $ 422 $ 86 $6,946
Weighted-average interestrate .............. 2.94% 351% 4.05% 458% 5.18% 3.64%
Senior notes
Principal amounts ........................ $  — ¢ — $ — $ — & — 3% 500 $ 510
Weighted-average interestrate .............. — — — — — 6.75%
Convertible senior notes payable
Principal amounts ........................ $  — ¢ 1 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 1
Weighted-average interestrate .............. — 2.13% — — — —
Interest rate swap agreements
Notional amounts ........................ $ 48 $ 24 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 6
Averagepayrate .......... i 144%  1.17% — — — —
Average receiverate ............. ... 0.43%  0.84% — — — —
Interest rate cap agreements
Notional amounts ........................ $ 210 $ 259 $ 382 $ 319 $ 135 $ 166 $ 5
Average strikerate ........... ... ... ... 4.05% 3.94% 3.71% 3.71%  3.50% 3.11%
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The following table summarizes GM Financial’s interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities by year of expected maturity and the
fair value of those assets and liabilities at December 31, 2010 (dollars in millions):

December 31,
Years Ending December 31, 2010
Fair
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter Value
Assets

Finance receivables
Principal amounts . ....................... $3,755 $2,434 $1,287 $ 678 $ 372 $ 161 $8,186
Weighted-average annual percentage rate .. ... 15.74% 15.66% 15.57% 15.36% 15.21%  15.37%

Interest rate swap agreements
Notional amounts ........................ $ 754 ¢$ 460 $ 13 $ — $ — $ — $ 23
Averagepayrate ............ . 532% 353% 0.97% — — —
Average receiverate ............. ... 1.03% 1.16%  0.43% — — —

Interest rate cap agreements
Notional amounts ........................ $ 177 $ 164 $ 144 $ 169 $ 79 $ 213 $ 8
Average strikerate ........... ... . . 481% 4.73% 471% 453% 4.18% 3.47%

Liabilities

Credit facilities
Principal amounts ........................ $583 $2% $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 832
Weighted-average interestrate . ............. 3.19%  2.28% — — — —

Securitization notes
Principal amounts ........................ $2,961 $1,703 $ 659 $ 423 $ 275 0§ — $6,107
Weighted-average interestrate .............. 344%  4.03% 4.44%  4.38%  4.88% —

Senior notes
Principal amounts ........................ $  — ¢ — $ — $ — $ 68 $ — $ 71
Weighted-average interestrate .............. — — — — 8.50% —

Convertible senior notes
Principal amounts ........................ $) 1. $ — $ 1 $ — $ — $ — $ 1
Weighted-average coupon interest rate ....... 0.75% — 2.13% — — —

Interest rate swap agreements
Notional amounts ........................ $ 754 $ 460 $ 13 $ — $ — % — $ 47
Averagepayrate .......... i 532% 353% 0.97% — — —
Average receiverate ............. ... 1.03% 1.16% 0.43% — — —

Interest rate cap agreements
Notional amounts ........................ $ 104 $ 123 $ 144 $ 169 $ 79 $ 213 $ 8
Average strikerate ........... ... . 494% 4.85% 4.71% 453% 4.18% 3.47%

GM Financial estimates the realization of financing receivables in future periods using discount rate, prepayment and credit loss
assumptions similar to its historical experience. Notional amounts on interest rate swaps and caps are based on contractual terms.
Credit facilities and securitization notes payable amounts have been classified based on expected payoff. Senior notes and convertible
senior notes principal amounts have been classified based on maturity.

The notional amounts of interest rate swaps and caps, which are used to calculate the contractual payments to be exchanged under
the contracts, represent average amounts that will be outstanding for each of the years included in the table. Notional amounts do not
represent amounts exchanged by parties and, thus, are not a measure of GM Financial’s exposure to loss through its use of these
derivatives.

GM Financial monitors hedging activities to ensure that the value of derivative financial instruments, their correlation to the contracts
being hedged and the amounts being hedged continue to provide effective protection against interest rate risk. However, there can be no
assurance that these strategies will be effective in minimizing interest rate risk or that increases in interest rates will not have an adverse
effect on GM Financial’s profitability. GM Financial does not enter into derivative transactions for speculative purposes.

* % * * * * *
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
General Motors Company, its Directors, and Stockholders:

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of General Motors Company and subsidiaries (the Company) as of
December 31, 2011, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
included in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
General Motors Company, its Directors, and Stockholders:

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets of General Motors Company and subsidiaries as of Decembe
2011 (Successor) and 2010 (Successor), and the related Consolidated Statements of Operations, Cash Flows and Equity (Deficit
the years ended December 31, 2011 (Successor) and 2010 (Successor) and the period July 10, 2009 through December 31,
(Successor), and the Consolidated Statements of Operations, Cash Flows and Equity (Deficit) of General Motors Corporation &
subsidiaries for the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 (Predecessor) (Successor and Predecessor collectively, the Comp
Our audits also included Schedule Il N Valuation and Qualifying Accounts (the Ofinancial statement scheduleO). These financ
statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the CompanyOs management. Our responsibility is to expre
opinion on the financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United State
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemen
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by manager
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Gener:
Motors Company and subsidiaries at December 31, 2011 (Successor) and 2010 (Successor), and the results of their operations
their cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2011 (Successor) and 2010 (Successor) and the period July 10, 2009 thrc
December 31, 2009 (Successor), and the results of operations and cash flows of General Motors Corporation and subsidiaries for
period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 (Predecessor), in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the Unit
States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidat
financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Successor adopted amendments in Accounting Stand
Update (ASU) 2010-28 and 2011-08 to Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topicli@adgibles-Goodwill and Other
effective January 1, 2011 and October 1, 2011, respectively.

As discussed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the Successor adopted amendments to Accounting Stand
Cadification (ASC) Topic 810Consolidation effective January 1, 2010.

As discussed in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, on July 10, 2009 the Successor completed the acquisition
substantially all of the assets and assumed certain of the liabilities of the Predecessor in accordance with the Amended and Rest
Master Sale and Purchase Agreement pursuant to Section 363(b) of the Bankruptcy Code and the Bankruptcy Court sale order d
July 5, 2009. Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with ASC To
852, Reorganizations
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In millions, except per share amounts)

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 | January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31, December 31, December 31, July 9,
2011 2010 2009 2009
Net sales and revenue
Automotive sales and revenue . ...t $148,866  $135,311  $57,474 $ 47,115
GMFInancial revenuUe . ... ... i e 1,410 281 — —
Total netsalesand revenNUE . . ...t e 150,276 135,592 57,474 47,115
Costs and expenses
Automotive costofsales ....... ... ... . 130,386 118,768 56,316 55,814
GM Financial operating and other expenses . .. ...t 785 152 — —
Automotive selling, general and administrative expense . ................ 12,105 11,446 6,006 6,161
Other automotive expenses, Net . ..........c.o . 58 118 15 1,235
Goodwill impairmentcharges . ... 1,286 — — —
Total CoSts and EXPENSES . . . vt 144,620 130,484 62,337 63,210
Operating income (10SS) .. ...t 5,656 5,108 (4,863) (16,095)
Equity in income of and disposition of interest in Ally Financial ............ — — — 1,380
AUtOMOLIVE INEreSt EXPENSE . . o o vttt e e e 540 1,098 694 5,428
Interest income and other non-operating income, net ...................... 851 1,531 375 852
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt ........ ... ... ... ... L. 18 196 (101) (1,088)
Reorganization gains, net (Note 32) . ........ ... . i — — — 128,155
Income (loss) before income taxes and equity income . .................... 5,985 5,737 (5,283) 107,776
Income tax expense (benefit) ....... ... ... . . ... (110) 672 (1,000) (1,166)
Equity income, net of tax and gain on disposal of investments .............. 3,192 1,438 497 61
Netincome (10SS) .. ... .ottt e e 9,287 6,503 (3,786) 109,003
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests .................. 97) (331) (511) 115
Net income (loss) attributable to stockholders . ........................ $ 9190 $ 6172  $(4,297) $109,118
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders ................. $ 7585 $ 4,668 $(4,428) $109,118
Earnings (loss) per share (Note 26)
Basic
Basic earnings per commonshare . ........... ... .. i $ 494 $ 311 $ (3.58) $ 178.63
Weighted-average common shares outstanding ........................ 1,536 1,500 1,238 611
Diluted
Diluted earnings per commonshare ................. i $ 458 $ 289 $ (3.58) $ 178.55
Weighted-average common shares outstanding ........................ 1,668 1,624 1,238 611

Reference should be made to the notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In millions, except per share amounts)

Successor
December 31, December 31,
2011 2010
ASSETS
Automotive Current Assets
Cash and Cash eqUIVAIENTS . . . ... e e e e e e e $ 15,499 $ 21,061
Marketable SECUIITIES . . . . . .ottt e e e e 16,148 5,555
Restricted cash and marketable SECUTILIES . . .. ... oo o e 206 1,240
Accounts and notes receivable (net of allowance of $331 and $252) . ... ... 9,949 8,699
LYo T2 14,324 12,125
Equipment on operating [8ases, NEt . . ... ...ttt e 2,464 2,568
Other current assets and deferred INCOME tAXES . . . . .. ...ttt e e e e e et 1,657 1,805
TO Al CUITENE ASSBES . . . ottt ettt et e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e 60,247 53,053
Automotive Non-current Assets
Restricted cash and marketable SECUTILIES . . ... .. o oo e e 912 1,160
Equity in net assets of nonconsolidated affiliates . ... ... ... ... 6,790 8,529
Pr OB Y, Nt . . e 22,957 19,235
GOOAWII L 27,741 30,513
INEANGIDIE ASSELS, M . . ottt e e 10,013 11,882
Other assets and deferred INCOME TAXES . . . . . ..o ottt et ettt et e e e e e e e et e e e e e 2,900 3,594
TOtal NON-CUITENT ASSELS . . . . o ottt ettt ettt ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 71,313 74,913
Total AUtOMOTIVE ASSEES . . . ...\ttt ittt e 131,560 127,966
GM Financial Assets
Finance receivables, net (including gross finance receivables transferred to SPEs of $9,068 and $7,156) ........................ 9,162 8,197
RESHICIEA CaSN . . o oo 1,115 1,090
GOOAWIIL L 1,278 1,265
Other assets (including leased assets, net transferred to SPEs of $274 and $0) .. ... i 1,488 380
Total GM FInancial ASSetS . ... ... ... .ttt e 13,043 10,932
TOtAl ASSEES . . o . ottt ettt et e e $144,603 $138,898
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Automotive Current Liabilities
Accounts payable (principally trade) .. .. ... ... $ 24,494 $ 21,497
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt (including certain debt at GM Korea of $171 and $70; Note 15) .. ........... 1,682 1,616
Accrued liabilities (including derivative liabilities at GM Korea of $44 and $111; Note 15) . ........ ..ot 22,756 24,044
Total current IaDIlItIeS . . . .. o 48,932 47,157
Automotive Non-current Liabilities
Long-term debt (including certain debt at GM Korea of $7 and $835; NOte 15) . ...ttt 3,613 3,014
Postretirement benefits Other than PENSIONS . ... ... ot i e e e e 6,836 9,294
PN ONS . o 25,075 21,894
Other liabilities and deferred INCOME tAXES . . . . .. oottt e e e e e e e e e e e e 12,336 13,021
Total non-current Habilities . . .. ... 47,860 47,223
Total Automotive Liabilities . .. ... ... .. ... 96,792 94,380
GM Financial Liabilities
Securitization notes payable (NOtE 17) .. .. o e e e 6,938 6,128
Credit FaCHltIES . . . . 1,099 832
Other DI ltIES . . . . e 783 399
Total GM Financial Liabilities . ... ... ... ... .. 8,820 7,359
Total LIabilities . ... .. ... o e 105,612 101,739
Commitments and contingencies (Note 20)
Equity
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 2,000,000,000 shares authorized:
Series A (276,101,695 shares issued and outstanding (each with a $25.00 liquidation preference) at December 31, 2011 and 2010) . . . 5,536 5,536
Series B (100,000,000 shares issued and outstanding (each with a $50.00 liquidation preference) at December 31, 2011 and 2010) . .. 4,855 4,855
Common stock, $0.01 par value (5,000,000,000 shares authorized and 1,564,727,289 shares and 1,500,136,998 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010) . .. ..ottt et e e 16 15
Capital surplus (principally additional paid-in capital) . .. ... 26,391 24,257
RETAINE BAININGS . . . ottt ettt e e e e e e 7,183 266
Accumulated other comprehensive iNCOME (I0SS) . . . ... e (5,861) 1,251
Total StOCKNOIAEIS” EQUILY . . . oottt ettt e e e e e e e e e 38,120 36,180
NONCONIIOIIING INTEIESES . . o o o ettt e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 871 979
Total EqUIty ... ..o e 38,991 37,159
Total Liabilities and EQUity . ... ... ... .. e $144,603 $138,898

Reference should be made to the notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In millions)

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009
Year Ended  Year Ended Through January 1, 2009
December 31, December 31, December 31, Through
2011 2010 2009 July 9, 2009
Cash flows from operating activities
NEtiNCOME (10SS) .« . v oottt et e et $ 9,287 $ 6,503 $(3,786) $ 109,003
Less: GM Financial income, net ........ ... .. i 437 90 — —
Automotive iINCome (l0SS) . ... v et 8,850 6,413 (3,786) 109,003
Adjustments to reconcile Automotive income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities—Automotive
Depreciation, impairment charges and amortization expense ................... 7,344 6,923 4,511 6,873
Foreign currency remeasurement and transaction loss ........................ 56 209 755 1,077
Amortization of discount and issuance costs on debtissues .................... 200 163 140 3,897
(Gain) loss related to Saab deconsolidation and bankruptcy filing . .............. — — (59) 478
Undistributed (earnings) losses of nonconsolidated affiliates and gain on disposal
of INVESIMENES . .. . (1,947) (753) (497) 1,036
Pension contributions and OPEB payments . ............ccoiviieiinnnennn... (2,269) (5,723) (5,832) (2,472)
Pension and OPEB (inCOme) expense, Net . .. .........ouuiiiiiiiinnnnn.. (755) 412 3,570 3,234
Withdrawals (contributions) from/to VEBA . ........ ... ... .. ... — — (252) 9
(Gain) loss on extinguishmentof debt . ............... ... .. ... L. (18) (196) 101 1,088
Gain on disposition of Ally Financial Common Membership Interests ........... — — — (2,477)
Reorganization gains, net (including cash payments $408) .................... — — — (128,563)
Provisions (benefits) for deferredtaxes ... (311) 242 (1,427) (600)
Change in other investments and miscellaneous assets ... ..................... (155) (137) 292 596
Increase (decrease) in other operating assets and liabilities (Note 31) ............ (3,897) (981) 3,372 (10,229)
L 13T 331 17 176 (1,253)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities—Automotive ............... 7,429 6,589 1,064 (18,303)
GM Financial income, Net . ...t 437 90 — —
Adjustments to reconcile income to net cash provided by (used in) operating
ACHIVITIES oot 370 86 — —
Change in operating assets and liabilities .............. .. ... .. ... ......... (70) 15 — —
Net cash provided by operating activities-GM Financial ..................... 737 191 — —
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities .......................... 8,166 6,780 1,064 (18,303)

Reference should be made to the notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — (Continued)
(In millions)

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009
Year Ended  Year Ended Through January 1, 2009
December 31, December 31, December 31, Through
2011 2010 2009 July 9, 2009
Cash flows from investing activities
Expenditures for property .. ... (6,241) (4,200) (1,862) (3,517)
Available-for-sale marketable securities, acquisitions . ....................... (20,535) (11,012) — (202)
Trading marketable securities, acquisitions . . ................... ... .. . (6,571) (358) (158) —
Available-for-sale marketable securities, liquidations ........................ 15,825 5,611 3 185
Trading marketable securities, liquidations . .................... ... ... ... ... 660 343 168 —
Acquisition of companies, net of cash acquired other than cash acquired with GM
Financial ... ... (53) (3,580) (2,127) —
Increase due to consolidation of businessunits . ............. ... .. ... — 63 222 46
Distributions from (investments in) Ally Financial .. ......................... — — 72 (884)
Operating leases, liquidations . ............. .. i 9 346 564 1,307
Proceeds from sale of business units/investments, net ........................ 4,821 317 — —
Increase in restricted cash and marketable securities ......................... (543) (871) (3,604) (18,461)
Decrease in restricted cash and marketable securities . ........................ 1,894 13,823 8,775 418
Other investing aCtiVities . .. ....... ...t 106 236 103 (26)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities—Automotive ................ (10,628) 718 2,156 (21,134)
GM Financial cash on hand at acquisition . ......... ... ..., — 538 — —
Purchases of receivables . ...... ... .. (5,012) (947) — —
Principal collections and recoveries on receivables .......................... 3,719 871 — —
Purchases of leased vehicles ........... ... ... .. . . (837) (12) — —
Other investing aCtiVities . .. ... .o e 18 64 — —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities—GM Financial . ............. (2,112) 515 — —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ........................... (12,740) 1,233 2,156 (21,134)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in short-termdebt................ ... ........ .. .... 131 (1,097) (352) (2,364)
Proceeds from issuance of debt (original maturities greater than three months) .. .. 467 718 6,153 53,949
Payments on debt (original maturities greater than three months) ............... (1,471) (10,536) (5,259) (6,072)
Proceeds from issuance of Stock . ........... . . 11 4,857 — —
Payments to repurchase Stock ........ ... . . — (1,462) — —
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash retained by MLC ................... — — — (1,216)
Payments to acquire noncontrolling interest .............. ... ... . ... ... (100) (6) (100) (5)
Debt issuance costs and fees paid for debt modification ....................... — (161) — (63)
Cash dividends paid (including premium paid on redemption of stock) .......... (916) (1,572) 97) —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities—Automotive ............... (1,878) (9,259) 345 44,229
Proceeds from issuance of debt (original maturities greater than three months) .. .. 8,567 1,168 — —
Payments on debt (original maturities greater than three months) ............... (6,997) (1,675) — —
Other financing activities ... ......... . (50) 4 — —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitiesGM Financial ............. 1,520 (511) — —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .......................... (358) (9,770) 345 44,229
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents—GM Financial . . .. 3) — — —
Net transactions with AUtOMOLIVe . ......... . e 235 — — —
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents—-GM Financial ...................... 377 195 — —
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period—-GM Financial ................. 195 — — —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period—-GM Financial ................... $ 572 $ 19 $ — $ —
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents—Automotive . . . ... $ (250) $  (57) $ 492 $ 168
Net transactions with GM Financial ................. ... ... ............. (235) — — —
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents—Automotive .............. (5,562) (2,009) 4,057 4,960
Cash and cash equivalents reclassified as assets held for sale—Automotive ........ — 391 (391) —
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period—Automotive ................... 21,061 22,679 19,013 14,053
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period—Automeotive ..................... $ 15,499 $ 21,061 $22,679 $ 19,013

Reference should be made to the notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY (DEFICIT)
(In millions)

Common Stockholders’

Retain Accumulated
Series A Series B Earnings Other Total
Preferred Preferred Common Capital (Accumulated Comprehensive Noncontrolling Comprehensive Equity
Stock Stock Stock  Surplus Deficit) Income (Loss) Interests Income (Loss) (Deficit)

Balance December 31, 2008, Predecessor .. $— $— $1,017 $16,489 $(70,727) $(32,339) $ 484 $(85,076)
Net income (I0SS) . ... — — — — 109,118 — (115) $109,003 109,003
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Foreign currency translation adjustments . . — — — — — 232 (85) 147
Cash flow hedging gains, net ............ — — — — — 99 177 276
Unrealized gain on securities ............ — — — — — 46 — 46
Defined benefit plans, net (Note 18) ...... — — — — — (3,408) — (3,408)
Other comprehensive loss . ........... (3,031) 92 (2,939) (2,939)
Comprehensive income ............ $106,064
Dividends declared or paid to noncontrolling
interests . ... — — — — — — (26) (26)
Other ... — — 1 5 (1) — (27) (22)
Balance July 9, 2009, Predecessor . ....... — — 1,018 16,494 38,390 (35,370) 408 20,940

Fresh-start reporting adjustments:
Elimination of predecessor common stock,

capital surplus and accumulated deficit . . . . — — (1,018) (16,494) (38,390) — — (55,902)
Elimination of accumulated other

comprehensiveloss ................... — — — — — 35,370 — 35,370
Issuance of GM common stock ............ — — 12 18,779 — — — 18,791
Balance July 10, 2009 Successor . ......... — — 12 18,779 — — 408 19,199
Net income (I0SS) . ..., — — — — (4,297) — 511 $ (3,786) (3,786)

Other comprehensive income (loss)

Foreign currency translation adjustments . . — — — — — 157 (33) 124

Cash flow hedging losses, net ........... — — — — — 1) — 1)

Unrealized gain on securities ............ — — — — — 2 — 2

Defined benefit plans, net (Note 18) ... ... — — — — — 1,430 — 1,430

Other comprehensive income . ......... 1,588 (33) 1,555 1,555
Comprehensive loss ............... $ (2,231)
Common stock and warrants related to

settlement of UAW hourly retiree medical

plan. ... ... — — 3 5,153 — — — 5,156
Purchases of noncontrolling interest ........ — — — 108 — — (208) (100)
Cash dividends paid on Series A Preferred

StOCK v — — — — 97) — — 97)
Other ... — — — — — — 30 30
Balance December 31, 2009, Successor . . .. — — 15 24,040 (4,394) 1,588 708 21,957

Reference should be made to the notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY (DEFICIT) — (Continued)
(In millions)

Balance December 31, 2009, Successor
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Foreign currency translation adjustments . ..
Cash flow hedging losses, net
Unrealized loss on securities
Defined benefit plans, net (Note 18)

Other comprehensive loss

Comprehensive income

Reclassification of Series A Preferred Stock to
permanent equity
Issuance of Series B Preferred Stock
Dividends declared or paid to noncontrolling
interest
Repurchase of noncontrolling interest shares . .
Sale of businesses
Stock-based compensation
Effect of adoption of amendments to ASC 810
regarding variable interest entities
Cash dividends paid on Series A Preferred
Stock and Cumulative dividends on
Series B Preferred Stock and charge
related to purchase of Series A Preferred
Stock

Balance December 31, 2010, Successor
Effect of adoption of amendments in ASU
2010-28 regarding goodwill impairment
(Notes 3 and 12)
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Foreign currency translation adjustments . . .
Cash flow hedging gains, net
Unrealized gain on securities
Defined benefit plans, net (Note 18)
Sale of interest in nonconsolidated
affiliate

Other comprehensive loss

Comprehensive income

Purchase of noncontrolling interest shares
Exercise of common stock warrants
Stock based compensation
Pension plan stock contribution (Note 18)
Cumulative dividends on Series A and Series B

Preferred Stock
Dividends declared or paid to noncontrolling

interest
Deconsolidation of noncontrolling interest . . ..
Other

Balance December 31, 2011, Successor

Common Stockholders’

Series A Series B
Preferred Preferred Common Capital

Retain

Earnings

Accumulat
Other

ed
Total

(Accumulated Comprehensive Noncontrolling Comprehensive Equity

Stock Stock Stock  Surplus Deficit) Income (Loss) Interests Income (Loss) (Deficit)
— — 15 24,040 (4,394) 1,588 708 21,957
— — — — 6,172 — 331 $ 6,503 6,503
— — — — — 223 (13) 210
— — — — — (22) — (22)

— - - — — ) — )
— — — — — (545) — (545)
— — — — — (351) (13) (364) (364)
$ 6,139
5,536 — — — — — — 5,536
— 4,855 — — — — — 4,855
— — — — — — (85) (85)
- - - 1 — — ) (6)
_ _ — — — 14 (18) 4
— — — 216 — — — 216
— — — — — — 76 76
— — — — (1,512) — — (1,512)
— — — — — — (13) (13)
5,536 4,855 15 24,257 266 1,251 979 37,159
— — — — (1,466) — — — (1,466)
— — — — 9,190 — 97 $ 9,287 9,287
— — — — — (176) (10) (186)
— — — — — 15 — 15
— — — — — 1 — 1
_ — — — — (6,903) — (6,903)
— — — — — (42) — (42)
— — — — — (7,105) (10) (7,115) (7,115)
$2,172
— — 41 — ) (134) (1200)
— — — 11 — — — 11
— — — 219 — — — 219
— — 1 1,863 — — — 1,864
— — — — (859) — — (859)
— — — — — — (54) (54)
— - - — — — ©) ©)
— — — 52 — 2 54
$5,536  $4,855 $16  $26,391 $ 7,183 $(5,861) $ 871 $38,991

Reference should be made to the notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1. Nature of Operations

General Motors Company was formed in 2009 originally as a Delaware limited liability company, Vehicle Acquisition Holdings
LLC, and subsequently converted to a Delaware corporation, NGMCO, Inc. This company, which on July 10, 2009 acquired
substantially all of the assets and assumed certain liabilities of General Motors Corporation (363 Sale) and changed its name to
General Motors Company, is sometimes referred to in these consolidated financial statements for the periods on or subsequent to
July 10, 2009 as “we,” “our,” “us,” “ourselves,” the “Company,” “General Motors,” or “GM,” and is the successor entity solely for
accounting and financial reporting purposes (Successor). General Motors Corporation is sometimes referred to in these consolidated
financial statements, for the periods on or before July 9, 2009, as “Old GM.” Prior to July 10, 2009 Old GM operated the business of
the Company, and pursuant to the agreement with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), as described in a no-action letter
issued to Old GM by the SEC Staff on July 9, 2009 regarding our filing requirements and those of Motors Liquidation Company
(MLC), the accompanying consolidated financial statements include the financial statements and related information of Old GM as it
is the predecessor entity solely for accounting and financial reporting purposes (Predecessor). On July 10, 2009 in connection with the
363 Sale, General Motors Corporation changed its name to Motors Liquidation Company. On December 15, 2011 MLC was dissolved
and the Motors Liquidation Company GUC Trust (GUC Trust) assumed responsibility for the affairs of and certain claims against
MLC and its debtor subsidiaries that were not concluded prior to MLC’s dissolution. MLC transferred to the GUC Trust all of MLC’s
remaining undistributed shares of our common stock and warrants to acquire our common stock.

We design, build and sell cars, trucks and automobile parts worldwide. We also provide automotive financing services through
General Motors Financial Company, Inc. (GM Financial).

We analyze the results of our business through our five segments: GM North America (GMNA), GM Europe (GME),
GM International Operations (GMIO), GM South America (GMSA) and GM Financial. Nonsegment operations are classified as
Corporate. Corporate includes investments in Ally Financial, Inc. (Ally Financial), certain centrally recorded income and costs, such
as interest, income taxes and corporate expenditures and certain nonsegment specific revenues and expenses.

Note 2. Basis of Presentation
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include our accounts and those of our subsidiaries that we control due to ownership of a
majority voting interest. These also include the accounts of the variable interest entities (VIES) of which we are the primary
beneficiary. We continually evaluate our involvement with VIEs to determine whether we have variable interests and are the primary
beneficiary of the VIE. When these criteria are met, we are required to consolidate the VIE. Our share of earnings or losses of
nonconsolidated affiliates is included in our consolidated operating results using the equity method of accounting when we are able to
exercise significant influence over the operating and financial decisions of the affiliate. We use the cost method of accounting if we
are not able to exercise significant influence over the operating and financial decisions of the affiliate. All intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Old GM utilized the same principles of consolidation in its consolidated financial
statements.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of the Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with U.S. GAAP, which requires the use of estimates, judgments,
and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the amounts of revenue and expenses in the
periods presented. We believe that the accounting estimates employed are appropriate and the resulting balances are reasonable;
however, due to the inherent uncertainties in making estimates actual results could differ from the original estimates, requiring
adjustments to these balances in future periods.
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GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
GM Financial

The assets and liabilities of GM Financial, our automotive finance operations, are presented on a non-classified basis. The amounts
presented for GM Financial have been adjusted to include the effect of our tax attributes on GM Financial’s deferred tax positions and
provision for income taxes since the date of acquisition, which are not applicable to GM Financial on a stand-alone basis, and to
eliminate the effect of transactions between GM Financial and the other members of the consolidated group. Accordingly, the
amounts presented will differ from those presented by GM Financial on a stand-alone basis.

Change in Presentation of Financial Statements

We changed the presentation of our consolidated balance sheet, consolidated statement of cash flows and certain footnotes to
combine line items which were either of a related nature or not individually material. We have made corresponding reclassifications to
the comparable information for all periods presented.

In the year ended December 31, 2011 we have recorded foreign currency exchange gains and losses on debt as non-operating items.
This is a change from prior period presentations in which foreign currency exchange gains and losses on debt were recorded in
Automotive cost of sales. We have reclassified all the successor prior periods to conform to our current presentation. The effects of
this reclassification decreased Automotive cost of sales and Interest income and other non-operating income, net by $24 million for
the year ended December 31, 2010 and $65 million for the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009.

Venezuelan Exchange Regulations

Our Venezuelan subsidiaries changed their functional currency from Bolivar Fuerte (BsF), the local currency, to the U.S. Dollar,
our reporting currency, on January 1, 2010 because of the hyperinflationary status of the Venezuelan economy. In January 2010 there
was a devaluation of the Venezuelan currency and establishment of dual fixed exchange rates, an essential rate and a nonessential rate.

In June 2010 the Venezuelan government introduced additional foreign currency exchange control regulations, which imposed
restrictions on the use of the parallel foreign currency exchange market, thereby making it more difficult to convert BsF to U.S.
Dollars. The restrictions on the foreign currency exchange market affect our Venezuelan subsidiaries’ ability to pay non-BsF
denominated obligations that do not qualify to be processed by the VVenezuela currency exchange agency at the official exchange rates
as well as our ability to fully benefit from these operations.

Effective January 1, 2011 the BsF was further devalued and the essential rate was eliminated. The devaluation has affected results
of operations in 2011 because our Venezuelan subsidiaries no longer realize gains that result from favorable foreign currency
exchanges processed by the Venezuela currency exchange agency at the essential rate.

The aggregate net assets of our Venezuelan subsidiaries at December 31, 2011 and 2010 were $438 million and $337 million. At
December 31, 2011 and 2010 other consolidated entities have receivables from our Venezuelan subsidiaries of $380 million and $283
million. The total amounts pending government approval for settlement at December 31, 2011 and 2010 were BsF 2.3 billion
(equivalent to $535 million) and BsF 1.9 billion (equivalent to $432 million), for which some requests have been pending from 2007.

Note 3. Significant Accounting Policies
In connection with our application of fresh-start reporting, we established a set of accounting policies which, unless otherwise

indicated, utilized the accounting policies of our predecessor entity, Old GM. The accounting policies which follow are utilized by our
automotive and automotive financing operations, unless otherwise indicated.
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GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
Revenue Recognition
Automotive

Automotive sales and revenue are primarily composed of revenue generated from the sale of vehicles. Vehicle sales are recorded
when title and risks and rewards of ownership have passed, which is generally when a vehicle is released to the carrier responsible for
transporting it to a dealer and when collectability is reasonably assured. Provisions for recurring dealer and customer sales and leasing
incentives, consisting of allowances and rebates, are recorded as reductions to Automotive sales and revenue at the time of vehicle
sales. All other incentives, allowances, and rebates related to vehicles previously sold are recorded as reductions to Automotive sales
and revenue when announced.

Vehicle sales to daily rental car companies with guaranteed repurchase obligations are accounted for as operating leases. Estimated
lease revenue is recorded ratably over the estimated term of the lease based on the difference between net sales proceeds and the
guaranteed repurchase amount. The difference between the cost of the vehicle and estimated residual value is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated term of the lease.

Payments received from banks for credit card programs in which there is a redemption liability are recorded on a straight-line basis
over the estimated period of time the customer will accumulate and redeem their rebate points. This time period is estimated to be 60
months for the majority of the credit card programs. The redemption liability anticipated to be paid to the dealer is estimated and
accrued at the time specific vehicles are sold to the dealer. The redemption cost is classified as a reduction of Automotive sales.

Automotive Financing — GM Financial

Finance income earned on receivables is recognized using the effective interest method. Fees and commissions (including incentive
payments) received and direct costs of originating loans are deferred and amortized over the term of the related finance receivables
using the effective interest method and are removed from the consolidated balance sheets when the related finance receivables are
sold, charged off or paid in full. Accrual of finance charge income is suspended on accounts that are more than 60 days delinquent,
accounts in bankruptcy, and accounts in repossession. Payments received on nonaccrual loans are first applied to any fees due, then to
any interest due and then any remaining amounts are recorded to principal. Interest accrual resumes once an account has received
payments bringing the delinquency to less than 60 days past due.

Income from operating lease assets, which includes lease origination fees, net of lease origination costs and incentives, is recorded
as operating lease revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease agreement.

Advertising

The following table summarizes advertising expenditures, which are expensed as incurred (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Advertising eXpense .. ... $4,478 $4,259 $2,110 $1,471
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The following table summarizes research and development expenditures, which are expensed as incurred (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009

Research and developmentexpense ...................
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annual review of our pricing service. This review includes discussion and analysis of the inputs used by the pricing service to provide
prices for the types of securities we hold. These inputs include prices for comparable securities, bid/ask quotes, interest rate yields,
and prepayment speeds. Based on our review we believe the prices received from our pricing service are a reliable representation of
exit prices.

An evaluation is made monthly to determine if unrealized losses related to non-trading investments in securities are other than
temporary. Factors considered in determining whether a loss on a marketable security is other than temporary include: (1) the length
of time and extent to which the fair value has been below cost; (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer; and
(3) the intent to sell or likelihood to be forced to sell the security before any anticipated recovery.

Finance Receivables
Pre-Acquisition Finance Receivables

Finance receivables originated prior to the acquisition of AmeriCredit Corp. (AmeriCredit) were adjusted to fair value at October 1,
2010. As a result of the acquisition the allowance for loan losses at October 1, 2010 was eliminated and a net discount was recorded
on the receivables. The fair value of the receivables was less than the principal amount of those receivables, thus resulting in a
discount to par. This discount was attributable, in part, to future credit losses that did not exist at the origination of the receivables.

A non-accretable difference is the excess between a loan’s contractually required payments (undiscounted amount of all uncollected
principal and contractual interest payments, both past due and scheduled for the future) and the amount of the loan’s cash flows
expected to be collected. An accretable yield is the excess in the loan’s cash flows expected to be collected over the initial investment
in the loan, which at October 1, 2010 was fair value.

As a result of purchase accounting GM Financial evaluated the common risk characteristics of the loan portfolio and split it into
several pools. GM Financial’s policy is to remove a charged off loan individually from a pool based on comparing any amount
received with its contractual amount. Any difference between these amounts is absorbed by the non-accretable difference. This
removal method assumes that the amount received approximates pool performance expectations. The remaining accretable yield
balance is unaffected and any material change in remaining effective yield caused by this removal method is addressed by GM
Financial’s quarterly cash flow evaluation process for each pool. For loans that are resolved by payment in full there is no release of
the non-accretable difference for the pool because there is no difference between the amount received and the contractual amount of
the loan.

Any deterioration in the performance of the pre-acquisition receivables will result in recording an incremental provision for loan
losses. Improvements in the performance of the pre-acquisition receivables which results in a significant increase in actual or expected
cash flows will result first in the reversal of any incremental related allowance for loan losses and then in a transfer of the excess from
the non-accretable difference to accretable yield, which will be recorded as finance charge income over the remaining life of the
receivables.

Post-Acquisition Finance Receivables and Allowance for Loan Losses

Finance receivables originated after the acquisition of AmeriCredit are carried at amortized cost, net of allowance for loan losses.
Provisions for loan losses are charged to operations in amounts sufficient to maintain an allowance for loan losses at a level
considered adequate to cover probable credit losses inherent in GM Financial’s post-acquisition finance receivables.

The allowance for loan losses is established systematically based on the determination of the amount of probable credit losses
inherent in the post-acquisition finance receivables as of the balance sheet date. GM Financial reviews charge-off experience factors,
delinquency reports, historical collection rates, estimates of the value of the underlying collateral, economic trends, such as
unemployment rates, and other information in order to make the necessary judgments as to probable credit losses. GM Financial also
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uses historical charge-off experience to determine a loss confirmation period, which is defined as the time between when an event,
such as delinquency status, giving rise to a probable credit loss occurs with respect to a specific account and when such account is
charged off. This loss confirmation period is applied to the forecasted probable credit losses to determine the amount of losses
inherent in finance receivables at the balance sheet date. Assumptions regarding credit losses and loss confirmation periods are
reviewed periodically and may be impacted by actual performance of finance receivables and changes in any of the factors discussed
above. Should the credit loss assumption or loss confirmation period increase, there would be an increase in the amount of allowance
for loan losses required, which would decrease the net carrying value of finance receivables and increase the amount of provision for
loan losses recorded on the consolidated statements of operations.

Inventory

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. In connection with fresh-start reporting, we elected to use the FIFO costing
method for all inventories previously accounted for by Old GM using the LIFO costing method.

Market, which represents selling price less cost to sell, considers general market and economic conditions, periodic reviews of
current profitability of vehicles, product warranty costs and the effect of current incentive offers at the balance sheet date. Market for
off-lease and other vehicles is current auction sales proceeds less disposal and warranty costs. Productive material, work in process,
supplies and service parts are reviewed to determine if inventory quantities are in excess of forecasted usage, or if they have become
obsolete.

Equipment on Operating Leases, net

Equipment on operating leases, net, including leased vehicles within Total GM Financial Assets, is reported at cost, less
accumulated depreciation, net of origination fees or costs, and lease incentives. Estimated income from operating lease assets, which
includes lease origination fees, net of lease origination costs, is recorded as operating lease revenue on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease agreement. Depreciation of vehicles is provided on a straight-line basis to an estimated residual value over the term
of the lease agreement.

We have and Old GM had significant investments in vehicles in operating lease portfolios, which are comprised of vehicle leases to
retail customers with lease terms of up to 60 months and vehicles leased to rental car companies with lease terms that average nine
months or less. We are and Old GM was exposed to changes in the residual values of those assets. For impairment purposes, the
residual values represent estimates of the values of the assets at the end of the lease contracts and are determined based on forecasted
auction proceeds when there is a reliable basis to make such a determination. Realization of the residual values is dependent on the
future ability to market the vehicles under the prevailing market conditions. The adequacy of the estimate of the residual value is
evaluated over the life of the lease and adjustments may be made to the extent the expected value of the vehicle at lease termination
changes. Adjustments may be in the form of revisions to the depreciation rate or recognition of an impairment charge. Impairment is
determined to exist if the undiscounted expected future cash flows, which include estimated residual values, are lower than the
carrying amount of the asset. If the carrying amount is considered impaired, an impairment charge is recorded for the amount by
which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value. Fair value is determined primarily using the anticipated cash flows, including
estimated residual values.

In our Automotive operations when a leased vehicle is returned the asset is reclassified from Equipment on operating leases, net to
Inventories at the lower of cost or estimated selling price, less cost to sell. In our Automotive Finance operations when a leased
vehicle is returned or repossessed the asset is recorded in Other assets at the lower of cost or estimated selling price, less costs to sell,
and upon disposition a gain or loss is recorded for any difference between the net book value of the lease and the proceeds from the
disposition of the asset.

Impairment charges related to Equipment on operating leases, net are recorded in Automotive cost of sales or GM Financial
operating and other expenses.
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Valuation of Cost and Equity Method Investments

When events and circumstances warrant, investments accounted for under the cost or equity method of accounting are evaluated for
impairment. An impairment charge is recorded whenever a decline in value of an investment below its carrying amount is determined
to be other than temporary. In determining if a decline is other than temporary, factors such as the length of time and extent to which
the fair value of the investment has been less than the carrying amount of the investment, the near-term and longer-term operating and
financial prospects of the affiliate and the intent and ability to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for any
anticipated recovery are considered. Impairment charges related to equity method investments are recorded in Equity income, net of
tax. Impairment charges related to cost method investments are recorded in Interest income and other non-operating, net.

Property, net

Property, plant and equipment, including internal use software, is recorded at cost. Major improvements that extend the useful life
or add functionality of property are capitalized. The gross amount of assets under capital leases is included in property, plant and
equipment. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. We depreciate all depreciable property using
the straight-line method. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of lease or the life of the asset, whichever is shorter.
For depreciable property placed in service before January 2001, Old GM used accelerated depreciation methods. For depreciable
property placed in service after January 2001, Old GM used the straight-line method. The amortization of the assets under capital
leases is included in depreciation expense. Upon retirement or disposition of property, plant and equipment, the cost and related
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recorded in earnings. Impairment charges
related to property are recorded in Automotive cost of sales or GM Financial operating and other expenses.

Special Tools

Special tools represent product-specific powertrain and non-powertrain related tools, dies, molds and other items used in the vehicle
manufacturing process. Expenditures for special tools are recorded at cost and are capitalized. In connection with our application of
fresh-start reporting, we began amortizing all non-powertrain special tools over their estimated useful lives using an accelerated
amortization method. We amortize powertrain special tools over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. Old GM
amortized all special tools using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises from the application of fresh-start reporting and acquisitions accounted for as business combinations. Goodwill is
tested for impairment for all reporting units on an annual basis during the fourth quarter, or more frequently, if events occur or
circumstances change that would warrant such a review. An impairment charge is recorded for the amount, if any, by which the
carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. Fair values of reporting units are established using a discounted cash flow
method. Where available and as appropriate, comparative market multiples and the quoted market price for our common stock are
used to corroborate the results of the discounted cash flow method. Our reporting units are GMNA, GME, GM Financial and various
reporting units within the GMIO and GMSA segments. Due to the integrated nature of our manufacturing operations and the sharing
of assets, other resources and vehicle platforms among brands within GMNA and GME and because financial information by brand or
country is not discrete below the operating segment level, GMNA and GME do not contain reporting units below the operating
segment level. GM Financial also does not contain reporting units below the operating segment level. GMIO and GMSA are less
integrated given the lack of regional trade pacts and other unique geographical differences and thus contain separate reporting units
below the operating segment level. Goodwill would be reassigned on a relative-fair-value basis to a portion of a reporting unit to be
disposed of or upon the reorganization of the composition of one or more of our reporting units, unless the reporting unit was never
integrated.

Intangible Assets, net

Intangible assets, excluding Goodwill, primarily include brand names (including defensive intangibles associated with discontinued
brands), technology and intellectual property, customer relationships and dealer networks.
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Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line or an accelerated method of amortization over their estimated useful lives. An
accelerated amortization method reflecting the pattern in which the asset will be consumed is utilized if that pattern can be reliably
determined. If that pattern cannot be reliably determined, a straight-line amortization method is used. We consider the period of
expected cash flows and underlying data used to measure the fair value of the intangible assets when selecting a useful life.

Amortization of developed technology and intellectual property is recorded in Automotive cost of sales. Amortization of brand
names, customer relationships and our dealer networks is recorded in Automotive selling, general and administrative expense or GM
Financial operating and other expenses.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

The carrying amount of long-lived assets and finite-lived intangible assets to be held and used in the business are evaluated for
impairment when events and circumstances warrant. If the carrying amount of a long-lived asset group is considered impaired, a loss
is recorded based on the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value for the asset group to be held and used. Product-
specific long-lived asset groups are tested for impairment at the platform or vehicle line level. Non-product specific long-lived assets
are tested for impairment on a reporting unit basis in GMNA, GME, and GM Financial and tested at or within our various reporting
units within our GMIO and GMSA segments. Fair value is determined primarily using the anticipated cash flows discounted at a rate
commensurate with the risk involved. Long-lived assets to be disposed of other than by sale are considered held for use until
disposition. Product-specific assets may become impaired as a result of declines in profitability due to changes in volume, pricing or
costs.

Pension and Other Postretirement Plans
Attribution, Methods and Assumptions

The cost of benefits provided by defined benefit pension plans is recorded in the period employees provide service. The cost of
pension plan amendments that provide for benefits already earned by plan participants is amortized over the expected period of
benefit which may be: (1) the duration of the applicable collective bargaining agreement specific to the plan; (2) expected future
working lifetime; or (3) the life expectancy of the plan participants.

The cost of medical, dental, legal service and life insurance benefits provided through postretirement benefit plans is recorded in
the period employees provide service. The cost of postretirement plan amendments that provide for benefits already earned by plan
participants is amortized over the expected period of benefit which may be the average period to full eligibility or the average life
expectancy of the plan participants, or the period to the plan’s termination date for the plan which provides legal services.

An expected return on plan asset methodology is utilized to calculate future pension expense for certain significant funded benefit
plans. A market-related value of plan assets methodology is also utilized that averages gains and losses on the plan assets over a
period of years to determine future pension expense. The methodology recognizes 60% of the difference between the fair value of
assets and the expected calculated value in the first year and 10% of that difference over each of the next four years.

The discount rate assumption is established for each of the retirement-related benefit plans at their respective measurement dates. In
the U.S. we use a cash flow matching approach that uses projected cash flows matched to spot rates along a high quality corporate
yield curve to determine the present value of cash flows to calculate a single equivalent discount rate.

The benefit obligation for pension plans in Canada, the United Kingdom and Germany comprise 92% of the non-U.S. pension
benefit obligation at December 31, 2011. The discount rates for plans in Canada, the United Kingdom and Germany are determined
using a cash flow matching approach, similar to the U.S. approach.

In countries other than the U.S., Canada, United Kingdom and those located in the Eurozone discount rates are established
depending on the local financial markets, using a high quality yield curve based on local bonds, a yield curve adjusted to reflect local
conditions using foreign currency swaps or local actuarial standards.
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In the U.S., Old GM established a discount rate assumption to reflect the yield of a hypothetical portfolio of high quality, fixed-
income debt instruments that would produce cash flows sufficient in timing and amount to satisfy projected future benefits.

Plan Asset Valuation
Cash Equivalents and Other Short-Term Investments

Money market funds and other similar short-term investment funds are valued using the net asset value per share (NAV) as
provided by the investment sponsor or third party administrator. Prices for short-term debt securities are received from independent
pricing services or from dealers who make markets in such securities. Independent pricing services utilize matrix pricing which
considers readily available inputs such as the yield or price of bonds of comparable quality, coupon, maturity and type as well as
dealer supplied prices. Money market mutual funds which provide investors with the ability to redeem their interests on a daily basis
and for which NAVs are publicly available are classified in Level 1. Other cash equivalents and short-term investments are classified
in Level 2.

Group Annuity Contracts

Group annuity contracts are the contracts entered into with a life insurance company, which are used as a funding instrument for
specified benefits payments to be made in accordance with the defined benefit pension plans. The contracts may be backed by one or
more separately managed investment accounts, which generally hold investments in high quality fixed income securities. The fair
value of each contract depends, to a significant extent, on the values of the units of the separately managed investment accounts
backing the contract. The fair value of the separately managed investment account assets is based on the fair value of the underlying
securities held which are determined by each of the insurance companies. From time to time, the defined benefit pension plans’
liabilities may increase when certain contractually required reserves, as estimated by an insurer under the terms of the contract, exceed
the fair value of contract assets. The resulting difference represents an outstanding contract asset deficiency that must be funded by
the defined benefit pension plan’s sponsor. Group annuity contracts are unallocated arrangements and are classified in Level 3.

Common and Preferred Stock

Common and preferred stock securities for which market prices are readily available by the Company at the measurement date, are
valued at the last reported sale price or official closing price on the primary market or exchange on which they are actively traded and
are classified in Level 1. Such equity securities for which the market is not considered to be active are valued via the use of
observable inputs, which may include, among others, the use of adjusted market prices last available, bids or last available sales prices
and/or other observable inputs and are classified in Level 2. Common and preferred stock classified in Level 3 are those privately
issued securities or other issues that are valued via the use of valuation models using significant unobservable inputs that generally
consider among others, aged (stale) pricing, earnings multiples, discounted cash flows and/or other qualitative and quantitative
factors. We may consider other security attributes such as liquidity and market activity in assessing the observability of inputs used by
pricing services or dealers, which may affect classification in the fair value hierarchy.

Government, Agency and Corporate Debt Securities

U.S. government and government agency obligations, foreign government and government agency obligations, municipal
securities, supranational obligations, corporate bonds, bank notes, floating rate notes, and preferred securities are valued based on
quotations received from independent pricing services or from dealers who make markets in such securities. Debt securities which are
priced via the use of pricing services that utilize matrix pricing which considers readily observable inputs such as the yield or price of
bonds of comparable quality, coupon, maturity and type as well as dealer supplied prices, are classified in Level 2. Securities within
this category that are typically priced by dealers and pricing services via the use of proprietary pricing models which incorporate
significant unobservable inputs are classified in Level 3. These inputs primarily consist of yield and credit spread assumptions. We
may consider other security attributes such as liquidity, market activity, price level, credit ratings and geo-political risk in assessing
the observability of inputs used by pricing services or dealers, which may affect classification.
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Agency and Non-Agency Mortgage and Other Asset-Backed Securities

U.S. and foreign government agency mortgage and asset-backed securities, non-agency collateralized mortgage obligations,
commercial mortgage securities, residential mortgage securities and other asset-backed securities are valued based on quotations
received from independent pricing services or from dealers who make markets in such securities. Securities which are priced via the
use of pricing services that utilize matrix pricing which considers readily observable inputs such as prepayment speed assumptions,
attributes of the collateral, yield or price of bonds of comparable quality, coupon, maturity and type as well as dealer supplied prices
are classified in Level 2. Securities within this category that are typically priced by dealers and pricing services via the use of
proprietary pricing models which incorporate significant unobservable inputs are classified in Level 3. These inputs primarily consist
of prepayment curves, discount rates, default assumptions and recovery rates. We may consider other security attributes such as
liquidity, market activity, price level and other factors in assessing the observability of inputs used by pricing services or dealers,
which may affect classification.

Investment Funds, Private Equity and Debt Investments and Real Estate Investments

Investments in exchange traded funds, real estate investment trusts and mutual funds, for which market quotations are generally
readily available, are valued at the last reported sale price, official closing price or publicly available NAV (or its equivalent) on the
primary market or exchange on which they are traded, and are classified in Level 1. Investments in private investment funds
(including hedge funds, private equity funds and real estate funds) are generally valued based on their respective NAV (or its
equivalent), as a practical expedient to estimate fair value due to the absence of readily available market prices. Investments which
may be fully redeemed at NAV in the near-term are generally classified in Level 2. Investments in funds, which may not be fully
redeemed at NAV in the near-term, are generally classified in Level 3.

Investments in private equity, private debt and real estate securities, are generally valued in good faith via the use of the market
approach (earnings multiples from comparable companies) or the income approach (discounted cash flow techniques), and consider
inputs such as revenue growth and gross margin assumptions, discount rates, discounts for lack of liquidity, market capitalization
rates, and the selection of comparable companies. As these valuations incorporate significant unobservable inputs they are classified
as Level 3.

Fair value estimates for private investment funds, private equity, private debt, and real estate investments are provided by the
respective investment sponsors or investment advisers and are subsequently reviewed and approved by management. In the event
management concludes a reported NAV or fair value estimate (collectively, external valuation) does not reflect fair value or is not
determined as of the financial reporting measurement date, we will consider whether an adjustment is necessary. In determining
whether an adjustment to the external valuation is required, we will review material factors that could affect the valuation, such as
changes to the composition or performance of the underlying investment(s) or comparable investments, overall market conditions,
expected sale prices for private investments which are probable of being sold in the short term, and other economic factors that may
possibly have a favorable or unfavorable effect on the reported external valuation. We may adjust the external valuation to ensure fair
value as of the balance sheet date.

Derivatives

Exchange traded derivatives, such as options and futures, for which market quotations are readily available, are valued at the last
reported sale price or official closing price on the primary market or exchange on which they are traded and are classified in Level 1.
Over-the-counter derivatives, including but not limited to swaps, swaptions and forwards, which are typically valued through
independent pricing services with observable inputs are generally classified in Level 2. Derivatives classified in Level 3 are typically
valued via the use of pricing models which incorporate significant unobservable inputs, but may also include derivatives which are
valued with the use of significant observable inputs which are not subject to corroboration. The inputs part of the model based
valuations may include extrapolated or model-derived assumptions such as volatilities and yield and credit spread assumptions.

General Motors Company 2011 Annual Report 89



GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Due to the lack of timely available market information for certain investments in the asset classes described above as well as the
inherent uncertainty of valuation, reported fair values may differ from fair values that would have been used had timely available
market information been available.

Extended Disability Benefits

Estimated extended disability benefits are accrued ratably over the employee’s active service period using measurement provisions
similar to those used to measure our other postretirement benefits (OPEB) obligations. The liability is composed of the future
obligations for income replacement, healthcare costs and life insurance premiums for employees currently disabled and those in the
active workforce who may become disabled. Future disabilities are estimated in the current workforce using actuarial methods based
on historical experience. We record actuarial gains and losses immediately in earnings. Old GM amortized net actuarial gains and
losses over the remaining duration of the obligation.

Labor Force

On a worldwide basis, we have and Old GM had a concentration of the workforce working under the guidelines of unionized
collective bargaining agreements. At December 31, 2011 48,000 of our U.S. employees (or 62%) were represented by unions, of
which 47,000 employees were represented by the International Union, United Automobile, Aerospace and Agriculture Implement
Workers of America (UAW). The current labor contract with the UAW is effective for a four-year term that began in October 2011
and expires in September 2015. The contract included a $5,000 lump sum payment to each eligible UAW employee in the year ended
December 31, 2011 and three additional lump sum payments of $1,000 to be paid annually in the years ending December 31, 2012,
2013 and 2014. These lump sum payments totaling $381 million are being amortized over the four-year contract period.

Job Security Programs

Effective with our current labor agreement the Job Opportunity Bank (JOBS) Program was eliminated and the Supplemental
Unemployment Benefit (SUB) program and the Transitional Support Program (TSP) were retained. These modified job security
programs provide employees reduced wages and continued coverage under certain employee benefit programs depending on the
employee’s classification as well as the number of years of service that the employee has accrued. A similar tiered benefit is provided
to Canadian Auto Workers Union (CAW) employees. We recognize a liability for these SUB/TSP benefits over the expected service
period of employees, based on our best estimate of the probable liability at the measurement date.

Prior to the implementation of the modified job security programs in May 2009, costs for postemployment benefits to hourly
employees idled on an other than temporary basis were accrued based on the best estimate of the wage, benefit and other costs to be
incurred, and costs related to the temporary idling of employees were expensed as incurred.

Stock Incentive Plans

We measure and record compensation expense for all share-based payment awards based on the award’s estimated fair value. We
grant awards to our employees through the 2009 Long Term Incentive Plan and the GM Salary Stock Plan. We record compensation
expense over the applicable vesting period of an award.

Prior to our public offering in November and December 2010, the fair value of awards granted was based on the estimated fair
value of our common stock. Commencing in November 2010 the fair value of our common stock is based on the New York Stock

Exchange trading price.

Salary stock awards granted are fully vested and nonforfeitable upon grant, therefore, compensation cost is recorded on the date of
grant.

90 General Motors Company 2011 Annual Report



GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
Policy, Warranty and Recall Campaigns

The estimated costs related to policy and product warranties are accrued at the time products are sold and are charged to
Automotive cost of sales. These estimates are established using historical information on the nature, frequency and average cost of
claims of each vehicle line or each model year of the vehicle line and assumptions about future activity and events. Revisions are
made when necessary, based on changes in these factors. Trends of claims are actively studied and actions are taken to improve
vehicle quality and minimize claims.

The estimated costs related to product recalls based on a formal campaign soliciting return of that product are accrued when they
are deemed to be probable and can be reasonably estimated.

Income Taxes

The liability method is used in accounting for income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded for temporary
differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements, using the
statutory tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recorded in the results of operations in the period that includes the enactment date under the law.

Deferred income tax assets are evaluated quarterly to determine if valuation allowances are required or should be adjusted. We
establish and Old GM established valuation allowances for deferred tax assets based on a more likely than not standard. The ability to
realize deferred tax assets depends on the ability to generate sufficient taxable income within the carryback or carryforward periods
provided for in the tax law for each applicable tax jurisdiction. We consider and Old GM considered the following possible sources of
taxable income when assessing the realization of deferred tax assets:

»  Future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences;

»  Future taxable income exclusive of reversing temporary differences and carryforwards;
»  Taxable income in prior carryback years; and

e Tax-planning strategies.

The assessment regarding whether a valuation allowance is required or should be adjusted also considers all available positive and
negative evidence factors, including but not limited to:

» Nature, frequency, and severity of recent losses;

» Duration of statutory carryforward periods;

e Historical experience with tax attributes expiring unused; and

e Near- and medium-term financial outlook;

It is difficult to conclude a valuation allowance is not required when there is significant objective and verifiable negative evidence,
such as cumulative losses in recent years. We utilize and Old GM utilized a rolling three years of actual and current year anticipated

results as the primary measure of cumulative losses in recent years.

Income tax expense (benefit) for the year is allocated between continuing operations and other categories of income such as
Discontinued operations or Other comprehensive income (loss). In periods in which there is a pre-tax loss from continuing operations
and pre-tax income in another income category, the tax benefit allocated to continuing operations is determined by taking into account
the pre-tax income of other categories.
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We record uncertain tax positions on the basis of a two-step process whereby: (1) we determine whether it is more likely than r
that the tax positions will be sustained based on the technical merits of the position; and (2) for those tax positions that meet the m
likely than not recognition, we recognize the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimat
settlement with the related tax authority.

We record interest and penalties on uncertain tax positions in Income tax expense (benefit). Old GM recorded interest income
uncertain tax positions in Interest income and other non-operating income, net, interest expense in Automotive interest expense
penalties in Automotive selling, general and administrative expense.

Derivative Instruments

We are party to a variety of foreign currency exchange rate, commodity, interest rate swap and interest rate cap derivative contre
entered into in connection with the management of exposure to fluctuations in certain foreign currency exchange rates, commoc
prices and interest rates.

In connection with certain long-term supply contracts that we have entered into, we have identified embedded derivatives which v
have bifurcated for valuation and accounting purposes.

GM Financial is exposed to market risks arising from adverse changes in interest rates due to floating interest rate exposure on
credit facilities and on certain securitization notes payable. GM FinancialOs special purpose entities (SPESs) are contractually requ
to purchase derivative instruments as credit enhancements in connection with securitization transactions and credit facilities. Th
financial exposures and contractual requirements are managed in accordance with corporate policies and procedures and a
management control system is used to assist in monitoring hedging programs, derivative positions and hedging strategies. Hedc
documentation includes hedging objectives, practices and procedures and the related accounting treatment.

The accounting for changes in the fair value of each derivative financial instrument depends on whether it has been designated
qualifies as an accounting hedge, as well as the type of hedging relationship identified. Derivative financial instruments entered ir
by our automotive operations are not designated in hedging relationships. Certain of the derivatives entered into by GM Financ
have been designated in cash flow hedging relationships. Derivatives that receive hedge accounting treatment are evaluated
effectiveness at the time they are designated as well as throughout the hedging period. We do not hold derivative financial instrume
for speculative purposes.

All derivatives are recorded at fair value and presented gross in the consolidated balance sheets. Internal models are used to val
majority of derivatives. The models use, as their basis, readily observable market inputs, such as time value, forward interest rat
volatility factors and current and forward market prices for foreign currency exchange rates and commodities. Derivative contrac
that are valued based upon models with significant unobservable market inputs, primarily price, are classified in Level 3.

The valuation of derivative liabilities takes into account our nonperformance risk. At December 31, 2011 and 2010 ou
nonperformance risk was not observable through a liquid credit default swap market. Our nonperformance risk was estimated us
internal analysis to develop conclusions on our implied unsecured credit rating, which we used to determine the appropriate cre
spread, which would be applied to us by market participants. Prior to receiving published credit ratings we developed our credit ratil
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would be required. If it is not more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than the carrying amount, then
goodwill is not considered to be impaired. ASU 2011-08 does not change how goodwill is calculated or assigned to reporting units,
nor does it revise the requirement to test goodwill at least annually for impairment. We adopted ASU 2011-08 effective October 1,
2011. The adoption of this ASU did not have an effect on the conclusions reached during our goodwill impairment assessments
performed in the three months ended December 31, 2011.

Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

In May 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-04, “Fair Value Measurement: Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs” (ASU 2011-04). Key provisions of the amendments in ASU
2011-04 include: (1) a prohibition on grouping financial instruments for purposes of determining fair value, except in limited cases;
(2) an extension of the prohibition against the use of a blockage factor to all fair value measurements; and (3) a requirement that for
recurring Level 3 fair value measurements, entities disclose quantitative information about unobservable inputs, a description of the
valuation process used and qualitative details about the sensitivity of the measurements. For items not carried at fair value but for
which fair value is disclosed, entities will be required to disclose the level within the fair value hierarchy that applies to the fair value
measurement disclosed. This ASU is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The adoption of
ASU 2011-04 is not expected to have a significant effect on our fair value measurements utilized within the consolidated financial
statements.

Note 4. Acquisition and Disposal of Businesses
Acquisition of Additional GM Korea Interests

In March 2011 we completed the acquisition of an additional 6.9% interest in GM Korea Company (GM Korea) for cash of $100
million. The transaction was accounted for as an equity transaction as we retain the controlling financial interest in GM Korea. This
transaction reduced our equity attributable to Noncontrolling interests by $134 million and our Accumulated other comprehensive
income by $7 million and increased our Capital surplus by $41 million. We now own 77.0% of the outstanding shares of GM Korea.
Acquisition of AmeriCredit

In October 2010 we acquired 100% of the outstanding equity interests of AmeriCredit, an automotive finance company, renamed
General Motors Financial Company, Inc., for cash of $3.5 billion. This acquisition allows us to provide a more complete range of

financing options to our customers across the U.S. and Canada, specifically focusing on providing additional capabilities in leasing
and sub-prime vehicle financing options.
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The following table summarizes the consideration paid, acquisition-related costs, and the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
recognized at the acquisition date in connection with the acquisition of AmeriCredit (dollars in millions, except per share amounts):

Successor
Consideration
Cash paid to AmeriCredit common shareholders of $24.50 pershare ..., $ 3,327
Cash paid to cancel outstanding StOCK WArrants . . ... ... ... ..ot e 94
Cash paid to settle equity-based compensation awards .. .. .. ... .. ..ottt e 33
Total CONSIABIAtION . ..\ oottt ettt e e e e e $ 3,454
ACQUISITION-TEIALEA COSES (B) .« . v v v vttt et e e e e e e e e e $ 43
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed
7 )3 $ 538
REStII e CaSh . . . oo 1,136
Finance receivables () ... ..ot 8,231
Other assets, including identifiable intangible assets . ........... . e 200
Securitization notes payable and other bOrrowWings (C) . . ... ..ottt e (7,564)
Other HabilitieS . .. o e (352)
Identifiable net assets aCqUITEA . . . ... o i 2,189
Goodwill resulting from the acquisition of AmeriCredit . .......... .. . . 1,265

$ 3,454

(@) Acquisition-related costs of $43 million were expensed as incurred. The acquisition related costs include $27 million recorded in
Automotive selling, general and administrative expense and $16 million recorded in GM Financial operating expenses and other.

(b) The fair value of Finance receivables was determined using a discounted cash flow approach. The contractual cash flows were
adjusted for estimated prepayments, defaults, recoveries, finance charge income and servicing costs and discounted using a
discount rate commensurate with risks and maturity inherent in the finance contracts. As of the acquisition date, the contractually
required payments receivable was $10.7 billion of which $9.7 billion was expected to be collected.

(c) The fair value of securitization notes payable and other borrowings was principally determined using quoted market rates.
We recorded goodwill in the amount of $1.3 billion for the excess of consideration paid over the fair value of the individual assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. Goodwill includes $153 million recorded to establish a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets

that was not applicable to GM Financial on a stand-alone basis. All of the goodwill was assigned to the GM Financial reporting unit.
The goodwill expected to be tax deductible is $159 million and was generated from previous acquisitions by GM Financial.
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The results of operations of GM Financial are included in our results beginning October 1, 2010. The following table summarizes
the actual amounts of revenue and earnings of GM Financial included in our consolidated financial statements for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, as well as the supplemental pro forma revenue and earnings of the combined entity for the year ended
December 31, 2010 as if the acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2010 and for the periods July 10, 2009 through December 31,
2009 and January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009, as if the acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2009 (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
Pro Forma-
Pro Forma-Combined Combined
GM Financial GM Financial (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Amounts For  Amounts For July 10, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Through January 1, 2009

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, Through
2011 2010 2010 2009 July 9, 2009
Total netsalesandrevenue ......................... $1,410 $281 $136,645 $58,215 $ 48,074
Net income (loss) attributable to stockholders .......... $ 440 $ 90 $ 6,651 $(4,125) $109,234

The supplemental pro forma information was adjusted to give effect to the tax effected amortization of a premium on finance
receivables and a premium on securitization notes payable and other borrowings, depreciation and amortization related to other assets
and acquisition related costs. The pro forma information should not be considered indicative of the results had the acquisition been
consummated on January 1, 2010 and January 1, 2009, nor are they indicative of future results.

Sale of Nexteer

In November 2010 we completed the sale of Nexteer Automotive Corporation (Nexteer), a manufacturer of steering components
and half-shafts, to Pacific Century Motors. The sale of the Nexteer business included the global steering business which was acquired
in October 2009 as discussed under Acquisition of Delphi Businesses below. The 2009 acquisition of Nexteer included 22
manufacturing facilities, six engineering facilities and 14 customer support centers located in North and South America, Europe and
Asia.

We received consideration of $426 million in cash and a $39 million promissory note in exchange for 100% of our ownership
interest in Nexteer and recorded a gain of $60 million on the sale which is recorded in Interest income and other non-operating
income, net. Subsequent to the sale, Nexteer became one of our third party suppliers and we remain a significant customer. During the
year ended December 31, 2010 Nexteer recorded revenue of $1.8 billion, of which $939 million were sales to us. During the period
from October 6, 2009, the date of acquisition, to December 31, 2009, Nexteer reported revenue of $453 million, of which $218
million were sales to us. We did not provide the pro forma financial information because we do not believe the information was
material.

Acquisition of General Motors Strasbourg
In October 2010 we acquired 100% of the outstanding equity interest of General Motors Strasbourg S.A.S. (GMS) for cash of one
Euro from MLC. GMS is an entity engaged in the business of developing and manufacturing automatic transmissions for luxury and

performance light automotive vehicles which was previously owned by Old GM but retained by MLC in connection with the 363
Sale. MLC was unable to sell GMS and upon notification of their plan to liquidate GMS, we agreed to repurchase the business.
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We recorded the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of October 1, 2010 and have included GMS’s results of
operations and cash flows from that date forward. The following table summarizes the amounts recorded in connection with the
acquisition of GMS, which are included in our GME segment (dollars in millions):

Successor
October 1, 2010

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

O T o $ 49
Accounts receivable (8) . . ... oo 60
I O Y L 56
PIOP Y, Mt . oo e 25
Other NON-CUMTENE BSSEES . . . v\ ottt ettt et et et et et e e e e e e e e e e et et e 3
CUrrent AT HEIES . . oo (116)
Non-current [Iabilities . ... .o (11)

Bargain PUIChase Qain . .. ..o e e $ 66

(@ Accounts receivable includes $32 million that is due from us.

We determined that the excess of fair value over consideration paid was attributable to potential future restructuring scenarios made
necessary due to the uncertainty in sales demand beyond in-place supply agreements. Restructuring costs, if incurred, would be
expensed in future periods. As potential future restructuring activities do not qualify to be recorded as a liability in the application of
the acquisition method of accounting, none was recorded, and we recorded the excess as a bargain purchase gain, recorded in Interest
income and other non-operating income, net. We did not provide the pro forma financial information because we do not believe the
information was material.

Sale of India Operations

In December 2009 we and SAIC Motor Hong Kong Investment Limited (SAIC-HK) entered into a joint venture, SAIC GM
Investment Limited (HKJV) to invest in automotive projects outside of markets in China, initially focusing on markets in India. In
February 2010 we sold certain of our operations in India (GM India), part of our GMIO segment to HKJV, in exchange for a
promissory note due in 2013. The amount due under the promissory note may be partially reduced, or increased, based on GM India’s
cumulative earnings before interest and taxes for the three year period ending December 31, 2012. In connection with the sale we
recorded net consideration of $185 million and an insignificant gain. The sale transaction resulted in a loss of control and the
deconsolidation of GM India on February 1, 2010. Accordingly, we removed the assets and liabilities of GM India from our
consolidated balance sheets and recorded an equity interest in HKJV to reflect cash of $50 million we contributed to HKJV and a
$123 million commitment to provide additional capital that we are required to make in accordance with the terms of the joint venture
agreement. We recorded a corresponding liability to reflect our obligation to provide additional capital.

In connection with this transaction, we provided an option to SAIC-HK to not participate in future capital injections, which would
otherwise be required under certain circumstances. SAIC-HK still held this option at December 31, 2011. The related option liability
was $88 million and $24 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, measured utilizing Level 3 inputs. Total unrealized losses related to
this option were $64 million and $3 million in the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Acquisition of Delphi Businesses

In July 2009 we entered into the Delphi Master Disposition Agreement (DMDA) with Delphi Corporation (Delphi) and other
parties. The terms of the DMDA provided a means for Delphi to emerge from bankruptcy and to effectively serve its customers by
focusing on its core business. The DMDA settled outstanding claims and assessments against and from MLC, us and Delphi,
including the settlement of commitments under the Delphi-GM Settlement Agreements (as defined in Note 20) with limited
exceptions, and establishes an ongoing commercial relationship with New Delphi (as subsequently defined). The DMDA also enabled
us to access essential components and steering technologies through the businesses we acquired.
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We agreed to acquire Nexteer, Delphi’s global steering business, which supplied us and other original equipment manufacturers
with steering systems and columns, and four domestic facilities that manufacture a variety of automotive components. We and several
third party investors agreed to acquire substantially all of Delphi’s remaining assets through a newly formed entity, subsequently
named Delphi Automotive LLP (New Delphi). We agreed to acquire all the Class A Membership Interests in New Delphi with the
other investors acquiring Class B Membership Interests and the Pension Benefit Guarantee Corporation (PBGC) receiving Class C
Membership Interests. We also agreed to pay or assume certain Delphi obligations of $1.0 billion.

In October 2009 we consummated the transactions contemplated by the DMDA. We funded the acquisitions, transaction related
costs and settlements of certain pre-existing arrangements through net cash payments of $2.7 billion and assumption of liabilities and
wind-down obligations of $120 million. We waived our rights to $850 million previously advanced to Delphi and our rights to claims
associated with previously transferred pension costs for hourly employees. Of these amounts, we contributed $1.7 billion to New
Delphi and paid the PBGC $70 million.

The terms of the DMDA resulted in the settlement of certain obligations related to various commitments accrued as of the
transaction date under the Delphi-GM Settlement Agreements. A settlement loss of $127 million was recorded upon consummation of
the DMDA. Additional net charges of $49 million were recorded in the three months ended December 31, 2009 associated with the
DMDA. Refer to Note 20 for additional information on the Delphi-GM Settlement Agreements.

The following table summarizes the consideration provided under the DMDA and the allocation to its various elements based on
their estimated fair values (dollars in millions):

__Successor

October 6, 2009
NEL CaSh Paid . ...t $2,656
Waived advance agreements, payment terms acceleration agreement and other administrative claims .............. 966
Wind-down obligations and assumed liabilities .. ........ .. i 120
Total consideration Provided . . . ... ..t $3,742
Fair value of Nexteer and four facilities ... ... o $ 287
Fair value of Class A Membership Interests in New Delphi . ... .. i 1,912
Separately acquired assets of Delphi . . ... ..o 41
Settlement of 0bligation t0 PBGC . . . .. ..ot 387
Settlement of other obligations to Delphi .. .. ... 1,066
EXpenses of the tranSaction . . ... ... 49
Allocation of fair value to DMDA BIEMENES . . . .. ..o e $3,742

The following table summarizes the amounts allocated to the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed of Nexteer and
the four domestic facilities, which are included in the results of our GMNA segment (dollars in millions):

Successor
Total current assets, primarily accounts and notes receivable, net of $541 . .......... ... . . i i $ 854
Total non-current assets, primarily property, net of $202 (8) ... .. ..ottt 305
Total current liabilities, primarily accounts payable of $316 .. ... .. . (484)
Total non-current liabilities, primarily other liabilities and deferred incometaxes ........... ... ... . i, (374)
NONCONTIOIIING INEEIESES . . . oo e e e e e e e e e (14)
Fair value of Nexteer and four domestic facilities . ........... . i $ 287
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(@ Includes goodwill of $61 million recorded in the GMNA reporting unit that arises from the difference between the economic
value of long-term employee related liabilities and their recorded amounts at the time of acquisition and deferred taxes. The total
amount of goodwill deductible for tax purposes is expected to be $398 million. The difference between book goodwill and tax
goodwill results from different allocations for tax purposes than that utilized for book purposes.

Since we and Old GM historically accounted for a significant portion of Nexteer’s and the four domestic facilities” sales and
because we were providing subsidies to Delphi related to these facilities, the acquisition of these businesses did not have a significant
effect on our consolidated financial results as the costs associated with these facilities have been recorded as inventory costs and
recorded in Automotive cost of sales. We did not provide pro forma financial information because we do not believe this information
would be material given the intercompany nature of Nexteer and the four domestic facilities sales activity. Refer to Note 20 for
additional information on the Nexteer acquisition.

In March 2011 we sold our Class A Membership Interest in New Delphi for $3.8 billion. Refer to Note 10 for additional
information.

Saab Bankruptcy and Sale

In February 2009 Saab Automobile AB (Saab), part of our GME segment, filed for protection under the reorganization laws of
Sweden. Old GM determined that the reorganization proceeding resulted in a loss of the elements of control necessary for
consolidation and therefore Old GM deconsolidated Saab in February 2009. Old GM recorded a loss of $824 million in Other
automotive expenses, net related to the deconsolidation. The loss reflected the remeasurement of Old GM’s net investment in Saab to
its estimated fair value of $0, costs associated with commitments and obligations to suppliers and others, and a commitment to
provide up to $150 million of debtor-in-possession (DIP) financing. We acquired Old GM’s investment in Saab in connection with the
363 Sale. In August 2009 Saab exited its reorganization proceeding, and we regained the elements of control and consolidated Saab at
an insignificant fair value.

In February 2010 we completed the sale of Saab and in May 2010 we completed the sale of Saab Automobile GB to Spyker Cars
NV. Of the negotiated cash purchase price of $74 million, we received $50 million at closing and received the remainder in July 2010.
We also received preference shares in Saab with a face value of $326 million and an estimated fair value that is insignificant and
received $114 million as repayment of the DIP financing that we provided to Saab during 2009. In the year ended December 31, 2010
we recorded a gain of $123 million in Interest income and other non-operating income, net reflecting cash received of $166 million
less net assets with a book value of $43 million.

Note 5. Finance Receivables, net
Automotive Financing — GM Financial

The following table summarizes the components of Finance receivables, net (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010

Pre-acquisition finance receivables, outstanding balance . .............. ... ... ... ... ... .. $4,366 $7,724
Less: carrying amount adjustment . ... ... ... (339) (425)
Pre-acquisition finance receivables, carryingamount . ............. .. ... i 4,027 7,299
Post-acquisition finance receivables, netoffees ......... ... .. . . . i 5,314 924
Total finance receivables .. ... .. 9,341 8,223
Less: allowance for loan losses on post-acquisition finance receivables ..................... (179) (26)
Total finance receivables, NEt . . ... ..o it $9,162 $8,197
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The following table summarizes activity for finance receivables (dollars in millions):

Successor
October 1, 2010
Year Ended Through
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
Pre-acquisition finance receivables, carrying amount, beginning of period ... ................ $ 7,299 $8,231
Post-acquisition finance receivables, beginning of period .............. ... ... ... ... . ... 924 —
L0aNns PUIChASE . ...ttt 5,085 935
Charge-0ffs . .. e (66) —
Principal collections and other . ........... .. i (3,418) (765)
Change in carrying amount adjustment on the pre-acquisition finance receivables ............. (483) (178)
Balance atend of period . ......... ... $ 9,341 $8,223

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value, carrying amount and various methods and assumptions used in valuing
GM Financial’s finance receivables (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Finance receivables, Net (&) . . ... $9,162  $9,386  $8,197  $8,186

(@ The fair value is estimated based upon forecasted cash flows discounted using a pre-tax weighted-average cost of capital
(WACC). The forecast includes factors such as prepayment, defaults, recoveries and fee income assumptions.

Finance contracts are purchased by GM Financial from automobile dealers without recourse, and accordingly, the dealer has no
liability to GM Financial if the consumer defaults on the contract. Finance receivables are collateralized by vehicle titles and GM
Financial has the right to repossess the vehicle in the event the consumer defaults on the payment terms of the contract.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010 the accrual of finance charge income has been suspended on delinquent finance receivables based
on contractual amounts due of $439 million and $491 million.

GM Financial reviews its pre-acquisition portfolio for differences between contractual cash flows and the cash flows expected to be
collected from its initial investment in the pre-acquisition portfolio to determine if the difference is attributable, at least, in part to
credit quality. At December 31, 2011 as a result of improvements in the credit performance of the pre-acquisition portfolio, which
resulted in an increase of expected cash flows of $261 million, GM Financial transferred the excess non-accretable discount to
accretable yield. GM Financial will recognize this excess as finance charge income over the remaining life of the portfolio.

The following table summarizes accretable yield (dollars in millions):

Successor
October 1, 2010
Year Ended Through
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010

Balance at beginning of period . ... i $1,201 $1,436
Accretion of accretable yield . ... . e (725) (235)
Transfer from non-accretable diSCOUNt .. .. .. . it e 261 —
Balance atend of period . ........ ... $ 737 $1,201
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The following table summarizes activity for the allowance for post-acquisition loan losses (dollars in millions):

Successor
October 1, 2010
Year Ended Through
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
Balance at beginning of period . ... .. $ 26 $—
Provision for 10an [0SSeS . . .. ..ot e 178 26
Charge-0fTS . .o (66) —
ROV . .ottt e 41 =
Balance atend of period . ... $179 $26
Credit Quality

Credit bureau scores, generally referred to as FICO scores, are determined during GM Financial’s automotive loan origination
process. The following table summarizes the credit risk profile of finance receivables by FICO score band, determined at origination
(dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
FICO score less than 540 . .. ... it e $2,133 $1,328
FICO score 54010 599 . ... o 4,167 3,396
FICO score 600 10 659 .. ... i 2,624 2,758
FICO score greater than 660 . . . ... ...t 756 1,166
Balance at end of period (8) .. ... ..ot $9,680 $8,648

(@) Balance at end of period is the sum of pre-acquisition finance receivables — outstanding balance and post-acquisition finance
receivables, net of fees.

Delinquency

The following summarizes the contractual amount of finance receivables, which is not materially different than the recorded
investment, more than 30 days delinquent, but not yet in repossession, and in repossession, but not yet charged off (dollars in
millions):

Successor
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Percent of Percent of
Contractual Contractual

Amount Amount Due Amount Amount Due

Delinquent contracts

BL-0-60 AYS . o o v v $517 5.3% $535 6.2%
Greater-than-60 days . ... ..ottt 182 1.9% 212 2.4%
Total finance receivables more than 30 days delinquent . ............ ... . ... ..... 699 7.2% 747 8.6%
[N PEPOSSESSION o ettt 27 0.3% 28 0.3%
Total finance receivables more than 30 days delinquent and in repossession .......... $726 7.5% $775 8.9%

An account is considered delinquent if a substantial portion of a scheduled payment has not been received by the date such payment
was contractually due. Delinquencies may vary from period to period based upon the average age of the portfolio, seasonality within
the calendar year and economic factors.
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Note 6. Securitizations

Automotive Financing — GM Financial

The following table summarizes securitization activity and cash flows from consolidated SPEs used for securitizations (dollars in

millions):

Receivables SeCUtized . ... ... o
Net proceeds from securitization ............. .. i e

Servicing Fees

Variable INterest ENtItIES . .. ..ot e

Net Distributions from Trusts

Variable INterest ENtItIES . .. ..ot e

Successor
October 1, 2010
Year Ended Through
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
$4,828 $743
$4,550 $700
$ 201 $ 46
$ 852 $216

GM Financial retains servicing responsibilities for receivables transferred to certain securitization SPEs. At December 31, 2011 and
2010 GM Financial serviced finance receivables that have been transferred to certain SPEs of $7.9 billion and $7.2 billion.

Note 7. Marketable Securities

Automotive

The following tables summarize information regarding marketable securities (dollars in millions):

Available-for-sale securities
U.S. government and agencies ............
Sovereigndebt ......... .. ... o
Certificates of deposit ..................
Corporatedebt ........................
Total available-for-sale securities ...........
Trading securities (a)
Equity ...
Sovereigndebt .......... ..
Otherdebt............... ... ... .......

Total trading securities . ...................
Total marketable securities ................

Successor
December 31, 2011

Unrealized Fair Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis

Cost Gains Losses Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
$5214 $2 $— $5216 $— $ 5,216 $—
143 — 143 — 143 _
178 — — 178 — 178 —
4566 3 4 4565 — 4,565 —
10,101 5 4 10,102 — 10,102 —
39 — 5 34 34 — -
5,951 18 33 5,936 — 5,936 —
o1 2 76 — 76 —
6,067 19 40 6046 34 6,012 —
$16,168 $24 $44  $16,148 $34 $16,114 $—

(@) Unrealized gains/losses on trading securities are primarily related to remeasurement of CAD denominated securities.
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Successor
December 31, 2010
Unrealized Fair Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis
Cost Gains Losses Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Available-for-sale securities
U.S. government and agencies. . .......... $2,023 $N $N  $2,023 $N $2,023 $KN
Sovereigndebt ............ ... ..., 773 N N 773 N 773 N
Certificates of deposit. .. ................. 954 N N 954 N 954 N
Corporatedebt . ........................ 1670 1 2 1669 N 1,669 N
Total available-for-sale securities. . .......... 5,420 1 2 5,419 N 5,419 N
Trading securities
EQUItY . ..ot 34 5 1 38 21 17 N
Sovereigndebt . .......... .. ... 28 4 N 32 N 32 N
Otherdebt .......... ... . 67 1 2 66 N 66 N
Total trading securities. .. .................. 129 10 3 136 21 115 L N
Total marketable securities. .. .............. $5,549 ﬂl i 5 $5,555 $21 $5,534 $N
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Note 9. Equipment on Operating Leases, net
Automotive
Equipment on operating leases, net is comprised of vehicle sales to daily rental car companies and to retail customers.

The following table summarizes information related to Equipment on operating leases, net (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010

Equipment on operating [€aSes . . . ... .. o $2,691 $2,843
Less: accumulated depreciation . ... ... i (227) (275)
Equipment on operating [eases, Net . . ... ..ot e $2,464 $2,568

The following table summarizes depreciation expense and impairment charges related to Equipment on operating leases, net
(dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Depreciation eXPENSE . . . v oo $431 $500 $568 $275
Impairmentcharges . ... $151 $ 49 $ 18 $ 63

The following tables summarize leased vehicles measured at fair value (all of which utilized Level 3 inputs) on a nonrecurring basis
subsequent to initial recognition (dollars in millions):

Successor

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets
for Identical Significant Other Significant
Fair Value Range Assets Observable Inputs  Unobservable Inputs
of Measures (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Year ended December 31,2011 .. ...t $200-922 $ — $ — $200-922
Year ended December 31,2010 .. ...t $537-668 $ — $ — $537-668
Period July 10, 2009 through December 31,2009 . ......... $543-567 $ — $ — $543-567
Predecessor

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets
for Identical Significant Other Significant
Fair Value Range Assets Observable Inputs  Unobservable Inputs
of Measures (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Period January 1, 2009 through July 9,2009 .............. $539-2,057 $ — $ — $539-2,057

Fair value measurements of vehicles leased to rental car companies utilized projected cash flows from anticipated future auction
proceeds. Fair value measurements of automotive retail leases utilized discounted projected cash flows from lease payments and
anticipated future auction proceeds.
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Automotive Financing — GM Financial

GM Financial originates leases in the U.S. and Canada that are recorded as operating leases. A Canadian subsidiary of GM
Financial originates and sells leases to a third party with servicing retained. At December 31, 2011 this subsidiary was servicing
leased vehicles of $1.0 billion for this third-party.

The following table summarizes equipment on operating leases, net (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31, 2011
Equipment on operating leases — leased VEhiCleS . . ... ... $ 860
Less: accumulated depreCiation ... ... ... o (75)
Equipment on operating [6ases, Net ... ... . i e $ 785
The following table summarizes depreciation expense related to equipment on operating leases, net (dollars in millions):
Successor
Year Ended
December 31, 2011
DeEPreCiation EXPENSE . . . .ttt e e $ 70

The following table summarizes minimum rental payments due to GM Financial as lessor under operating leases (dollars in
millions):

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Minimum rental receipts under operating 1ases . .............. it $153 $147 $100 $36 $5

Note 10. Equity in Net Assets of Nonconsolidated Affiliates
Automotive

Nonconsolidated affiliates are entities in which an equity ownership interest is maintained and for which the equity method of
accounting is used, due to the ability to exert significant influence over decisions relating to their operating and financial affairs.

The following tables summarizes information regarding equity in income (loss), net of tax and gain on disposal of investments and
disposition of interest in nonconsolidated affiliates (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Ally Financial ........ ... $(1,097)
Gain on conversion of UST Ally Financial Loan ........... 2,477
Total equity in income of and disposition of interest in Ally
Financial ......... ... ... . .. .. .. $ 1,380
ChinadVs . ... $1,511 $1,297 $460 $ 300
New Delphi (including gain on disposition) ............... 1,727 117 D —
Others ..o (46) 24 38 (239)
Total equity income, net of tax and gain on disposal of
iNVeStMENtS .. ... ... .. $3,192 $1,438 $497 $ 61
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We received dividends from nonconsolidated affiliates of $1.2 billion, $685 million and $134 million in the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 and the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009, and Old GM received dividends of $220
million in the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009. At December 31, 2011 we had undistributed earnings including dividends
declared but not received, of $1.6 billion related to our nonconsolidated affiliates.

Investment in China JVs

The following table summarizes our direct ownership interests in our Chinese joint ventures, collectively referred to as China JVs:

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010

Shanghai General Motors Co., Ltd. (SGM) . ... .. 49% 49%
Shanghai GM Norsom Motor Co., Ltd. (SGM Norsom) ............cc .. 25% 25%
Shanghai GM Dong Yue Motors Co., Ltd. (SGM DY) ... 25% 25%
Shanghai GM Dong Yue Powertrain (SGM DYPT) . ... ..o 25% 25%
SAIC-GM-Wuling Automobile Co., Ltd. (SGMW) .. ... . 44% 44%
FAW-GM Light Duty Commercial Vehicle Co., Ltd. (FAW-GM) .......... ... ... ... ...... 50% 50%
Pan Asia Technical Automotive Center Co., Ltd. . ......... ..o i 50% 50%
Shanghai OnStar Telematics Co., Ltd. (Shanghai OnStar) ............. ... ... .. 40% 40%
Shanghai Chengxin Used Car Operation and Management Co., Ltd. (Shanghai Chengxin Used

O 33% 33%
SAIC General Motors Sales Co., Ltd. (SGMS) . ... .. 49%

Sales and income of our China JVs are not consolidated into our financial statements; rather, our proportionate share of the earnings
of each joint venture is reflected as Equity income, net of tax and gain on disposal of investments.

SGM is a joint venture established in 1997 by SAIC (51%) and us (49%). SGM has interests in three other joint ventures in China:
SGM Norsom, SGM DY and SGM DYPT. These three joint ventures are jointly held by SGM (50%), SAIC (25%) and us (25%).
These four joint ventures are engaged in the production, import, and sale of a comprehensive range of products under the brands of
Buick, Chevrolet and Cadillac. SGM also has interests in Shanghai OnStar (20%) and Shanghai Chengxin Used Car (33%).

SGMS is a joint venture established in November 2011 by SAIC (51%) and us (49%) to engage in the sales of the imported brands
of Buick, Chevrolet and Cadillac and the sales of automobiles manufactured by SGM.

In February 2010 we sold a 1% ownership interest in SGM to SAIC-HK, reducing our ownership interest to 49%. The sale of the
1% ownership interest to SAIC was predicated on our ability to work with SAIC to obtain a $400 million line of credit from a
commercial bank to us. We also received a call option to repurchase the 1% which is contingently exercisable based on events which
we do not unilaterally control. As part of the loan arrangement SAIC provided a commitment whereby, in the event of default, SAIC
will purchase the ownership interest in SGM that we pledged as collateral for the loan. We recorded an insignificant gain on this
transaction.

In November 2010 we purchased an additional 10% interest in SGMW from the Liuzhou Wuling Motors Co., Ltd. and Liuzhou
Mini Vehicles Factory, collectively the Wuling Group, for cash of $52 million plus an agreement to provide technical services to the
Wuling Group for a period of three years. As a result of this transaction we own 44%, SAIC owns 50.1% and certain Liuzhou
investors own 5.9% of the outstanding stock of SGMW.

Sale of New Delphi

In March 2011 we sold our Class A Membership Interests in New Delphi to New Delphi for $3.8 billion. The Class A Membership
Interests sold represented 100% of our direct and indirect interests in New Delphi and 100% of New Delphi’s Class A Membership
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Interests issued and outstanding. The sale terminated any direct and indirect obligation to loan New Delphi up to $500 million under a
term loan facility established in October 2009 when New Delphi was created and the Class A Membership Interests were issued. New
Delphi had not borrowed under this loan facility. In March 2011 we recorded a gain of $1.6 billion related to the sale in Equity

income, net of tax and gain on disposal of investments. Our existing supply contracts with New Delphi were not affected by this
transaction.

Impairment of Investment in HKJV

In March 2011 there was a change in the local tax regulations which significantly extended the period of time over which GM India
will receive certain value added tax based investment incentives. The delay in recovery of these incentives significantly affected GM
India’s cash flow and earnings before interest and income taxes forecasts, resulting in a decrease in the fair value of HKJV. The fair
value of our investment in HKJV at March 31, 2011 was determined to be $112 million compared to a carrying amount of $151
million. The loss in value was determined to be other than temporary and, therefore, we recorded an impairment charge of $39 million
in the three months ended March 31, 2011. In addition we recorded other charges totaling $67 million related to our investment in the
HKJV in the three months ended March 31, 2011. Refer to Note 4 for additional information related to HKJV.

VMM Deconsolidation

In June 2011 we entered into a new shareholder agreement with Fiat Powertrain Technologies SPA related to VM Motori (VMM)
in Italy. Under the new shareholder agreement, we retain 50% ownership but no longer have control. Accordingly, we removed the
assets and liabilities of VMM, which included allocated goodwill of $36 million from our GME reporting unit, from our consolidated
balance sheets and recorded an equity interest in the amount of $46 million.

Investment in and Summarized Financial Data of Nonconsolidated Affiliates

The following table summarizes the carrying amount of investments in nonconsolidated affiliates (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
ChiNA VS o $6,452 $6,133
NEW DeIPNI . .. — 2,043
Other INVESIMENTS . . . ..o e e e e e 338 353
Total equity in net assets of nonconsolidated affiliates .................................. $6,790 $8,529

At December 31, 2011 and 2010 the carrying amount of our investments in certain joint ventures exceeded our share of the
underlying net assets by $3.8 billion. These differences are primarily related to the application of fresh-start reporting, of which $3.3
billion was allocated to goodwill and the remainder was allocated to the underlying assets and liabilities, primarily intangibles, and are
being amortized over their useful lives.
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The following table presents summarized financial data for all of our nonconsolidated affiliates, excluding Ally Financial (dollars in

millions):

Successor
China JVs Others Total China JVs Others Total
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2011 2011 2011 2010 2010 2010
Summarized Balance Sheet Data
Currentassets ............c. i, $10,882 $2,274 $13,156 $ 9,689 $ 9,708 $19,397
Non-currentassets . . .......... ... 5,293 1,863 7,156 4,147 5,001 9,148
Total @ssets . ... $16,175 $4,137 $20,312 $13,836 $14,709 $28,545
Current liabilities ......................... $10,526 $1,492 $12,018 $ 8,931 $ 4,745 $13,676
Non-current liabilities ...................... 651 934 1,585 580 2,232 2,812
Total liabilities ........................... $11,177 $2,426 $13,603 $ 9,511 $ 6,977 $16,488
Non-controlling interests . .................. $ 948 $ — $ 948 $ 766 $ 474 $ 1,240
Successor
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

Summarized Operating Data
ChinaJV’snetsales ............c i,
Others’ netsales . ...t e

Total netsales . .......... i

ChinaJV’snetincome ......... ... ..o i,
Others’ netincome (10SS) . ...

Total NELINCOME .. ..ot

December 31, 2011

December 31, 2010

December 31, 2009 (a)

$30,511
4,242

$34,753
$ 3,203

(13)
$ 3,190

$25,395
17,500

$42,895

$ 2,808
656

$ 3,464

$18,098
7,457

$25,555

$ 1,636
161

$ 1,797

(@) Summarized financial information is not included for a joint venture which remained with MLC at July 9, 2009. Old GM
recognized an equity loss of $243 million in the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009.

Transactions with Nonconsolidated Affiliates

Nonconsolidated affiliates are involved in various aspects of the development, production and marketing of cars, trucks and
automobile parts, and we purchase component parts and vehicles from certain nonconsolidated affiliates for resale to dealers. The
following tables summarize the effects of transactions with nonconsolidated affiliates, excluding transactions with Ally Financial

which are disclosed in Note 28 (dollars in millions):

Results of Operations

Automotive salesandrevenue . ........... ... .
Automotive purchases, net ......... ... .. ... . ..
Automotive selling, general and administrative expense ........
Automotive interest eXpense .. ...
Interest income and other non-operating income (expense), net . . .

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31, 2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
$3,266 $2,910 $ 899 $596
$1,044 $2,881 $1,190 $737
$ 16 $ 3 $ (19) $(19)
$ 20 $ 16 $ — $ —
$ 34 $ 43 $ 14 $ (9)
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Successor
December 31,2011 December 31,2010

Financial Position

Accounts and notes receivable, Net . ... ... $1,785 $1,618
Accounts payable (principally trade) . ... $ 342 $ 641
Deferred revenue and customer depositS . ... ... .ottt $ 150 $ 9
Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Cash Flows
Operating . .. ..o oo $3,624 $719 $538 $546
INVEStING ..ot $ (27) $(74) $(67) $ —

Ally Financial Common and Preferred Stock
GM
On July 10, 2009 we acquired the investment in Ally Financial’s common and preferred stocks in connection with the 363 Sale.

In December 2009 the United States Department of the Treasury (UST) made a capital contribution to Ally Financial of $3.8
billion. The UST also exchanged all of its existing Ally Financial non-convertible preferred stock for mandatory convertible preferred
securities valued at $5.3 billion and converted mandatory convertible preferred securities valued at $3.0 billion into Ally Financial
common stock. These actions resulted in the dilution of our investment in Ally Financial common stock from 24.5% to 16.6%, of
which 6.7% was held directly and 9.9% was held indirectly through an independent trust.

In December 2010 the UST agreed to convert 110 million shares of preferred securities into 532 thousand shares of common stock.
This resulted in the dilution of our investment in Ally Financial common stock from 16.6% to 9.9%, of which 4.0% was held directly
and 5.9% was held indirectly through an independent trust. In May 2011 we transferred the 4.0% of shares we owned directly to the
independent trust. In December 2011, in response to a letter from the trustee requesting that the life of the trust be extended, the
Federal Reserve agreed to extend the trust from December 2011 to December 2013. Pursuant to previous commitments to reduce
influence over and ownership in Ally Financial, the trustee, who is independent of us, has the sole authority to vote and is required to
dispose of all Ally Financial common stock held in the trust by December 24, 2013. We can cause the trustee to return any Ally
Financial common stock to us to hold directly, so long as our directly held voting and total common equity interests remain below
10.0%. At December 31, 2011 and 2010 our equity ownership in Ally Financial was 9.9%.

Fair Value and Impairment of Ally Financial Common and Preferred Stock

We estimated the fair value of Ally Financial common stock using a market approach that applies the average price to tangible
book value multiples of comparable companies to the consolidated Ally Financial tangible book value. The significant inputs used in
our fair value analyses included Ally Financial’s December 31, 2011 and 2010 financial statements, financial statements and price to
tangible book value multiples of comparable companies in the banking and finance industry, and the effects of certain Ally Financial
Shareholder rights described below. The measurement of Ally Financial common stock is a Level 3 fair value measurement.

At December 31, 2011 we determined the carrying amount of our investment in Ally Financial common stock exceeded our
estimate of its fair value. Our current estimate of fair value results from broader macroeconomic uncertainties and volatility in the
financial markets including the eurozone debt crisis, continued heightened risk of recession and concerns about Ally Financial’s
mortgage related operations. Our estimate considered the potential effect of contractual provisions held by the UST who may receive
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incremental ownership interest in Ally Financial depending upon Ally Financial’s equity value at the time of a successful public
offering or private sale. These contractual provisions could result in significant dilution of our ownership interest. Based on an
evaluation of the duration and severity of this decline in fair value, we have concluded the impairment is other than temporary. As a
result we have recorded an impairment charge of $555 million in Interest income and other non-operating income, net to reduce our
investment to its current estimated fair value of $403 million.

In March 2011 our investment in Ally Financial preferred stock was sold through a public offering for net proceeds of $1.0 billion.
The gain of $0.3 billion related to the sale was recorded in Interest income and other non-operating income, net.

We calculated the fair value of our investment in Ally Financial preferred stock as of December 31, 2010 using a discounted cash
flow approach. The present value of the cash flows was determined using assumptions regarding the expected receipt of dividends on
Ally Financial preferred stock and the expected call date.

The following table summarizes the carrying amount and estimated fair value of Ally Financial common and preferred stock
(dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010

Common stock

Carrying amouUNt .. ...t $403 $ 964
Fairvalue . ... .o $403 $1,031
Preferred stock

Carrying amouUNt .. ...t $ 665
Fairvalue . ... .o $1,055

At December 31, 2009 we determined that indicators were present that suggested our investments in Ally Financial common and
preferred stock could be impaired. Such indicators included the continuing deterioration in Ally Financial’s mortgage operations, as
evidenced by the strategic actions Ally Financial took in December 2009 to position itself to sell certain mortgage assets. These
actions resulted in Ally Financial recording an increase in its provision for loan losses of $2.4 billion in the three months ended
December 31, 2009. These indicators also included Ally Financial’s receipt of $3.8 billion of additional financial support from the
UST on December 30, 2009. As a result of these impairment indicators, we evaluated the fair value of our investments in Ally
Financial common and preferred stock and recorded an impairment charge of $270 million related to our Ally Financial common
stock to record the investment at its estimated fair value of $970 million.

Old GM

In January 2009 Old GM received a loan from the UST to purchase 190,921 Class B Common Membership Interests in Ally
Financial. The UST had the option to convert outstanding amounts under the loan into a maximum of 190,921 shares of Ally
Financial’s Class B Common Membership Interests on a pro rata basis. In May 2009 the UST exercised this option, the outstanding
principal and interest under the loan was extinguished, and Old GM recorded a net gain of $483 million. The net gain was comprised
of a gain on the disposition of Ally Financial Common Membership Interests of $2.5 billion recorded in Equity in income of and
disposition of interest in Ally Financial and a loss on extinguishment of the loan of $2.0 billion recorded in Loss on extinguishment of
debt. After the exchange, Old GM’s ownership was reduced to 24.5% of Ally Financial’s Common Membership Interests.

Ally Financial converted its status to a C corporation effective June 30, 2009. At that date, Old GM began to account for its
investment in Ally Financial using the cost method rather than the equity method as Old GM could not exercise significant influence
over Ally Financial. Prior to converting to a C corporation, Old GM’s investment in Ally Financial was accounted for in a manner
similar to an investment in a limited liability partnership and the equity method was applied because Old GM’s influence was more
than minor. In connection with Ally Financial’s conversion into a C corporation, each unit of each class of Ally Financial Membership
Interests was converted into shares of capital stock of Ally Financial with substantially the same rights and preferences as such
Membership Interests.
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The following table summarizes financial information of Ally Financial for the period Ally Financial was accounted for as a
nonconsolidated affiliate (dollars in millions):

Six Months
Ended
June 30, 2009

Consolidated Statement of Income (Loss)
Total financing revenue and other INterest INCOME . . .. ... it e e e $ 6,916
TOtal NSt B PN & . . ottt ettt e e e e $ 3,936
Depreciation expense on operating 16ase @SSEtS . . . ... vt vttt $ 2,113
Gain on extinguishment of debt . . ... .. $ 657
TOtal OtNEr TEVENUE . . o o vttt ettt e e et e e e e e e $ 2,117
TOtal NONI NSt EX PN . . . ottt ettt e et et e e e e $ 3,381
Loss from continuing operations before iNCOME taX EXPENSE . . ... v vttt e e e $(2,260)
Income tax expense from continuing OPerationS . ... ... ..ttt e $ 972
Net [0ss from ContinUINg OPerationNS . ... ... .. it e e e e $(3,232)
Loss from discontinued operations, Net Of taxX .. ....... ... o i $(1,346)
N I0SS . v ottt $(4,578)

Ally Financial — Preferred and Common Membership Interests

The following table summarizes the activity with respect to the investment in Ally Financial Common and Preferred Membership
Interests for the period Ally Financial was accounted for as a nonconsolidated affiliate (dollars in millions):

Predecessor
Ally Financial Ally Financial
Common Preferred
Membership Interests Membership Interests
Balance at January 1, 2009 . ... ... $ 491 $43
Old GM’s proportionate share of Ally Financial’s 10sses (8) ... ..., (1,130) @)
Investment in Ally Financial Common Membership Interests . . ....................... 884 —
Gain on disposition of Ally Financial Common Membership Interests .. ................ 2,477 —
Conversion of Ally Financial Common Membership Interests ........................ (2,885) —
Other, primarily accumulated other comprehensive loss .......... ... ... ... ... .. ... 163 —
Balance at June 30, 2009 . . ... $ — $36

(@) Due to impairment charges and Old GM’s proportionate share of Ally Financial’s losses, the carrying amount of Old GM’s
investments in Ally Financial Common Membership Interests was reduced to $0. Old GM recorded its proportionate share of
Ally Financial’s remaining losses to its investment in Ally Financial Preferred Membership Interests.
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Note 11. Property, net
Automotive

The following table summarizes the components of Property, net (dollars in millions):

Successor
Estimated
Useful Lives December 31, December 31,
(Years) 2011 2010

LaNd — $ 2,496 $ 2,536
Buildings and improvements .. ... .. ot 5-40 4,670 4,324
Machinery and eqUIPMENt ... ot 3-27 10,651 8,727
CONSLIUCTION TN PrOGIESS .« o v vttt ettt e e e et et e e e e — 3,068 1,754
Real estate, plants, and equIpmMEeNt . .. ... .. 20,885 17,341
Less: accumulated depreciation .. ........ .. i (4,601) (3,277)
Real estate, plants, and equipment, Net . .. ... .. o e 16,284 14,064
Special tools, Net . . ... o 1-15 6,673 5171
Total Property, NEt ... $22,957 $19,235

The following table summarizes the amount of interest capitalized and excluded from Automotive interest expense related to
Property, net (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Capitalized interest .................................. $91 $62 $21 $28

The following table summarizes the amount of capitalized software included in Property, net (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
Capitalized software in USe, NBt . ... ... it e $276 $287
Capitalized software in the process of being developed .. ........ ... ... ... ... ... . .. ... $111 $ 96

The following table summarizes depreciation, impairment charges and amortization expense related to Property, net, recorded in
Automotive cost of sales, Automotive selling, general and administrative expense and Other automotive expenses, net (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009

Year Ended Year Ended Through Through

December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Depreciation and amortization of long-lived assets ......... $3,596 $3,574 $2,218 $5,925
Impairment charges of long-lived assets (@) ............... 81 240 2 566

Total depreciation, impairment charges and amortization

BXPENSE et $3,677 $3,814 $2,220 $6,491
Capitalized software amortization expense (b) ............. $ 202 $ 195 $ 132 $ 136

(@ The fair value of related assets was determined to be $0 in the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 and the period from
July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009 and $0 to $85 million in the period from January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009
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measured utilizing level 3 inputs. Fair value measurements of long-lived assets utilized projected cash flows discounted at a rate
commensurate with the perceived business risks related to the assets involved.

(b) Included in Total depreciation, impairment charges and amortization expense.

Old GM initiated restructuring plans prior to the 363 Sale to reduce the total number of powertrain, stamping and assembly plants
and to eliminate certain brands and nameplates. In addition, MLC retained certain assets that we did not acquire in connection with
the 363 Sale and were deemed not to have a useful life beyond July 9, 2009. Old GM recorded incremental depreciation and
amortization on certain of these assets as they were expected to be utilized over a shorter period of time than their previously
estimated useful lives. We record incremental depreciation and amortization for changes in useful lives subsequent to the initial
determination. Old GM recorded incremental depreciation and amortization of approximately $2.8 billion in the period January 1,
2009 through July 9, 2009.

Note 12. Goodwill

Consolidated

The following table summarizes the changes in the carrying amounts of Goodwill (dollars in millions):

Successor
Total GM
GMNA GME GMIO GMSA Automotive Financial Total
Balance atJanuary 1,2010 . ... $26,409 $3,335 $771 $157 $30672 $ — $30,672
Reporting unit reorganization ........... ... .. ... .. ... ... — (82) 82 — — — —
Goodwillacquired (&) ... ... — — — — — 1,265 1,265
Disposals . ... 17) — 2 — (19) — (19)

Effect of foreign currency translation and other .. ........... 2 (200) 50 8 (140) — (140)
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(c) GME amounts at January 1, 2011 and March 31, 2011 are 2011 through 2015 and GME amounts at December 31, 2011 are 2012
through 2016. All others amounts are 2012 through 2015.

During our Step 2 analyses we determined the fair values of these reporting units had not increased sufficiently to give rise to
implied goodwill other than the goodwill arising from the fair value-to-U.S. GAAP differences attributable to those assets and
liabilities that gave rise to goodwill upon application of fresh-start reporting. On certain of our testing dates our Step 2 analyses
indicated GME’s, GM Korea’s and Holden’s implied goodwill was less than their recorded goodwill; therefore, goodwill was adjusted
at various dates in the year ended December 31, 2011.

Future goodwill impairments that may be material could be recognized should the recent economic uncertainty continue, our equity
price decline on a sustained basis, global economies enter into another recession and industry growth stagnates, or should we release
deferred tax asset valuation allowances in certain tax jurisdictions (which could occur in the near future if additional positive evidence
becomes available).

In these circumstances future goodwill impairments would largely be affected by decreases in the fair value-to-U.S.-GAAP
differences that have occurred subsequent to our application of fresh-start reporting. The decrease may occur upon; (1) an
improvement in our credit rating; (2) a decrease in credit spreads between high quality corporate bond rates and market interest rates
thus resulting in a decrease in the spread between our employee benefit related obligations under U.S. GAAP and their fair values;
and/or (3) a change in the fair values of our estimated employee benefit obligations. A decrease would also occur upon reversal of our
deferred tax asset valuation allowances. Any declines would have a negative effect on our earnings that could be material.

Our fair value estimates for annual and event-driven impairment tests assume the achievement of the future financial results
contemplated in our forecasted cash flows and there can be no assurance that we will realize that value. The estimates and

assumptions used are subject to significant uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control, and there is no assurance that
anticipated financial results will be achieved.

Note 13. Intangible Assets, net
Automotive

The following table summarizes the components of Intangible assets, net (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Remaining Remaining
Amortization Gross Net  Amortization Gross Net
Period Carrying Accumulated Carrying Period Carrying Accumulated Carrying
(Years) Amount Amortization Amount (Years) Amount Amortization Amount
Technology and intellectual property ......... 3 $ 7,749 $5080 $ 2,669 3 $ 7,751 $3,650 $ 4,101
Brands . ....... .. 36 5,408 372 5,036 37 5,439 222 5,217
Dealer network and customer relationships . ... 20 2,134 318 1,816 20 2,172 199 1,973
Favorable contracts ....................... 30 514 200 314 26 526 120 406
Other . ... o 1 17 14 3 2 19 9 10
Total amortizing intangible assets ........... 24 15,822 5,984 9,838 21 15,907 4,200 11,707
Non amortizing in process research and
development ........... ... L 175 — 175 175 — 175
Total intangible assets .. ................... $15,997 $5,984 $10,013 $16,082 $4,200 $11,882
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The following table summarizes the amortization expense related to intangible assets (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended Year Ended July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
December 31, December 31, Through Through
2011 2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Amortization expense related to intangible assets ................. $1,799 $2,560 $1,584 $44

The following table summarizes estimated amortization expense related to intangible assets in each of the next five years (dollars in
millions):

Estimated

Amortization

Expense

2002 e e $1,561
0 $1,228
200 $ 611
200D L e $ 313
0 $ 314

Note 14. Restricted Cash and Marketable Securities

Cash and marketable securities subject to contractual restrictions and not readily available are classified as Restricted cash and
marketable securities. Restricted cash and marketable securities are invested in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreements.

Automotive

At December 31, 2011 and 2010 we held securities of $0.6 billion and $1.5 billion that were classified as Restricted cash and
marketable securities. Refer to Note 7 for additional information on securities classified as Restricted cash and marketable securities.

The following table summarizes the components of Restricted cash and marketable securities (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010

Current

Canadian Health Care Trust (HCT) (8) . . .« v oo oottt e $ — $1,008
Other (D) .o 206 232
Total current restricted cash and marketable securities . ............ ... .. . ... 206 1,240
Non-current

Collateral for insurance related activities . . ...t 407 588
Other (D) oo 505 572
Total non-current restricted cash and marketable securities ... .......... . ... 912 1,160
Total restricted cash and marketable securities . . ... $1,118 $2,400

(@) Under the terms of an escrow agreement between General Motors of Canada Limited (GMCL), the Export Development Canada
(EDC) and an escrow agent, GMCL established an $893 million escrow to fund certain of its healthcare obligations. In the year
ended December 31, 2011 $772 million of the escrow funds were used to fund the healthcare obligations and the escrow
arrangement was terminated. The remaining funds held in escrow of $225 million were no longer subject to restrictions and were
released to us.

(b) Includes amounts related to various letters of credit, deposits, escrows and other cash collateral requirements.
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Automotive Financing — GM Financial

The following table summarizes the components of Restricted cash (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
Securitization notes payable and credit facilities .......... ... .. ... . $1,056 $1,057
OFNEr (B) oo v et e 59 33
Total restricted Cash . ... .. ot $1,115 $1,090

(@) Pledged in association with derivative transactions and cash collections related to leases serviced for a third party.
Note 15. Variable Interest Entities

Consolidated VIEs

Automotive

VIEs that we do not control through a majority voting interest that are consolidated because we are the primary beneficiary include
certain vehicle assembling, manufacturing, and selling venture arrangements, the most significant of which is GM Egypt. We
consolidated GM Egypt in January 2010 in connection with our adoption of amendments to ASC 810, “Consolidation”. GM Egypt, a
31% owned operating entity, assembles and manufactures vehicles. Certain voting and other rights permit us to direct those activities
of GM Egypt that most significantly affect its economic performance. At December 31, 2011 and 2010 (1) Total assets recognized for
these consolidated VIEs were $463 million and $481 million, which were comprised of Cash and cash equivalents, Accounts and
notes receivables, net, Inventories, and Property, net; and (2) Total liabilities were $298 million and $307 million, which were
comprised of Accounts payable (principally trade), and Accrued and other liabilities. Liabilities recognized as a result of consolidating
VIEs generally do not represent claims against us or our other subsidiaries and assets recognized generally are for the benefit of the
VIEs’ operations and cannot be used to satisfy our obligations. In the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 Total net sales and
revenue recorded for these consolidated VIEs were $748 million and $753 million and Net income was $61 million and $84 million,
the most significant of which were attributable to GM Egypt. Prior to 2010, Total assets and liabilities recognized were not
significant.

GM Korea, a non-wholly owned consolidated subsidiary that we control through a majority voting interest, is also a VIE because in
the future it may require additional subordinated financial support. The creditors of GM Korea’s short-term debt of $171 million and
$70 million, current derivative liabilities of $44 million and $111 million and long-term debt of $7 million and $835 million at
December 31, 2011 and 2010 do not have recourse to our general credit. In February 2011 we provided a guarantee to a minority
shareholder in GM Korea to repurchase GM Korea’s preferred shares according to the redemption schedule should GM Korea not
repurchase the shares. This guarantee decreased the amount of long-term debt which did not have recourse to our general credit in the
year ended December 31, 2011.

Automotive Financing — GM Financial

GM Financial finances its loan and lease origination volume through the use of credit facilities and securitization trusts that issue
asset-backed securities to investors. GM Financial retains a residual interest in these entities and is not required to provide any
additional financial support to its sponsored credit facilities and securitization SPEs. The SPEs are considered VIEs because they do
not have sufficient equity at risk and are consolidated because GM Financial has the power over those activities that most significantly
affect the economic performance of the SPEs. Refer to Notes 5, 6 and 17 for additional information on GM Financial’s involvement
with the SPEs. The finance receivables, leased assets and other assets held by these subsidiaries are not available to our creditors or
creditors of our other subsidiaries.
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Nonconsolidated VIEs
Automotive

VIEs that are not consolidated include certain vehicle assembling, manufacturing, and selling venture arrangements and other
automotive related entities to which we provide financial support, including American Axle and Manufacturing Holdings, Inc.
(American Axle), Ally Financial and HKJV. We concluded these entities are VIEs because they do not have sufficient equity at risk or
will require additional subordinated financial support. We currently lack the power through voting or similar rights to direct those
activities of these entities that most significantly affect their economic performance. Our variable interests in these nonconsolidated
VIEs include accounts and notes receivable, equity in net assets, guarantees and financial support, some of which were provided to
certain current or previously divested suppliers in order to ensure that supply needs for production were not disrupted due to a
supplier’s liquidity concerns or possible shutdowns.

The following table summarizes the amounts recorded for nonconsolidated VIEs and the related off-balance sheet guarantees and
maximum exposure to loss, excluding Ally Financial that is disclosed in Note 28 (dollars in millions):

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Maximum Exposure Maximum Exposure

Carrying Amount to Loss Carrying Amount to Loss
Assets
Accounts and notes receivable,net ................... $ 1 $ 1 $108 $108
Equity in net assets of nonconsolidated affiliates .. ...... 190 186 274 274
Otherassets .........coiiiiii i 1 1 __ 60 59
Total @SSets . ... $192 $188 $442 $441
Liabilities
Accounts payable (principally trade) . ................. $ — $ — $ 1 $ —
Other liabilities . .......... .. ... .. .. ... ... 198 — 44 —
Total liabilities . ... $198 $ — 45 $ —
Off-Balance Sheet
Loan commitments ..............couiiuninnnnnnnn. $ 15 $100
Otherguarantees ..............viiininiennenn.. — 3
Other liquidity arrangements ........................ 220 223
Total guarantees and liquidity arrangements . ........... $235 $326

Refer to Notes 10 and 28 for additional information on Ally Financial, including our maximum exposure to loss under agreements
with Ally Financial and our recorded investment in Ally Financial. Refer to Notes 4 and 10 for additional information on our
investment in HKJV.
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Note 16. Accrued Liabilities and Other Liabilities and Deferred Income Taxes

Automotive

The following table summarizes the components of Accrued liabilities and Other liabilities and deferred income taxes (dollars in

millions):
Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010

Current

Dealer and customer allowances, claims and discounts . ..., $ 6,820 $ 6,885
Deposits from rental car COMPANIies . ... ...ttt 4,883 5,037
DEferred rEVENUE . . . ..ottt e e e e e 1,128 1,104
Policy, product warranty and recall campaigns . ... 3,061 2,587
Payrolls and employee benefits excluding postemployment benefits ....................... 1,993 2,141
Taxes other than INCOME TAXES . . ..ottt et e e e 782 1,083
L 1 -] 4,089 5,207
Total accrued liabilities . . ... ... $22,756 $24,044
Non-current

Deferred FEVENUE . . .. oottt et e e e e e $ 1,284 $ 753
Policy, product warranty and recall campaigns .. ..........o i 3,539 4,202
Employee benefits excluding postemployment benefits .. .............. ... ... . o 1,380 1,549
Postemployment benefits including facility idling reserves .. ......... ... .. ... ... ... ... .. 1,674 1,574
Deferred INCOME taXES . . . . o .ottt e e e e e 913 1,207
131 3,546 3,736
Total other liabilities and deferred income taxes . .............. i, $12,336 $13,021

The following table summarizes activity for policy, product warranty, recall campaigns and certified used vehicle warranty

liabilities (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended Year Ended July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
December 31, December 31, Through Through
2011 2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Beginning balance .............. . ... $ 6,789 $ 7,030 $ 7,193 $ 8,491
Warranties issued and assumed inperiod . ........... . ... . ..., 3,062 3,204 1,388 1,069
PaYymMeNtS ... (3,740) (3,662) (1,797) (1,851)
Adjustments to pre-existing warranties .............. . ... ... 565 210 66 (153)
Effect of foreign currency translation ......................... (76) 7 180 63
Liability adjustment, net due to the deconsolidation of Saab (a) .. .. — — — 77
Endingbalance .. ... ... ... $ 6,600 $ 6,789 $ 7,030 7,542
Effect of application of fresh-start reporting .................... (349)
Ending balance including effect of application of fresh-start
FEPOItING . o oo $ 7,193

(@ In August 2009 Saab’s warranty liability was classified as held for sale at December 31, 2009.
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Note 17. Short-Term and Long-Term Debt
Automotive
Short-Term Debt and Long-Term Debt

The following table summarizes the components of our short-term debt and long-term debt (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010

Short-term debt

Wholesale financing (2) . ...t $ 1,081 $ 1,054
Korea mandatorily redeemable preferred shares ......... ... ... ... . . .. . .. 312 —
Capital [8aSES . . . .o e 139 129
Other short-term debt and current portion of long-termdebt .............................. 150 433
Total automotive short-term debt and current portion of long-termdebt ..................... 1,682 1,616
Long-term debt

HCT NS ottt e e e e e 1,141 —
Korea mandatorily redeemable preferred shares . ........ ... ... . . i 666 835
Capital 18aSeS . . . o 853 532
Other long-term debt (8) ... ... oo 953 1,647
Total long-term debt . ... ... 3,613 3,014
Total automotive debt (D) . ... .. i e $ 5,295 $ 4,630
Fairvalue of debt (C) .. ..ot $ 5,467 $ 4,840
Available under short-term line of creditagreements . . ........ ... $ 560 $ 445
Available under long-term line of credit agreements ................cc i $ 5,307 $ 5,474
Interest rate range on outstanding debt (d) . ....... ... . . i 0.0-19.0% 0.0-16.7%
Weighted-average interest rate on outstanding short-termdebt (d) ......................... 5.0% 5.7%
Weighted-average interest rate on outstanding long-termdebt (d) ......................... 3.6% 2.7%

(@) Includes debt obligations to Ally Financial of $1.1 billion at December 31, 2011 and 2010.
(b) Net of a $1.6 billion and $1.9 billion discount at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

(c) We determined the fair value of debt based on a discounted cash flow model which used benchmark yield curves plus a spread
that represented the yields on traded bonds of companies with comparable credit ratings and risk profiles.

(d) Includes coupon rates on debt denominated in various foreign currencies and interest free loans.

The following table summarizes our short-term and long-term debt by collateral type (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31,2010
Unsecured debt . ... ..ot $3,065 $2,011
Secured debt (8) . ... . oo 1,238 1,958
Capital 18aSeS . . . oo 992 661
Total automotive debt .. ... .. $5,295 $4,630

(@) Includes wholesale financing of dealer inventory.
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Wholesale Financing

Wholesale financing represents arrangements, primarily with Ally Financial, where cash is received in advance of the final sale of
vehicles, parts and accessories to our dealers or ultimate consumer. These obligations typically settle through the sale and delivery of
our product and generally do not require cash outflows to settle. Balances under these facilities fluctuate period to period based on the
volume of vehicles financed.

HCT Notes

As part of the establishment of the Health Care Trust (HCT) to provide retiree healthcare benefits to certain active and retired
employees in Canada, we issued notes to the HCT with a fair value of $1.1 billion in October 2011. We recorded a premium of $42
million at issuance. The notes accrue interest at an annual rate of 7.0%. The notes are due in periodic installments through 2018. We
may prepay these notes at any time. Refer to Note 18 for additional information on the HCT settlement.

Korea Preferred Shares

GM Kaorea has non-convertible mandatorily redeemable preferred shares outstanding of $978 million and $835 million at
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010. Dividends accrue at a rate of 2.5% through October 2012 at which time the rate increases
to 7.0% and remains in effect through 2017. The preferred shares are redeemable in periodic installments through 2017. In February
2011 we provided a guarantee to repurchase the preferred shares according to the redemption schedule if GM Korea does not have
sufficient legally distributable earnings to redeem the shares. GM Korea has the option to redeem the shares early provided sufficient
legally distributable earnings exist.

Secured Revolving Credit Facility

In October 2010 we entered into a five year, $5.0 billion secured revolving credit facility which includes a letter of credit
sub-facility of up to $500 million. Additionally, we can use collateral under the revolving credit facility to support up to $2.0 billion
of other obligations. While we do not believe that we will draw on the secured revolving credit facility to fund operating activities, the
facility is expected to provide additional liquidity and financing flexibility. Availability under the secured revolving credit facility is
subject to borrowing base restrictions.

Our obligations under the secured revolving credit facility are guaranteed by certain of our domestic subsidiaries and by
substantially all of our domestic assets, including accounts receivable, inventory, property, plants, and equipment, real estate,
intercompany loans, intellectual property and trademarks. Obligations are also secured by the equity interests in certain of our direct
domestic subsidiaries, as well as up to 65% of the voting equity interests in certain of our direct foreign subsidiaries, in each case,
subject to certain exceptions. The collateral securing the secured revolving credit facility does not include, among other assets, cash,
cash equivalents, marketable securities, as well as our investment in GM Financial and our equity interests in our China JVs and in
GM Korea. If we receive an investment grade corporate rating from two or more of the credit rating agencies: Fitch Ratings, Moody’s
Investor Service and Standard & Poor’s, we may no longer have to post collateral under the terms of the facility.

Interest rates on obligations under the secured revolving credit facility are based on prevailing per annum interest rates for
Eurodollar loans or an alternative base rate plus an applicable margin, in each case, based upon the credit rating assigned to the debt
evidenced by the secured revolving credit facility.

UST Credit Agreement

On July 10, 2009 we entered into a loan agreement with the UST, as amended (UST Credit Agreement) and assumed debt of $7.1
billion maturing on July 10, 2015 which Old GM incurred under its secured superpriority debtor-in-possession credit agreement with
the UST and EDC (DIP Facility). In April 2010 we repaid the full outstanding amount of $4.7 billion using funds from our escrow
account. Amounts repaid under the agreement may not be reborrowed.
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While we have repaid the loans from the UST in full, certain of the covenants in the UST Credit Agreement and the executive
compensation and corporate governance provisions of Section 111 of the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008, as
amended, including the Interim Final Rule implementing Section 111 (the Interim Final Rule), remain in effect until the earlier to
occur of the UST ceasing to own direct or indirect equity interests in us or our ceasing to be a recipient of exceptional financial
assistance, as determined pursuant to the Interim Final Rule, and impose obligations on us with respect to, among other things, certain
expense policies, executive privileges and compensation requirements.

VEBA Notes

In 2009 in connection with the 363 Sale, we entered into the VEBA Note Agreement and issued notes (VEBA Notes) of $2.5 billion
to the UAW Retiree Medical Benefits Trust (New VEBA). The VEBA Notes had an implied interest rate of 9.0% per annum. In
October 2010 we repaid in full the outstanding amount (together with accreted interest thereon) of the VEBA Notes of $2.8 billion,
which resulted in a gain of $198 million included in Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt.

Canadian Loan Agreement and EDC Loan Facility

On July 10, 2009 we entered into the amended and restated loan agreement with the EDC and assumed a $1.3 billion term loan
(Canadian Loan) from the EDC under a loan and security agreement entered into in April 2009 (EDC Loan Facility) maturing on
July 10, 2015. In March 2010 and December 2009 we made quarterly payments of $194 million and $192 million on the Canadian
Loan. In April 2010 we repaid in full the outstanding amount of the Canadian Loan of $1.1 billion. Amounts repaid under the
agreement may not be reborrowed.

Technical Defaults and Covenant Violations

Several of our loan facilities, including our secured revolving credit facility require compliance with certain financial and
operational covenants as well as regular reporting to lenders, including providing certain subsidiary financial statements. Failure to
meet certain of these requirements may result in a covenant violation or an event of default depending on the terms of the agreement.
An event of default may allow lenders to declare amounts outstanding under these agreements immediately due and payable, to
enforce their interests against collateral pledged under these agreements or restrict our ability to obtain additional borrowings. No
technical defaults or covenant violations existed at December 31, 2011.

Automotive Financing — GM Financial

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value, carrying amount and various methods and assumptions used in valuing
GM Financial’s debt (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value (a) Amount Fair Value (a)

Credit facilities

Medium-term note facility ......... .. ... ... . .. $ 294 $ 294 $ 490 $ 490
Syndicated warehouse facility . ........... ... . 621 621 278 278
Lease funding facilities . .......... .. i 181 181 — —
Bank funding facility . .. ... . 3 3 64 64
Total credit facilities .. ... 1,099 1,099 832 832
Securitization notes payable .......... ... 6,938 6,946 6,128 6,107
Senior notes and convertible seniornotes (b) ........ ... ... 501 511 72 72
Total GM Financial debt .. ... ... $8,538 $8,556 $7,032 $7,011
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(@) Credit facilities have variable rates of interest and maturities of three years or less. The carrying amount is considered to be a
reasonable estimate of fair value. The fair values of the securitization notes payable and senior notes and convertible senior notes
are based on quoted market prices, when available. If quoted market prices are not available, the fair value is estimated by
discounting future net cash flows expected to be settled using a current risk-adjusted rate.

(b) Senior notes and convertible senior notes are included in GM Financial Other liabilities.
Senior Notes and Convertible Senior Notes

In June 2011 GM Financial issued 6.75% senior notes of $500 million which are due in June 2018 with interest payable
semiannually. In July 2011 proceeds of $71 million from this offering were used to redeem all of GM Financial’s outstanding 8.50%
senior notes due in 2015. The remaining proceeds are to be used for general corporate purposes.

As a result of the acquisition of AmeriCredit, the holders of previous senior notes and convertible senior notes had the right to
require GM Financial to repurchase some or all of their notes as provided in the indentures for such notes. During the three months
ended December 31, 2010 GM Financial repurchased convertible senior notes and senior notes of $463 million.

Credit Facilities

The following table summarizes further details regarding terms and availability of GM Financial’s credit facilities at December 31,
2011 (dollars in millions):

Successor

Restricted
Facility Advances Assets Cash

Amount Outstanding Pledged Pledged (a)
Syndicated warehouse facility (0) ............ . $2,000 $ 621 $ 821 @ $ 17
U.S. lease warehouse facility (C) ......... .o e $ 600 — — —
Canada lease warehouse facility (d) .. .......... o $ 589 181 274 1
Medium-term note facility (€) . ... 294 322 84
Bank funding facility ........ ... 3 — —

$1,099  $1,417 $102

(@) These amounts do not include cash collected on finance receivables pledged of $35 million which is included in GM Financial
Restricted cash at December 31, 2011.

(b) In February 2011 GM Financial extended the maturity date of the syndicated warehouse facility to May 2012 and increased the
borrowing capacity to $2.0 billion from $1.3 billion.

(c) InJanuary 2012 GM Financial extended the maturity date of the lease warehouse facility for lease originations in the U.S. to
January 2013. Borrowings on the facility are collateralized by leased assets.

(d) InJuly 2011 GM Financial Canada Leasing Ltd., a subsidiary of GM Financial entered into a lease warehouse facility for lease
originations in Canada that matures in July 2012. Borrowings on the facility are collateralized by leased assets. The facility
amount represents CAD $600 million at December 31, 2011.

(e) The revolving period under this facility has ended and the outstanding debt balance will be repaid over time based on the
amortization of the receivables pledged until October 2016 when any remaining amount outstanding will be due and payable.

Credit Facility Covenants

GM Financial is required to hold certain funds in restricted cash accounts to provide additional collateral for borrowings under
certain of its credit facilities. The credit facilities contain various covenants requiring minimum financial ratios, asset quality and
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portfolio performance ratios including portfolio net loss and delinquency ratios, and pool level cumulative net loss ratios, as well &
limits on deferment levels. Failure to meet any of these covenants could result in an event of default under these agreements. If
event of default occurs under these agreements, the lenders could elect to declare all amounts outstanding under these agreeme
be immediately due and payable, enforce their interests against collateral pledged under these agreements or restrict GM Financ
ability to obtain additional borrowings under this facility. At December 31, 2011 GM Financial was in compliance with all covenants
in its credit facilities. Refer to Note 14 for additional discussion on GM FinancialOs restricted cash.

Securitization Notes Payable

Securitization notes payable represents debt issued by GM Financial in securitization transactions. Debt issuance costs
amortized over the expected term of the securitizations on an effective yield basis. As a result of the acquisition, GM Financi
recorded a purchase accounting premium of $133 million that is being amortized over the expected term of the notes. /
December 31, 2011 and 2010 unamortized purchase accounting premium of $43 million and $107 million is included in Securitizatic
notes payable.

The following table summarizes Securitization notes payable (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Original
Weighted-
Original Average Total
Note Interest Receivables  Note Note
Year of Transactions Maturity Dates (a) Amounts Rates Pledged Balance Balance
2006 . ... January 2014 $ 1,200 54% $ 69 $ 63 $ 537
2007 ... October 2013 B March 2016 $1,000-1,500 5.2%-5.5% 844 794 1,610
2008 ....... ... October 2014 B April 2015 $ 500-750 6.0% -10.5% 503 171 501
2009 ....... ..., January 2016 B July 2017 $ 227-725 2.7%-7.5% 416 298 494
2010 . ... ... June 2016 b January 2018 $ 200-850 2.2%-3.8% 2,015 1,756 2,683
2011 . ... February 2017 b March 2019 $ 800-1,000 2.4%-2.9% 4,078 3,813 N/A
BV2005............... N/A N/A 28
LB2006 ............... N/A N/A 168
$7,925 6,895 6,021

Purchase accounting premiUm. . . ... .ottt e e e e e 43 107
Total securitization notes payable . . ... .. . e $6,938 $6,128

(&) Maturity dates represent final legal maturity of securitization notes payable. Securitization notes payable are expected to be p
based on amortization of the finance receivables pledged to the trusts.

At the time of securitization of finance receivables, GM Financial is required to pledge assets equal to a specified percentage of t
securitization pool to support the securitization transaction. The assets pledged consist of cash deposited to a restricted account
additional receivables delivered to the trust, which create overcollateralization. The securitization transactions require the percent:
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(@ GM Financial credit facilities and securitization notes payable are based on expected payoff date. Senior notes and convertible
senior notes principal amounts are based on maturity.

At December 31, 2011 future interest payments on automotive capital lease obligations were $755 million. GM Financial does not
have capital lease obligations at December 31, 2011.

Old GM
Secured Revolving Credit Facility, U.S. Term Loan and Secured Credit Facility

In March 2009 Old GM entered into an agreement to amend its $1.5 billion U.S. term loan. Because the terms of the amended U.S.
term loan were substantially different than the original terms, due primarily to the revised borrowing rate, Old GM accounted for the
amendment as a debt extinguishment. As a result, Old GM recorded the amended U.S. term loan at fair value and recorded a gain on
the extinguishment of the original loan facility of $906 million in the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009.

In connection with the relief sought under U.S. bankruptcy laws (Chapter 11 Proceedings), Old GM’s $4.5 billion secured
revolving credit facility, $1.5 billion U.S. term loan and $125 million secured credit facility were paid in full on June 30, 2009. Old
GM recorded a loss of $958 million in Reorganization gains, net related to the extinguishments of the debt due primarily to the face
value of the U.S. term loan exceeding the carrying amount.

Contractual interest expense not accrued or recorded on pre-petition debt was $200 million in the period January 1, 2009 through
July 9, 2009 (includes contractual interest expense related to contingent convertible debt of $44 million).

Contingent Convertible Debt

Old GM adopted the provisions of ASC 470-20, “Debt with Conversion and Other Options” (ASC 470-20) in January 2009, with
retrospective application to prior periods. At July 9, 2009 Old GM’s contingent convertible debt outstanding was $7.4 billion,
comprised of principal of $7.9 billion and unamortized discounts of $551 million. Upon adoption of ASC 470-20, the effective
interest rate on Old GM’s outstanding contingent convertible debt ranged from 7.0% to 7.9%. In connection with the 363 Sale, MLC
retained the contingent convertible debt.

The following table summarizes the components of interest expense related to contingent convertible debt (dollars in millions):

Predecessor

January 1, 2009
Through
July 9, 2009
Interest accrued OF PaId (B) . . ... oottt e $176
AMOrtization Of diSCOUNTS . . .. oo 51

ISt X PBNSE & o v\ vttt ettt et e e e e $227

(@) Contractual interest expense not accrued or recorded on pre-petition debt as a result of the Chapter 11 Proceedings totaled $44
million in the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009.
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Note 18. Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits

Consolidated

Employee Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans
Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Defined benefit pension plans covering eligible U.S. hourly employees (hired prior to October 15, 2007) and Canadian hourly
employees generally provide benefits of negotiated, stated amounts for each year of service and supplemental benefits for employees
who retire with 30 years of service before normal retirement age. Non-skilled trade hourly U.S. employees hired after October 15,
2007 participate in a defined benefit cash balance plan which was frozen on January 2, 2012 and will be terminated in 2012 subject to
regulatory approvals. In September 2010 the U.S. hourly defined benefit pension plan was amended to create a legally separate new
defined benefit pension plan for entry level participants who are covered by the cash balance benefit formula. The underlying benefits
offered to plan participants were unchanged. The benefits provided by the defined benefit pension plans covering eligible U.S. (hired
prior to January 1, 2001) and Canadian salaried employees and employees in certain other non-U.S. locations are generally based on
years of service and compensation history. There is also an unfunded nonqualified pension plan covering certain U.S. executives for
service prior to January 1, 2007, and it is based on an “excess plan” for service after that date.

In January 2012 we amended the U.S. salaried pension plan to cease the accrual of additional benefits effective September 30,
2012. Active plan participants will receive additional contributions in the defined contribution plan starting in October 2012. This
amendment will result in a curtailment, with an insignificant expense effect, and reduce the projected benefit obligation by
approximately $300 million.

Pension Contributions

The funding policy for qualified defined benefit pension plans is to contribute annually not less than the minimum required by
applicable law and regulations or to directly pay benefit payments where appropriate. At December 31, 2011 all legal funding
requirements had been met. We expect to contribute $100 million to our U.S. non-qualified plans and $740 million to our non-U.S.
pension plans in 2012.

The following table summarizes contributions made to the defined benefit pension plans or direct payments to plan beneficiaries
(dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
U.S. hourly and salaried ............................ $1,962 $4,095 $ 31 $ 57
Non-U.S. .. 836 777 4,287 529
Total ... $2,798 $4,872 $4,318 $586

We made a contribution in January 2011 to our U.S. hourly and salaried defined benefit pension plans of 61 million shares of our
common stock valued at $2.2 billion for funding purposes at the time of contribution. The contributed shares qualified as a plan asset
for funding purposes at the time of contribution and as a plan asset valued at $1.9 billion for accounting purposes in July 2011. This
was a voluntary contribution above our funding requirements for the pension plans.

Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

Certain hourly and salaried defined benefit plans provide postretirement medical, dental, legal service and life insurance to eligible
U.S. and Canadian retirees and their eligible dependents. Certain other non-U.S. subsidiaries have postretirement benefit plans,
although most non-U.S. employees are covered by government sponsored or administered programs.
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OPEB Contributions

The following table summarizes contributions to the U.S. OPEB plans (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Employer contributions ................ ... ... . $426 $651 $1,528 $1,947
Plan participants’ contributions . ...................... 13 53 172 169
Total contributions . .. ......... ... o oo $439 $704 $1,700 $2,116

For the year ended December 31, 2011 we also contributed $1.9 billion to the independent HCT consisting of restricted cash of $0.8
billion and notes payable of $1.1 billion.

Defined Contribution Plans
We have a defined contribution plan for eligible U.S. salaried employees. This plan provides discretionary matching contributions
which we instituted in October 2009. U.S. hourly employees hired after October 1, 2007 participate in a defined contribution plan.

Contributions are also made to certain non-U.S. defined contribution plans.

The following table summarizes our consolidated contributions to defined contribution plans (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Total contributions . ............ ... ... .. $297 $241 $100 $70

Significant Plan Amendments, Benefit Modifications and Related Events
Remeasurements

The change in benefit obligation for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 include interim remeasurements. For the year
ended December 31, 2010 there were no significant remeasurements, curtailments or settlements as a result of changes to the
underlying benefits offered to the plan participants.

In the three months ended September 30, 2011 a plan which provides legal services to U.S. hourly employees and retirees was
remeasured as a result of our current labor agreement provisions which terminate the plan effective December 31, 2013. The
termination has been accounted for as a negative plan amendment resulting in a decrease in the OPEB liability and a pre-tax increase
of $266 million in the prior service credit component of Accumulated other comprehensive income, which will be amortized through
December 31, 2013.

Canadian Health Care Trust

In October 2011 pursuant to a June 2009 agreement between GMCL and the CAW an independent HCT was implemented to
provide retiree healthcare benefits to certain active and retired employees. Concurrent with the implementation of the HCT, GMCL
was legally released from all obligations associated with the cost of providing retiree healthcare benefits to CAW retirees and
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surviving spouses by the class action process and to CAW active employees as of June 8, 2009. We accounted for the related
termination of CAW hourly retiree healthcare benefits as a settlement, and recorded a gain of $749 million as a component of
Automotive cost of sales. The settlement gain represents the difference between the healthcare plan obligation of $3.1 billion (as of
the implementation date) and the fair value of the notes and restricted cash contributed totaling $1.9 billion, and recognition of $414
million of accumulated other comprehensive losses.

Pension and OPEB Obligations and Plan Assets

The following tables summarize the change in benefit obligations and related plan assets (dollars in millions):

Successor
Year Ended December 31, 2011

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Pension Benefits Pension Benefits Other Benefits = Other Benefits

Change in benefit obligations

Beginning benefit obligation . .......... ... .. ... ... o $103,395 $ 24,762 $ 5,667 $ 4,252
SBIVICE COSE . .\ ottt 494 399 23 30
INtEreSt COSt . . . ..o 4,915 1,215 265 186
Plan participants’ contributions . . ........... ... .. oo — 7 13 9
AMENAMENTS . .o (6) (10) (284) 2
Actuarial 10SSeS . . ..ot 8,494 1,530 548 343
Benefits paid . ...... ... (8,730) (1,561) (439) (180)
Early retirement reinsurance program receipts . ................... — — 29 —
Foreign currency translation adjustments ........................ — (508) — (128)
Canadian healthcare trust settlement . .. .......... ... .. ... ....... — — — (3,051)
Curtailments, settlementsand other . ............ ... .. ... ....... — (69) — 31
Ending benefit obligation ............. ... .. . .. i 108,562 25,765 5,822 1,490
Change in plan assets
Beginning fair value of planassets .............. . ... . ... .. ..., 91,007 14,903 — —
Actual returnonplanassets ............ i 10,087 686 — —
Employer contributions . ........ .. ... ... . 1,962 836 426 171
Plan participants’ contributions . . ........... .. ... ... .. .., — 7 13 9
Benefitspaid ........ ... (8,730) (1,561) (439) (180)
Foreign currency translation adjustments ........................ — (258) — —
Settlements . ... ... — (34) — —
Other 23 (38) — —
Ending fair value of planassets ........... .. ... ... i, 94,349 14,541 — —
Ending funded status .............c $(14,213) $(11,224) $(5,822) $(1,490)
Amounts recorded in the consolidated balance sheets
NON-CUITENE ASSELS . . . oo vttt et ettt e $ — $ 61 $ — $ —
Current liabilities . . ... .. (99) (324) (4112) (65)
Non-current liabilities .......... ... . (14,114) (10,961) (5,411) (1,425)
Netamountrecorded . ........ ... i $(14,213) $(11,224) $(5,822) $(1,490)
Amounts recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive income

(loss)
Netactuarial 10SS .. ... ... $ (1,352) $ (2,498) $(1,003) $ (177)
Net prior service credit ... 15 19 251 76
Total recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) . . . $ (1,337) $ (2,479) $ (752) $ (101)
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Successor
Year Ended December 31, 2010

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Pension Benefits Pension Benefits Other Benefits Other Benefits

Change in benefit obligations

Beginning benefit obligation .............. . ... ... $101,571 $24,374 $ 5,788 $ 3,797
SBIVICE COSE . .ottt 451 386 21 32
INterest COSt . . .. oo 5,275 1,187 288 200
Plan participants’ contributions . . ........... ... .. oo — 7 53 9
AMENAMENTS . .o 2 (5) 3 —
Actuarial 10SSeS . . ..o 5,251 168 255 185
Benefits paid . ... (9,149) (1,447) (740) (173)
Foreign currency translation adjustments ........................ — 189 — 200
DIVESHITUIES . . oo (6) (75) 2) —
Curtailments, settlements, andother . ............ ... ... ....... — (22) 1 2
Ending benefit obligation ........... ... ... .. . . i, 103,395 24,762 5,667 4252
Change in plan assets
Beginning fair value of planassets ............................. 84,500 14,027 31 —
Actual returnonplanassets .......... ... i i 11,561 1,234 5 —
Employer contributions . ......... ... 4,095 777 651 164
Plan participants’ contributions . . ............. ... ... .. ... — 7 53 9
Benefitspaid ......... ... (9,149) (1,447) (740) (173)
Foreign currency translation adjustments ........................ — 505 — —
DIVESTIEUIES ot e — (59) — —
Settlements ... ... .. — (174) — —
O NEr = 33 — =
Ending fair value of planassets ............. ... ... i, 91,007 14,903 — —
Ending funded status . ......... .. .. $(12,388) $(9,859) $(5,667) $(4,252)
Amounts recorded in the consolidated balance sheets
NON-CUITENE ASSELS . . . oottt e e e e ettt e e e $ — $ 72 $ — $ —
Current liabilities . . .. ... .. .o (93) (332) (440) (185)
Non-current liabilities .. ......... ... . (12,295) (9,599) (5,227) (4,067)
Netamountrecorded . ......... ... $(12,388) $(9,859) $(5,667) $(4,252)
Amounts recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive income

(loss)
Net actuarial gain (10SS) . ............ it $ 3,609 $ (701) $ (460) $ (259)
Net prior service credit . ... 10 12 — 85
Total recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) . .. $ 3,619 $ (689) $ (460) $ (174)
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The following table summarizes the total accumulated benefit obligations (ABO), the fair value of plan assets for defined benefit

pension plans with ABO in excess of plan assets, and the projected benefit obligation (PBO) and fair value of plan assets for defined
benefit pension plans with PBO in excess of plan assets (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
U.S.Plans Non-U.S.Plans U.S.Plans Non-U.S. Plans

ABO . $108,195 $25,404 $103,110 $24,371
Plans with ABO in excess of plan assets

ABO $108,195 $24,687 $103,090 $23,519

Fair value of plan assets ... ...........viiiriii $ 94349  $13,738  $ 90,983  $13,959
Plans with PBO in excess of plan assets

PB O $108,562 $25,024 $103,375 $24,350

Fair value of plan assets ... ...........'riiiiii $ 94349  $13,739  $ 90,983  $14,419

The following tables summarize the components of net periodic pension and OPEB expense along with the assumptions used to
determine benefit obligations (dollars in millions).

Successor
Year Ended December 31, 2011

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Pension Benefits Pension Benefits Other Benefits = Other Benefits

Components of expense

SEIVICE COSE . v\ttt $ 632 $ 399 $ 23 $ 30
INterest COSt . . ... i 4,915 1,215 265 186
Expected returnonplanassets ............ i (6,692) (925) — —
Amortization of prior service credit .......... ... ... 2 (2) (39) 9)
Recognized net actuarial 0SS ........ ... ... . i — — 6 —
Curtailments, settlements, and other (gains) losses ................ (23) @) — (749)
Net periodic pension and OPEB (income) expense ................ $(1,170) $ 680 $ 255 $ (542)
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit
obligations

DISCOUNEFAtE . ..ottt e e e e 4.15% 4.50% 4.24% 4.37%
Rate of compensation increase ...............c.oiiiiiiiiiaa... 4.50% 3.11% 4.50% 4.20%
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net expense

DISCOUNEFAtE . ..ottt e e e e 4.96% 5.16% 5.05% 5.01%
Expected returnon plan assets .............. ... 8.00% 6.50% N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase ...............c.oiiiiiiiiiaa... 3.96% 3.25% 4.50% 4.42%
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Successor
Year Ended December 31, 2010

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Pension Benefits Pension Benefits Other Benefits Other Benefits

Components of expense

SEIVICE COSE . v\ttt $ 548 $ 386 $ 21 $ 32
INterest COSt . . ... i 5,275 1,187 288 200
Expected returnonplanassets ............ . (6,611) (987) — —
Amortization of prior service cost (credit) ....................... @ (1) 3 9)
Recognition of net actuarial loss . ............. ... ... ... . ... .... — 21 — —
Curtailments, settlements, and other losses . ...................... — 60 — —
Net periodic pension and OPEB (income) expense ................ $ (789) $ 666 $ 312 $ 223
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit
obligations

DISCOUNE At . .ottt 4.96% 5.09% 5.07% 4.97%
Rate of compensation inCcrease . ..............coviuiiniinan... 3.96% 3.25% 1.41% 4.33%
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net expense

DISCOUNE At . .ottt 5.36% 5.19% 5.57% 5.22%
Expected returnon plan assets ............... i, 8.48% 7.42% 8.50% N/A
Rate of compensation inCrease . .............. ..., 3.94% 3.25% 1.48% 4.45%

Successor
July 10, 2009 Through December 31, 2009
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

Pension Benefits Pension Benefits Other Benefits = Other Benefits

Components of expense

SEIVICE COSE . v\ttt $ 254 $ 157 $ 62 $ 17
INterest CoSt . ... ... 2,578 602 886 94
Expected returnonplanassets ............ i (3,047) (438) (432) —
Amortization of prior service cost (credit) ........... ... .. ... ... — — — @)
Curtailments, settlements, and other losses . ...................... 249 9 2,580 —
Net periodic pension and OPEB expense ........................ $ 34 $ 330 $ 3,096 $ 110
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit
obligations

DISCOUNEFAtE . ..ottt e e e e 5.52% 5.31% 5.57% 5.22%
Rate of compensation increase ...............c.oiiiiiiiiiaa... 3.94% 3.27% 1.48% 4.45%
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net expense

DISCOUNEFAtE . ..ottt e e e e 5.63% 5.82% 6.81% 5.47%
Expected returnon plan assets .............. ... 8.50% 7.97% 8.50% N/A
Rate of compensation increase ...............c.oiiiiiiiiian... 3.94% 3.23% 1.48% 4.45%

General Motors Company 2011 Annual Report 133



GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Predecessor
January 1, 2009 Through July 9, 2009

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Pension Benefits Pension Benefits Other Benefits Other Benefits

Components of expense

SEIVICE COSE . v\ttt $ 243 $ 155 $ 69 $ 12
INterest COSt . . ... i 3,077 596 1,615 102
Expected returnonplanassets ............ . (3,810) (364) (444) —
Amortization of prior service cost (credit) ....................... 429 (12) (1,051) (63)
Amortization of transition obligation ............... ... .. ... ..., — 2 — —
Recognition of netactuarial 1oss . ........... ... ... o 715 193 32 23
Curtailments, settlements, and other losses (gains) ................ 1,720 97 21 (123)
Net periodic pension and OPEB (income) expense ................ $ 2,374 $ 667 $ 242 $ (49)
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit
obligations

DISCOUNEFALE . ..ottt e e e e e 5.86% 5.82% 6.86% 5.47%
Rate of compensation inCcrease . ..............coviuiiniinan... 3.94% 3.23% 1.48% 4.45%
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net expense

DISCOUNEFALE . ..ottt e e e e e 6.27% 6.23% 8.11% 6.77%
Expected returnon plan assets ............... i, 8.50% 7.74% 8.50% N/A
Rate of compensation inCcrease ...............c.oiiiiiiiiian... 5.00% 3.08% 1.87% 4.45%

U.S. pension plan service cost include administrative expenses of $138 million, $97 million, and $38 million for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009. Weighted-average assumptions used to
determine net expense are determined at the beginning of the period and updated for remeasurements.

Assumptions

Healthcare Trend Rate

As a result of modifications made to healthcare plans in connection with the 363 Sale, there are no significant uncapped U.S.
healthcare plans remaining, therefore, the healthcare cost trend rate does not have a significant effect on our U.S. plans. The

implementation of the HCT at October 31, 2011 eliminated significant exposure to changes in the healthcare cost trend rate for
non-U.S. plans.

Successor
December 31,
2010
Assumed Healthcare Trend Rates Non-U.S. Plans
Initial healthcare COSt trENd Fate . . . ... oottt e e e e e e e 5.6%
Ultimate healthcare COSt trend Fate . . . .. .. oot e e e e e 3.4%
Number of years to ultimate trend rate . ... ... oo 8

Healthcare trend rate assumptions are determined for inclusion in healthcare OPEB valuation at each remeasurement. The
healthcare trend rates are developed using historical cash expenditures and near-term outlook for retiree healthcare. This information
is supplemented with information gathered from actuarial based models, information obtained from healthcare providers and known
significant events.
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The following table summarizes the effect of a one-percentage point change in the assumed healthcare trend rates (dollars in
millions):

Successor
Non-U.S. Plans
Effect on 2011 Effect on
Aggregate Service December 31, 2010
Change in Assumption and Interest Cost APBO
One percentage POINTINCIEASE . .. .\ttt ettt et ettt e e e $31 $ 491
One percentage POINt ABCIBASE . . . . . v\ttt ettt e e et e e e e e e e $(25) $(392)

Investment Strategies and Long-Term Rate of Return

Detailed periodic studies conducted by outside actuaries and an internal asset management group, consisting of an analysis of
capital market assumptions and employing Monte-Carlo simulations, are used to determine the long-term strategic mix among asset
classes, risk mitigation strategies, and the expected return on asset assumptions for U.S. pension plans. The U.S. study includes a
review of alternative asset allocation and risk mitigation strategies, anticipated future long-term performance of individual asset
classes, risks evaluated using standard deviation techniques and correlations among the asset classes that comprise the plans’ asset
mix. Similar studies are performed for the significant non-U.S. pension plans with the assistance of outside actuaries and asset
managers. While the studies incorporate data from recent fund performance and historical returns, the expected return on plan asset
assumptions are determined based on long-term, prospective rates of return.

The strategic asset mix and risk mitigation strategies for the plans are tailored specifically for each plan. Individual plans have
distinct liabilities, liquidity needs, and regulatory requirements. Consequently, there are different investment policies set by individual
plan fiduciaries. Although investment policies and risk mitigation strategies may differ among plans, each investment strategy is
considered to be optimal in the context of the specific factors affecting each plan.

In setting new strategic asset mixes, consideration is given to the likelihood that the selected mixes will effectively fund the
projected pension plan liabilities, while aligning with the risk tolerance of the plans’ fiduciaries. The strategic asset mixes for U.S.
defined benefit pension plans are increasingly designed to satisfy the complementary objectives of reaching fully funded positions
(market value of assets equal to or greater than the present value of the liabilities) and mitigating the possibility of a deterioration in
funded status.

Derivatives may be used to provide cost effective solutions for rebalancing investment portfolios, increasing or decreasing exposure
to various asset classes and for mitigating risks, primarily interest rate and currency risks. Equity and fixed income managers are
permitted to utilize derivatives as efficient substitutes for traditional physical securities. Interest rate derivatives may be used to adjust
portfolio duration to align with a plan’s targeted investment policy. Alternative investment managers are permitted to employ
leverage, including through the use of derivatives, which may alter economic exposure.

In December 2011 an analysis of the investment policy was completed for the U.S. pension plans considering: (1) our overall
balance sheet derisking strategy; (2) the plans are closed to new participants; and (3) the 2011 UAW negotiations did not increase
pension benefits. Separate long-term strategies were developed for the salaried and hourly U.S. pension plans which represent 35%
and 65% of total U.S. pension plans’ assets. Using an approach which matches plan assets and liability cash flows to minimize risk of
funded status volatility, the expected weighted-average return on assets was reduced from 8.0% at December 31, 2010 to 5.7% for the
salaried pension plan and to 6.5% for the hourly pension plan. The resulting weighted-average return is 6.2% The overall decrease is
primarily due to a different asset mix consisting of a higher proportion of fixed income investments compared to last year. The
salaried pension plan has a higher target proportion of fixed income investments than the hourly pension plan and therefore, a lower
expected return on assets than the hourly pension plan.
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The expected return on plan assets used in determining pension expense for non-U.S. plans is determined in a similar manner to the

U.S. plans. The rates of 6.5% and 7.4% for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 represent weighted-average rates of all of
the funded non-U.S. plans.

Target Allocation Percentages

The following table summarizes the target allocations by asset category for U.S. and non-U.S. defined benefit pension plans:

Successor
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
U.S.Plans Non-U.S.Plans U.S.Plans Non-U.S. Plans

Asset Categories

EQUILY o 14% 34% 29% 36%
Dbt . 66% 45% 41% 48%
Real eState .. ... 5% 9% 8% 9%
OtNEr (B) . o vttt 15% 12% 22% 7%
Total . .o 100% 100% 100% 100%

(@) Includes private equity and absolute return strategies which primarily consist of hedge funds.
Investment in Trusts

The assets of the U.S. hourly and salaried pension plans are held by various master trusts and group trusts (collectively “Trusts”).
The master trusts hold only GM sponsored pension plan assets. The group trusts permit the commingling of the assets of more than
one employee benefit plan, including plans of unrelated sponsors. The plans that participate in the Trusts own an undivided beneficial
interest in the underlying assets and changes therein of the respective Trusts. During 2011 certain assets held by several group trusts
for the benefit of unrelated plan sponsors were liquidated which resulted in the beneficial interest in the remaining assets within these
group trusts becoming solely owned by the GM sponsored pension plans. The residual beneficial interest of unrelated benefit plan
sponsors in the other group trusts is not significant. The following fair value measurement tables reflect the underlying assets held by
the Trusts for the benefit of our U.S. pension plans on a combined basis and exclude the remaining beneficial interest in the assets
within the group trusts owned by unrelated benefit plan sponsors.
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Assets and Fair Value Measurements

The following tables summarize the fair value of defined benefit pension plan assets by asset class (dollars in millions):

Fair Value Measurements of U.S. Plan Assets

at December 31, 2011

Fair Value Measurements of Non-U.S.
Plan Assets at December 31, 2011

Assets

Cash equivalents and other short-term
investments ...................
Common and preferred stocks (a) . . . .

Government and agency debt
securities (b)

Corporate debt securities (¢) ........

Agency mortgage and asset-backed

SECUMIES . ..ot

Non-agency mortgage and asset-

backed securities . ..............

Group annuity contracts
Investment funds

Total assets
Liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Plan Assets

Equityfunds ..................
Fixed income funds .............
Funds of hedge funds
Global macrofunds . ............
Multi-strategy funds
Other investment funds (d) .......
Private equity and debt

investments (e)

Real estate investments (f)

Other investments ................
Derivatives

Interest rate contracts
Foreign currency exchange

contracts
Equity contracts
Creditcontracts ................

Agency mortgage and asset-backed
securities (g)

Derivatives

Interest rate contracts
Foreign currency exchange

contracts
Equity contracts
Creditcontracts ................

Net plan assets subject to leveling ...
Other plan assets and liabilities (h) . . .

Total U.S.

Total and Non-

Total U.S. Non-U.S. U.S. Plan

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Plan Assets Levell Level2 Level3 Plan Assets Assets

— $ 100 $ — $ 100 $ — $533 $ — $ 533 $ 633

11,134 78 46 11,258 2,109 2 — 2,111 13,369

— 21531 3 21,534 — 3,613 1 3,614 25,148

— 22,725 352 23,077 — 1,820 4 1,824 24,901

— 1,847 — 1,847 — 94 — 94 1,941

— 1,399 197 1,596 — 49 4 53 1,649

— — 3,209 3,209 — — — — 3,209

23 852 521 1,396 — 1,837 146 1,983 3,379

— 1,092 1,210 2,302 — 1,142 20 1,162 3,464

— — 5,918 5,918 — — 585 585 6,503

— 266 4 270 — — 236 236 506

24 949 2,123 3,096 — 24 — 24 3,120

— 335 143 478 — — 11 11 489

_ — 8,444 8,444 — — 298 298 8,742

1,279 — 5,092 6,371 13 27 1,345 1,385 7,756

— — — — — — 428 428 428

138 4,180 9 4,327 4 — — 4 4,331

— 152 — 152 — 59 — 59 211

61 15 — 76 17 — — 17 93

— 79 — 79 — — — — 79

12,659 55,600 27,271 95,530 2,143 9,200 3,078 14,421 109,951
— (67) — (67) — — — — (67)
(28) (1,752) (2) (1,782) 4) — — 4) (1,786)
— (75) — (75) — (46) — (46) (121)
17) (14) — (31) 3) — — 3) (34)
— (29) (6) (35) — — — — (35)
(45)  (1,937) (8)  (1,990) (7)  (46) — (53)  (2,043)

$12,614 $53,663 $27,263 93,540 $2,136 $9,154 $3,078 14,368 107,908

809 173 982

$94,349 $14,541  $108,890
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Assets
Cash equivalents and other short-term
investments
Common and preferred stocks . ... ...
Government and agency debt
securities (b)
Corporate debt securities (c)
Agency mortgage and asset-backed
securities
Non-agency mortgage and asset-
backed securities
Group annuity contracts
Investment funds
Equityfunds ...................
Fixed income funds
Funds of hedge funds .. ..........
Global macro funds
Multi-strategy funds
Other investment funds (d)
Private equity and debt
investments (e)
Real estate investments (f)
Other investments
Derivatives
Interest rate contracts . .. .........
Foreign currency exchange
contracts . . ............ .. ..u
Equity contracts ................
Credit contracts
Total assets
Liabilities
Common and preferred stocks (g) .. ..
Corporate debt securities (g)
Real estate investments (g)
Derivatives
Interest rate contracts .. ..........
Foreign currency exchange
contracts . . ...
Equity contracts ................
Credit contracts

Total liabilities . ..................
Net plan assets subject to leveling . . . .

Other plan assets and liabilities (h) . ..
Net Plan Assets .. ................

(@ Includes GM common stock of $1.2 billion within Level 1 of U.S. plan assets.
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Fair Value Measurements of U.S. Plan Assets
at December 31, 2010

Fair Value Measurements of Non-U.S.
Plan Assets at December 31, 2010

Total U.S.
Total and Non-
Total U.S. Non-U.S. U.S. Plan
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Plan Assets Levell Level2 Level3 Plan Assets Assets
$ — $685 $ — $68%5 $ — $ 717 $ — $ 717 $ 71572
6,755 788 64 7,607 2,781 13 — 2,794 10,401
— 5,402 75 5477 — 3,410 4 3,414 8,891
— 8,252 562 8,814 — 1,964 41 2,005 10,819
— 476 — 476 — 44 — 44 520
— 1,863 821 2,684 — 86 — 86 2,770
— — 3,115 3,115 — — — — 3,115
20 12,831 382 13,233 2 2,001 200 2,203 15,436
48 9,882 2,287 12,217 — 1,085 — 1,085 13,302
— 516 6,344 6,860 — — 74 74 6,934
— 111 4 115 — — 255 255 370
— 4,624 3,546 8,170 — 34 — 34 8,204
— 150 186 336 — — 103 103 439
— 8,037 8,037 — — 169 169 8,206
1,648 1 5,508 7,157 11 39 1,263 1,313 8,470
— — — — 104 281 385 385
— 1,251 — 1,251 — — — — 1,251
— 91 1 92 — 56 — 56 148
73 3 20 96 — 19 — 19 115
— 62 3 65 — — — — 65
8,544 53,158 30,955 92,657 2,794 9572 2,390 14,756 107,413
(1,287)  (121) —  (1,408) — — — —  (1,408)
— — ) @ - - - — (2)
(41) — — (41) — — — — (41)
@) (2,272 (18)  (2,294) — — — — (2,294
— (146) — (146) — (45) — (45) (191)
(180) 2) (61) (243) — @) — @) (250)
— (21) 4 (25) — — — — (25)
(1,512) (2,562) (85)  (4,159) - (52 @ — (52) (4,211
$ 7,032 $50,596 $30,870 88,498 $2,794 $9,520 $2,390 14,704 103,202
ﬂ 199 2,708
$91,007 $14,903  $105,910
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(b) Includes U.S. and sovereign government and agency issues; excludes mortgage and asset-backed securities.
(c) Includes bank debt obligations.
(d) Primarily investments in alternative investment funds.
(e) Includes private equity investment funds.
(f) Includes investment funds and public real estate investment trusts.
(9) Primarily investments sold short.
(h) Cash held by the plans, net of amounts payable for investment manager fees, custody fees and other expenses.
The following tables summarize the activity for U.S. plan assets classified in Level 3 (dollars in millions):
Change in
Unrealized
Gains/
(Losses)
Attributable
Net Purchases, to Assets
Balance at Realized/ Sales and Transfers Balance at Held at
January 1, Unrealized  Settlements, Into/Out December 31, December 31,
2011 Gains (Loss) Net of Level 3 2011 2011
Assets
Common and preferred stocks ..................... $ 64 $ 4 $ (11) $ 3 $ 46 $ (53)
Government and agency debt securities .............. 75 9) (63) — 3 1
Corporate debt securities . ............. ... 562 (29) (168) (13) 352 (49)
Non-agency mortgage and asset-backed securities . . . ... 821 (8) (625) 9 197 (57)
Group annuity contracts . ..............i i, 3,115 302 (208) — 3,209 302
Investment funds
Equityfunds ....... ... ... . . 382 (129) 268 — 521 (120)
Fixedincomefunds ............................ 2,287 40 (1,026) (91) 1,210 124
Funds of hedgefunds .......................... 6,344 (56) (370) — 5,918 (23)
Global macrofunds ............. ... ... .. ..... 4 — — — 4 —
Multi-strategy funds .......... ... .. ... ... L 3,546 (100) (1,297) (26) 2,123 63
Other investment funds ......................... 186 (19) (24) — 143 (19)
Private equity and debt investments ................. 8,037 839 (432) — 8,444 (12)
Real estate investments ........................... 5,508 799 (1,215) — 5,092 382
Total @SSetS . ..ot 30,931 1,626 (5,171) (124) 27,262 539
Liabilities
Corporate debt securities . ................. ... 2 — — 2 — —
Total liabilities ........... ... ... ... ... .. ... 2 — — 2 — —
Derivatives, net
Interest rate contracts ............... ... ... . ... (18) 25 — — 7 25
Foreign currency exchange contracts .............. 1 — @ — — —
Equitycontracts . .......... o (42) 50 9) — — 1)
Creditcontracts ..., (1) 4) Q) — (6) @)
Total netassets ...t $30,870 $1,697 $(5,182)  $(122) $27,263 $ 556
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Change in
Unrealized
Gains/
(Losses)
Net Attributable
Realized/ Purchases, Transfers to Assets
Balance at Unrealized Sales and Into/ Balance at Held at
January 1, Gains Settlements, Out December 31, December 31,
2010 (Loss) Net of Level 3 2010 2010
Assets
Common and preferred stocks ....................... $ 53 $ 3 $ 4 4 $ o4 $ 23
Government and agency debt securities . ............... 1,501 9 (112) (1,323) 75 (8)
Corporate debt securities ............. ... o 1,747 51 (526) (710) 562 56
Agency mortgage and asset-backed securities .. ......... 6 — Q (5) — —
Non-agency mortgage and asset-backed securities . . ... .. 1,520 144 (172) (671) 821 393
Group annuity contracts . ... 3,301 66 (252) — 3,115 (95)
Investment funds
Equityfunds . ........ .. 576 15 7 (216) 382 1)
Fixedincomefunds ............................. 6,488 230 (307) (4,124) 2,287 136
Funds of hedgefunds ............................ 4,435 428 1,520 (39) 6,344 103
Global macrofunds ............................. 711 11 (606) (112) 4 103
Multi-strategy funds . ........... ... ... oo 1,809 385 1,521 (169) 3,546 359
Other investmentfunds .......................... 456 (31) (160) (79) 186 2)
Private equity and debt investments . .................. 6,940 1,168 (71) — 8,037 578
Real estate investments ............. ... .. ..., 4,836 580 92 — 5,508 523
Total @SSetS . ... v 34,379 3,059 937 (7,444) 30,931 2,168
Liabilities
Common and preferred stocks . ...................... 2 — — 2 — —
Corporate debt securities ............ ... ... ... 3) — — 1 2 —
Total liabilities ........... .. ... ... . (5) — — 3 2 —
Derivatives, net
Interest rate contracts . .............. ... ... ..., 92 (18) 2) (90) (18) (18)
Foreign currency exchange contracts . . .............. — — 1 — 1 —
Equitycontracts ........... .. i (15) (16) (10) — (41) (16)
Creditcontracts .............. ..., 35 (17) 27) 8 (1) (20)
Total Netassets .. ..o $34,486  $3,008 $ 899  $(7,523) $30,870 $2,114
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The following tables summarize the activity for non-U.S. plan assets classified in Level 3 (dollars in millions):

Net Foreign
Realized/ Purchases, Transfers Currency
Balance at  Unrealized Sales and Into/ Exchange Balance at
January 1, Gains Settlements, Out of Rate December 31,

2011 (Loss) Net Level 3 Movements 2011




GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Transfers In and/or Out of Level 3
There were no significant transfers of U.S. plan assets into and/or out of Level 3 during the year ended December 31, 2011.

Significant transfers of U.S. plan assets out of Level 3 into Level 2 for the year ended December 31, 2010 included $1.3 billion, of
government and agency debt securities, $0.7 billion of corporate debt securities, $0.7 billion of non-agency mortgage and asset-
backed securities and $4.7 billion of investment funds. Except for investment funds, these transfers were the result of improved
pricing transparency of these securities which allowed management to corroborate observable pricing inputs received from
independent pricing services. Investment fund transfers were the result of management’s ability to validate certain liquidity and
redemption restrictions that permit the plans to redeem their interests at NAV in the near-term (generally within 90 days).

There were no significant transfers of non-U.S. plan assets into and /or out of Level 3 during the years ended December 31, 2011
and 2010.

Investment Fund Strategies

Equity funds include funds that invest in U.S. common and preferred stocks as well as similar equity securities issued by companies
incorporated, listed or domiciled in developed and/or emerging markets countries. Certain fund managers may attempt to profit from
security mispricing in equity markets. Equity long/short managers typically construct portfolios consisting of long and short positions,
which may be determined by a variety of techniques including fundamental, quantitative and technical analysis. Index funds,
exchange traded funds and derivatives may be used for hedging purposes to limit exposure to various risk factors.

Fixed income funds include investments in high quality and high yield funds as well as in credit arbitrage funds. High quality fixed
income funds invest in U.S. government securities, investment-grade corporate bonds, mortgages and asset-backed securities. High
yield fixed income funds invest in U.S. high yield fixed income securities issued by corporations which are rated below investment
grade, are unrated but are believed by the investment manager to have similar risk characteristics or are rated investment grade or
higher but are priced at yields comparable to securities rated below investment grade and believed to have similar risk characteristics.
Credit arbitrage funds invest in a variety of credit and credit-related instruments that allow fund managers to profit from mispricing of
these credit instruments. Certain derivatives may be used for hedging purposes by some fixed income fund managers to limit exposure
to various risk factors.

Funds of hedge funds include funds that invest in a portfolio of hedge funds. Funds of hedge fund managers typically seek to
achieve their objectives by allocating capital across a broad array of funds and/or investment managers.

Global macro funds include funds that enter into leveraged transactions utilizing a variety of equity, fixed income and derivative
instruments to benefit from anticipated price movements of stock, interest rates, foreign exchange currencies and physical
commodities markets while minimizing downside risk. Global macro managers may invest in a variety of markets to participate in
expected market movements.

Multi-strategy funds include funds that invest in broadly diversified portfolios of equity, fixed income and derivative instruments.
Certain funds may also employ multiple alternative investment strategies, in combination, such as global macro, event-driven (which
seeks to profit from opportunities created by significant transactional events such as spin-offs, mergers and acquisitions, bankruptcy
reorganizations, recapitalizations and share buybacks) and relative value (which seeks to take advantage of pricing discrepancies
between instruments including equities, debt, options and futures).
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Real estate investments include funds that invest in entities which are principally engaged in the ownership, acquisition,
development, financing, sale and/or management of income-producing real estate properties, both commercial and residential. These
funds typically seek long-term growth of capital and current income that is above average relative to public equity funds.

Significant Concentrations of Risk

The pension plans’ assets include certain private investment funds, private equity and debt securities, real estate investments and
derivative instruments. Investment managers may be unable to quickly sell or redeem some or all of these investments at an amount
close or equal to fair value in order to meet a plan’s liquidity requirements or to respond to specific events such as deterioration in the
creditworthiness of any particular issuer or counterparty.

Illiquid investments held by the plans are generally long-term investments that complement the long-term nature of pension
obligations and are not used to fund benefit payments when currently due. Plan management monitors liquidity risk on an ongoing
basis and has procedures in place that are designed to maintain flexibility in addressing plan-specific, broader industry and market
liquidity events.

Certain plan assets represent investments in group annuity contracts. We entered into group annuity contracts with various life
insurance companies to provide pension benefits to certain of our salaried workforce and backed these obligations by high quality
fixed income securities. We, as the plans’ sponsor, might be exposed to counterparty risk if any or all of the life insurance companies
fail to perform in accordance with the terms and conditions stipulated in the contracts, or any or all of the life insurance companies
become insolvent or experience other forms of financial distress. We and the plans might also be exposed to liquidity risk due to the
funding obligation that may arise under these contracts. The plans’ management monitors counterparty and liquidity risks on an
on-going basis and has procedures in place that are designed to monitor the financial performance of the life insurance companies that
are parties to these contracts and maintain flexibility in addressing contract-specific and broader market events.

The pension plans may invest in financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies and may be exposed to risks that the
foreign currency exchange rates might change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of the foreign currency denominated
assets or liabilities. Forward currency contracts are used to manage and mitigate foreign currency risk.

The pension plans may invest in fixed income securities for which any change in the relevant interest rates for particular securities
might result in an investment manager being unable to secure similar returns upon the maturity or the sale of securities. In addition,
changes to prevailing interest rates or changes in expectations of future interest rates might result in an increase or decrease in the fair
value of the securities held. Interest rate swaps and other financial derivative instruments may be used to manage interest rate risk.

Counterparty credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will default on its commitment. Counterparty risk is
primarily related to over-the-counter derivative instruments used to manage risk exposures related to interest rates on long-term debt
securities and foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. The risk of default can be influenced by various factors including macro-
economic conditions, market liquidity, fiscal and monetary policies and counterparty-specific characteristics and activities. Certain
agreements with counterparties employ set-off, collateral support arrangements and other risk mitigating procedures designed to
reduce the net exposure to credit risk in the event of counterparty default. Credit policies and processes are in place to manage
concentrations of counterparty risk by seeking to undertake transactions with large well-capitalized counterparties and by monitoring
the creditworthiness of these counterparties. The majority of our derivatives at December 31, 2011 were fully collateralized and
therefore, the related counterparty credit risk was significantly reduced.

Pension Funding Requirements

We are subject to a variety of U.S. federal rules and regulations, including the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974,
as amended and the Pension Protection Act of 2006 (PPA), which govern the manner in which we fund and administer our pensions
for our retired employees and their spouses. The Pension Relief Act of 2010 provides us with options to amortize any shortfall
amortization base for U.S. qualified pension plans either (1) over seven years with amortization starting two years after the election of
this relief or (2) over 15 years.
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We also maintain pension plans for employees in a number of countries outside the U.S. which are subject to local laws and
regulations. We have elected the 15-year amortization funding relief option for certain of our U.S. pension plans for the most recent
pension funding valuation as of October 1, 2010. The election of the 15-year amortization option has enabled us to defer the funding
requirements to future years. No election is required at this time for the plan year beginning October 1, 2011, and we plan to evaluate
these options in the future for our U.S. qualified pension plans. We have no funding requirements for our U.S. qualified plans in 2012.

Benefit Payments

The following table summarizes net benefit payments expected to be paid in the future, which include assumptions related to
estimated future employee service (dollars in millions):

Successor
Years Ended December 31,
Pension Benefits (a) Other Benefits
U.S.Plans Non-U.S.Plans U.S.Plans Non-U.S. Plans (b)
2002 $ 8,514 $1,437 $ 419 $ 55
2008 $ 8,262 $1,441 $ 403 $ 58
2004 $ 8,065 $1,475 $ 367 $ 61
200D $ 7,918 $1,505 $ 357 $ 65
2000 L $ 7,645 $1,528 $ 350 $ 68
2007-202L . $35,435 $7,725 $1,678 $381

(a) Benefits for most U.S. pension plans and certain non-U.S. pension plans are paid out of plan assets rather than our Cash and cash
equivalents.

(b) Benefit payments presented in this table reflect the effect of the implementation of the HCT, which releases us from certain
CAMW retiree healthcare claims incurred after October 31, 2011.

Note 19. Derivative Financial Instruments and Risk Management
Automotive
Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

In accordance with our risk management policy, we enter into a variety of foreign currency exchange rate and commodity
derivative contracts in connection with the management of exposure to fluctuations in certain foreign currency exchange rates and
commaodity prices. At December 31, 2011 our derivative instruments consisted primarily of forward contracts and options.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010 no outstanding derivative contracts were designated in hedging relationships.
Counterparty Credit Risk

Derivative financial instruments contain an element of credit risk attributable to the counterparties’ ability to meet the terms of the
agreements. Certain of our agreements with counterparties require, under certain circumstances, that the counterparty post collateral
with us for net asset positions. Agreements are entered into with counterparties that allow the set-off of certain exposures in order to
manage the risk. Collateral held from counterparties was insignificant and $74 million at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

At December 31, 2011 substantially all derivative counterparty exposures were with counterparties that were rated A- or higher.
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Credit Risk Related Contingent Features

Certain of our agreements with counterparties require that we provide cash collateral for net liability positions that we may

have

with such counterparty. At December 31, 2011 no collateral was posted related to derivative instruments, and we did not have any

agreements with counterparties to derivative instruments containing covenants requiring the maintenance of certain credit rating |
or credit risk ratios that would require the posting of collateral in the event that such covenants are violated.

Fair Value of Derivatives

evels

The following tables summarize fair value measurements of our derivative instruments measured on a recurring basis (dollars in millions):
Successor
December 31, 2011
Derivative Assets Derivative Liabilities

Notional Current (a) Non-Current (b) Current (c) Non-Current (d)

FOreign CUMTENCY . ..o vttt $6507 $ 64 $ — $ 46 $—
Commodity ... ..o 2,566 9 — 10
Embedded ......... ... . . . 1,461 28 124 1 _5
Total .. $10,534 $101 $124 $ 57 $ﬂ
Successor
December 31, 2010
Derivative Assets Derivative Liabilities

Notional Current (a) Non-Current (b) Current(c) Non-Current (d)

FOreign CUITENCY . ..o ottt ettt $5910 $80 $ — $113 $—
Commodity ... 2,501 93 — — —
Embedded ........ ... . . .. 1,550 — — 2 7
WarrantS . ... e 11 — 44 — =
Total . $ 9,972 $173 $ 44 $115 $7

(@) Recorded in Other current assets and deferred income taxes.
(b) Recorded in Other assets.

(c) Recorded in Accrued liabilities.

(d) Recorded in Other liabilities and deferred income taxes.

Successor
December 31, 2011

Levell Level2 Level3 Total
Assets
FOIEIgN CUITENCY . oo ettt ettt e $— $64 $— $64
COMMOTILY . oo — 9 — 9
Embedded . .. ... — 4 148 152
1101 L $—  §77  $148  $225
Liabilities
FOIEIgN CUITENCY . . o oottt ettt $— $46 $— $ 46
ComMOGItY ... — 5 10 15
Embedded . ... . = 6 — 6
TOtal L $57  $10 $67

I
|
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Successor
December 31, 2010

Levell Level2 Level3 Total
Assets
FOIEIgN CUITENCY . . oottt $— $80 $— 3$80
ComMMOGILY . ..o — 93 — 93
VI ANES . . — 44 = 44
1 ] 7 1 $_— $217 $_— $217
Liabilities
FOrBIgN CUITENCY .« . oottt et et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $— $113  $— $113
Embedded .. ... — 9 — 9
Total . $_— $122 $_— $122

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, our non-performance risk was not observable through a liquid credit default swap market. In the
three months ended December 31, 2010 we determined that our non-performance risk no longer represented a significant input in the
determination of the fair value of our foreign currency exchange derivatives. The effect of our non-performance risk in the valuation
was reduced due to the reduction in the remaining duration and magnitude of these net derivative liability positions. In October 2010
we transferred foreign currency derivatives with a fair market value of $183 million out of Level 3 to Level 2.

Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis using Level 3 Inputs

The following table summarizes the activity for our derivative investments classified in Level 3 (dollars in millions):

Successor
Level 3 Net Assets and (Liabilities) (a)
Year Ended
December 31,
Year Ended December 31, 2011 2010
Foreign
Embedded Commodity Total Currency
Balance at beginning of period .......... ... $ — $— $ — $(672)
Total realized/unrealized gains (losses)
InCluded iN  arNINGS . . ...ttt 160 (10) 150 103
Included in other comprehensive income (I0SS) .. ......covviii i (10) — (10) (10)
SetlemMeNtS . 2 — 2
Purchases, issuances and settlements . .............. it — — — 394
Transfer inand/orout of Level 3 ... ... .. — — — 185
Balanceatend of period .......... .. . . .. $148 $(10)  $138 $ —
Amount of total gains (losses) in the period included in earnings attributable to the
change in unrealized gains (losses) relating to assets still held at the reporting date . . . $157 $(10) $147 $ —

(@) Realized and unrealized gains (losses) are recorded in Interest income and other non-operating income, net and foreign currency
translation gains (losses) are recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive income.
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Gains and (Losses) on Derivatives

The following table summarizes derivative gains (losses) recorded in earnings (dollars in millions):

Successor

July 10, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009

Foreign Currency
Interest income and other non-operating income, net . .................... $(30) $ 82 $279
Interest Rate Swap

AUtomotive INterest EXPENSE . ..ottt e — — 1)
Commodity

Interest income and other non-operating income, net . .................... (98) (25) —
Embedded

Interest income and other non-operating income, net . .................... 165 (8) —
Warrants

Interest income and other non-operating income, net . .................... 4

[y
©

&~
N
U
Aid
(2]
0]

Total gains (losses) recorded inearnings . ..., $278

Other Derivatives

In September 2009 in connection with an agreement with American Axle, we received warrants to purchase 4 million shares of
American Axle common stock exercisable at $2.76 per share. At December 31, 2010 the fair value of these warrants was $44 million.
In February 2011 we exercised the warrants and sold the shares and received proceeds of $48 million.

In 2010 we entered into a long-term supply agreement which provides for pricing to be partially denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the parties to the contract. This pricing feature was determined to be an embedded derivative which we
have bifurcated for valuation and accounting purposes. The fair value of this embedded derivative was an asset of $148 million at
December 31, 2011 and insignificant at December 31, 2010.

In connection with our investment in New Delphi, which we accounted for using the equity method, we recorded our share of New
Delphi’s other comprehensive income (loss) in Accumulated other comprehensive income. In the three months ended March 31, 2011
we recorded cash flow hedging gains of $13 million; and in the year ended December 31, 2010 and the period July 10, 2009 through
December 31, 2009 we recorded cash flow hedge losses of $22 million and $1 million related to our share of New Delphi’s hedging
losses. In March 2011 we sold our interests in New Delphi. As a result previously recorded cash flow hedging losses of $10 million in
Accumulated other comprehensive income were reclassified to earnings and recorded in the gain on sale of New Delphi. Refer to Note
4 for additional information on the sale of New Delphi.

Derivatives Not Meeting a Scope Exception from Fair Value Accounting

We entered into purchase contracts that were accounted for as derivatives with changes in fair value recorded in Interest income
and other non-operating income, net, as these contracts do not qualify for the normal purchases and normal sales scope exception in
ASC 815, “Derivatives and Hedging” (ASC 815).

Automotive Financing — GM Financial

GM Financial is exposed to market risks arising from adverse changes in interest rates due to floating interest rate exposure on its
credit facilities and on certain securitization notes payable.
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The effect of derivative instruments on earnings and Accumulated other comprehensive income was insignificant for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

The following table summarizes interest rate swaps, caps and foreign currency exchange derivatives (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value

Assets (a)

INEErESE FAtE SWAPS . . o oo oo e oot ettt e e e e e $ 509 $2 $1,227 $23
INEEIESE FALE CAPS . . o ettt et e e e e 1,513 5 946 8
TOtal L $2,022 $7 $2,173 $31
Liabilities (b)

INEEIESE FAtE SWAPS . . v oot ettt e et e e e e e e e e e e $ 509 $6 $1,227 $47
eIt T CaS . . o v vttt et e e e 1,471 5 832 8
Foreign currency exchange derivatives . ...t — — 49 2
TOtal L $1,980 $11 $2,108 $57

(@) Recorded in GM Financial Other assets.
(b) Recorded in GM Financial Other liabilities.

The following tables summarize fair value measurements of GM Financial’s derivative instruments measured on a recurring basis
(dollars in millions):

Successor

Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis
December 31, 2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

INEEIESE FAtE SWAPS . . . v oo ettt e e e e e et e e e e $— $— $2 $ 2
INErESt AL CAPS .« . v vttt e — 5 — 5
TOtal . $— $5 $2 $7
Liabilities

INEEFESE FALE SWAPS . . o o v oot e e e e $— $— $6 $6
INTEreSt rate CaPS . . . . oo = ) = 5
1o - $— $5 $6 $11
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Successor

Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis

December 31, 2010

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
INEEFESE FATE SWAPS . . . oo oo et e e e $— $— $23 $23
INEEIESE FALE CAPS . . . o et ettt e e e e e — 8 = 8
TOtal o $— $8 $23 $31
Liabilities
INEEIESE FAtE SWAPS . . . v oo ettt et e et e e e e e e e e $— $— $47 $47
INEErESt T CaS . . o v et ettt e e e e e — 8 — 8
FOreign CUMrenCY CONIaCES . . ..ottt ettt et e et e e = 2 = 2
Total .o $— $10 $47 $57

Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis using Level 3 Inputs

The following table summarizes the activity for GM Financial’s derivative instruments classified in Level 3 (dollars in millions):

Successor

Interest Rate Swap Derivatives

October 1, 2010
Through

Year Ended December 31,2011 December 31, 2010

Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
Balance at beginning of period ........ ... ... .. . ... $ 23 $(47) $27 $(61)
Transfersinand/oroutof Level 3 ... ... .. . . — — — —

Total realized/unrealized gains (losses)

Included in €arnINgS . . . ..ottt 2 1 1 Q)
Included in other comprehensive income (10SS) ..., — — — —
SetlEMENtS . . ..o (19) 40 (5) 15
Balance atend of period ............ ... 2 $ (6) $23 $(47)

Credit Risk Related Contingent Features

Under the terms of the derivative financial instruments, GM Financial is required to pledge certain funds to be held in restricted
cash accounts as collateral for the outstanding derivative transactions. At December 31, 2011 and 2010 these restricted cash accounts
totaled $36 million and $33 million and were recorded in GM Financial Restricted cash.
Old GM

Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

Derivatives Not Designated for Hedge Accounting

Old GM previously entered into a variety of foreign currency exchange, interest rate and commodity forward contracts and options

to maintain a desired level of exposure arising from market risks resulting from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest
rates and certain commodity prices.
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In May 2009 Old GM reached agreements with certain of the counterparties to its derivative contracts to terminate the derivative
contracts prior to stated maturity. Commodity, foreign currency exchange and interest rate forward contracts were settled for cash of
$631 million, resulting in a loss of $537 million. The loss was recorded in Automotive sales and revenue, Automotive cost of sales
and Automotive interest expense in the amounts of $22 million, $457 million and $58 million.

When an exposure economically hedged with a derivative contract was no longer forecasted to occur, in some cases a new
derivative instrument was entered into to offset the exposure related to the existing derivative instrument. In some cases,
counterparties were unwilling to enter into offsetting derivative instruments and, as such, there was exposure to future changes in the
fair value of these derivatives with no underlying exposure to offset this risk. In the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009, OId
GM recorded gains of $91 million related to derivatives originally entered into to hedge exposures that subsequently became probable
not to occur. These gains were recorded to Interest income and other non-operating income, net.

Gains (Losses) on Derivatives

The following table summarizes derivative gains (losses) recorded in earnings (dollars in millions):

Predecessor
January 1, 2009
Through
_July9,2009
Foreign Currency
AUTOMOTIVE SAIES . . . oo $ (688)
AULOMOLIVE COSt OF SalES . . . ..o e (211)
Interest income and other non-operating INCOME, NeL . . . ... ottt e e et 91
Interest Rate Swap
AULOMOTIVE INEIESE EXPENSE . . . ottt ettt et et ettt e e e e (38)
Commodity
AULOMOLIVE COSt OF SalES . . . ..o e (332)
Warrants
Interest income and other non-operating INCOME, NeL . . . ... ottt et 164
Net 1055eS recorded iNBANMINGS . . . . . o oottt et e et e e e e e e e e e e e e $(1,014)

In connection with the UST Loan Agreement, Old GM granted warrants to the UST for 122 million shares of its common stock
exercisable at $3.57 per share. Old GM recorded the warrants as a liability and recorded gains and losses related to this derivative in
Interest income and other non-operating income, net. In connection with the 363 Sale, the UST returned the warrants and they were
canceled.

Cash Flow Hedges

Old GM previously designated certain financial instruments as cash flow hedges to manage its exposure to certain foreign currency
exchange risks.
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The following table summarizes financial statement classification and amounts of gains (losses) that were reclassified from

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into earnings related to effective cash flow hedging relationships (dollars in
millions):

Predecessor
January 1, 2009
Through
_uly9.2009
AUTOMOLIVE SAIES . . o ot $(351)
AUtOMOLIVE COSE OF SalES . . . . oo 19
ReOrganization gains, Net . ... ... it e e e 247
Net losses reclassified from Accumulated other comprehensive income (10SS) . . ... ..ot $ (85)

The following table summarizes financial statement classification and amounts of gains (losses) that were reclassified from
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for cash flow hedges associated with previously forecasted transactions that
subsequently became probable not to occur (dollars in millions):

Predecessor

January 1, 2009
Through
July 9, 2009

AUTOMOTIVE SAIES . . . o oottt $(182)
Reorganization gains, NEt . ... ... 247

Net gains reclassified from Accumulated other comprehensive income (10SS) . ........ .. o i, $ 65

Net Change in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The following table summarizes the net change in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) related to cash flow hedging
activities (dollars in millions):

Predecessor

January 1, 2009
Through
July 9, 2009

Beginning net unrealized 10SS 0N derivatiVeS . . .. ... ... $(490)
Reclassification t0 BarNINGS . . ... ...t 99

Ending net unrealized 10SS 0N deriVALIVES . . ... .ottt $(391)

In connection with our application of fresh-start reporting, the remaining previously deferred cash flow hedging gains and losses of
$391 million in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) were adjusted to $0 at July 10, 2009.

Derivatives Not Meeting a Scope Exception from Fair Value Accounting

Old GM previously entered into purchase contracts that were accounted for as derivatives with changes in fair value recorded in
Automotive cost of sales, as these contracts did not qualify for the normal purchases and normal sales scope exception in ASC 815.
Certain of these contracts were terminated in the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009. MLC retained the remainder of these
purchase contracts in connection with the 363 Sale.
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Note 20. Commitments and Contingencies
Consolidated

The following tables summarize information related to commitments and contingencies (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Liability Maximum Liability Maximum
Recorded Liability (a) Recorded Liability (a)

Guarantees (b)

Operating [ ases . . ...ttt $— $ 26 $7 $ 59
Ally Financial commercial [0ans . ......... ... . . . i $— $ 24 $— $ 17
Supplier commitments, third party commercial loans and other obligations .......... $7 $210 $— $119
Other product-related claims .. ............ . ... $53 $838 $50 $841

(a) Calculated as future undiscounted payments.

(b) Excludes residual support and risk sharing programs and vehicle repurchase obligations related to Ally Financial.

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
Liability Recorded Liability Recorded

Credit card programs (a)

Redemption liability (D) . ... . $ 123 $ 167
DEferred FEVENUE (C) .« . oo oo oo e $ 345 $ 408
Environmental liability (d) . ........ $ 169 $ 195
Product liability .. ... ... $ 514 $ 365
Other litigation-related liability and tax administrative matters (&) ................ ... ...... $1,196 $1,471

(@) At December 31, 2011 and 2010 qualified cardholders had rebates available, net of deferred program revenue, of $2.3 billion and
$2.8 hillion.

(b) Recorded in Accrued liabilities.

(c) Recorded in Other liabilities and deferred income taxes. At December 31, 2011 and 2010 deferred revenue includes an
unfavorable contract liability recorded in applying fresh-start reporting at July 10, 2009.

(d) Includes $34 million and $45 million recorded in Accrued liabilities at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the remainder was
recorded in Other liabilities and deferred income taxes.

(e) Consists primarily of indirect tax-related litigation as well as various non-U.S. labor related matters.
Guarantees

We have provided guarantees related to the residual value of certain operating leases. These guarantees terminate in years ranging
from 2016 to 2035. Certain leases contain renewal options.

We provide payment guarantees on commercial loans made by Ally Financial and outstanding with certain third parties, such as
dealers or rental car companies. These guarantees either expire in 2029 or are ongoing. We determined the fair value ascribed to the
guarantees at inception and subsequent to inception to be insignificant based on the credit worthiness of the third parties. Refer to
Note 28 for additional information on guarantees that we provide to Ally Financial.
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We have agreements with third parties that guarantee the fulfillment of certain suppliers’ commitments and other obligations. These
guarantees expire in years ranging from 2012 or are ongoing, or upon the occurrence of specific events.

In some instances, certain assets of the party whose debt or performance we have guaranteed may offset, to some degree, the cost of
the guarantee. The offset of certain of our payables to guaranteed parties may also offset certain guarantees, if triggered. At
December 31, 2011 any proceeds we would receive from collateral were insignificant.

In connection with certain divestitures of assets or operating businesses, we have entered into agreements indemnifying certain
buyers and other parties with respect to environmental conditions pertaining to real property we owned. We periodically enter into
agreements that incorporate indemnification provisions in the normal course of business. It is not possible to estimate our maximum
exposure under these indemnifications or guarantees due to the conditional nature of these obligations. Immaterial amounts have been
recorded for such obligations as the majority of them are not probable or estimable at this time, and the fair value of the guarantees at
issuance was insignificant.

In addition to the guarantees and indemnifying agreements previously discussed, we indemnify dealers for certain product liability
related claims as subsequently discussed.

With respect to other product-related claims involving products manufactured by certain joint ventures, we believe that costs
incurred are adequately covered by recorded accruals. These guarantees terminate in years ranging from 2020 to 2026.

Credit Card Programs
Credit card programs offer rebates that can be applied primarily against the purchase or lease of our vehicles.
Environmental Liability

Automotive operations, like operations of other companies engaged in similar businesses, are subject to a wide range of
environmental protection laws, including laws regulating air emissions, water discharges, waste management and environmental
remediation. We are in various stages of investigation or remediation for sites where contamination has been alleged. We are involved
in a number of actions to remediate hazardous wastes as required by federal and state laws. Such statutes require that responsible
parties fund remediation actions regardless of fault, legality of original disposal or ownership of a disposal site.

The future effect of environmental matters, including potential liabilities, is often difficult to estimate. An environmental reserve is
recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the liability can be reasonably estimated. This
practice is followed whether the claims are asserted or unasserted. Recorded liabilities are not reduced for possible recoveries from
insurance carriers or other parties. Liabilities have been recorded for the expected costs to be paid over the periods of remediation for
the applicable sites, which typically range from five to 30 years.

For many sites, the remediation costs and other damages for which we ultimately may be responsible may vary because of
uncertainties with respect to factors such as the connection to the site or to materials there, the involvement of other potentially
responsible parties, the application of laws and other standards or regulations, site conditions and the nature and scope of
investigations, studies and remediation to be undertaken (including the technologies to be required and the extent, duration and
success of remediation).

The final outcome of environmental matters cannot be predicted with certainty at this time. Subsequent adjustments to initial
estimates are recorded as necessary based upon additional information obtained. In future periods, new laws or regulations, advances
in remediation technologies and additional information about the ultimate remediation methodology to be used could significantly
change our estimates. It is possible that the resolution of one or more environmental matters could exceed the amounts accrued in an
amount that could be material to our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. At December 31, 2011 we estimate the
remediation losses could range from $140 million to $310 million.
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Product Liability

With respect to product liability claims involving our and Old GM’s products, we believe that any judgment against us for actual
damages will be adequately covered by our recorded accruals and, where applicable, excess liability insurance coverage. Although
punitive damages are claimed in some of these lawsuits, and such claims are inherently unpredictable, accruals incorporate historic
experience with these types of claims. Liabilities have been recorded for the expected cost of all known product liability claims plus
an estimate of the expected cost for product liability claims that have already been incurred and are expected to be filed in the future
for which we are self-insured. These amounts were recorded in Accrued liabilities.

We indemnify dealers for certain product liability related claims including products sold by Old GM. We monitor actual claims
experience and make periodic adjustments to our estimates. Based on both management’s judgment concerning the projected number
and value of both dealer indemnification obligations and product liability claims, we have applied actuarial methodologies and
estimated the liability. We expect our product liability reserve to rise in future periods as new claims arise from incidents subsequent
to July 9, 2009.

Other Litigation-Related Liability and Tax Administrative Matters

Various legal actions, governmental investigations, claims and proceedings are pending against us including matters arising out of
alleged product defects; employment-related matters; governmental regulations relating to safety, emissions, and fuel economy;
product warranties; financial services; dealer, supplier and other contractual relationships; tax-related matters not recorded pursuant to
ASC 740, “Income Taxes” (indirect tax-related matters) and environmental matters.

With regard to the litigation matters discussed in the previous paragraph, reserves have been established for matters in which we
believe that losses are probable and can be reasonably estimated, the majority of which are associated with indirect tax-related matters
as well as various non-U.S. labor-related matters. Indirect tax-related matters are being litigated globally pertaining to value added
taxes, customs, duties, sales, property taxes and other non-income tax related tax exposures. The various non-U.S. labor-related
matters include claims from current and former employees related to alleged unpaid wage, benefit, severance, and other compensation
matters. Certain South American administrative proceedings are indirect tax-related and may require that we deposit funds in escrow;
such escrow deposits may range from $530 million to $730 million. Some of the matters may involve compensatory, punitive, or
other treble damage claims, environmental remediation programs, or sanctions, that if granted, could require us to pay damages or
make other expenditures in amounts that could not be reasonably estimated at December 31, 2011. We believe that appropriate
accruals have been established for such matters based on information currently available. Reserves for litigation losses are recorded in
Accrued liabilities and Other liabilities and deferred income taxes. Litigation is inherently unpredictable, however, and unfavorable
resolutions could occur. Accordingly, it is possible that an adverse outcome from such proceedings could exceed the amounts accrued
in an amount that could be material to our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows in any particular reporting period.

Commencing on or about September 29, 2010, current and former hourly employees of GM Korea, our non-wholly owned
consolidated subsidiary, filed six separate group actions in the Incheon District Court in Incheon, Korea. The cases allege that GM
Korea failed to include certain allowances in its calculation of Ordinary Wages due under the Presidential Decree of the Korean Labor
Standards Act. Although GM Korea intends to vigorously defend the claims asserted, at December 31, 2011 we have an accrual of
130 billion Korean Won (equivalent to $113 million) in connection with these cases. The current estimate of the value of plaintiffs’
claims, if allowed in full, exceeds the accrual by 604 billion Korean Won (equivalent to $523 million) which represents the reasonably
possible liability exposure. Both the scope of claims asserted and GM Korea’s assessment of any or all of individual claim elements
may change.

On February 12, 2010 a claim was filed in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice against GMCL on behalf of a purported class of
over 200 former GMCL dealers (the Plaintiff Dealers) which had entered into wind-down agreements with GMCL. In May 2009, in
the context of the global restructuring of the business and the possibility that GMCL might be required to initiate insolvency
proceedings, GMCL offered the Plaintiff Dealers the wind-down agreements to assist with their exit from the GMCL dealer network
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and to facilitate winding down their operations in an orderly fashion by December 31, 2009 or such other date as GMCL approved but
no later than on October 31, 2010. The Plaintiff Dealers allege that the Dealer Sales and Service Agreements were wrongly terminated
by GMCL and that GMCL failed to comply with certain disclosure obligations, breached its statutory duty of fair dealing and
unlawfully interfered with the Plaintiff Dealers’ statutory right to associate in an attempt to coerce the Plaintiff Dealers into accepting
the wind-down agreements. The Plaintiff Dealers seek damages and assert that the wind-down agreements are rescindable. The
Plaintiff Dealers’ initial pleading makes reference to a claim “not exceeding” CAD $750 million, without explanation of any specific
measure of damages. On March 1, 2011 the Court approved certification of a class for the purpose of deciding a number of
specifically defined issues, including: (1) whether GMCL breached its obligation of “good faith” in offering the wind-down
agreements; (2) whether GMCL interfered with the Plaintiff Dealers’ rights of free association; (3) whether GMCL was obligated to
provide a disclosure statement and/or disclose more specific information regarding its restructuring plans in connection with
proffering the wind-down agreements; and (4) assuming liability, whether the Plaintiff Dealers can recover damages in the aggregate
(as opposed to proving individual damages). On June 22, 2011 the court granted GMCL permission to appeal the class certification
decision. The current prospects for liability are uncertain, but because liability is not deemed probable, we have no accrual relating to
this litigation. We cannot estimate the range of reasonably possible loss in the event of liability, as the case presents a variety of
different legal theories, none of which GMCL believes are valid.

On April 6, 2010 the UAW filed suit against us in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan claiming that we
breached an obligation to contribute $450 million to the New VEBA. The UAW alleges that we were contractually required to make
this contribution. The reasonably possible loss as defined by ASC 450 “Contingencies” is $450 million, which is the amount claimed,
but we believe that the claim is without merit and we have no accrual relating to this litigation. We filed a motion in the U.S.
Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (Bankruptcy Court) asserting that the UAW’s claim is barred by the
Bankruptcy Court approved 2009 UAW Retiree Settlement Agreement and by other orders issued by the Bankruptcy Court that
preclude additional GM contributions to the New VEBA. We also maintain that Delphi’s bankruptcy plan of reorganization did not
fulfill the applicable conditions of the relevant agreement and therefore payment would not be due even in the absence of the 2009
UAW Retiree Settlement Agreement. On August 23, 2011, the Bankruptcy Court issued an opinion abstaining from hearing the case,
which will accordingly be litigated in Federal Court in U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan.

Liability Related to Contingently Issuable Shares

Under the Amended and Restated Master Sale and Purchase Agreement, as amended between us and Old GM and certain of its
direct and indirect subsidiaries, we were obligated to issue additional shares of our common stock to MLC (Adjustment Shares) in the
event that allowed general unsecured claims against MLC, as estimated by the Bankruptcy Court, exceed $35.0 billion. Following the
dissolution of MLC on December 15, 2011, any Adjustment Shares we are obligated to issue will be issuable to the GUC Trust. The
maximum number of Adjustment Shares issuable is 30 million shares (subject to adjustment to take into account stock dividends,
stock splits and other transactions). The number of Adjustment Shares to be issued is calculated based on the extent to which
estimated general unsecured claims exceed $35.0 billion with the maximum number of Adjustment Shares issued if estimated general
unsecured claims total $42.0 billion or more. At December 31, 2011 and 2010 we concluded it was not probable that general
unsecured claims would exceed $35.0 billion. We believe it is reasonably possible that general unsecured claims allowed against
MLC will range between $32.5 billion and $36.0 hillion.

GME Planned Spending Guarantee

As part of our Opel/Vauxhall restructuring plan agreed to with European labor representatives, we have committed to achieving
specified milestones associated with planned spending from 2011 to 2014 on certain product programs. If we fail to accomplish the
requirements set out under the agreement, we will be required to pay certain amounts up to Euro 265 million for each of those years,
and/or interest on those amounts, to our employees. Certain inventory with a carrying amount of $209 million and $193 million at
December 31, 2011 and 2010 was pledged as collateral under the agreement. Through December 31, 2011 spending was sufficient to
meet the current requirements under the agreement and the specified milestones have been accomplished. Management has the intent
and believes it has the ability to meet the future requirements under the agreement.
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Asset Retirement Obligations

Asset retirement obligations relate to legal obligations associated with retirement of tangible long-lived assets that result from
acquisition, construction, development, or normal operation of a long-lived asset. An analysis is performed of such obligations
associated with all real property owned or leased, including facilities, warehouses, and offices. Estimates of conditional asset
retirement obligations relate, in the case of owned properties, to costs estimated to be necessary for the legally required removal or
remediation of various regulated materials, primarily asbestos. Asbestos abatement was estimated using site-specific surveys where
available and a per square foot estimate where surveys were unavailable. For leased properties, such obligations relate to the estimated
cost of contractually required property restoration. At December 31, 2011 and 2010 accruals for asset retirement obligations were $99
million and $103 million.

Contract Cancellations

The following table summarizes contract cancellation charges primarily related to the cancellation of product programs (dollars in
millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through

December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
GMNA (B) .ot $38 $30 $80 $157
GME . .. 8 3 — 12
GMIO .. 43 — 2 8
G M SA .......................................... _4 __ __ —
Total contract cancellations .......................... $93 $33 $82 $177

(@) The year ended December 31, 2010 includes favorable changes in estimate on contract cancellations of $30 million.
Noncancelable Operating Leases

The following table summarizes our minimum commitments under noncancelable operating leases having remaining terms in
excess of one year, primarily for property (dollars in millions):

2017
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016  and after
Minimum cOMMItMENTS () .« . . ...t $422 $325 $252 $207 $169 $ 682
SUDIEESE INCOME . . . o (59) (58) (53) (47 (45) (319
Net minimum commitments . .. ... $363 $267 $199 $160 $124 $ 368
(@) Certain of the leases contain escalation clauses and renewal or purchase options.
The following table summarizes our rental expense under operating leases (dollars in millions):
Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Rental expense under operating leases . . ................ $556 $604 $255 $369
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Delphi Corporation
Benefit Guarantee

In 1999, Old GM spun-off Delphi Automotive Systems Corporation, which became Delphi. Prior to the consummation of the
DMDA, Delphi was our and Old GM’s largest supplier of automotive systems, components and parts, and we and Old GM were
Delphi’s largest customer. From 2005 to 2008 Old GM’s annual purchases from Delphi ranged from approximately $6.5 billion to
approximately $10.2 billion. At the time of the spin-off, employees of Delphi Automotive Systems Corporation became employees of
Delphi, and Old GM entered into the Delphi Benefit Guarantee Agreements (DBGA) with the UAW, the International Union of
Electronic, Electrical, Salaried, Machine and Furniture Workers — Communication Workers of America (IUE-CWA) and the United
Steel, Paper and Forestry, Rubber, Manufacturing, Energy, Allied Industrial and Service Workers International Union (USW)
providing contingent benefit guarantees whereby, under certain conditions, Old GM would make payments for certain pension and
OPEB benefits to certain former U.S. hourly employees that became employees of Delphi. The DBGA provided that in the event that
Delphi or its successor companies ceased doing business, terminated its pension plan or ceased to provide credited service or OPEB
benefits at certain levels due to financial distress, Old GM could be liable to provide the corresponding benefits at the required level.
With respect to pension benefits, the guarantee arises only to the extent the pension benefits Delphi and the PBGC provided fall short
of the guaranteed amount.

In October 2005 Old GM received notice from Delphi that it was more likely than not that Old GM would become obligated to
provide benefits pursuant to the DBGA, in connection with Delphi’s commencement in October 2005 of Chapter 11 proceedings
under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code (Bankruptcy Code).

Delphi-GM Settlement Agreements

In September 2007 and as amended at various times through September 2008, Old GM and Delphi entered into the Delphi-GM
Settlement Agreements intended to: (1) resolve outstanding issues between Delphi and Old GM that arose before Delphi’s emergence
from its Chapter 11 proceedings; (2) govern certain aspects of Old GM’s ongoing commercial relationship with Delphi; and
(3) address a limited transfer of pension assets and liabilities, and the triggering of the benefit guarantees on the basis set forth in term
sheets to the Delphi-GM Settlement Agreements.

The Amended Delphi-GM Settlement Agreements included Old GM’s commitments to reimburse Delphi for certain: (1) employee
benefit related costs, including OPEB and pension cost; (2) employee termination related costs; (3) ongoing labor costs; and
(4) production and other facilitation related costs. In addition, Old GM committed to transfers, subject to certain conditions, of net
liabilities from the Delphi Hourly Rate Plan to Old GM’s U.S. hourly pension plan.

In September 2008 the Bankruptcy Court entered an order in Delphi’s Chapter 11 proceedings approving the Amended Delphi-GM
Settlement Agreements which then became effective. As a result of the September 2008 implementation of the Delphi-GM Settlement
Agreements Old GM paid $1.0 billion to Delphi in the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 in settlement of amounts accrued
to date against Old GM commitments. We paid $288 million in 2009 prior to the consummation of the DMDA in settlement of
amounts accrued to date against our commitments.

Upon consummation of the DMDA, we settled and terminated commitments with limited exceptions under the Delphi-GM
Settlement Agreements, and we and Delphi waived all claims against each other under the Delphi-GM Settlement Agreements.

IUE-CWA and USW Settlement Agreement

In September 2009 we entered into a settlement agreement with MLC, the IUE-CWA and the USW that resolved the DBGA with
these unions. The agreement was approved by the Bankruptcy Court in November 20009.
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Delphi Master Disposition Agreement

In July 2009 we, Delphi and the PBGC negotiated an agreement to be effective upon consummation of the DMDA regarding the
settlement of PBGC’s claims from the termination of the Delphi pension plans and the release of certain liens with the PBGC against
Delphi’s foreign assets. In return, the PBGC received a payment of $70 million from us and was granted a 100% interest in Class C
Membership Interests in New Delphi which provide for the PBGC to participate in predefined equity distributions. We maintain the
obligation to provide the difference between pension benefits paid by the PBGC according to regulation and those originally
guaranteed by Old GM under the DBGA.

In October 2009 we consummated the transaction contemplated by the DMDA with Delphi, New Delphi, Old GM and other sellers
and other buyers that are party to the DMDA, as more fully described in Note 4. Upon consummation of the DMDA we settled our
commitments to Delphi accrued to date except for the obligation to provide the difference between pension benefits paid by the PBGC
according to regulation and those originally guaranteed by Old GM under the DBGA that we continue to maintain.

Delphi Charges

The following table summarizes charges that have been recorded with respect to the various agreements with Delphi (dollars in
millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Through Through
December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Other automotiVe eXPENSES, NEL . . . .. oot e e $ 8 $184
Automotive cost 0f Sales ... ... 193 142
Reorganization gains, Net . . ... ... .t — 662
Total Delphi Charges . ... .. $201 $988

These charges reflect the best estimate of obligations associated with the various Delphi agreements, including obligations under
the DBGA, updated to reflect the DMDA. At July 9, 2009 these charges reflect the obligation to the PBGC upon consummation of the
DMDA, consisting of the estimated fair value of the PBGC Class C Membership Interests in New Delphi of $317 million and the
payment of $70 million due. Further, at July 9, 2009 these charges reflect an estimated value of $966 million pertaining to claims
against Delphi that were waived upon consummation of the DMDA. The estimated value of the claims represents the excess after
settlement of certain pre-existing commitments to Delphi of the fair value of Nexteer, the four domestic facilities and the investment
in New Delphi over the cash consideration paid under the DMDA. Refer to Note 4 for additional information on the total
consideration paid under the DMDA and the allocation of such consideration to the various units of account.

Note 21. Income Taxes
Consolidated

The following table summarizes Income (loss) before income taxes and equity income (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
U.S.INCOME (10SS) ..o et $2,883 $2,648 $(6,647) $105,420
Non-U.S.income ... . 3,102 3,089 1,364 2,356
Income (loss) before income taxes and equity income .. ... $5,985 $5,737 $(5,283) $107,776
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Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

The following table summarizes Income tax expense (benefit) (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Current income tax expense (benefit)
US.federal ...... ... . . $(134) $(10) $ 7 $ (60)
Non-U.S. 275 441 421 (522)
US.stateandlocal .......... ... .. ... . ... ... 58 (1) 1) 16
Total current . ... ... . 199 430 427 __(566)
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)
US.federal ........ ... 8 (25) (1,204) 110
Non-U.S. (289) 259 (52) (716)
US.stateandlocal ................................ (28) 8 (171) 6
Total deferred . ....... . (309) 242 (1,427) (600)
Total income tax expense (benefit) .................... $(110) $672 $(1,000) $(1,166)

Annual tax provisions include amounts considered sufficient to pay assessments that may result from examination of prior year tax

returns.

Provisions are made for estimated U.S. and non-U.S. income taxes, less available tax credits and deductions, which may be incurred
on the remittance of our and Old GM'’s share of basis differences in investments in foreign subsidiaries and corporate joint ventures
not deemed to be indefinitely reinvested. Taxes have not been provided on basis differences in investments in foreign subsidiaries and
corporate joint ventures which are deemed indefinitely reinvested of $6.2 billion and $6.9 billion at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Quantification of the deferred tax liability, if any, associated with indefinitely reinvested earnings is not practicable.

The following table summarizes a reconciliation of Income tax expense (benefit) compared with the amounts at the U.S. federal

statutory rate (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through

December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009

Tax at U.S. federal statutory income tax rate .. ........... $ 2,004 $ 2,008 $(1,849) $ 37,721
State and local tax expense .. ........... ..., 215 334 (559) (260)
Foreign income taxed at otherthan35% ................ 243 1,579 64 (119)
Taxes on unremitted earnings of subsidiaries ............ (537) (10) (151) (12)
Change in valuation allowance ....................... (2,386) (2,903) 1,338 6,609
Changeintaxlaws ......... ... ... (33) — 163 1
Research and development incentives .................. (45) (235) (14) (113)
Gain on sale of Delphi equity interests ................. 599 — — —
Goodwill impairment ........... ... ... 377 — — —
Settlements of prior year tax matters ................... (56) (170) — —
VEBA contribution ........ ... ... o (476) — (328) —
Non-taxable reorganization gain ...................... — — — (45,564)
Foreign currency remeasurement . ..................... 59 143 340 207
Pension contribution .. ........... .. ... .. oo (127) — — —
Other adjustments . .. ... (37) (74) @) 364
Total income tax expense (benefit) .................... $ (110) $ 672 $(1,000) $ (1,166)
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Deferred Income Tax Assets and Liabilities
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2011 and 2010 reflect the effect of temporary differences between
amounts of assets, liabilities and equity for financial reporting purposes and the bases of such assets, liabilities and equity as measured

by tax laws, as well as tax loss and tax credit carryforwards.

The following table summarizes the components of temporary differences and carryforwards that give rise to deferred tax assets
(liabilities) (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010

Deferred tax assets

Postretirement benefits other than pensions .. ........ .. . i $ 3,672 $ 3,884
Pension and other employee benefitplans ........ ... .. . 8,357 7,127
Warranties, dealer and customer allowances, claims and discounts . ........................ 4,015 4,276
Property, plants and eqUIPMENt . . . .. ... o 1,547 2,275
Capitalized research expenditures . .. ... ..ot 5,152 5,033
Tax CarryfOrWardS . . ... 21,199 20,109
Miscellaneous U.S. . ... . e 3,017 2,387
Miscellaneous NON-U.S. ... . 243 357
Total deferred tax assets before valuation allowances .............. .. ..., 47,202 45,448
Less: valuation allowanCes .. ... ..ottt (45,191) (42,979)
Net deferred taX aSSEtS . . ...ttt 2,011 2,469
Deferred tax liabilities
INtangible @SSetS . .. ..t 1,933 2,609
Total deferred tax labilities . ... ... 1,933 2,609
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) . ........ ... . i $ 78 $ (140)

The following table summarizes deferred tax assets (liabilities) (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
Current deferred taX aSSEtS . . ..ttt e $ 525 $ 782
Current deferred tax lHabilities . ... i e e (48) (23)
Non-current deferred taX aSSetS . . . . v\ v it e 514 308
Non-current deferred tax liabilities .. ........ .. . i (913) (1,207)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) . ......... . $ 78 $ (140)
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The following table summarizes the amount and expiration dates of our operating loss and tax credit carryforwards at December 31,
2011 (dollars in millions):

Successor

Expiration Dates Amounts

U.S. federal and state 10SS carryforwards . .. ... .. e 2012-2030  $11,220
Non-U.S. loss and tax credit carryforwards . ......... .. e Indefinite 1,058
Non-U.S. loss and tax credit carryforwards . ......... .. e 2012-2031 4,118
U.S. alternative minimum tax Credit . . ... ... o Indefinite 669
U.S. general busingss Credits (8) . . ... oo .ottt 2017-2031 1,908
U.S. foreign tax Credits . . ..o 2012-2021 2,226
Total loss and tax credit carryforwards . .......... . $21,199

(@) The general business credits are principally composed of research and experimentation credits.
Valuation Allowances

The valuation allowances recognized relate to certain net deferred tax assets in U.S. and non-U.S. jurisdictions. The following table
summarizes the change in the valuation allowance (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Beginningbalance .......... ... ... $42,979 $45,281 $42,666 $ 59,777
Additions (Reversals)
U et 2,411 (2,196) 2,226 (14,474)
Canada . ..o (158) 63 405 (802)
GEIMANY oottt 1 (139) 67 (792)
SPAIN .« ettt 463 378 (40) (200)
BRazil . oot 1) 1 1 (442)
SouthKorea . ... 27 (121) (221) 321
Australia ........ ... (498) (39) 7 190
UK. oo e 141 (121) 109 62
SWedeN ... 6 (58) 33 (1,057)
(011115 AP (180) (70) 28 83
Endingbalance ............... .. ... $45,191 $42,979 $45,281 $ 42,666

In July 2009 Old GM recorded adjustments resulting in a net decrease in valuation allowances of $20.7 billion as a result of the 363
Sale and fresh-start reporting. The net decrease primarily resulted from U.S. federal and state tax attribute reduction of $12.2 billion
related to debt cancellation income, a net difference of $5.5 billion between fresh-start reporting and historical U.S. GAAP bases of
assets and liabilities at entities with valuation allowances, net valuation allowances of $1.7 billion associated with assets and liabilities
retained by MLC, a foreign tax attribute reduction of $0.9 billion and release of valuation allowances of $0.7 billion. In the year ended
December 31, 2011 we recorded an adjustment to the debt cancellation income that resulted from the 363 Sale. The adjustment
resulted in a $2.1 billion increase in valuation allowances related to U.S. Federal and state tax attributes.
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We and Old GM established or released the following significant valuation allowances as a result of a change in our evaluation of
deferred tax asset realizability (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Established (released) by jurisdiction
Brazil ... ... . . $ — $— $— $(465)
Various non-U.S. . ... $ — $— $— $(286)
Australia . ... $(502) $— $— $ —

Old GM accumulated pre-tax losses in the U.S. and various non-U.S. jurisdictions. These historical pre-tax losses were driven by
several factors including but not limited to instability of the global economic environment, automotive price competition, relatively
high cost structure, unfavorable commaodity prices, unfavorable regulatory and tax environments and a challenging foreign currency
exchange environment. By December 31, 2008, after weighing this objective and verifiable negative evidence with all other available
positive and negative evidence, Old GM determined it was more likely than not it would not realize its deferred tax assets, and
established valuation allowances for major jurisdictions including the U.S., Canada, Brazil, Australia, South Korea, Germany, Spain
and the United Kingdom. Additional concerns arose related to the U.S. parent company’s liquidity which led us to establish valuation
allowances for Texas and various non-U.S. jurisdictions, even though many of these jurisdictions had historical profits and no other
significant negative evidence factors.

In 2009 the U.S. parent company liquidity concerns were resolved in connection with the Chapter 11 Proceedings and the 363 Sale,
and many non-U.S. jurisdictions, including Brazil, were generating and projecting taxable income. To the extent there were no other
significant negative evidence factors, Old GM determined it was more likely than not it would realize its deferred tax assets and
reversed valuation allowances in Brazil and various non-U.S. jurisdictions.

Although we have a short history as a new company, and our ability to achieve future profitability was enhanced by the cost and
liability reductions that occurred as a result of the Chapter 11 Proceedings and 363 Sale, Old GM’s historic operating results remain
relevant as they are reflective of the industry and the effect of economic conditions. The fundamental businesses and inherent risks in
which we globally operate did not change from those in which Old GM operated. As such, subsequent to the Chapter 11 Proceedings
and the 363 Sale, due primarily to historical pre-tax losses, at December 31, 2011 we determined it was still more likely than not the
deferred tax assets would not be realized in major jurisdictions including the U.S., Canada, South Korea, Germany, Spain and the
United Kingdom. If additional positive evidence becomes available our conclusion regarding the need for full valuation allowances in
these jurisdictions could change, resulting in the reversal of some or all of the valuation allowances.

At December 31, 2011 we determined in Australia it was more likely than not we would realize deferred tax assets in the future due
primarily to sustained profitability and projected taxable income in an unlimited carryforward jurisdiction; accordingly, we reversed
the valuation allowance in this jurisdiction.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The following table summarizes gross unrecognized tax benefits before valuation allowances and the amount that would favorably
affect the effective tax rate in future periods after valuation allowances (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010

Gross unrecognized tax benefits before valuation allowances ............................. $2,370 $5,169
Amount of unrecognized tax benefit that would favorably affect effective tax rate in future .. ... $ 326 $ 785
Amount of liability for uncertain tax positions benefits netted against deferred tax assets in the

same JUrisdiction (3) .. ...ttt $1,285 $3,605

(@ The remaining uncertain tax positions are classified as current and non-current liabilities.
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The following table summarizes activity of the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009

Year Ended Year Ended Through Through

December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Beginning balance . ........ ... . $ 5,169 $5,410 $4,096 $2,803
Additions to current year tax positions ................... 129 195 1,454 1,493
Additions to prior years’ tax positions ................... 562 803 22 594
Reductions to current year tax positions .................. — — (44) (25)
Reductions to prior years’ tax positions .................. (1,002) (475) (128) (626)

Reductions in tax positions due to lapse of statutory

limitations . ....... ... . . (64) (18) — (281)
Settlements . ... ... (2,399) (761) (1112) (16)
OthEr (25) 15 121 154
Endingbalance .......... ... ... $ 2,370 $5,169 $5,410 $4,096

The following tables summarize information regarding income tax related interest and penalties (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
INterest iNCOME ... ...t $ 7 $13 $— $249
Interest expense (benefit) (@) .......... ... L. $(113) $20 $30 $(31)
Penalties (2) ... $ (25) $1 $— $ 30

(@ The interest and penalty benefit for the year ended December 31, 2011 is due primarily to remeasurements, settlements and
statute expirations.

Successor
December 31,2011 December 31, 2010
Accrued interest payable . .. ... ... $103 $250
ACCIUEA PENAILIES . . . .\t $ 89 $119

Other Matters

Most of the tax attributes generated by Old GM and its domestic and foreign subsidiaries (net operating loss carryforwards and
various income tax credits) survived the Chapter 11 Proceedings, and we are using or expect to use the tax attributes to reduce future
tax liabilities. The ability to utilize certain of the U.S. tax attributes in future tax periods could be limited by Section 382 of the
Internal Revenue Code. On November 1, 2010 we amended our certificate of incorporation to minimize the likelihood of an
ownership change occurring for Section 382 purposes. We have net operating loss carryforwards in Germany through November 30,
2009 that, as a result of reorganizations that took place in 2008 and 2009, were not recorded as deferred tax assets. Depending on the
outcome of European court decisions these loss carryforwards may be available to reduce future taxable income in Germany. In
Australia, we have net operating loss carryforwards which are subject to meeting a “Same Business Test” requirement that we assess
on a quarterly basis.

In the U.S., we have continuing responsibility for Old GM’s open tax years. Old GM’s federal income tax returns for 2007 and

2008 were audited by the Internal Revenue Service and the review was substantially concluded in the year ended December 31, 2011.
Income tax returns are filed in multiple jurisdictions and are subject to examination by taxing authorities throughout the world. We
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have open tax years from 2002 to 2011 with various significant tax jurisdictions. These open years contain matters that could be
subject to differing interpretations of applicable tax laws and regulations as they relate to the amount, character, timing or inclusion of
revenue and expenses or the sustainability of income tax credits for a given audit cycle. Given the global nature of our operations,
there is a risk that transfer pricing disputes may arise.

In May 2009 the U.S. and Canadian governments resolved a transfer pricing matter for Old GM which covered the tax years 2001
through 2007. In the three months ended June 30, 2009 this resolution resulted in a tax benefit of $692 million and interest of $229
million. Final administrative processing of the Canadian case closing occurred in late 2009, and final administrative processing of the
U.S. case closing occurred in February 2010.

In June 2010 a Mexican income tax audit covering the 2002 and 2003 tax years was concluded and an assessment of $146 million
including tax, interest and penalties was issued. We believe we have adequate reserves established. Collection of any assessment will
be suspended until a revised assessment is issued and during any subsequent proceedings through U.S. and Mexican competent
authorities. We expect a revised assessment to be issued no earlier than March 2012.

In November 2010 an agreement was reached with the Canadian government to resolve various income tax matters in the years
2003 through 2009. In the three months ended December 31, 2010 this resolution resulted in a tax benefit of $140 million including
interest.

In June 2011 we settled a Brazilian income tax matter for $241 million that was reserved and disclosed in a prior period.
In the year ended December 31, 2011 certain issues were resolved relating to uncertain tax positions in jurisdictions which have full
valuation allowances. The resolution of these matters resulted in a $2.7 billion reduction to gross uncertain positions. No tax benefit

was recognized with respect to these reductions because the entities were in full valuation allowance jurisdictions or the amounts were
reserved in a prior period.

At December 31, 2011 it is not possible to reasonably estimate the expected change to the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits
in the next twelve months.

Note 22. Restructuring and Other Initiatives
Automotive

We have and Old GM had previously executed various restructuring and other initiatives, and we plan to execute additional
initiatives in the future, if necessary, in order to align manufacturing capacity and other costs with prevailing global automotive

production and to improve the utilization of remaining facilities. Related charges are recorded in Automotive cost of sales and
Automotive selling, general and administrative expense.
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The following table summarizes the reserves related to restructuring and other initiatives (excluding restructuring reserves related to
dealer wind-down agreements) and charges by segment, including postemployment benefit reserves and charges (dollars in millions):

GM
Successor
GMNA GME GMIO GMSA  Total

Balance at July 10,2009 ... ... i $2,905 $433 $ 32 $16 $3,386
AAIIONS .« o 44 37 76 9 166
Interest accretion and Other .. ... .. 15 35 — — 50
P NI S o et (994) (61) (109) (19) (1,183)
ReVISIONS t0 8StIMALES . . . .. oot 30 — 1 3) 28
Effect of foreign CUrrenCy . . ... o 88 7 3 1 99
Balance at December 31,2009 (2) .. ... vv it 2,088 451 3 4 2,546
AdAItIONS . o 50 734 1 2 787
Interest accretion and other .. ... .. 36 114 — — 150
Py MBS oot (712) (589) 1) (M) (1,309)
ReVISIONS t0 6StIMateS . . . ..ot (361) (8) — 1 (368)
Effect of foreign CUMrenCy . ... . o 34 (38) — — 4)
Balance at December 31,2010 (8) .. .. vttt 1,135 664 3 — 1,802
AdAItIONS ..o 82 344 — 80 506
Interest accretion and Other .. ... .. .. 22 105 — 1 128
P Y MBS o (366) (395) (2) (68) (831)
ReViSions t0 eStIMAteS . . .. ... 19 9) — — 10
Effect of fOreign CUrrency . .. ... 8) (22 — (1) (31)
Balance at December 31, 2011 (2) .....ooiiiiiii i $ 884 $687 $ 1 $12 $1,584

(@ The remaining cash payments related to these reserves for restructuring and other initiatives, including temporary layoff benefits
for GMNA, primarily relate to postemployment benefits to be paid.

Year Ended December 31, 2011

GMNA recorded charges, interest accretion and other and revisions to estimates primarily related to special attrition programs for
skilled trade U.S. hourly employees, service cost for hourly layoff benefits and Canadian restructuring activities.

Our labor agreement includes cash severance incentive programs which may range up to $100 million through March 31, 2012 for
skilled trade U.S. hourly employees that will be included in our restructuring liability upon irrevocable acceptances by both parties.

GME recorded charges, interest accretion and other for separation programs primarily related to previously announced programs in
Germany. Restructuring and early retirement programs in Spain, the U.K. and Belgium were essentially completed in 2010 and we
also initiated a program in Germany in 2010. Through December 31, 2011 these programs had a total cost of $1.1 billion and affected
a total of 6,700 employees and included the December 2010 closure of the Antwerp, Belgium facility. We expect to incur an
additional $100 million to complete these programs, which will affect an additional 500 employees. To the extent these programs
involve voluntary separations, no liabilities are recorded until offers to employees are accepted. If employees are involuntarily
terminated, a liability is recorded at the communication date.

GMSA recorded charges, interest accretion and other for separation programs primarily related to the voluntary separation program
in Brazil implemented in the three months ended December 31, 2011. A total of 900 employees in Brazil participated in the separation
program at a total cost of $74 million. Liabilities were recorded as offers to the employees were irrevocably accepted.
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Year Ended December 31, 2010
GMNA recorded charges, interest accretion and other, and revisions to estimates primarily related to increased production capacity
utilization, which resulted in the recall of idled employees to fill added shifts at multiple U.S. production sites and revisions to

productivity initiatives, partially offset by Canadian restructuring activities.

GME recorded charges, interest accretion and other, and revisions to estimates for separation programs primarily related to the
following initiatives:

e Separation charges of $527 million related to the closure of the Antwerp, Belgium facility which affected 2,600 employees.

e Separation charges of $63 million related to separation/layoff plans and an early retirement plan in Spain which ultimately
affected 1,200 employees.

e Separation charges of $31 million related to a voluntary separation program in the United Kingdom.

o Separation charges of $95 million and interest accretion and other of $104 million related to a voluntary separation program in
Germany.

Period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009

GMNA recorded charges, interest accretion and other, and revisions to estimates for separation programs primarily related to the
following:

* The restructuring reserves were increased by $213 million due to an increase in the SUB and TSP accrual of $183 million
related to capacity actions, productivity initiatives, acquisition of Nexteer and four domestic facilities and Canadian
restructuring activities of $30 million.

* The salaried and hourly workforce severance accruals were reduced by $146 million as a result of elections subsequently made
by terminating employees. Such amounts were reclassified as special termination benefits and were funded from the U.S.
defined benefit pension plans and other applicable retirement benefit plans.

GME recorded charges, interest accretion and other, and revisions to estimates primarily related to separation charges for early
retirement programs and additional liability adjustments, primarily in Germany.

GMIO recorded charges, interest accretion and other, and revisions to estimates primarily related to separation charges of $72
million for restructuring programs in Australia for salaried and hourly employees.
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Old GM
The following table summarizes the reserves related to restructuring and other initiatives (excluding restructuring reserves related

to dealer wind-down agreements) and charges by segment, including postemployment benefit reserves and charges (dollars in
millions):

Predecessor
GMNA GME GMIO GMSA  Total
Balance at January 1, 2009 .. ... ...ttt $2456 $468 $45 $13 $2982
AAITIONS . .o 1,835 20 27 38 1,920
Interest accretion and Other . ... . . 16 11 — — 27
Py MENS . . oo (1,014) (65) (43) (48) (1,170)
ReVISIONS t0 eStIMALES . . . .. oot (401) — — 9 (392)
Effect of foreign CUrrency . . ... ... 50 (€D)] 3 4 56
Balance at July 9, 2009 . ... ..o it 2,942 433 32 16 3,423
Effect of application of fresh-start reporting ... ......... ... i @37 — — — (37)
Ending balance including effect of application of fresh-start reporting (@) ............. $2905 $433 $32 $16 $3,386

(@) The remaining cash payments related to these reserves for restructuring and other initiatives, including temporary layoff benefits
for GMNA, primarily relate to postemployment benefits to be paid.

GMNA recorded charges, interest accretion and other, and revisions to estimates for separation programs related to the following
initiatives:
»  Postemployment benefit charges in the U.S. of $825 million related to 13,000 hourly employees who participated in the 2009

special attrition programs.

e SUB and TSP related charges in the U.S. of $707 million, recorded as an additional liability determined by an actuarial
analysis at the implementation of the SUB and TSP and related suspension of the JOBS Program.

* Revisions to estimates of $401 million to decrease the reserve, primarily related to $335 million for the suspension of the
JOBS Program and $141 million for estimated future wages and benefits due to employees who participated in the 2009
special attrition programs; offset by a net increase of $86 million related to Canadian salaried workforce reductions and other
restructuring initiatives in Canada.

e Separation charges of $250 million for a U.S. salaried severance program to allow 6,000 terminated employees to receive
ongoing wages and benefits for up to 12 months.

»  Postemployment benefit charges in Canada of $38 million related to 380 hourly employees who participated in a special
attrition program.

GME recorded charges, interest accretion and other, and revisions to estimates primarily related to separation charges for early
retirement programs and additional liability adjustments, primarily in Germany.

GMIO recorded charges, interest accretion and other, and revisions to estimates primarily related to separation charges in Australia
of $19 million related to a facility idling. The program affects employees who left through December 2009.

GMSA recorded charges, interest accretion and other, and revisions to estimates related to voluntary and involuntary separation
programs in South America affecting 3,300 salaried and hourly employees.
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Dealer Wind-downs

GM and Old GM

We market vehicles worldwide through a network of independent retail dealers and distributors. We determined that a reduction in

the number of GMNA dealerships was necessary.

The following table summarizes GMNA’s restructuring reserves related to dealer wind-down agreements (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Balance at beginning of period ....................... $ 144 $ 501 $ 516 $ —
Additions and revisions to estimates ................... (8) 7 275 518
PaYMeNtS ... (111) (366) (285) 2
Transferto legal reserve ........... .. ... ... ... ... — — @an —
Effect of foreigncurrency .............. ... ... ....... — 2 12 —
Balance atend of period ................... .. ... .. $ 25 $ 144 $ 501 $516
Note 23. Other Automotive Expenses, net
The following table summarizes the components of Other automotive expenses, net (dollars in millions):
Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Operating and other expenses (income) ................ $56 $ () $(35) $ 22
Expenses related to Saab deconsolidation, net (Note 4) . . .. — — (60) 824
Saab impairmentcharges . .......... ... . oL — — — 88
Delphi related charges (Note 20) .. .................... — — 8 184
Depreciation and amortization expense ................ 2 125 89 101
INterest eXpense . ... — — 13 16
Total other automotive expenses, net .................. $58 $118 $15 $1,235

Interest expense and depreciation and amortization expense recorded in Other automotive expenses, net relates to a portfolio of

automotive retail leases.
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Note 24. Interest Income and Other Non-Operating Income, net
Automotive

The following table summarizes the components of Interest income and other non-operating income, net (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through

December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
INterest iNCOME ... ...ttt $455 $ 465 $ 184 $183
Net gains on derivatives ............... ... ... 41 68 278 —
Rental income . .......... i 149 164 88 100
Dividends and royalties ................ ... 153 213 105 145
Other (8) . .o v vt 53 621 (280) 424

Total interest income and other non-operating income,

DBt $851 $1,531 $ 375 $852

(@ Amounts in the year ended December 31, 2011 include impairment charges related to the cost method investment in Ally
Financial of $555 million, a gain on the sale of Ally Financial preferred shares of $339 million, and recognition of deferred
income from technology agreements with SGMW of $113 million. Amounts in the year ended December 31, 2010 include a gain
on the reversal of an accrual for contingently issuable Adjustment Shares of $162 million, a gain on the sale of Saab of $123
million, a gain on the acquisition of GMS of $66 million and a gain on the sale of Nexteer of $60 million. Amounts in the period
July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009 include impairment charges related to Ally Financial common stock of $270 million.

Note 25. Stockholders’ Equity and Noncontrolling Interests
Consolidated
Preferred Stock

The following table summarizes significant features relating to our preferred stock (dollars in millions, except for per share
amounts):

Successor
Dividends Paid
Liquidation Dividend July 10, 2009
Preference Rate Year Ended Year Ended Through
Per Share  Per Annum December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009
Series A Preferred Stock ....................... $25.00 9.00% $621 $810 $349
Series B Preferred Stock ....................... $50.00 4.75% $243 $ —

Series A Preferred Stock

The Series A Preferred Stock ranks senior with respect to liquidation preference and dividend rights to our common stock and
Series B Preferred Stock and any other class or series of stock that we may issue. In the event of any voluntary or involuntary
liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of our affairs, a holder of Series A Preferred Stock will be entitled to be paid, before any
distribution or payment may be made to any holders of common stock or Series B Preferred Stock, the liquidation amount and the
amount of any accrued and unpaid dividends, if any, whether or not declared, prior to such distribution or payment date. On or after
December 31, 2014, the Series A Preferred Stock may be redeemed, in whole or in part, for cash at a price per share equal to the
$25.00 per share liquidation amount, plus any accrued and unpaid dividends. Upon a redemption or purchase of any or all Series A
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Preferred Stock, the difference, if any, between the recorded amount of the Series A Preferred Stock being redeemed or purchased and
the consideration paid would be recorded as a charge to Net income attributable to common stockholders. If all of the Series A
Preferred Stock were to be redeemed or purchased at its par value, the amount of the charge would be $1.4 billion.

In December 2010 we purchased 84 million shares of Series A Preferred Stock, held by the UST, at a price equal to 102% of the
aggregate liquidation amount, for $2.1 billion. The purchase of the UST’s Series A Preferred Stock resulted in a charge of $0.7 billion
recorded in Cumulative dividends on and charge related to purchase of preferred stock.

Series B Preferred Stock

The Series B Preferred Stock, with respect to dividend rights and rights upon our liquidation, winding-up or dissolution, ranks:
(1) senior to our common stock and to each other class of capital stock or series of preferred stock the terms of which do not expressly
provide that such class or series ranks senior to, or on a parity with, the Series B Preferred Stock; (2) on a parity with any class of
capital stock or series of preferred stock the terms of which expressly provide that such class or series will rank on a parity with the
Series B Preferred Stock; and (3) junior to our Series A Preferred Stock and to each class of capital stock or series of preferred stock
the terms of which expressly provide that such class or series will rank senior to the Series B Preferred Stock.

Each share of the Series B Preferred Stock, unless previously converted, will automatically convert on December 1, 2013 into
shares of our common stock. The number of shares of our common stock issuable upon mandatory conversion of each share of
Series B Preferred Stock, is determined based on the applicable market value of our common stock subject to anti-dilution
adjustments and accumulated and unpaid dividends. The applicable market value of our common stock is the average of the closing
prices of our common stock over the 40 consecutive trading day period ending on the third trading day immediately preceding the
mandatory conversion date. Holders of the Series B Preferred Stock have the right to convert their shares at any time prior to the
mandatory conversion date at a conversion ratio of 1.2626 shares of our common stock for each share of the Series B Preferred Stock
that is optionally converted, subject to anti-dilution, make-whole and other adjustments.

If the applicable market value of our common stock upon mandatory conversion falls within a range of $33.00-$39.60 per common
share, the holder receives a variable number of shares of our common stock with a value equal to the liquidation preference plus
accumulated dividends. If the applicable market value is not within this range, there is a fixed conversion ratio equaling 1.2626 shares
of common stock for each share of Series B Preferred Stock when the applicable market value of our common stock is greater than
$39.60, and 1.5152 shares of common stock for each share of Series B Preferred Stock when the applicable market value of our
common stock is less than $33.00. The fixed conversion ratios will be adjusted for events that would otherwise dilute a Series B
Preferred Stockholder’s interest. These anti-dilution provisions provide a holder of the Series B Preferred Stock a right to participate
in our undistributed earnings because a dividend, if declared, would result in a transfer of value to the holder through an adjustment to
the fixed conversion ratios. Based on the nature of the Series B Preferred Stock and the nature of these anti-dilution provisions, we
have concluded that the Series B Preferred Stock is a participating security and, as such, the application of the two-class method for
computing earnings per share is required when the applicable market value of our common stock is below $33.00 or above $39.60 per
share. For purposes of calculating earnings per share, the applicable market value is calculated as the average of the closing prices of
our common stock over the 40 consecutive trading day period ending on the third trading day immediately preceding the date of our
financial statements. The calculation of the applicable market value at the date of our financial statements will apply to the full year,
irrespective of the applicable market value computed during the prior quarters of the current year. Refer to Note 26 for a description
of the effect of the two-class method on earnings per share.

Common Stock
Holders of our common stock are entitled to dividends at the sole discretion of our Board of Directors. However, the terms of the
Series A Preferred Stock and Series B Preferred Stock prohibit, subject to exceptions, the payment of dividends on our common stock,

unless all accrued and unpaid dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock and Series B Preferred Stock are paid in full. Holders of
common stock are entitled to one vote per share on all matters submitted to our stockholders for a vote. The liquidation rights of
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holders of our common stock are secondary to the payment or provision for payment of all our debts and liabilities and to holders of
our Series A Preferred Stock and Series B Preferred Stock, if any such shares are then outstanding. In the year ended December 31,
2011 we issued 61 million shares of common stock to the U.S. hourly and salaried pension plans, four million shares for exercised
warrants, and 500 thousand shares for the settlement of salary and other restricted stock awards. In the year ended December 31, 2010
we issued 100 thousand shares of restricted common stock.

Warrants

In connection with the 363 Sale we issued two tranches of warrants, each to acquire 136 million shares of common stock, to MLC
which have been substantially distributed to creditors of Old GM by MLC and one tranche of warrants to acquire 46 million shares of
common stock to the New VEBA. The first tranche of MLC warrants is exercisable at any time prior to July 10, 2016 at an exercise
price of $10.00 per share and the second tranche of MLC warrants is exercisable at any time prior to July 10, 2019 at an exercise price
of $18.33 per share. In April 2011 MLC began distribution of its warrants for our common stock to its unsecured creditors. Upon
exercise of the warrants, the shares issued will be included in the number of basic shares outstanding used in the computation of
earnings per share. The New VEBA warrants are exercisable at any time prior to December 31, 2015 at an exercise price of $42.31
per share. The number of shares of common stock underlying each of the warrants and the per share exercise price are subject to
adjustment as a result of certain events, including stock splits, reverse stock splits and stock dividends. The outstanding balance of
warrants at December 31, 2011 and 2010 is 313 million and 318 million.

Noncontrolling Interests

In October 2009 we completed our participation in an equity rights offering in GM Korea for $417 million. As a result of the
participation in the equity rights offering our ownership interest in GM Korea increased from 50.9% to 70.1%. In March 2011 we
completed the acquisition of an additional 6.9% in GM Korea. After completing this transaction we now own 77.0% of the
outstanding shares.

In December 2009 we acquired the remaining noncontrolling interest of a joint venture for $100 million increasing our ownership
interest from 50% to 100%. This transaction resulted in no charge to Capital surplus.

The table below summarizes the changes in equity resulting from Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders and
transfers from (to) noncontrolling interests changes (dollars in millions):

Successor
July 10, 2009
For The Year Ended Through
December 31,2011  December 31, 2009
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders ................... ... ... ....... $7,585 $(4,428)
Increase in capital surplus resulting from GM Korea equity rights offering ................. — 108
Increase in capital surplus resulting from acquisition of additional interest in GM Korea . ... .. 41 —
Changes from net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders and transfers from (to)
noncontrolling INTErestS . . ... ... i e $7,626 $(4,320)
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The following table summarizes the components of Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes (dollars in
millions):

Successor
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2011 2010 2009
Foreign currency translation gain . ... $ 215 $ 394 $ 157
Cash flow hedging gains (10SSes), Net . . ... ...t 2 (23) (1)
Net unrealized gain (10SS) ON SECUNTIES .. ... ottt 4) (5) 2
Defined benefit plans, net . ... ... (6,074) 885 1,430
Accumulated other comprehensive income (I0SS) .. ...t $(5,861) $1,251 $1,588

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The following tables summarize the components of Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to common stockholders
(dollars in millions):

Successor
Year Ended December 31, 2011 Year Ended December 31, 2010
Pre-tax  Tax Expense Net Pre-tax  Tax Expense Net
Amount (Benefit) Amount Amount (Benefit) Amount
Foreign currency translation gain (Ioss) ....................... $ (186) $— $ (186) $210 $— $ 210
Cash flow hedging gain (losses), net .......... ... .. ... .. ..... 15 — 15 (22) — (22)
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities ..., 1 — 1 (7 — @)
Defined benefit plans
Prior service benefit from plan amendments ................. 302 1 301 7 1 6
Less: amortization of prior service cost included in net periodic
benefitcost ....... .. (52) — (52) (12) — (12)
Net prior service benefit (cost) .......... ... ... ... ... ..., 250 1 249 (5) 1 (6)
Actuarial gain (loss) from plan measurements . ............... (7,578) (10) (7,568)  (530) 34 (564)
Less: amortization of actuarial loss included in net periodic
benefitcost (8) ...... ..o 421 5 416 25 — 25
Net actuarial amounts . ......... ... ... i (7,157) (5) (7,152)  (505) 34 (539)
Defined benefitplans, net . ........ .. ... ... ... . L (6,907) 4) (6,903) (510) 35 (545)
Sale of interest in nonconsolidated affiliate .................... (42) — (42) — — —
Other comprehensive income (10SS) . .......... ...t (7,119) 4) (7,115) (329) 35 (364)
Less: other comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling
INEerEStS . . (10) — (120) (13) — (13)
Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to common
stockholders . ......... ... ... $(7,109) $ (4) $(7,105) $(316) $35 $(351)

(@) Includes the Canadian healthcare trust settlement. Refer to Note 18.
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Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Through Through
December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Tax Tax
Pre-tax  Expense Net Pre-tax ~ Expense Net
Amount (Benefit) Amount Amount  (Benefit) Amount
Foreign currency translationgain ............................... $ 135 $ 11 $ 124 $ 187 $ 40 $ 147
Cash flow hedging gains (losses), net . ............ ... .. .. c.... (1) — 1) 145 (131) 276
Unrealized gain on SECUritieS . . ... ..o 7 5 2 46 — 46
Defined benefit plans
Prior service benefit (cost) from plan amendments .. .............. 112 130 (18) (3,882) (1,551) (2,331)
Less: amortization of prior service cost included in net periodic
benefit cost . ... ... i — — — 5,162 3 5,159
Net prior service benefit (cost) .......... ... ... .. . i 112 130 (18) 1,280 (1,548) 2,828
Actuarial loss from plan measurements ........................ 2,702 1,247 1,455 (2,574) 1,532 (4,106)
Less: amortization of actuarial loss included in net periodic benefit
07015 (6) 1 @) (2,109) 22 (2,131)
Net actuarial amounts ............ ... i 2,696 1,248 1,448 (4,683) 1,554 (6,237)
Net transition assets from plan initiations . ...................... — — — 6 1 5
Less: amortization of transition asset/obligation included in net
periodic benefitcost ....... ... ... . ... — — — (5) 1) 4)
Net transition amounts . .. ... — — — 1 — 1
Defined benefitplans, net ........... ... .. .. . 2,808 1,378 1,430 (3,402) 6 (3,408)
Other comprehensive income (10SS) . ........... ... ... 2,949 1,394 1,555 (3,024) (85) (2,939)
Less: other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to
noncontrolling interests ............ ... i (33) — (33) 92 — 92
Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to common
stockholders . ... ... $2,982 $1,394 $1,588 $(3,116) $ (85) $(3,031)

Note 26. Earnings (Loss) Per Share

In the year ended December 31, 2011 we were required to use the two-class method for calculating earnings per share, as further
discussed below, as the applicable market value of our common stock was below $33.00 per common share in the period ended
December 31, 2011.

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share are computed by dividing Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders by the

weighted-average common shares outstanding in the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed by giving effect to all
potentially dilutive securities that were outstanding.
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The following table summarizes basic and dilutive earnings (loss) per share (in millions, except for per share amounts):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through January 1, 2009
December 31, December 31, December 31, Through
2011 2010 2009 July 9, 2009
Basic earnings (loss) per share
Net income (loss) attributable to stockholders (&) ................... $9,190 $6,172 $(4,297) $109,118
Less: cumulative dividends on and charge related to purchase of
preferred stock and undistributed earnings allocated to Series B
Preferred Stock participating security (b) ........... ... ... ..., 1,605 1,504 131 —
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders . .............. $7,585 $4,668 $(4,428) $109,118
Weighted-average common shares outstanding — basic ........... 1,536 1,500 1,238 611
Basic earnings (loss) pershare ................oiiiiiiiinniniiin. $ 4.94 $ 3.11 $ (3.58) $ 178.63
Diluted earnings (loss) per share
Net income (loss) attributable to stockholders () ................... $9,190 $6,172 $(4,297) $109,118
Add: preferred dividends to holders of Series B Preferred Stock .. ... ... — 25 — —
Less: cumulative dividends on and charge related to purchase of
preferred stock and undistributed earnings allocated to Series B
Preferred Stock participating security (C) ........... ... 1,552 1,504 131 —
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders . .............. $7,638 $4,693 $(4,428) $109,118
Weighted-average shares outstanding — diluted
Weighted-average common shares outstanding — basic .............. 1,536 1,500 1,238 611
Dilutive effect of warrants ........... ... ... . 130 106 — —
Dilutive effect of conversion of Series B Preferred Stock ............. — 17 — —
Dilutive effect of restricted stock units (RSUS) ..................... 2 1 — —
Weighted-average common shares outstanding — diluted ............ 1,668 1,624 1,238 611
Diluted earnings (loss) pershare ............coviiiiiiiiniiiinnnn. $ 4.58 $ 2.89 $ (3.58) $ 178.55

(@)

(b)

(©)

Includes earned but undeclared dividends of $26 million, $26 million and $34 million on our Series A Preferred Stock and $20
million, $25 million and $0 on our Series B Preferred Stock in the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 and in the period
July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009.

Includes cumulative dividends on preferred stock of $859 million and earnings of $746 million that have been allocated to the
Series B Preferred Stock holders in the year ended December 31, 2011; cumulative dividends on preferred stock of $827 million
and a charge related to the purchase of Series A Preferred Stock of $677 million in the year ended December 31, 2010; and
cumulative dividends on preferred stock of $131 million in the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009, which excludes
dividends of $252 million which were paid to the New VEBA prior to December 31, 2009, as these shares were not considered
outstanding until December 31, 2009 due to the terms of the 2009 UAW Retiree Settlement Agreement. Payments made to the
New VEBA were recorded as employer contributions and included in Net income (loss) attributable to stockholders.

Includes cumulative dividends on preferred stock of $859 million and earnings of $693 million that have been allocated to the
Series B Preferred Stock holders in the year ended December 31, 2011; cumulative dividends on preferred stock of $827 million
and a charge related to the purchase of Series A Preferred Stock of $677 million in the year ended December 31, 2010; and
cumulative dividends on preferred stock of $131 million in the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009.
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GM
Year Ended December 31, 2011

We applied the two-class method to calculate basic earnings per share and the more dilutive of the two-class or the if-converted
method to calculate diluted earnings per share. Under the two-class method for computing earnings per share, undistributed earnings
are allocated to common stock and the Series B Preferred Stock according to their respective participation rights in undistributed
earnings, as if all the earnings for the period had been distributed. This allocation to the Series B Preferred Stock holders reduced Net
income attributable to common stockholders, resulting in a lower basic and dilutive earnings per share amount. Variability may result
in our calculation of earnings per share from period to period depending on whether the application of the two-class method is
required. Refer to Note 25 for a description of the Series B Preferred Stock and the application of the two-class method.

The application of the two-class method resulted in an allocation of undistributed earnings to our Series B Preferred Stock holders
and, accordingly, 152 million common stock equivalents from the assumed conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock are not
considered outstanding for purposes of determining the weighted-average common shares outstanding in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

MLC distributed all of its 272 million warrants for our common stock to its unsecured creditors and the GUC Trust. The warrant
holders may exercise the warrants at any time prior to their respective expiration dates. Upon exercise of the warrants the shares
issued will be included in the number of basic shares outstanding used in the computation of earnings per share.

Warrants to purchase 313 million shares of our common stock were outstanding at December 31, 2011, of which 46 million shares
were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the warrants’ exercise price was greater than the average
market price of the common shares. Under the treasury stock method, the assumed exercise of the remaining warrants resulted in
130 million dilutive shares.

Diluted earnings per share included the effect of 13 million unvested RSUs granted to certain global executives. The Adjustment
Shares were excluded from the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share as the condition that would result in the issuance
of the Adjustment Shares was not satisfied.

In July 2011 the 61 million shares of common stock contributed to our pension plans in January 2011 met the criteria to qualify as
plan assets for accounting purposes. These shares were considered outstanding for earnings per share purposes beginning in July
2011.

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Warrants to purchase 318 million shares of our common stock were outstanding, of which 46 million shares were not included in
the computation of diluted earnings per share because the warrants’ exercise price was greater than the average market price of our
common stock. Under the treasury stock method, the assumed exercise of warrants to purchase the remaining warrants resulted in
106 million dilutive shares.

Diluted earnings per share included the effect of 11 million unvested RSUs granted to certain global executives. The dilutive effect
of the RSUs was included only for the period subsequent to our public offering as the RSUs prior were accounted for as liability
awards prior to that date. The Adjustment Shares were excluded from the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share as the
condition that would result in the issuance of the Adjustment Shares was not satisfied.

Period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009

Outstanding warrants to purchase 272 million shares of common stock were not included in the computation of diluted loss per
share because the effect would have been antidilutive and 1 million RSUs were excluded from the computation of diluted loss per
share as these awards were payable in cash during that time. The Adjustment Shares were excluded from the computation of basic and
diluted loss per share as the condition that would result in the issuance of the Adjustment Shares was not satisfied.
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Old GM
Period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009

Diluted earnings per share included the potential effect of the assumed exercise of certain stock options. Old GM excluded
208 million stock options and warrants in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the exercise price was greater than
the average market price of the common shares. No shares potentially issuable to satisfy the in-the-money amount of Old GM’s
convertible debentures were included in the computation of diluted earnings per share as the conversion options in various series of
convertible debentures were not in the money.

Note 27. Stock Incentive Plans
Consolidated
GM

Our stock incentive plans consist of the 2009 Long-Term Incentive Plan as amended December 22, 2010 (2009 GMLTIP) and the
Salary Stock Plan as amended October 5, 2010 (GMSSP). Both plans are administered by the Executive Compensation Committee of
our Board of Directors. The aggregate number of shares with respect to which awards may be granted under these amended plans
shall not exceed 75 million.

Long-Term Incentive Plan

We granted 5 million and 15 million RSUs valued at the grant date fair value of our common stock in the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 and no RSUs in the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009. These awards granted either cliff
vest or ratably vest generally over a three-year service period, as defined in the terms of each award. We have elected to record
compensation cost for these awards on a straight-line basis over the entire vesting period. Our policy is to issue new shares upon
settlement of RSUs.

The 2011 awards granted to the Top 25 highest compensated employees will settle three years from the grant date in 25%
increments in conjunction with each 25% of our Troubled Asset Relief Program (TARP) obligations that are repaid. The awards for
the Next 75 highest compensated employees will settle either: (1) three years from the date of grant; or (2) on the first and third
anniversary dates of grant. The awards to the non-Top 100 highest compensated employees will settle on the first, second and third
anniversary dates of grant. Vesting and subsequent settlement will generally occur based upon employment at the end of each
specified service period.

The 2010 awards granted to the Top 25 highest compensated employees will settle three years from the grant date in 25%
increments in conjunction with each 25% of our TARP obligations that are repaid. The awards for the non-top 25 highest
compensated employees will settle after three years in 25% increments in conjunction with each 25% of the U.S. and Canadian
government loans that are repaid. The U.S. and Canadian government loans were fully repaid in April 2010, thus these awards will be
settled upon completion of the remaining three year service period.

Retirement eligible participants that are non-Top 25 highest compensated employees who retire during the service period will retain
and vest in a pro-rata portion of RSUs earned. The vested award will be payable on the settlement date. Compensation cost for these
employees is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period.

Salary Stock

In November 2009 we initiated a salary stock program whereby a portion of each participant’s total annual compensation was
accrued and converted to RSUs at each salary payment date. In the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 a portion of each
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participant’s salary accrued on each salary payment date converted to RSUs on a quarterly basis. The awards are fully vested and
nonforfeitable upon grant therefore compensation cost is fully recognized on the date of grant. The awards are settled quarterly over a
three year period commencing on the first anniversary date of grant. Our policy is to issue new shares upon settlement of these
awards.

RSUs

Prior to our public offering, all RSU awards were classified as liability awards as they were payable in cash. In November 2010 we
reclassified all of the RSU liability awards to equity for those awards that became payable in shares in accordance with the plan terms.

The following table summarizes information about our RSUs under the 2009 GMLTIP and GMSSP (RSUs in millions):

Successor
Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining
Grant Date  Contractual
Shares  Fair Value Term
RSUs outstanding at December 31, 2010 . ... ... ottt 17.2 $19.03 1.8
] =21 (T 7.6 $31.18
Settled .. (1.2) $18.85
Forfeited Or eXpired . ... ..o o (1.1)  $22.01
RSUs outstanding at December 31, 2011 .. ... ... & $23.01 1.1
RSUs unvested and expected to vest at December 31,2011 . .......... ... i 14.0 $23.47 15
RSUs vested and payable at December 31,2011 . ... ... .. i 81 $22.07 —
RSUs granted in the year ended December 31,2010 . ......... .. i $19.17
RSUs granted in the period July 10, 2009 through December 31,2009 ......................... $16.39

We recorded compensation expense of $233 million, $235 million and $23 million for our stock incentive plans in the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 and in the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009. The compensation cost of each RSU
granted under the 2009 GMLTIP and GMSSP that will be settled in equity is based on the fair value of our common stock on the date
of grant or, for those RSUs reclassified from liability to equity-based awards, the fair value of our common stock as of the date of the
public offering.

At December 31, 2011 the total unrecognized compensation expense for nonvested equity awards granted under the 2009 GMLTIP
was $263 million. This expense is expected to be recorded over a weighted-average period of 1.5 years.

The total fair value of RSUs vested was $105 million, $78 million and $19 million in the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
and in the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009.

Old GM

Old GM had various stock incentive plans which were administered by either its Executive Compensation Committee of its Board
of Directors or its Vice President of Human Resources. Stock incentive awards consisted of stock options, market-contingent stock
options, stock performance awards and cash-based RSUs. Stock incentive awards, some of which were subject to performance
conditions, were granted at fair value and were subject to various vesting conditions. In connection with the 363 Sale, MLC retained
the responsibility for administering Old GM’s stock incentive plans. We have recorded no compensation expense related to Old GM’s
stock incentive plans subsequent to July 9, 2009.
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Note 28. Transactions with Ally Financial

Automotive

The following tables summarize the financial statement effects of and maximum obligations under agreements with Ally Financial
(dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31, December 31,
2011 2010

Residual support (a)

Liabilities (receivables) recorded . ... ... . it $ (6) $ (29

Maximum obligation . ... ... ... $ 40 $ 523
Risk sharing (a)

Liabilities recorded . ... ... $ 66 $ 269

Maximum obligation . ... ... ... $ 88 $ 692
Vehicle repurchase obligations (b)

Maximum Obligations . ... ... ... $19,779 $18,807

Fair value of QUAraNtBE ... .. ... ...t $ 17 $ 21

(@) Represents liabilities (receivables) recorded and maximum obligations for agreements entered into prior to December 31, 2008.
Agreements entered into after December 31, 2008 have not included residual support or risk sharing programs. In the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 favorable adjustments to our residual support and risk sharing liabilities of $0.5 billion and $0.6
billion were recorded in the U.S. due to increases in estimated residual values.

(b) The maximum potential amount of future payments required to be made to Ally Financial under this guarantee is based on the
repurchase value of total eligible vehicles financed by Ally Financial in dealer stock. If vehicles are required to be repurchased
under this arrangement, the total exposure would be reduced to the extent vehicles are able to be resold.

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended Year Ended July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
December 31, December 31, Through Through
2011 2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
U.S. marketing incentives and operating lease residual payments . .. $1,428 $1,111 $695 $601
Exclusivity feeincome . ....... ... . $ 76 $ 99 $ 47 $ 52

Marketing Incentives and Operating Lease Residuals

Under an interest rate support program, we pay an amount at the time of lease or retail contract origination to adjust the interest rate
in the retail contract or implicit in the lease below Ally Financial’s standard interest rate. The amount paid at contract origination
represents the present value of the difference between the customer’s contractual rate and Ally Financial’s standard rate for a given
program.

Under a residual support program, a customer’s contract residual value is adjusted above Ally Financial’s standard residual value.
We reimburse Ally Financial to the extent sales proceeds are less than the customer’s contract residual value, limited to Ally
Financial’s standard residual value. The residual support amount owed is calculated at contract termination and, in cases where the
amount differs from the expected amount paid at contract origination, the difference is paid to or paid by Ally Financial.

Under a risk-sharing arrangement, residual losses are shared equally with Ally Financial to the extent remarketing proceeds are
below Ally Financial’s standard residual value (limited to a floor).

Under a capitalized cost reduction program, we pay an amount at the time of lease or retail contract origination to reduce the
principal amount implicit in the lease or retail contract below the standard manufacturers’ suggested retail price.
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Under a lease pull-ahead program, a customer is encouraged to terminate their lease early and buy or lease a new GM vehicle. Ally
Financial waives the customer’s remaining payment obligation under their current lease and Ally Financial is compensated for any
foregone revenue from the waived payments. Since these programs generally accelerate the resale of the vehicle, the proceeds are
typically higher than if the vehicle had been sold at contract maturity. The reimbursement to Ally Financial for the foregone payments
is reduced by the amount of this benefit.

Exclusivity Arrangements

We have entered into exclusivity agreements with Ally Financial whereby: (1) for a two-year period, retail financing incentive
programs can be offered through a third party financing source under certain specified circumstances, and after such two-year period
beginning in January 2011 any such incentive programs can be offered on a graduated basis through third parties on a non-exclusive
basis, or if Ally Financial matches the rates offered by such third party on a side-by-side basis with Ally Financial; (2) Ally Financial
has no obligation to provide financing; and (3) Ally Financial has no targets against which it could be assessed penalties. After
December 24, 2013 we will have the right to offer retail financing incentive programs through any third party financing source,
including Ally Financial, without any restrictions or limitations.

Contractual Exposure Limit

We have an agreement with Ally Financial that limits certain unsecured obligations arising from service agreements to Ally
Financial to $1.5 billion and limits the sum of maximum unsecured exposure and maximum secured exposure to the greater of $3.0
billion or 15% of Ally Financial’s capital from and after December 30, 2010.

Vehicle Repurchase Obligations

Our agreement with Ally Financial requires the repurchase of Ally Financial financed inventory invoiced to dealers with limited
exclusions, in the event of a qualifying voluntary or involuntary termination of the dealer’s sales and service agreement. The
repurchase obligation ended in August 2010 for vehicles invoiced through August 2009, ended in August 2011 for vehicles invoiced
through August 2010, ends in August 2012 for vehicles invoiced through August 2011 and ends in August 2013 for vehicles invoiced
through August 2012.

The maximum potential amount of future payments under this guarantee is based on the repurchase value of total eligible vehicles
financed by Ally Financial in dealer stock. If vehicles are required to be repurchased under this arrangement, the total exposure would be
reduced to the extent vehicles are able to be resold to another dealer. The fair value of the guarantee, which considers the likelihood of
dealers terminating and estimated loss exposure for ultimate disposition of vehicles, was recorded as a reduction of revenue.

Balance Sheet

The following table summarizes the balance sheet effects of transactions with Ally Financial (dollars in millions):

Successor
December 31, December 31,
2011 2010

Assets

Accounts and notes receivable, NEL (2) ... ... .. $ 243 $ 290
Other assets (D) ... ..ot $ 26
Liabilities

Accounts payable (C) ... ..o $ 59 $ 168
Short-term debt and current portion of long-termdebt (d) .......... .. .. $1,068 $1,043
Accrued liabilities and other liabilities (8) . ... $ 650 $1,167
LONg-TerM debt (F) . ... $ 8 $ 43
Other non-current liabilities (@) . . .« . oo oo $ 35 $ 84
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(@) Represents wholesale settlements due from Ally Financial and receivables for exclusivity fees and royalties.
(b) Represents distributions due from Ally Financial on our investments in Ally Financial preferred stock.
(c) Represents amounts billed to us and payable related to incentive programs.

(d) Represents wholesale financing, sales of receivable transactions and the short-term portion of term loans provided to certain
dealerships which we own or in which we have an equity interest.

(e) Represents accruals for marketing incentives on vehicles which are sold, or anticipated to be sold, to customers or dealers and
financed by Ally Financial in North America. This includes the estimated amount of residual and rate support accrued,
capitalized cost reduction incentives and amounts owed under lease pull-ahead programs.

(f) Represents the long-term portion of term loans from Ally Financial to certain consolidated dealerships.
(g) Represents long-term portion of liabilities for marketing incentives on vehicles financed by Ally Financial.

Statement of Operations

The following table summarizes the income statement effects of transactions with Ally Financial (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended Year Ended July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
December 31, December 31, Through Through
2011 2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Total net sales and revenue (decrease) (@) . .............oovvunn. $(1,468) $(1,383) $(259) $207
Automotive cost of sales and other automotive expenses (b) ....... $ 16 $ 36 $ 113 $180
Interest income and other non-operating income, net (¢) .......... $ 126 $ 228 $ 127 $166
Automotive interest expense (d) .. ... $ 63 $ 243 $121 $100

(@) Represents marketing incentives on vehicles which were sold, or anticipated to be sold, to customers or dealers and financed by
Ally Financial. This includes the estimated amount of residual and rate support accrued, capitalized cost reduction incentives and
costs under lease pull-ahead programs. This amount is offset by net sales for vehicles sold to Ally Financial for employee and
governmental lease programs and third party resale purposes.

(b) Represents cost of sales on the sale of vehicles to Ally Financial for employee and governmental lease programs and third party
resale purposes.

(c) Represents income on investments in Ally Financial preferred stock (through March 31, 2011), exclusivity and royalty fee
income. Included in this amount is rental income related to Ally Financial’s primary executive and administrative offices located
in the Renaissance Center in Detroit, Michigan. The lease agreement expires in November 2016.

(d) Represents interest incurred on notes payable and wholesale settlements.
Note 29. Supplementary Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)
Consolidated

The following tables summarize supplementary quarterly financial information (dollars in millions, except per share amounts):

Successor
1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

2011

Total netsales and reVENUE . . . ... it $36,194  $39,373 $36,719 $37,990
AULOMOLIVE groSS MANGIN . ..\ttt ettt ettt $ 4214  $ 5250 $ 4594  $ 4,422
NELINCOME ..t e $ 3411  $ 3,037 $ 2,092 $ 747
Net income attributable to stockholders ............. ... ... ... ... .. . . .. ..., $ 3366 $ 2992 $ 2,107 $ 725
Earnings per share, basic .. ..........uuur $ 209 $ 168 $ 110 $ 0.30
Earnings per share, diluted . ........ ... ... .. . . $ 1.77 $ 154 $ 1.03 $ 0.28
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Successor

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
2010
Total net sales and rEVENUE . . . .. oottt et e e e e e e e et $31,476 $33,174 $34,060 $36,882
AULOMOLIVE groSS MANGiN . ..\ v vttt ettt $ 3923  $ 4,565 $ 4,473  $ 3,582
NELINCOME ottt e $ 1,196 $ 1,612 $ 2,223 $ 1,472
Net income attributable to stockholders .. ..., $ 1,068 $ 1,536 $ 2,162 $ 1,406
Earnings per share, Dasic ... ..........uuru $ 058 $ 0.89 $ 131 $ 034
Earnings per share, diluted ... .........c.. $ 055 $ 085 $ 120 $ o031
GM

In the three months ended June 30, September 30, and December 31, 2011 we used the two-class method for calculating earnings

per share because Series B Preferred Stock became a participating security.

Results for the three months ended December 31, 2011 included:

Goodwill impairment charge of $891 million in GMIO and GME.

*  Impairment charge of $555 million related to Ally Financial common stock.
*  Reversal of deferred income tax valuation allowances of $502 million in Australia.

Results for the three months ended March 31, 2011 included:

Settlement gain of $749 million related to termination of CAW hourly retiree healthcare benefits.

e Gain of $1.6 billion related to the sale of our Class A Membership Interests in New Delphi.

e Goodwill impairment charge of $395 million in GME.

e Gain of $339 million related to the sale of 100% of our investment in the Ally Financial preferred stock.

Results for the three months ended December 31, 2010 included:

»  Acharge of $677 million related to our purchase of 84 million shares of Series A Preferred Stock from the UST.

Note 30. Segment Reporting

Consolidated

We analyze the results of our business through our five segments: GMNA, GME, GMIO, GMSA and GM Financial. Each segment
has a manager responsible for executing our strategies. Our automotive manufacturing operations are integrated within the segments,
benefit from broad-based trade agreements and are subject to regulatory requirements, such as Corporate Average Fuel Economy
regulations. While not all vehicles within a segment are individually profitable on a fully loaded cost basis, those vehicles are needed
in our product mix in order to attract customers to dealer showrooms and to maintain sales volumes for other, more profitable
vehicles. Because of these factors, we do not manage our business on an individual brand or vehicle basis. The chief operating
decision maker evaluates the operating results and performance of our automotive segments through Income (loss) before interest and
income taxes, as adjusted for additional amounts, and evaluates GM Financial through Income (loss) before income taxes.
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Substantially all of the cars, trucks and parts produced are marketed through retail dealers in North America, and throu
distributors and dealers outside of North America, the substantial majority of which are independently owned.

In addition to the products sold to dealers for consumer retail sales, cars and trucks are also sold to fleet customers, including d:
rental car companies, commercial fleet customers, leasing companies and governments. Sales to fleet customers are compl
through the network of dealers and in some cases sold directly to fleet customers. Retail and fleet customers can obtain a wide ra
of aftersale vehicle services and products through the dealer network, such as maintenance, light repairs, collision repairs, veh
accessories and extended service warranties.

GMNA primarily meets the demands of customers in North America with vehicles developed, manufactured and/or marketed und
the following four brands:

¥ Buick ¥ Cadillac ¥  Chevrolet ¥ GMC

The demands of customers outside of North America are primarily met with vehicles developed, manufactured and/or market
under the following brands:

¥  Buick ¥  Chevrolet ¥ GMC ¥  Opel
¥ Cadillac ¥ Daewoo ¥ Holden ¥  Vauxhall

At December 31, 2011 we also had equity ownership stakes directly or indirectly in entities through various regional subsidiarie
including GM Korea, SGM, SGMW, FAW-GM and HKJV. These companies design, manufacture and market vehicles under th
following brands:

¥  Alpheon ¥  Buick ¥  Chevrolet ¥  Jiefang
¥  Baojun ¥  Cadillac ¥ Daewoo ¥  Wauling

Nonsegment operations are classified as Corporate. Corporate includes investments in Ally Financial, certain centrally record
income and costs, such as interest, income taxes and corporate expenditures and certain nonsegment specific revenues and exper

All intersegment balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
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Successor

Total GM
GMNA GME GMIO GMSA Corporate Eliminations Automotive Financial Eliminations Total

At and For the Year Ended December 31,

2010
Sales
External customers .................... $79,514 $22,868 $17,730 $15065 $ 134 $ — $135311 $ — $— $135,311
GM Financial revenue ................. — — — — — — — 281 — 281
Intersegment (@) ... 3,521 1,208 2,831 314 — (7,874) — — — —
Total netsalesand revenue . ............... $83,035 $24,076 $20,561 $15379 $ 134 $ (7,874)  $135311 $ 281 $— $135,592
Income (loss) before automotive interest and
income taxes-adjusted . ................. $ 5,688 $(1,953)$ 2,262 $ 818 $ 191 $ (105 $ 6901 $ 129 $— $ 7,030
Adjustments (b) . .. ... 447
Corporate interestincome ................. 465
Automotive interestexpense . . ............. 1,098
Income (loss) before income taxes .......... 6,844
Income tax expense (benefit) .............. 672
Net income attributable to stockholders . . . ... $ 6,172
Equity in net assets of nonconsolidated
affiliates .......... ... ...l $ 2,094 $ 8$6427% — $ — $ — $ 8529 $ — $— $ 8,529
Total assets (C) . vvvvvvi $76,333 $18,375 $19,655 $12,040 $23,306 $(21,707)  $128,002  $10,940 $(44) $138,898
Expenditures for property ................. $2380 % 634 $ 729 % 411 $ 46 $ — $ 4200 $ 2 $— $ 4,202
Depreciation, amortization and impairment of
long-lived assets and finite-lived intangible
ASSELS . . $ 4434 $ 1476 $ 349 $ 496 $ 168 $ — $ 6923 $ 7 $— $ 6,930
Equity income (loss), netoftax ............ $ 120 % 11 $ 1307 $ 2 $ 2 $ — $ 1438 $ — $— $ 1,438
Significant noncash charges (gains) not
classified as adjustments in (b)
Net contingent Adjustment Shares .. ... ... $ —% —8% —3% — $ (162) 3 — $ (162) $ — $— $  (162)
Reversal of valuation allowances against
deferred tax assets (d) ................ — — — — (63) — (63) — — (63)
Impairment charges related to long-lived
aSSetS ... ... 234 — 6 — — — 240 — — 240
Impairment charges related to equipment on
operating leases . .................... — 49 — — — — 49 — — 49
Total significant noncash charges (gains) . . . . . $ 234 % 49% 6 — $ (225 % — $ 64 $ — $— $ 64

(a) Presentation of intersegment sales has been adjusted to conform to the current presentation.

(b) Consists of a gain on the sale of Nexteer of $60 million in GMNA, a gain on the sale of Saab of $123 million, a gain on acquisition of GMS of $66 million in GME
and a gain on the extinguishment of the VEBA Notes of $198 million in Corporate.

(c) Intercompany receivables between segments have been eliminated for presentation purposes as these amounts are not expected to be paid.

(d) Amounts exclude changes related to income tax expense (benefits) in jurisdictions with a full valuation allowance throughout the period.
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Successor

Total
GMNA GME GMIO GMSA  Corporate Eliminations Automotive

For the Period July 10, 2009 Through

December 31, 2009
Sales

External customers ............. ... $31,454 $11,340 $7,221 $7,318  $141 $ — $57,474

Intersegment (8) . .. ... 972 139 906 81 — (2,098) —
Total netsalesand revenue ........................ $32,426 $11,479 $8,127 $7,399  $141 $(2,098)  $57,474
Income (loss) before interest and income

taxes-adjusted ... ... $(2,065) $ (814) $ 789 $ 417  $133 $ (45) $(1,585)
Adjustments (D) . ... ... (3,202)
Interest inCOmMe . ... ... .. 184
INterest eXpense .. ...t 694
Income (loss) before incometaxes .................. (5,297)
Income tax expense (benefit) ...................... (1,000)
Net income (loss) attributable to stockholders ......... $(4,297)
Expenditures for property ............. ... ... ..... $ 911 $ 547 $ 272 $ 131 $ 1 $ — $1862

Depreciation, amortization and impairment of long-

lived assets and finite-lived intangible assets . .. ... $2732 $ 938 $ 237 $ 224  $110 $ — $ 4,241

Equity income (loss), netoftax .................... $ NS 8 $49% $ 1 $— $ — & 497
Significant noncash charges (gains) not classified as

adjustments in (b)

Contingent Adjustment Shares ................... $ — 8¢ — 8 — & — 162 $ — $ 162

Reversal of valuation allowances against deferred tax

ASSEES (C) v v vt — — — — (63) — (63)

Total significant noncash charges ................... $) — & — 8 — 8 — $99 $ — $ 99

(@) Presentation of intersegment sales has been adjusted to conform to the current presentation.

(b) Consists of the UAW OPEB health care settlement loss of $2.6 billion, charges related to Delphi of $83 million and a loss on
extinguishment of debt of $101 million in GMNA, impairment charges related to Ally Financial common stock of $270 million
and charges related to Delphi of $177 million in Corporate.

(c) Amounts exclude changes related to income tax expense (benefits) in jurisdictions with a full valuation allowance throughout the
period.
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For the Period January 1, 2009 Through
July 9, 2009

Sales
External customers ............ ... ... . ...
Intersegment .......... .. ...

Total netsalesand revenue ......................
Income (loss) before interest and income taxes ... ...

Interestincome ......... ... . .
Interest expense . ...

Income (loss) before income taxes ................

Income tax expense (benefit) ....................
Net income attributable to stockholders ............

Expenditures for property .......... ... .
Depreciation, amortization and impairment of long-
lived assets and finite-lived intangible assets ......
Equity in income of and disposition of interest in Ally
Financial ............ ... ... ... ... . ... ...,
Equity income (loss), netoftax...................
Significant noncash charges (gains)
Gain on extinguishmentof debt ................
Loss on extinguishment of UST Ally Financial
Loan . ...
Gain on conversion of UST Ally Financial Loan . ..
Reversal of valuation allowances against deferred
taxassets (@) ...
Impairment charges related to equipment on
operating leases . ............ .. i
Impairment charges related to long-lived assets . . . .
Reorganization gains, net(0) .. .................

Total significant noncash charges (gains) ...........

Predecessor

Total
GMNA GME GMIO GMSA Corporate  Eliminations Automotive
$23,490 $12,419 $5194 $5685 $ 27 $ — $ 47115
701 133 1,024 51 —  (1,909) —
$24,191 $12,552 $6,218 $5,736 $ 327 $(1,909) $ 47,115
$(11,092) $(2,815) $ (486) $ (454) $127,981 $ 63  $113,197
183 183
5,428 5,428
$ 122,736 107,952
(1,166)
$ 109,118
$ 2282 $ 795 $ 279 $ 137 $ 24 $ — $ 3517
$ 4759 $ 1492 $ 386 $ 94 $ 142 $ — $ 6873
$ - $%$ — 3% —$ — $ 1380 $ — $ 1380
$ @17 $ 3 $334 $ — § 1 $ — 3 61
$ - % — % — % — 3 (906) $ — $ (906)
_ - - 1,994 — 1,994
— — — — (2,477) — (2,477)
— — — — (751) — (751)
11 36 — — 16 — 63
320 237 7 2 — — 566
— — — —  (128,563) —  (128,563)
$ 331 $ 273 % 7% 2 $(130,687) $ —  $(130,074)

(@ Amounts exclude changes related to income tax benefits in jurisdictions with a full valuation allowance throughout the period.

(b) Refer to Note 32 for additional information on Reorganization gains, net.
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Automotive revenue is attributed to geographic areas based on the country in which the product is sold, except for revenue from
certain joint ventures. In such case, the revenue is attributed based on the geographic location of the joint venture. Automotive
Financing revenue is attributed to the geographic area where the financing is originated. The following table summarizes information

concerning principal geographic areas (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
At and For the Period At and For the Period
At and For the At and For the July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Net Long Net Long Net Long Net Long
Sales & Lived Sales & Lived Sales & Lived Sales & Lived
Revenue Assets Revenue Assets Revenue Assets Revenue Assets
North America
US. $ 79,868 $11,736 $ 72,736 $10,351 $28,007 $10,245 $21,152 $20,742
Canadaand Mexico ................. 10,153 3,227 10,195 2,773 4,682 3,031 3,486 5,943
GM Financial
US. 1,363 532 279 46
Canada..........oooiiiiiiiiin.. 47 300 2 1
Europe
France ......... ... .. i 2,343 73 1,820 63 923 17 1,024 67
Germany ............ i 5,975 2,348 5,004 1,852 2,851 2,299 3,817 3,670
Italy ... 2,429 55 2,509 176 1,119 192 1,221 169
Spain ... 1,263 464 1,398 665 862 778 609 1,206
United Kingdom .................... 4,899 815 5,253 761 2,531 815 2,749 1,189
Other European Countries ............ 8,284 975 6,905 764 3,046 839 3,024 1,821
Asia
Korea..............coiiiiiiin., 9,087 1,874 7,301 1,519 3,014 982 2,044 1,941
Thailand .......................... 911 582 561 341 166 151 103 383
Other Asian Countries ............... 496 147 482 74 575 47 435 347
South America
Argentina ........ .. 1,723 164 1,215 183 436 195 363 131
Brazil ............. ... .. ... ... ..., 9,635 2,077 9,513 1,425 4,910 1,142 3,347 1,081
Venezuela ............. ... ... ..., 1,472 48 1,130 47 850 46 981 43
Other South American Countries .. ..... 3,801 196 3,220 166 1,136 157 984 102
All Other Geographic Locations . ......... 6,527 664 6,069 643 2,366 481 1,776 1,158
Total consolidated . .................... $150,276 $26,277 $135,592 $21,850 $57,474 $21,417 $47,115 $39,993
The following table summarizes the aggregation of principal geographic information by U.S. and non-U.S. (dollars in millions):
Successor Predecessor
At and For the Period At and For the Period
At and For the At and For the July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Net Long Net Long Net Long Net Long
Sales & Lived Sales & Lived Sales & Lived Sales & Lived
Revenue Assets Revenue Assets Revenue Assets Revenue Assets
US. $ 81,231 $12,268 $ 73,015 $10,397 $28,007 $10,245 $21,152 $20,742
Non-US. ... ... 69,045 14,009 62,577 11,453 29,467 11,172 25,963 19,251

Total U.S.andnon-U.S. ................

$150,276 $26,277 $135,592 $21,850

$57,474  $21,417

$47,115 $39,993
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Note 31. Supplemental Information for Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

The following table summarizes the sources (uses) of cash provided by Automotive Increase (decrease) in other operating assets

and liabilities and cash paid for income taxes and interest (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through

December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009

Accountsreceivable . .......... ... $(1,572) $ (641) $ 660 $  (268)

Prepaid expenses and other deferred charges ............ (195) 299 315 1,416

INVENEONIES .« . o\t e (2,760) (2,229) (315) 3,509

Accounts payable . ........ .. 2,095 2,259 5,363 (8,846)

Income taxes payable .......... ... .. ... L (289) 51 401 606

Accrued liabilities and other liabilities ................. (654) (92) (3,225) (6,815)

Equipment on operating leases ....................... (522) (628) 173 169

Total ..o $(3,897) $ (981) $ 3,372 $(10,229)
Cash paid for income taxes and interest

Cash paid (received) for incometaxes ................. $ 569 $ 357 $ (65 $ (1,011)

Cash paid for interest — Automotive .................. $ 317 $ 1,001 $ 618 $ 2,513

Cash paid for interest — GM Financial ................ 284 66
Total cash paid forinterest ........... ... ... .........

Significant Non-Cash Activity

Investing Cash Flows

The following table summarizes the amounts of unpaid property acquisitions that have been excluded from Expenditures for
property within the investing activities section of the consolidated statement of cash flows because no cash has been expended (dollars

in millions):
Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Accrued expenditures for property .................... $3,689 $2,290 $1,710 $2,124

Financing Cash Flows

The following table summarizes the amounts relating to non-cash financing activities that have been excluded from the financing

activities section of the consolidated statements of cash flows because no cash has been received (dollars in millions):

Successor Predecessor
July 10, 2009 January 1, 2009
Year Ended Year Ended Through Through
December 31,2011 December 31,2010 December 31, 2009 July 9, 2009
Common stock contributed to U.S. hourly and salaried
pension plans ............ .o $1,864 $— $ — $—
Notes issued to settle CAW hourly retiree healthcare
PIaN $1,122 $— $ — $—
UAW hourly retiree medical plan:
Common stock and warrants contributed to VEBA ... .. $ — $— $5,156 $—
Notes contributed to VEBA . ............. ... .. $ — $— $2,825 $—
Series A Preferred Stock contributed to VEBA ........ $ — $— $5,257 $—
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Refer to Note 18 for additional information on the common stock contributed to our pension plans and warrants, common stock,
notes and preferred stock issued to settle certain hourly retirees healthcare benefit obligations.

Note 32. Chapter 11 Proceedings and the 363 Sale
Background

Over time as Old GM’s market share declined in North America, Old GM needed to continually restructure its business operations
to reduce cost and excess capacity. Legacy labor costs and obligations and capacity in its dealer network made Old GM less
competitive than new entrants into the U.S. market. These factors continued to strain Old GM’s liquidity. In 2005 Old GM incurred
significant losses from operations and from restructuring activities such as providing support to Delphi and other efforts intended to
reduce operating costs. Old GM managed its liquidity during this time through a series of cost reduction initiatives, capital markets
transactions and sales of assets. However, the global credit market crisis had a dramatic effect on Old GM and the automotive
industry. In the second half of 2008, the increased turmoil in the mortgage and overall credit markets (particularly the lack of
financing for buyers or lessees of vehicles), the continued reductions in U.S. housing values, the volatility in the price of oil,
recessions in the U.S. and Western Europe and the slowdown of economic growth in the rest of the world created a substantially more
difficult business environment. The ability to execute capital markets transactions or sales of assets was extremely limited, vehicle
sales in North America and Western Europe contracted severely and the pace of vehicle sales in the rest of the world slowed. Old
GM’s liquidity position, as well as its operating performance, were negatively affected by these economic and industry conditions and
by other financial and business factors, many of which were beyond its control.

As a result of these economic conditions and the rapid decline in sales in the three months ended December 31, 2008 Old GM
determined that, despite the actions it had then taken to restructure its U.S. business, it would be unable to pay its obligations in the
normal course of business in 2009 or service its debt in a timely fashion, which required the development of a new plan that depended
on financial assistance from the U.S. government.

In December 2008 Old GM requested and received financial assistance from the U.S. government and entered into the UST Loan
Agreement. In early 2009 Old GM’s business results and liquidity continued to deteriorate, and, as a result, Old GM obtained
additional funding from the UST under the UST Loan Agreement. Old GM also received funding from EDC under the EDC Loan
Facility.

As a condition to obtaining the loans under the UST Loan Agreement, Old GM was required to submit a plan in February 2009 that
included specific actions (Viability Plan) intended to result in the following:

* Repayment of all loans, interest and expenses under the UST Loan Agreement, and all other funding provided by the U.S.
government;

e Compliance with federal fuel efficiency and emissions requirements and commencement of domestic manufacturing of
advanced technology vehicles;

*  Achievement of a positive net present value, using reasonable assumptions and taking into account all existing and projected
future costs;

» Rationalization of costs, capitalization and capacity with respect to its manufacturing workforce, suppliers and dealerships;
and

* A product mix and cost structure that is competitive in the U.S. marketplace.

The UST Loan Agreement also required Old GM to, among other things, use its best efforts to achieve the following restructuring
targets: (1) debt reduction of at least two-thirds; (2) labor modifications to achieve an average compensation competitive with that of
foreign-owned U.S. domiciled automakers; and, (3) modification of certain retiree healthcare obligations.
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The UST Loan Agreement provided that if, by March 31, 2009 or a later date (not to exceed 30 days after March 31, 2009) as
determined by the Presidential Task Force on the Auto Industry (Auto Task Force) (Certification Deadline), the Auto Task Force had
not certified that Old GM had taken all steps necessary to achieve and sustain its long-term viability, international competitiveness
and energy efficiency in accordance with the Viability Plan, then the loans and other obligations under the UST Loan Agreement were
to become due and payable on the thirtieth day after the Certification Deadline.

On March 30, 2009 the Auto Task Force determined that the plan was not viable and required substantial revisions. On March 31,
2009 Old GM and the UST agreed to postpone the Certification Deadline to June 1, 2009. Old GM made further modifications to its
Viability Plan in an attempt to satisfy the Auto Task Force requirement that it undertake a substantially more accelerated and
aggressive restructuring plan (Revised Viability Plan), the most significant of which included reducing Old GM’s indebtedness and
VEBA obligations.

Chapter 11 Proceedings

Old GM was not able to complete the cost reduction and restructuring actions in its Revised Viability Plan, including the debt
reductions and VEBA modifications, which resulted in extreme liquidity constraints. As a result, on June 1, 2009 Old GM and certain
of its direct and indirect subsidiaries sought relief through Chapter 11 Proceedings of the Bankruptcy Code in the Bankruptcy Court.

In connection with the Chapter 11 Proceedings, Old GM entered into the DIP Facility and received additional funding commitments
from EDC to support Old GM’s Canadian operations.

The following table summarizes the total funding and funding commitments Old GM received from the U.S. and Canadian
governments and the additional notes Old GM issued related thereto in the period December 31, 2008 through July 9, 2009 (dollars in
millions):

Predecessor

Funding
and Funding Additional
Commitments Notes Issued (a) Total Obligation

Description of Funding Commitment

UST Loan Agreement (D) .. ...ttt e $19,761 $1,172 $20,933
EDCTUNAING (C) .\ v e e e 6,294 161 6,455
DIP FaCility . oo e 33,300 2,221 35,521
Total o $59,355 $3,554 $62,909

(@) Old GM did not receive any proceeds from the issuance of these promissory notes, which were issued as additional compensation
to the UST and EDC.

(b) Includes debt of $361 million, which the UST loaned to Old GM under the warranty program.

(c) Includes approximately $2.4 billion from the EDC Loan Facility received in the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009 and
funding commitments of $3.9 billion that were immediately converted into our equity. This funding was received on July 15,
20009.

363 Sale
On July 10, 2009 we completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets and assumed certain liabilities of Old GM and
certain of its direct and indirect subsidiaries (collectively, the Sellers). The 363 Sale was consummated in accordance with a purchase

agreement also referred to as the Amended and Restated Master Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated June 26, 2009, as amended,
between us and the Sellers, and pursuant to the Bankruptcy Court’s sale order dated July 5, 2009.
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In connection with the 363 Sale, the purchase price paid to Old GM was composed of:

e A credit bid in an amount equal to the total of: (1) debt of $19.8 billion under Old GM’s UST Loan Agreement, plus notes of
$1.2 billion issued as additional compensation for the UST Loan Agreement, plus interest on such debt Old GM owed as of the
closing date of the 363 Sale; and (2) debt of $33.3 billion under Old GM’s DIP Facility, plus notes of $2.2 billion issued as
additional compensation for the DIP Facility, plus interest Old GM owed as of the closing date, less debt of $8.2 billion owed
under the DIP Facility;

e The UST’s return of the warrants Old GM previously issued to it;

e The issuance to MLC of shares of our common stock and warrants to acquire newly issued shares of our common stock as
presented in the table in the following section entitled “Issuance of Common Stock, Preferred Stock and Warrants;” and

e Our assumption of certain specified liabilities of Old GM (including debt of $7.1 billion owed under the DIP Facility).

Under the terms of the 363 Sale agreement, we are obligated to issue Adjustment Shares to the GUC Trust following the dissolution
of MLC in the event that allowed general unsecured claims against MLC, as approved by the Bankruptcy Court, exceed $35.0 billion.
Refer to Note 20 for a description of the contingently issuable Adjustment Shares.

Agreements with the UST, EDC and New VEBA

On July 10, 2009 we entered into the UST Credit Agreement and assumed debt of $7.1 billion maturing on July 10, 2015 that Old
GM incurred under its DIP Facility. Immediately after entering into the UST Credit Agreement, we made a partial prepayment,
reducing the UST Credit Agreement principal balance to $6.7 billion. We issued VEBA Notes in the principal amount of $2.5 billion
to the New VEBA. Through our wholly-owned subsidiary GMCL we also entered into the Canadian Loan with EDC, as a result of
which GMCL had a $1.3 billion term loan.

In December 2009 and March 2010 we made quarterly payments of $1.0 billion and $1.0 billion on the UST Credit Agreement and
GMCL made quarterly payments of $192 million and $194 million on the Canadian Loan. In April 2010, we used funds from our
escrow account to repay in full the outstanding amount of the UST Credit Agreement of $4.7 billion, and GMCL repaid in full the
outstanding amount of the Canadian Loan of $1.1 billion. Both loans were repaid prior to maturity. In October 2010 we repaid in full
the outstanding amount (together with accreted interest thereon) of the VEBA Notes of $2.8 billion.

Refer to Note 17 for additional information on the UST Credit Agreement, VEBA Notes and the Canadian Loan.
Issuance of Common Stock, Preferred Stock and Warrants

On July 10, 2009 we issued the following securities to the UST, Canada GEN Investment Corporation, a corporation organized
under the laws of Canada (Canada Holdings), the New VEBA and MLC (shares in millions):

Successor
Series A
Common Stock  Preferred Stock (b)
UST o 912 84
Canada HoldiNgs . . . ..o 175 16
NEW VEBA (8) ..ottt et e e e e e e 263 260
ML C () . oottt 150 —
1,500 360

(@) New VEBA also received a tranche of warrants to acquire 46 million shares of our common stock and MLC received two tranches of warrants,
each to acquire 136 million shares of our common stock. Refer to Note 25 for additional description of warrants.

(b) Refer to Note 25 for a description of the Series A Preferred Stock.
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Additional Modifications to Pension and Other Postretirement Plans Contingent upon the Completion of the 363 Sale

We modified the U.S. hourly pension plan, the U.S. executive retirement plan, the U.S. salaried life plan, the non-UAW hourly
retiree medical plan and the U.S. hourly life plan. These modifications became effective upon the completion of the 363 Sale. Refer to
Note 18 for description of the changes to these plans.

Accounting for the Effects of the Chapter 11 Proceedings and the 363 Sale
Chapter 11 Proceedings

ASC 852, “Reorganizations,” (ASC 852) is applicable to entities operating under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. ASC 852
generally does not affect the application of U.S. GAAP that we and Old GM followed to prepare the consolidated financial statements,
but it does require specific disclosures for transactions and events that were directly related to the Chapter 11 Proceedings and
transactions and events that resulted from ongoing operations.

Old GM prepared its consolidated financial statements in accordance with the guidance in ASC 852 in the period June 1, 2009
through July 9, 2009. Revenues, expenses, realized gains and losses, and provisions for losses directly related to the Chapter 11
Proceedings were recorded in Reorganization gains, net. Reorganization gains, net do not constitute an element of operating loss due
to their nature and due to the requirement of ASC 852 that they be reported separately. Cash amounts provided by or used in the
Chapter 11 Proceedings are separately disclosed in the statement of cash flows.

Application of Fresh-Start Reporting

The Bankruptcy Court did not determine a reorganization value in connection with the 363 Sale. Reorganization value is defined as
the value of our assets without liabilities. In order to apply fresh-start reporting, ASC 852 requires that total postpetition liabilities and
allowed claims be in excess of reorganization value and prepetition stockholders receive less than 50.0% of our common stock. Based
on our estimated reorganization value, we determined that on July 10, 2009 both the criteria of ASC 852 were met and, as a result, we
applied fresh-start reporting.

363 Sale and Fresh-Start Reporting Adjustments

The following table summarizes Old GM’s Reorganization gains, net, arising from the 363 Sale and fresh-start reporting (dollars in
millions):

Predecessor
January 1, 2009

Through

July 9, 2009
Change in net assets resulting from the application of fresh-start reporting . .......... ... i e $ 33,829
Fair value of New GM’s Series A Preferred Stock, common shares and warrants issued in363Sale .......................... 20,532
Gain from the conversion of debt owed to UST 10 BQUILY . . . ..ot ettt e e e e e e e e 31,561
Gain from the conversion of debt owed t0 EDC t0 €QUILY . . . . .o oottt 5,964
Gain from the modification and measurement of our VEBA obligation . ... .. ... 7,731
Gain from the modification and measurement of other employee benefitplans ........ ... . ... . i i 4,585
Gain from the settlement of net liabilities retained by MLC viathe 363 Sale . .......... .. e 25,177
Income tax benefit for release of valuation allowances and other tax adjustments .. ... 710

Other 363 Sale a0 USIMENTS . . . o ittt et e e e (21)
Total adjustments from the 363 Sale and fresh-start reporting .. ... oot 130,068

Adjustment recorded to Income tax benefit for release of valuation allowances and other tax adjustments ..................... (710)

Other 10SSES, NEL (B) . . o ot vttt e et e e e e e (1,203)
Total Reorganization gains, NEL . .. .. ..ottt e e e e e $128,155
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() Other losses, net primarily relate to costs incurred during Old GM’s Chapter 11 proceedings, including: losses of $958 million on
extinguishments of debt; losses of $398 million on contract rejections, settlements of claims and other lease terminations; professional fees of
$38 million; and a gain of $247 million related to the release of Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) associated with previously
designated derivative financial instruments.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed
in reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act) is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the specified time periods and accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our management, with the participation of our Chairman and CEO and Senior Vice President and CFO, evaluated the effectiveness
of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Exchange Act) at
December 31, 2011. Based on these evaluations, our CEO and CFO concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures required by
paragraph (b) of Rules 13a-15 or 15d-15 were effective as of December 31, 2011.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting



(Dollars in millions)

GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Description

Successor

For the year ended December 31, 2011
Allowances Deducted from Assets
Accounts and notes receivable (for doubtful receivables) . ..
Other investments and miscellaneous assets (receivables and
Other) .

For the year ended December 31, 2010
Allowances Deducted from Assets
Accounts and notes receivable (for doubtful receivables) . . .
Other investments and miscellaneous assets (receivables and
Other) .

For the period July 10, 2009 through December 31, 2009
Allowances Deducted from Assets
Accounts and notes receivable (for doubtful receivables) . . .
Other investments and miscellaneous assets (receivables and
Other) .

Predecessor

For the period January 1, 2009 through July 9, 2009
Allowances Deducted from Assets
Accounts and notes receivable (for doubtful receivables) . ..
Other investments and miscellaneous assets (receivables and
Other) .
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Effect of
Additions Additions Application
Balance at Charged to Charged to of Fresh- Balance at

Beginning  Costs and Other Start End of
of Period Expenses Accounts  Deductions  Reporting Period
$252 159 3 83 — $331
$ 7 37 — 6 — $ 38
$250 93 — 91 — $252
$ 7 — 14 14 — $ 7
$ — 251 — 1 — $250
$ — — 7 — —  $7
$422 1,482 76 6 (1,974) $ —
$ 43 — 3 — (46) $—
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General Information

Common Stock

GM common stock, $0.01 par
value, is listed on the New York
Stock Exchange and the Toronto
Stock Exchange.

Ticker symbol:
GM - New York Stock Exchange
GMM - Toronto Stock Exchange

Preferred Stock

4.75% GM Series B mandatory
convertible junior preferred stock,
$0.01 par value

Ticker symbol: GM PR B -
New York Stock Exchange

Annual Meeting

The GM Annual Meeting of
Stockholders will be held at

9:30 a.m. EDT on Tuesday, June 12,
2012, in Detroit, Michigan.

Stockholder Assistance
Stockholders of record requiring
information about their accounts
should contact:

Computershare Trust Company, N.A.

General Motors Company
P.O. Box 43078
Providence, RI 02940-3078

888-887-8945 or 781-575-3334
(from outside the United States,
Canada or Puerto Rico)

Computershare representatives
are available Monday through
Friday from 9 a.m. to 6 p.m. ET.
Automated phone service
(888-887-8945) and the
Computershare website at
www.computershare.com/gm
are always available.

For other information,
stockholders may contact:
GM Stockholder Services
General Motors Company
Mail Code 482-C25-A36
300 Renaissance Center
P.O. Box 300

Detroit, Ml 48265-3000
313-667-1500

Electronic Delivery

of Annual Meeting Materials
Stockholders may consent to
receive their GM annual report and
proxy materials via the Internet.
Stockholders of record may enroll
at www.computershare.com/gm.
If your GM stock is held through
a broker, bank or other nominee,
contact it directly.

Securities and Institutional
Analyst Queries

GM Investor Relations
General Motors Company
Mail Code 482-C29-D36
300 Renaissance Center
P.O. Box 300

Detroit, Ml 48265-3000
313-667-1669

Available Publications
GM’s Annual Report, Proxy
Statement, Forms 10-K
and 10-Q and Winning With
Integrity (code of ethics)
are available online at
www.gm.com/investor.

Printed copies may be requested
on our website or from GM
Stockholder Services at the
address listed above (allow four to
six weeks for delivery of materials).

Visit GM on the Internet

Learn more about General Motors
vehicles and services on our
website at www.gm.com.

GM Customer Assistance Centers
Satisfaction with your entire owner-
ship experience is important to us.
To request product information or to
receive assistance with your vehicle,
please contact the appropriate brand
via phone or Twitter:

Buick: 800-521-7300
or @BuickCustCare

Cadillac: 800-458-8006
or @CadillacCustSvc

Chevrolet: 800-222-1020
or @ChevyCustCare

GMC: 800-462-8782
or @GMCCustCare

HUMMER: 866-486-6376
or @ GMCustomerSvc

Oldsmobile: 800-442-6537
or @GMCustomerSvc

Pontiac: 800-762-2737
or @GMCustomerSvc

Saab: 855-880-0808
or @GMCustomerSvc

Saturn: 800-553-6000
or @ GMCustomerSvc

GM of Canada: 800-263-3777
GM Mobility: 800-323-9935

Other Products and Services
GM Card: 800-846-2273
OnStar: 888-667-8277

Principal Office

General Motors Company
300 Renaissance Center
P.O. Box 300

Detroit, Ml 48265-3000
313-556-5000

Please go to www.gmannualreport.com to view our new online
annual report—a view of our year, our strategy, our vehicles and more.
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